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TAKE ACTION AND VOTE TODAY
These materials are important and require your immediate attention. If you are in doubt as to how to make such decisions
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United States or elsewhere has expressed an opinion about, or passed upon the fairness or merits of, the transactions
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YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. PLEASE VOTE TODAY.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual and special meeting (the “Evrim Meeting”) of the holders (the “Evrim
Shareholders”) of common shares (the “Evrim Shares”) of Evrim Resources Corp. (the “Company” or “Evrim”)
will be held at 1201 – 510 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, BC, V6B 1L8, on August 12, 2020 at 9:00 a.m.
(Vancouver time). To mitigate potential risks to the health and safety of Evrim Shareholders, employees and service
providers for the Evrim Meeting, the Company is urging Evrim Shareholders and others not to attend the Evrim
Meeting in person. In person attendance may be restricted altogether. Instead, Evrim Shareholders should vote on the
matters before the Evrim Meeting by proxy and participate in the Evrim Meeting by way of a conference call. Evrim
Shareholders will be able to ask questions of management through the conference call at the conclusion of the Evrim
Meeting as usual. Details with respect to the conference call are set out below.
Dial in Number:

604-678-8031

North America Toll-free:

1-866-875-9697

Conference ID:

6097711

The Evrim Meeting will be held to consider the following:
1.

to receive and consider the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial period ended
December 31, 2019, together with the auditors’ report thereon;

2.

to elect the directors of the Company for the ensuing year;

3.

to appoint the auditors of the Company for the ensuing year;

4.

to authorize the directors to fix the auditors’ remuneration for the ensuing year;

5.

to consider and if thought appropriate, pass, an ordinary resolution to re-adopt and re-approve the stock option
plan of the Company, as more particularly described in the accompanying Management Information Circular
(the “Circular”);

6.

to consider and, if thought advisable, to pass, with or without variation, an ordinary resolution (the “Evrim
Resolution”) to approve the Arrangement (as defined in the Circular) and the transactions contemplated by
the Arrangement Agreement (as defined in the Circular). The full text of the Evrim Resolution is set forth in
Appendix A to the accompanying Circular; and

7.

to transact such further and other business as may properly be brought before the Evrim Meeting or any
adjournment or postponement thereof.

The Circular includes more detailed information relating to the matters to be considered at the Evrim Meeting.
The record date for determining the Evrim Shareholders entitled to receive notice of and vote at the Evrim Meeting is
the close of business on June 29, 2020.
An Evrim Shareholder may attend the Evrim Meeting in person or may be represented at the Evrim Meeting by proxy.
Registered Evrim Shareholders who are unable to attend the Evrim Meeting, or an adjournment thereof, in person are
requested to complete, date, and sign the accompanying form of proxy and deliver it in accordance with the
instructions set out in the form of proxy and in the accompanying Circular.
Forms of proxy must be returned to Computershare Investor Services Inc. (“Computershare”), Evrim’s transfer
agent, prior to 9:00 a.m. (Vancouver time) at least two days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the
Evrim Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the Evrim Meeting. The time limit for deposit of proxies may
be waived or extended by the Chair of the Evrim Meeting at his or her discretion, without notice.
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If you are a non-registered holder of Evrim Shares and a non-objecting beneficial owner, and receive a voting
instruction form from Computershare, please complete and return the voting instruction form provided to you in
accordance with the instructions provided with the voting instruction form and in the accompanying Circular. If you
are a beneficial Evrim Shareholder and an objecting beneficial owner and have received these materials through your
broker or through another intermediary, please complete and return the voting instruction form provided to you by
your broker or other intermediary in accordance with the instructions provided therein.
Evrim Shareholders who are planning to return the form of proxy or a voting instruction form are encouraged to review
the accompanying Circular carefully before submitting the form of proxy or voting instruction form.
Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares that you own. Whether or not you expect to attend the
Evrim Meeting in person, we encourage you to vote your form of proxy or voting instruction form, as applicable, as
promptly as possible to ensure that your vote will be counted at the Evrim Meeting.
THE EVRIM BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT EVRIM
SHAREHOLDERS VOTE FOR THE EVRIM RESOLUTION.
DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, this 8th day of July, 2020.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Signed)

“J. Patrick Nicol”
J. Patrick Nicol
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
“1933 Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, of the United States of America, and the rules and
regulations promulgated from time to time thereunder;
“2018 Plan” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Approval of Stock Option Plan”;
“Acquisition Proposal” means, other than the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement, any offer,
proposal, expression of interest, or inquiry, whether oral or written, from any person (other than a Party or any of its
affiliates) made after the date of the Arrangement Agreement relating to: (i) any sale or disposition (or any lease or
other arrangement having the same economic effect as a sale), direct or indirect, of: (a) the assets of a Party that,
individually or in the aggregate, constitute 20% or more of the consolidated assets of such Party and its subsidiaries
taken as a whole; or (b) 20% or more of any voting or equity securities of a Party or any of its subsidiaries whose
assets, individually or in the aggregate, constitute 20% or more of the consolidated assets of such Party and its
subsidiaries, taken as a whole; (ii) any take-over bid, tender offer or exchange offer for any class of voting or equity
securities of a Party; (iii) a plan of arrangement, merger, amalgamation, consolidation, share exchange, business
combination, reorganization, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving a Party or
any of its subsidiaries whose assets, individually or in the aggregate, constitute 20% or more of the consolidated assets
of such Party and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole; or (iv) any other similar transaction or series of related transactions
involving such Party;
“AngloGold” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Summary – Parties to the Arrangement –
Renaissance”;
“Arrangement” means the arrangement under Part 9, Division 5 of the BCBCA on the terms and subject to the
conditions set out in the Plan of Arrangement, subject to any amendments or variations thereto in accordance with
Section 8.3 of the Arrangement Agreement or the Plan of Arrangement or at the direction of the Court;
“Arrangement Agreement” means the Arrangement Agreement dated June 9, 2020 between Renaissance and Evrim
together with the schedules attached thereto, as amended, amended and restated or supplemented from time to time;
“Arrangement Resolution” means the special resolution of the Renaissance Securityholders approving the
Arrangement to be considered at the Renaissance Meeting;
“Articles” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Election of Directors – Advance Notice
Requirements for Nominations”.
“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Evrim Board;
“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia);
“Broadridge” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy Matters – Advice to
Beneficial Holders of Evrim Shares”;
“Business Day” means any day, other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a statutory or civic holiday in Vancouver, British
Columbia;
“Change in Recommendation” means the circumstances where, prior to Renaissance having obtained the
Renaissance Securityholder Approval, in the case of Renaissance, or Evrim having obtained the Evrim Shareholder
Approval, in the case of Evrim, the board of directors of a Party, in a manner adverse to the other Party, fails to
unanimously recommend or withdraws, amends, modifies, qualifies or fails to reaffirm its recommendation of the
Arrangement within five business days (and in any case prior to the Renaissance Meeting and the Evrim Meeting)
after having been requested in writing by such other Party to do so; it is understood that the taking of a neutral position
or no position with respect to an Acquisition Proposal beyond a period of five business days (or beyond the date which
is one day prior to the Renaissance Meeting and the Evrim Meeting, if sooner) shall be considered an adverse
modification;
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“Change of Control” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Executive Compensation –
Termination and Change of Control Benefits”;
“CIM” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy Information – Information For
United States Securityholders”;
“Circular” means this management information circular including all schedules, appendices and exhibits hereto;
“Company” means Evrim Resources Corp.;
“Compensation Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Evrim Board;
“Computershare” means Computershare Investor Services Inc.;
“Confidentiality Agreement” means the agreements between Evrim and Renaissance dated December 2, 2019,
pursuant to which Evrim has been provided with access to confidential information of Renaissance and Renaissance
has been provided with access to confidential information of Evrim;
“Consideration Shares” means the Evrim Shares to be issued to the Renaissance Shareholders pursuant to the Plan
of Arrangement;
“Contract” means any contract, agreement, license, lease, arrangement or other right or obligation to which
Renaissance or Evrim or any of their respective subsidiaries is a party or by which Renaissance or Evrim or any of
their respective subsidiaries is bound or affected or to which any of their respective properties or assets is subject;
“Court” means the Supreme Court of British Columbia;
“Depositary” means Computershare Investor Services Inc.;
“Dissent Rights” means the rights of dissent in respect of the Arrangement described in the Plan of Arrangement;
“Dissenting Renaissance Shareholder” means a Registered Renaissance Shareholder who dissents in respect of the
Arrangement in strict compliance with the Dissent Rights and who is ultimately entitled to be paid fair value for his,
hers or its Renaissance Shares, but only in respect of Renaissance Shares in respect of which such Dissent Rights are
validly exercised by such holder;
“Dissenting Shares” means Renaissance Shares held by a Dissenting Renaissance Shareholder;
“Dundee Goodman” means Dundee Goodman Merchant Partners, a division of Goodman & Company, Investment
Counsel Inc.
“Effective Date” means the date following the date on which all of the conditions to completion of the Arrangement
as set forth in the Arrangement Agreement have been satisfied or waived and all documents agreed to be delivered
under the Arrangement Agreement have been delivered to the satisfaction of the Parties, acting reasonably;
“Effective Time” means 12:01 a.m. (Vancouver time) on the Effective Date;
“Environmental Laws” means all applicable federal, provincial, state, local and foreign Laws, imposing liability or
standards of conduct for, or relating to, the regulation of activities, materials, substances or wastes in connection with,
or for, or to, the protection of human health, safety, the environment or natural resources (including ambient air,
surface water, groundwater, wetlands, land surface or subsurface strata, wildlife, aquatic species and vegetation);
“Evrim” means Evrim Resources Corp.;
“Evrim Board” means the board of directors of Evrim, as the same if constituted from time to time;
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“Evrim Locked-up Shareholders” means each of the senior officers and directors of Evrim and Altius Resources
Inc.;
“Evrim Meeting” means the annual and special meeting of the Evrim Shareholders, including any adjournment or
postponement thereof, to be called and held, among other things, to consider and, if thought appropriate, approve the
Evrim Resolution and any other matters as may be set out in this Circular and agreed to in writing by Renaissance,
acting reasonably;
“Evrim Options” means the outstanding options to purchase Evrim Shares granted under the 2018 Plan;
“Evrim Resolution” means the ordinary resolution of the Evrim Shareholders approving the Arrangement and the
transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement, substantially in the form and content of Appendix A “Evrim Resolution”;
“Evrim Shareholder” means a holder of outstanding Evrim Shares;
“Evrim Shareholder Approval” means the approval of the Evrim Resolution by a simple majority of the votes cast
in respect of the Evrim Resolution by Evrim Shareholders present in person or by proxy at the Evrim Meeting;
“Evrim Shareholder Rights Plan” means the shareholder rights plan adopted by the Evrim Shareholders on July 16,
2018;
“Evrim Shares” means the common shares in the capital of Evrim;
“Exchange Ratio” means 1.2448 Evrim Shares for each Renaissance Share held;
“Fairness Opinion” means the fairness opinion of Dundee Goodman dated June 9, 2020;
“Final Order” means the final order of the Court pursuant to Section 291 of the BCBCA, approving the Arrangement
after a hearing on the procedural and substantive fairness of the terms and conditions of the Arrangement as such order
may be affirmed, amended, modified, supplemented or varied by the Court at any time prior to the Effective Date or,
if appealed, then, unless such appeal is withdrawn or denied, as affirmed or as amended on appeal;
“First Majestic” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Summary – Parties to the Arrangement
– Evrim”;
“forward-looking information” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy
Information – Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information”;
“Governmental Entity” means: (a) any multinational, federal, provincial, state, regional, municipal, local or other
government, governmental or public department, central bank, court, tribunal, arbitral body, commission, board,
bureau or agency, domestic or foreign; (b) any subdivision, agent, commission, bureau, board or authority of any of
the foregoing; (c) any quasi-governmental or private body, including any tribunal, commission, regulatory agency or
self-regulatory organization, exercising any regulatory, expropriation or taxing authority under or for the account of
any of the foregoing; or (d) any stock exchange, including the TSXV;
“IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, at the relevant time, prepared on a consistent basis;
“Informed Person” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Interest of Informed Persons in
Material Transactions”;
“Interim Order” means the interim order of the Court, providing for, among other things, the calling and holding of
the Renaissance Meeting, as the same may be affirmed, amended, modified, supplemented or varied by the Court;
“Intermediary” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy Matters – Advice to
Beneficial Holders of Evrim Shares”;

-4-

“Investment Canada Act” means the Investment Canada Act, as amended from time to time;
“Key Regulatory Approvals” means those sanctions, rulings, consents, orders, exemptions, permits and other
approvals (including the lapse, without objection, of a prescribed time under a statute or regulation that states that a
transaction may be implemented if a prescribed time lapses following the giving of notice without an order prohibiting
closing being made) required from any Governmental Entity to proceed with the Arrangement Agreement and the
Plan of Arrangement, the failure of which to obtain would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect
on such Party;
“Laws” means all laws (including common law), by-laws, statutes, rules, regulations, principles of law and equity,
orders, rulings, ordinances, judgments, injunctions, determinations, awards, decrees or other requirements, whether
domestic or foreign, and the terms and conditions of any grant of approval, permission, authority or license of any
Governmental Entity, and the term “applicable” with respect to such Laws and in a context that refers to one or more
Parties, means such Laws as are applicable to such Party or its business, undertaking, property or securities and
emanate from a person having jurisdiction over the Party or Parties or its or their business, undertaking, property or
securities;
“Locked-up Shareholders” means, collectively, the Evrim Locked-up Shareholders and the Renaissance Locked- up
Shareholders;
“Material Adverse Effect” means in respect of any Party, any fact or state of facts, change, effect, event or occurrence
that either individually or in the aggregate with other such facts, state of facts, changes, effects, events or occurrences,
is, or would reasonably expected to be, material and adverse to the business, operations, results of operations,
prospects, assets, properties, condition (financial or otherwise) or liabilities of that person and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis, except any change, effect, event or occurrence resulting from or relating to: (i) the announcement
of the execution of the Arrangement Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby; (ii) changes in general
economic, securities, financial, banking or currency exchange markets; (iii) any change in IFRS; (iv) any natural
disaster provided that it does not have a materially disproportionate effect on one of the Parties compared to the other
Party; (v) changes affecting the mining industry generally or metal prices, provided that such changes do not have a
materially disproportionate effect on one of the Parties compared to the other Party; (vi) changes in applicable Law;
(vii) the commencement or continuation of any war, armed hostilities or acts of terrorism provided that it does not
have a materially disproportionate effect on one of the Parties compared to the other Party; (viii) changes in political
or civil conditions in any jurisdiction in which such person’s assets and/or its business and operations are located that
do not disproportionately affect one of the Parties compared to the other Party; (ix) pandemics (including COVID19), epidemics or similar events; and (x) any decrease in the market price or any decline in the trading volume of a
Party’s common shares on the TSXV (it being understood that the causes underlying such change in market price or
trading volume (other than those in items (i) to (ix) above) may be taken into account in determining whether a Material
Adverse Effect has occurred);
“Material Contract” means, in respect of any Party, any Contract: (i) that if terminated or modified or if it ceased to
be in effect, would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on such Party; (ii) under which such
Party or any of its subsidiaries has directly or indirectly guaranteed any liabilities or obligations of a third party (other
than ordinary course endorsements for collection) in excess of $250,000 in the aggregate; (iii) relating to indebtedness
for borrowed money, whether incurred, assumed, guaranteed or secured by any asset, with an outstanding principal
amount in excess of $250,000; (iv) providing for the establishment, organization or formation of any joint venture,
royalty or stream interest that is material to it, including, in the case of Evrim, its royalty interest in the Ermitaño
project and, in the case of Renaissance, its royalty or other interest in the Silicon project; (v) under which such person
or any of its subsidiaries is obligated to make or expects to receive payments in excess of $250,000 over the remaining
term of the contract (excluding Contracts with its employees or consultants); (vi) that limits or restricts such Party or
any of its subsidiaries from engaging in any line of business or any geographic area in any material respect; or (vii)
that is otherwise material to such Party and its subsidiaries, considered as a whole;
“Meeting Materials” means, collectively, the accompanying Notice of Meeting and this Circular;
“Named Executive Officers” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Executive Compensation –
Compensation Discussion and Analysis”;
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“NI 43-101” means National Instrument 43-101 – Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects;
“NI 52-110” means National Instrument 52-110 – Audit Committees;
“NI 54-101” means National Instrument 54-101 – Communication with Beneficial Owners of Securities of a Reporting
Issuer;
“NI 58-101” means National Instrument 58-101 – Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices;
“Non-Approving Party” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “The Arrangement Agreement –
Termination Fee”;
“Non-Objecting Beneficial Owner” or “NOBO” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General
Proxy Matters – Distribution to NOBOs”;
“Non-Registered Evrim Shareholder” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy
Matters – Advice to Beneficial Holders of Evrim Shares”;
“Notice of Hearing of Petition” means the Notice of Hearing of Petition for the Final Order;
“Notice of Meeting” means the notice of meeting of Evrim dated July 8, 2020 regarding the Evrim Meeting;
“Objecting Beneficial Owner” or “OBO” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy
Matters – Distribution to OBOs”;
“Orogen” means Orogen Royalties Inc., being Evrim following the completion of the Arrangement;
“Orogen Options” means the outstanding options to purchase Orogen Shares granted under the Orogen stock option
plan;
“Orogen Shareholders” means the holders of outstanding Evrim Shares after the completion of the Arrangement;
“Orogen Shares” means Evrim Shares following the completion of the Arrangement;
“Orogen Warrants” means the outstanding warrants to purchase Orogen Shares;
“OTCQB” means the OTCQB® Venture Market;
“Outside Date” means September 15, 2020, or such later date as may be agreed to in writing by the Parties;
“Parties” means Renaissance and Evrim, and “Party” means any one of them, as applicable;
“Petition” means the Petition for the Final Order;
“Plan Ceiling” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Approval of Stock Option Plan”;
“Plan of Arrangement” means the plan of arrangement, substantially in the form of Appendix B – “Plan of
Arrangement” hereto, and any amendments or variations thereto made in accordance with Section 8.3 of the
Arrangement Agreement or the Plan of Arrangement or at the direction of the Court;
“Policy 4.4” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Approval of Stock Option Plan”;
“Pro-Forma Financial Statements” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “Summary – Resulting
Issuer - Pro-Forma Consolidated Financial Information of Evrim”;
“Proxy” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy Matters – Appointment and
Revocation of Proxies”.
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“Receiving Party” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “The Arrangement Agreement – Right
to Match”;
“Record Date” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy Matters – Voting Securities
of the Company and Principal Holders Thereof”, being June 29, 2020;
“Registered Evrim Shareholder” means an Evrim Shareholder who has his, her or its Evrim Shares registered in the
name of the Evrim Shareholder;
“Registered Renaissance Shareholder” means a Renaissance Shareholder who has his, hers or its Renaissance
Shares registered in the name of the Renaissance Shareholder;
“Renaissance” means Renaissance Gold Inc., a corporation existing under the BCBCA;
“Renaissance Board” means the board of directors of Renaissance, as the same is constituted from time to time;
“Renaissance Locked-up Shareholders” means each of the senior officers and directors of Renaissance, Altius
Resources Inc. and Ivy Minerals Inc.;
“Renaissance Meeting” means the special meeting of the Renaissance Securityholders, including any adjournment
or postponement thereof, to be called and held in accordance with the Interim Order to consider the Arrangement
Resolution and any other matters as may be set out in the Circular and agreed to in writing by Evrim, acting reasonably;
“Renaissance Optionholder” means a holder of Renaissance Options;
“Renaissance Options” means the outstanding options to purchase Renaissance Shares granted under the Renaissance
Stock Option Plan;
“Renaissance Securities” means Renaissance Shares, Renaissance Options and Renaissance Warrants;
“Renaissance Securityholder Approval” means the requisite approval for the Arrangement Resolution which shall
be (A) two thirds of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by the Renaissance Shareholders present in person
or by proxy at the Renaissance Meeting, and (B) two thirds of the votes cast on the Arrangement Resolution by the
Renaissance Securityholders (voting as a single class) present in person or by proxy at the Renaissance Meeting;
“Renaissance Securityholders” means the Renaissance Shareholders, the Renaissance Optionholders and the
Renaissance Warrantholders;
“Renaissance Shareholder” means a holder of Renaissance Shares;
“Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan” means the shareholder rights plan adopted by the Renaissance Shareholders
on September 30, 2011;
“Renaissance Shares” means the common shares in the capital of Renaissance;
“Renaissance Special Committee” means the special committee of independent directors of Renaissance;
“Renaissance Stock Option Plan” means the stock option plan of Renaissance dated November 14, 2017, and last
approved by the Renaissance Shareholders on November 8, 2019, as amended;
“Renaissance Warrantholder” means a holder of Renaissance Warrants;
“Renaissance Warrants” means the outstanding warrants to purchase Renaissance Shares;
“Replacement Option” means an option or right to purchase Evrim Shares granted by Evrim in exchange for
Renaissance Options in accordance with the terms of the Renaissance Stock Option Plan pursuant to the Plan of
Arrangement;
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“Replacement Warrants” means the warrants to purchase Evrim Shares issued by Evrim in exchange for Renaissance
Warrants in accordance with the terms of the Renaissance Warrants pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement;
“Representative” means any officer, director, employee, representative (including any financial or other advisor) or
agent of a Party or any of its Subsidiaries;
“Responding Party” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “The Arrangement Agreement – Right
to Match”;
“Response Period” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “The Arrangement Agreement – Right
to Match”;
“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission;
“Section 3(a)(10) Exemption” means the exemption from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act provided by
Section 3(a)(10) of the 1933 Act;
“SEDAR” means the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval described in National Instrument 13101 – System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval and available for public view at http://www.sedar.com;
“Subsidiary” means, with respect to a specified body corporate, any body corporate of which more than 50% of the
outstanding shares ordinarily entitled to elect a majority of the board of directors thereof (whether or not shares of any
other class or classes shall or might be entitled to vote on the happening of any event or contingency) are at the time
owned directly or indirectly by such specified body corporate and shall include any body corporate, partnership, joint
venture or other entity over which such specified body corporate exercises direction or control or which is in a like
relation to a subsidiary;
“Superior Proposal” means any bona fide, unsolicited, written Acquisition Proposal made by a third party after the
date of the Arrangement Agreement that relates to the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding voting shares of a Party
(the “Target”) (other than voting shares owned by the person making the Superior Proposal) or all or substantially all
of the consolidated assets of the Target and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole; and (i) did not result from or involve a
breach of Section 7.2 of the Arrangement Agreement; (ii) is not subject to any financing condition and in respect of
which the board of directors of such Party determines in good faith that the funds or other consideration necessary to
complete the Acquisition Proposal are or are reasonably likely to be available to fund completion of the Acquisition
Proposal at the time and on the basis set out therein; (iii) that the Target’s board of directors determines, in its good
faith judgment, after receiving the advice of its outside legal advisors, is reasonably capable of being completed
without undue delay, taking into account all financial, legal, regulatory and other aspects of such proposal and the
person making such proposal; (iv) that, in the case of an Acquisition Proposal to acquire 100% of the outstanding
voting shares of the Target, is made available to all shareholders of the Target on the same terms and conditions; (v)
that is not subject to a due diligence and/or access condition; and (vi) in respect of which the Target’s board of directors
determines, in its good faith judgment, having regard for all of its terms and conditions, such Acquisition Proposal,
would, if consummated in accordance with its terms (but not assuming away any risk of non-completion), result in a
transaction more favourable from a financial point of view to the holders of its voting shares from a financial point of
view than the Arrangement;
“Tax” and “Taxes” mean any and all taxes, imposts, levies, withholdings, duties, fees, premiums, assessments and
other charges of any kind, however denominated and instalments in respect thereof, including any interest, penalties,
fines or other additions that have been, are or will become payable in respect thereof, imposed by any Governmental
Entity, including for greater certainty all income or profits taxes (including Canadian federal, provincial and territorial
income taxes), payroll and employee withholding taxes, employment taxes, unemployment insurance, disability taxes,
social insurance taxes, sales and use taxes, ad valorem taxes, excise taxes, goods and services taxes, harmonized sales
taxes, franchise taxes, gross receipts taxes, capital taxes, business license taxes, mining royalties, alternative minimum
taxes, estimated taxes, abandoned or unclaimed (escheat) taxes, occupation taxes, real and personal property taxes,
stamp taxes, environmental taxes, transfer taxes, severance taxes, workers’ compensation, Canada and other
government pension plan premiums or contributions and other governmental charges, and other obligations of the
same or of a similar nature to any of the foregoing, which a Party or any of its Subsidiaries is required to pay, withhold
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or collect, together with any interest, penalties or other additions to tax that may become payable in respect of such
taxes, and any interest in respect of such interest, penalties and additions whether disputed or not;
“Termination Fee” means $1,000,000;
“TSXV” means Tier 1 and Tier 2 of the TSX Venture Exchange;
“United States” or “U.S.” means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any State of the United
States and the District of Columbia;
“United States GAAP” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy Information –
Information For United States Securityholders”;
“VIF” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the section titled “General Proxy Matters – Distribution to NOBOs”;
and
“Voting Support Agreements” means the voting support agreements (including all amendments thereto) between
Evrim or Renaissance, as the case may be, and the Locked-Up Shareholders.
Unless the context otherwise requires, words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa, words importing
any gender include all genders and words importing persons include firms and corporations and vice versa.
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MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR
GENERAL PROXY INFORMATION
Introduction
This Management Information Circular (this “Circular”) is furnished in connection with the solicitation of
proxies by the management of the Company for use at the Evrim Meeting, being the annual and special meeting of
Evrim Shareholders to be held at the 1201 – 510 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, BC, V6B 1L8 at 9:00 a.m.
(Vancouver time) on August 12, 2020 and at any adjournment or postponement thereof. To mitigate potential risks to
the health and safety of Evrim Shareholders, employees and service providers for the Evrim Meeting, the Company
is urging Evrim Shareholders and others not to attend the Evrim Meeting in person. In person attendance may be
restricted altogether. Instead, Evrim Shareholders should vote on the matters before the Evrim Meeting by proxy and
participate in the Evrim Meeting by way of a conference call. Evrim Shareholders will be able to ask questions of
management through the conference call at the conclusion of the Evrim Meeting as usual. Details with respect to the
conference call are set out below.
Dial in Number:

604-678-8031

North America Toll-free:

1-866-875-9697

Conference ID:

6097711

This Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase any securities or the solicitation
of a proxy by any person in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the
person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such
an offer or solicitation of an offer or a proxy solicitation. Neither the delivery of this Circular nor any distribution of
the securities referred to in this Circular will, under any circumstances, create an implication that there has been no
change in the information set forth herein since the date as that such information is given in this Circular.
The information concerning Renaissance contained in this Circular has been provided by Renaissance. Although the
Company has no knowledge that would indicate that any of such information is untrue or incomplete, the Company
does not assume any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information or the failure by Renaissance
to disclose events that may have occurred or may affect the completeness or accuracy of such information but that are
unknown to the Company.
All summaries of, and references to, the Arrangement Agreement, the Arrangement and the Plan of Arrangement in
this Circular are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete text of the Arrangement Agreement and the
Plan of Arrangement. A copy of the Arrangement Agreement may be found under the Company’s and Renaissance’s
profiles on SEDAR at http://www.sedar.com. The Plan of Arrangement is attached to this Circular as Appendix B “Plan of Arrangement”. You are urged to carefully read the full text of the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of
Arrangement.
Information contained in this Circular is given as of July 8, 2020 except where otherwise noted and except that
information in documents incorporated by reference is given as of the dates noted therein.
Information contained in this Circular should not be construed as legal, tax or financial advice and Evrim
Shareholders are urged to obtain that advice.
No broker, dealer, salesperson or other person has been authorized to give any information or make any
representation in connection with the Arrangement and the issuance of Evrim Shares in connection with the
Arrangement, or other matters to be considered at the Evrim Meeting, other than those contained in this
Circular, and if given or made, any such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been
authorized.
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Information For United States Securityholders
This Circular contains information concerning the properties and operations of Renaissance that has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the securities laws in effect in Canada, which differ in certain material respects
from the disclosure requirements promulgated by the SEC. For example, the terms “mineral reserve”, “proven mineral
reserve”, “probable mineral reserve”, “mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource”
and “inferred mineral resource” are Canadian mining terms as defined in accordance with NI 43-101 and the Canadian
Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (the “CIM”) - CIM Definition Standards on Mineral Resources and
Mineral Reserves, adopted by the CIM Council, as amended. These definitions differ from the definitions in the
disclosure requirements promulgated by the SEC. Accordingly, information contained and incorporated by reference
in this Circular may not be comparable to similar information made public by U.S. companies reporting pursuant to
SEC disclosure requirements.
The financial statements and other financial information of the Company included or incorporated by reference in this
Circular have been prepared in Canadian dollars, in each case in accordance with IFRS applicable to the Company,
and are subject to Canadian auditing and auditor independence standards, which differ from United States generally
accepted accounting principles (“United States GAAP”) and United States auditing and auditor independence
standards in certain material respects and thus are not directly comparable to financial statements of United States
companies which are prepared in accordance with United States GAAP and that are subject to United States auditing
and auditor independence standards. This Circular does not include an explanation of the principal differences
between, or any reconciliation of, IFRS and United States GAAP. Investors should consult with their own professional
advisors for an understanding of the differences between IFRS and United States GAAP, and of how those differences
might affect the financial information presented herein.
Currency and Exchange Rates
Unless otherwise indicated herein, references to “$” or “Canadian dollars” are to Canadian dollars, and references to
“US$” or “U.S. dollars” are to United States dollars.
The following table sets out: (i) the rates of exchange for one U.S. dollar expressed in Canadian dollars in effect at the
end of the periods indicated; (ii) the average rates of exchange for such periods; and (iii) the highest and lowest rates
of exchange during such periods, based on the daily exchange rates provided by the Bank of Canada.

Year Ended December 31
High
Low
Average
Period End

2017
$1.3743
$1.2128
$1.2986
$1.2545

2018
$1.3642
$1.2288
$1.2957
$1.3638

High
Low
Average
Period End

Six Months Ended June 30
2018
2019
$1.3310
$1.3600
$1.2288
$1.3087
$1.2781
$1.3336
$1.3168
$1.3087

2019
$1.3600
$1.2988
$1.3269
$1.2988

2020
$1.4496
$1.2970
$1.3651
$1.3628

On July 8, 2020, the daily exchange rate for one U.S. dollar expressed in Canadian dollars as reported by the Bank of
Canada was $1.3538.
Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information
This Circular (including the appendices hereto) contains certain statements or disclosures that may constitute forwardlooking information within the meaning of applicable Canadian and U.S. securities legislation (“forward-looking
information”). All statements and disclosures, other than those of historical fact, which address activities, events,

- 11 -

outcomes, results or developments that management of the Company anticipates or expects may or will occur in the
future (in whole or in part) should be considered forward-looking information. In some cases, forward-looking
information can be identified by terms such as “forecast”, “future”, “may”, “will”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “believe”,
“potential”, “enable”, “plan”, “continue”, “contemplate”, or other comparable terminology.
Various assumptions or factors are typically applied in drawing conclusions or making the forecasts or projections set
out in forward-looking information. Those assumptions and factors are based on information currently available to
the Company, including information obtained from third-party industry analysts and other third party sources. In some
instances, material assumptions and factors are presented or discussed elsewhere in this Circular (including the
appendices hereto) in connection with the statements or disclosure containing the forward-looking information. You
are cautioned that the following list of material factors and assumptions is not exhaustive. The factors and assumptions
include, but are not limited to:
•

the approval of the Arrangement by the Court, Renaissance Securityholders and Evrim Shareholders;

•

the approval of the Evrim Resolution by Evrim Shareholders;

•

the approval of the Arrangement by the Court;

•

the completion and timing of the Arrangement;

•

the timely receipt of all required regulatory approvals and other third party consents to complete the
Arrangement;

•

satisfaction of the other closing conditions in all material respects in accordance with the Arrangement
Agreement;

•

no unforeseen changes in the legislative and operating framework for the business of the Company;

•

no significant adverse changes in economic conditions that influence the demand for precious and base
metals;

•

no significant adverse changes in commodity prices;

•

a stable competitive environment;

•

the ability to obtain equipment, services, supplies and personnel in a timely manner to carry out
development activities;

•

the impact of increasing competition;

•

the ability to obtain financing on acceptable terms; and

•

no significant event occurring outside the ordinary course of business such as a natural disaster or other
calamity.

In particular, this Circular (including the appendices hereto) and the documents incorporated by reference herein
contain forward-looking information and statements, including forward-looking information and statements pertaining
to the following:
•

the Evrim Meeting;

•

the perceived benefits of the Arrangement and possible synergies resulting from the Arrangement;

•

the structure, steps, timing and effects of the Arrangement;

•

the timing of the Final Order and the Effective Date of the Arrangement;
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•

the satisfaction of conditions for listing of Evrim Shares to be issued in connection with the Arrangement
on the TSXV and the timing thereof;

•

the delisting of the Renaissance Shares;

•

potential to generate income from operations;

•

objectives, business plans and strategies;

•

financial conditions;

•

industry conditions;

•

future capital expenditures (including general and administrative expenses), including the timing,
amount and nature thereof and sources of financing thereof;

•

pro forma information, including pro forma combined financial information pertaining to Evrim after
giving effect to the Arrangement;

•

other trends of the capital markets;

•

projection of market prices and costs;

•

supply and demand for precious and base metals and commodity prices;

•

treatment under governmental regulatory regimes and Tax laws;

•

realization of the anticipated benefits of acquisitions and dispositions;

•

movements in currency exchange rates;

•

anticipated income Taxes;

•

plans and objectives of management for future operations;

•

quantity of the existing mineral reserves of Evrim and Renaissance;

•

expectations regarding the ability to raise capital and to add to reserves through acquisitions, exploration,
development and divestiture of assets;

•

the exercise of Dissent Rights by Renaissance Shareholders with regards to the Arrangement;

•

forecast business results; and

•

anticipated financial performance.

The forward-looking information in statements or disclosures in this Circular (including the appendices hereto) and
the documents incorporated by reference is based (in whole or in part) upon factors which may cause actual results,
performance or achievements of the Company to differ materially from those contemplated (whether expressly or by
implication) in the forward-looking information. Those factors are based on information currently available to the
Company including information obtained from third-party industry analysts and other third-party sources. Actual
results or outcomes may differ materially from those predicted by such statements or disclosures. While the Company
does not know what impact any of those differences may have, its business, results of operations, financial condition
and credit stability may be materially adversely affected. Factors that could cause actual results or outcomes to differ
materially from the results expressed or implied by forward-looking information include, among other things:
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•

inability to obtain required consents, permits or approvals, including the Final Order, the Evrim
Shareholder Approval and Renaissance Securityholder Approval;

•

sufficient liquidity for future operations;

•

cost of capital risk to carry out operations;

•

increased competition and the lack of availability of qualified personnel or management;

•

loss of key personnel;

•

uncertainty of government policy changes;

•

the risk of carrying out operations with minimal environmental impact;

•

operational hazards and availability of insurance;

•

industry conditions, including changes in Laws and regulations, including the adoption of new
Environmental Laws and regulations and changes in how they are interpreted and enforced;

•

general economic, market and business conditions;

•

competitive action by other companies;

•

the ability of suppliers to meet commitments; and

•

stock market volatility.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Circular (including the appendices hereto) and the documents
incorporated by reference herein are made as of the date of such documents. The Company is not obligated to update
or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except
as required by applicable Laws. Because of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions contained herein, investors should
not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements or disclosures. The foregoing statements expressly qualify
any forward-looking information contained herein.
The reader is further cautioned that the preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires
management to make certain judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses. These estimates may change and such changes may be material, having either a negative or positive
effect on net earnings as further information becomes available, and as the economic environment changes.
Evrim Shareholders are cautioned that these factors and risks are difficult to predict and that the assumptions used in
the preparation of such information, although considered reasonably accurate at the time of preparation, may prove to
be incorrect. Accordingly, Evrim Shareholders are cautioned that the actual results achieved will vary from the
information provided herein and the variations may be material. The Company cautions you that the above list of
factors is not exhaustive. Consequently, there is no representation by the Company that actual results achieved will be
the same in whole or in part as those set out in the forward-looking information. Other factors which could cause
actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to differ materially from those contemplated (whether
expressly or by implication) in the forward-looking statements or other forward-looking information are disclosed
under “Risk Factors” and in the documents included in Appendix C – “Information Concerning Renaissance”,
Appendix D – “Information Concerning Orogen” and Appendix E – “Unaudited Pro-Forma Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements of Evrim”.
Information Contained in this Circular Regarding Renaissance
The information concerning Renaissance and its affiliates contained in this Circular has been provided by Renaissance
for inclusion in this Circular. In the Arrangement Agreement, Renaissance provided a covenant to Evrim that it would
ensure that no such information will include any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
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required to be stated in this Circular in order to make any information so furnished or any information concerning
Renaissance not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it is disclosed.
Although Evrim has no knowledge that would indicate that any statements contained herein relating to Renaissance
and its affiliates taken from or based upon such information provided by Renaissance are untrue or incomplete, neither
Evrim nor any of its officers or directors assumes any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the
information relating to Renaissance and its affiliates or for any failure by Renaissance to disclose facts or events that
may have occurred or may affect the significance or accuracy of any such information but which are unknown to
Evrim.
For further information regarding Renaissance, see also Appendix C – “Information Concerning Renaissance” and
refer to Renaissance’s filings with Canadian securities regulatory authorities which may be found under Renaissance’s
company profile on SEDAR at http://www.sedar.com.
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SUMMARY
This summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in the accompanying
Notice of Meeting and this Circular, including the appendices hereto. Capitalized terms used in this summary and not
otherwise defined herein have the meanings set forth under “Glossary of Terms”.
The Evrim Meeting
The Evrim Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. (Vancouver time), on August 12, 2020, at 1201 – 510 West Hastings
Street, Vancouver, BC, V6B 1L8, for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting. The business of
the Evrim Meeting will be to, among other things, consider and vote upon:
1.

electing the directors of the Company for the ensuing year;

2.

appointing the auditors of the Company for the ensuing year;

3.

authorizing the directors of the Company to fix the auditors’ remuneration for the ensuing year;

4.

re-adopting and re-approving the stock option plan of the Company; and

5.

the Evrim Resolution, being an ordinary resolution to approve the Arrangement and the transactions
contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement,

and to transact such further and other business as may properly be brought before the Evrim Meeting. See “The
Arrangement” and “The Arrangement Agreement”.
The Arrangement
The purpose of the Arrangement is to effect the combination of the businesses of Evrim and Renaissance. The
Arrangement will result in the acquisition by Evrim of all of the issued and outstanding Renaissance Shares (other
than Renaissance Shares held by a Renaissance Dissenting Shareholder, which will be repurchased for cancellation
by Renaissance) for the Consideration Shares, being 1.2448 Evrim Shares for each Renaissance Share held
immediately prior to the Arrangement. As a result of the Arrangement, Renaissance will become a wholly-owned
Subsidiary of Evrim.
Parties to the Arrangement
Evrim
Evrim is a corporation existing pursuant to the Laws of the Province of British Columbia. Evrim is a mineral
exploration company that uses a project generator business model. Evrim’s objective is to participate in significant
exploration discoveries through joint ventures and strategic alliances. Evrim is well financed, has a diverse range of
quality projects and a database covering substantial areas of Mexico and portions of western Canada and southwestern
United States. Evrim’s projects are advanced through option and joint venture agreements with industry partners to
provide maximum exposure to exploration success. Evrim’s business plan also includes royalty creation utilizing
Evrim’s exploration expertise and existing projects. In the past, Evrim has entered into numerous exploration, alliance,
and funding agreements with well-known mining companies including Newmont Corporation, Antofagasta plc, Vale
S.A., ArcelorMittal S.A., First Quantum Minerals Ltd., Coeur Mining, Inc. and First Majestic Silver Corp. (“First
Majestic”). Over $30 million has been spent by Evrim’s exploration partners since 2011. Evrim currently has one
property under option with Golden Ridge Resources Ltd. and an alliance with Yamana Gold Inc. Evrim also owns a
2% net smelter return royalty on the Ermitaño West deposit, being developed by First Majestic and planned to be in
production in 2021.
Evrim’s principal and head office, and the registered and records office, is located at 1201-510 West Hastings Street,
Vancouver, BC, V6B 1L8.
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Evrim is a reporting issuer in Alberta, British Columbia, Ontario and Saskatchewan and the Evrim Shares trade on the
TSXV under the trading symbol “EVM”. After the Effective Time, Orogen Shares (being Evrim Shares) will continue
to trade on the TSXV under the trading symbol “OGN”.
Renaissance
Renaissance is a corporation existing under the Laws of the Province of British Columbia. Renaissance is a western
U.S. focused mineral exploration company using a project generator business model. Renaissance applies the
extensive exploration experience and high-end technical skills of its team members to search for and acquire high
quality precious metal exploration projects that are then offered for joint venture to industry partners who provide
exploration funding. The goal of Renaissance has been to keep actively pursuing new, quality discovery opportunities
for the benefit of both investors and industry partners. Renaissance maintains a large portfolio of gold and silver
exploration properties. Renaissance’s objective is to place its projects into exploration and alliance agreements, testing
as many drill targets as possible and providing maximum exposure to success through discovery. In the past,
Renaissance has entered into exploration agreements with well-known resource companies such as Newmont Mining,
Kinross Gold U.S.A., Coeur Mining, Hochschild Mining and AngloGold Ashanti NA (“AngloGold”). Over US$28M
has been spent by Renaissance's exploration and alliance partners since 2011. Renaissance currently has three
properties under exploration funding agreements including one with OceanaGold U.S. Holding Inc., a subsidiary of
OceanaGold Corporation. In June, 2020 AngloGold exercised its right to acquire a 100% interest in the Silicon project
in the Bare Mountain mining district, with Renaissance retaining a 1% NSR.
Renaissance’s operating office is located at 4750 Longley Lane, Suite 106, Reno, NV 89502. Renaissance’s registered
and corporate office is located at Unit 1 – 15782 Marine Drive, White Rock, British Columbia, Canada, V4B 1E6.
Renaissance is a reporting issuer in Alberta, British Columbia and Ontario, and the Renaissance Shares trade on the
TSXV under the trading symbol “REN” and on the OTCQB under the trading symbol “RNSGF”. It is anticipated that,
as soon as reasonably practicable after completion of the Arrangement, the Renaissance Shares will be delisted from
trading on the TSXV and the OTCQB and Renaissance will apply to the applicable Canadian securities regulators to
have Renaissance cease to be a reporting issuer.
For further information concerning the business and operations of Renaissance, see Appendix C - “Information
Concerning Renaissance”.
Background to the Arrangement
The execution of the Arrangement Agreement was the result of the arm’s length negotiations between representatives
and legal advisors of Evrim and Renaissance. This Circular contains a summary of the material events which led to
the negotiation of the Arrangement Agreement and the meetings, negotiations, discussions and actions between the
parties that preceded the execution and public announcement of the Arrangement Agreement.
See “The Arrangement – Background to the Arrangement”.
Result of the Arrangement
The Arrangement will result in the acquisition by Evrim of all of the issued and outstanding Renaissance Shares for
the Consideration Shares, being the Evrim Shares issued to the Renaissance Shareholders at the Exchange Ratio
(1.2448 Evrim Shares for each Renaissance Share).
As at the date hereof, there are 85,295,817 Evrim Shares and 68,521,030 Renaissance Shares issued and on completion
of the Arrangement, Renaissance Shareholders will hold 50% of Orogen, the resulting issuer, on an undiluted basis
(assuming no additional Evrim Shares or Renaissance Shares are issued by Evrim or Renaissance prior to the Effective
Date, no Evrim Options, Renaissance Options or Renaissance Warrants are exercised and no Dissent Rights are
exercised). In addition, all of the outstanding Renaissance Options and Renaissance Warrants at the Effective Time
will be exchanged for Replacement Options and Replacement Warrants giving effect to the Exchange Ratio.
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The Arrangement will be implemented by way of a court-approved Plan of Arrangement under the BCBCA pursuant
to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, the Interim Order and the Final Order. See “The Arrangement” and “The
Arrangement Agreement”.
Following the Arrangement, it is expected that Evrim will be renamed Orogen and the Orogen board of directors will
be composed of two nominees of each of Evrim and Renaissance: Paul van Eeden, David Caulfield, Bob Felder and
Tim Janke. Orogen will be managed by J. Patrick Nicol as President and Chief Executive Officer and Paul van Eeden
as Chairman, both of whom are currently in those same roles with Evrim. Bob Felder, Chief Executive Officer of
Renaissance, will take on the role of Senior Vice President of Orogen to facilitate the smooth integration of
Renaissance’s business with Evrim and to provide region specific expertise and experience to Orogen.
Orogen will continue to execute on the historical and combined visions of Evrim and Renaissance of building a
company focused on project generation but with a renewed focus on organic royalty creation and royalty acquisition.
See “The Arrangement” and Appendix D - “Information Concerning Orogen”.
After the Effective Time, the Orogen Shares (being Evrim Shares) will trade on the TSXV under the trading symbol
“OGN”.
Resulting Issuer
On completion of the Arrangement, Evrim Shareholders will hold 50% of the resulting issuer, Orogen. For further
information concerning the business and operations of Orogen following completion of the Arrangement, see
Appendix D - “Information Concerning Orogen”.
Pro-Forma Consolidated Financial Information of Evrim
See Appendix E - “Unaudited Pro-Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Evrim” for selected
unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated financial information of Evrim as at and for the three months ended
March 31, 2020 and for the year ended December 31, 2019, after giving effect to the Arrangement (the “Pro-Forma
Financial Statements”). Reference should be made, among other things, to Evrim’s audited annual consolidated
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, each of which is filed under Evrim’s company profile
on SEDAR, and Renaissance’s unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the nine months
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, audited annual consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, and unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the six months ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, each of which is filed under Renaissance’s company profile on SEDAR.
Implementing the Arrangement
The Arrangement will be implemented by way of the Plan of Arrangement, subject to and pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Arrangement Agreement. Implementation of the Arrangement is subject to a number of conditions,
including Renaissance Securityholder Approval of the Arrangement Resolution, Evrim Shareholder Approval of the
Evrim Resolution and the approval of the Court under the BCBCA. The Plan of Arrangement is attached to this
Circular as Appendix B - “Plan of Arrangement”. Evrim Shareholders are encouraged to read the Plan of Arrangement
in its entirety. The Arrangement Agreement may be found under Evrim’s company profile on SEDAR at
http://www.sedar.com. For a summary of the Arrangement, see “The Arrangement”. For a summary of the principal
provisions of the Arrangement Agreement, see “The Arrangement Agreement”.
The Evrim Resolution requires approval by a simple majority of the votes cast in respect of the Evrim Resolution by
Evrim Shareholders present in person or by proxy at the Evrim Meeting. The Evrim Resolution is not mandated by
the BCBCA or the rules of the TSXV. However, Evrim considers it appropriate and good governance to obtain the
approval of Evrim Shareholders for the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement. The Evrim
Shareholder Approval is also a condition precedent to the Arrangement. In the event the Evrim Shareholder Approval
is not obtained, Evrim will not complete the Arrangement unless each of Evrim and Renaissance agree to amend the
Arrangement Agreement. There can be no assurances that will happen.
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The Arrangement Resolution requires approval by: (i) at least two-thirds of the votes cast at the Renaissance Meeting
in person or by proxy by the Renaissance Shareholders; and (ii) at least two-thirds of the votes cast at the Renaissance
Meeting in person or by proxy by the Renaissance Securityholders, voting together as a single class. Should
Renaissance Securityholders fail to approve the Arrangement Resolution by the requisite majorities, the Arrangement
will not proceed or be completed.
Consideration under the Arrangement
Under the Arrangement, Renaissance Shareholders (other than Dissenting Renaissance Shareholders) will receive
1.2448 Evrim Shares for each Renaissance Share held immediately prior to the Arrangement.
Renaissance Option and Renaissance Warrants outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether vested
or unvested) shall be exchanged for such number of Replacement Options and Replacement Warrants as is equal to
the product of: (A) the number of Renaissance Shares subject to such Renaissance Options or Renaissance Warrants
immediately prior to the Effective Time; and (B) the Exchange Ratio. The exercise price of the Replacement Options
and Replacement Warrants per Evrim Share shall reflect a proportional adjustment such that the aggregate exercise
prices of the Replacement Options and Replacement Warrants shall be equal to the aggregate exercise price of such
Renaissance Options and Renaissance Warrants for which they were exchanged, provided that the aggregate exercise
price payable on full or partial exercise of any Replacement Option or Replacement Warrant shall be rounded up to
the nearest whole cent. All of the other terms and conditions of the Replacement Options and Replacement Warrants
will be the same as the Renaissance Option and Renaissance Warrants for which they were exchanged, except that
notwithstanding the terms of the Renaissance Stock Option Plan, in circumstances in which the Expiry Date (as that
term is defined in the Renaissance Stock Option Plan) of the Replacement Options pursuant to section 5.5 of the
Renaissance Stock Option Plan would otherwise have been accelerated to 90 days following the specified event, the
Expiry Date shall not be accelerated to a date that is earlier than six months following the Effective Date.
No fractional Evrim Shares, Replacement Options or Replacement Warrants will be issued and the number of Evrim
Shares, Replacement Options or Replacement Warrants to be issued will be rounded down to the nearest whole number
of Evrim Shares. See “The Arrangement” and “The Arrangement Agreement”.
Recommendation of the Evrim Board
After careful consideration, including a thorough review of the Arrangement Agreement and other matters, including
those discussed in this Circular, the Evrim Board has unanimously determined that the Arrangement is in the best
interest of Evrim and has approved the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement. Accordingly, the
Evrim Board has unanimously approved the Arrangement and unanimously recommends that the Evrim
Shareholders vote FOR the Evrim Resolution.
See “The Arrangement – Recommendation of the Evrim Board”.
Reasons for the Recommendation of the Evrim Board
In making its recommendation that the Evrim Shareholders vote for the Evrim Resolution, the Evrim Board considered
and relied upon a number of factors, including:
Benefits to Shareholders
(a)

Increased Diversification. The Arrangement creates a more diversified company with opportunities in
expanded geological environments and diversification among political jurisdictions. Evrim Shareholders
will continue to have meaningful exposure to Evrim’s portfolio of exploration projects, including the 2%
net smelter returns royalty in respect of the Ermitaño West gold deposit, and Evrim’s strong balance sheet,
including significant cash, while at the same time benefitting from exposure to Renaissance’s diversified
portfolio of exploration projects, including the 1% net smelter returns royalty over the Silicon project,
Renaissance's strong balance sheet and solid executive, finance and operations management capability.

(b)

Increased Market Capitalization and Greater Liquidity. Evrim Shareholders will have the opportunity to
participate in a combined company that should have increased market capitalization and that is anticipated
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to receive greater market attention than Evrim and Renaissance currently receive on a combined basis,
which should also result in greater liquidity.
(c)

Retention of Key Personnel. J. Patrick Nicol, President of Chief Executive Officer of Evrim, is expected to
be the President and Chief Executive Officer of Orogen. In addition, the intended retention of Evrim’s
technical team will encourage continued exploration of Evrim’s existing mineral exploration projects.
Further, Evrim has covenanted to not terminate any full-time employees of Renaissance or its subsidiaries,
except for “just cause” or due to its financial hardship, for a period of six months following the Effective
Date. This covenant will help encourage the continued involvement of Renaissance’s experienced team of
geologists in the exploration of Renaissance’s existing Nevada claims and will allow the Renaissance
technical team access to the proprietary Yamana Gold Inc. database, to which Evrim currently has access,
for use in generative efforts.

(d)

Experienced Board of Directors. Following the Arrangement, Orogen will benefit from an experienced
board of directors led by Paul van Eeden, as Chairman, with David Caulfield joining from Evrim and
Robert Felder and Tim Janke joining from Renaissance.

Procedural Safeguards
(e)

Comprehensive Arm’s Length Negotiations. The terms of the Arrangement are the result of a
comprehensive negotiation process, undertaken with the oversight and participation of each party’s legal
counsel.

(f)

Ability to Respond to Unsolicited Offers. Subject to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, the Evrim
Board will remain able to respond to any unsolicited bona fide written proposal that, having regard for all
of the terms and conditions of such proposal, if consummated in accordance with its terms, may lead to a
transaction more favourable to Evrim Shareholders from a financial point of view than the Arrangement.

See Appendix D - “Information Concerning Orogen” for further information concerning Orogen following completion
of the Arrangement.
The Evrim Board also considered several potential issues regarding and risks resulting from the Arrangement,
including:
(a) The risks to Evrim if the Arrangement is not completed, including the costs to Evrim in resources and
management attention in pursuing the Arrangement and the restrictions on the conduct of business prior to
the completion of the Arrangement, including the ability to raise new funding.
(b) The Arrangement Agreement’s restrictions on Evrim soliciting third parties to make an Acquisition Proposal
prior to completion of the Arrangement and the specific requirements regarding what constitutes a Superior
Proposal.
(c) The Termination Fee of $1,000,000 payable to Renaissance in certain circumstances, including if Evrim
enters into an agreement with a third party to acquire Evrim that constitutes a Superior Proposal.
(d) The conditions to Renaissance’s obligations to complete the Arrangement.
(e) The right of Renaissance to terminate the Arrangement Agreement under certain limited circumstances.
(f) The potential risk of not obtaining certain consents from third parties required to complete the Arrangement,
including from the Court, Renaissance Securityholders, Evrim Shareholders, or any other third party whose
consent is required.
(g) The potential negative effect on Evrim’s relationship with its stakeholders, including customers, suppliers,
and employees.
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The Evrim Board’s reasons for recommending the Arrangement include certain assumptions relating to forwardlooking information, and such information and assumptions are subject to various risks. See “Risk Factors”.
The foregoing summary of the information and factors considered by the Evrim Board is not intended to be exhaustive.
In view of the variety of factors and the amount of information considered in connection with its evaluation of the
Arrangement, the Evrim Board did not find it practical to, and did not, quantify or otherwise attempt to assign any
relative weight to each specific factor considered in reaching its conclusion and recommendation. The Evrim Board’s
recommendation was made after considering all of the above-noted factors and in light of the results of technical and
legal due diligence on Evrim and Renaissance’s properties, prospects, assets and liabilities; the Evrim Board’s
knowledge of the business, financial condition and prospects of Renaissance, and was also based on the advice of
legal advisors to the Evrim Board. In addition, individual members of the Evrim Board may have assigned different
weights to different factors.
Voting Support Agreements
Renaissance has entered into Voting Support Agreements with each of the officers, directors and certain shareholders
of Evrim, pursuant to which the Evrim Locked-up Shareholders have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of
the Voting Support Agreements, to vote their Evrim Shares in favour of the Evrim Resolution to approve the issuance
of Evrim Shares in connection with the Arrangement. The Evrim Locked-up Shareholders collectively beneficially
own or exercise control or direction over 18,141,752 Evrim Shares and 3,100,000 Evrim Options, representing
approximately 21.3% of the outstanding Evrim Shares and 23.7% of the outstanding Evrim Shares and Evrim Options,
calculated as a single class as of the date hereof.
Evrim has similarly entered into Voting Support Agreements with each of the officers, directors and certain
shareholders of Renaissance, pursuant to which the Renaissance Locked-up Shareholders have agreed, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Voting Support Agreements, to vote their Renaissance Shares, Renaissance Options and
Renaissance Warrants in favour of the Arrangement Resolution to approve the Arrangement. The Renaissance
Locked-up Shareholders collectively beneficially own or exercise control or direction over 16,236,063 Renaissance
Shares, 3,614,200 Renaissance Options and 5,716,216 Renaissance Warrants, representing approximately 23.7% of
the outstanding Renaissance Shares and 27.3% of the outstanding Renaissance Shares, Renaissance Options and
Renaissance Warrants, calculated as a single class as of the date hereof.
Their respective obligations under the Voting Support Agreements may be terminated at any time on the written
agreement of either Renaissance or Evrim, as the case may be, and the Locked-up Shareholders, and will be terminated
if the Arrangement Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms.
See “The Arrangement – Voting Support Agreements”.
Evrim Shareholder Approval
At the Evrim Meeting, Evrim Shareholders will be asked to consider and, if thought advisable, to pass, with or without
variation, the Evrim Resolution authorizing the Arrangement, the full text of which is set out in Appendix A - “Evrim
Resolution”. In order to become effective, the Evrim Resolution must be approved by an affirmative vote of a simple
majority of the votes cast on the Evrim Resolution by Evrim Shareholders present in person or represented by proxy
at the Evrim Meeting.
The Evrim Resolution is not mandated by the BCBCA or the rules of the TSXV. However, Evrim considers it
appropriate and good governance to obtain the approval of Evrim Shareholders for the transactions contemplated by
the Arrangement Agreement. The Evrim Shareholder Approval is also a condition precedent to the Arrangement. In
the event the Evrim Shareholder Approval is not obtained, Evrim will not complete the Arrangement unless each of
Evrim and Renaissance agree to amend the Arrangement Agreement. There can be no assurances that will happen.
See “The Arrangement – Evrim Shareholder Approval”.
Court Approval
The BCBCA requires that the Court approve the Arrangement.
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On July 8, 2020, Renaissance obtained the Interim Order providing for the calling and holding of the Renaissance
Meeting and other procedural matters and filed a Notice of Hearing of Petition to approve the Arrangement.
The Court hearing in respect of the Final Order is expected to take place at 9:45 (Vancouver time), on August 17,
2020, or as soon thereafter as counsel for Renaissance may be heard, at the Courthouse, 800 Smithe Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, subject to the Renaissance Securityholder Approval and the Evrim Shareholder Approval. At the
hearing, the Court will consider, among other things, the fairness of the terms and conditions of the Arrangement and
the rights and interests of every person affected. The Court may approve the Arrangement in any manner the Court
may direct, subject to compliance with such terms and conditions, if any, as the Court deems fit.
The Court is authorized to conduct a hearing at which the fairness of the terms and conditions of the Arrangement will
be considered. Under the terms of the Interim Order, each Renaissance Securityholder, as well as any creditors of
Renaissance, will have the right to appear and make submissions at the application for the Final Order. Subject to the
Court ordering otherwise, only those persons who file a response in compliance with the Interim Order will be
provided with notice of the materials to be filed with the Court and the opportunity to make submissions in support or
opposition of the Final Order.
See “The Arrangement – Court Approval”.
Completion of the Arrangement
Completion of the Arrangement is expected to occur on or about August 18, 2020; however, completion of the
Arrangement is dependent on many factors, some of which are beyond the control of Evrim and Renaissance, and it
is not possible at this time to determine precisely when or if the Arrangement will become effective. It is possible that
completion may be delayed if the conditions to completion of the Arrangement cannot be met on a timely basis.
See “The Arrangement - Description of the Arrangement” and “The Arrangement Agreement – Effective Date and
Conditions of Arrangement”.
Dissent Rights
Registered Renaissance Shareholders have Dissent Rights with respect to the Arrangement. Any Registered
Renaissance Shareholders who dissent from the Arrangement Resolution in accordance with sections 237 to 247 of
the BCBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement, the Interim Order and the Final Order, will be entitled to be
paid by Renaissance the fair value of the Renaissance Shares held by such Renaissance Shareholders determined as at
the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the date on which the Arrangement Resolution is
approved by the Renaissance Shareholders. The Dissent Rights with respect to the Arrangement must be strictly
complied with in order for Registered Renaissance Shareholders to receive cash representing the fair value of
Renaissance Shares held.
See “The Arrangement – Dissent Rights”.
Risk Factors
Evrim Shareholders who vote in favour of the Evrim Resolution will be voting in favour of combining the businesses
of Evrim and Renaissance and to invest in the business of Renaissance. There are certain risk factors associated with
the Arrangement and an investment in Renaissance which should be carefully considered by Evrim Shareholders,
including the fact that the Arrangement may not be completed if, among other things, the Evrim Resolution is not
approved at the Evrim Meeting, the Arrangement Resolution is not approved at the Renaissance Meeting or if any
other conditions precedent to the completion of the Arrangement are not satisfied or waived, as applicable. Readers
are cautioned that such risk factors are not exhaustive.
See “Risk Factors”.
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GENERAL PROXY MATTERS
Solicitation of Proxies
This Circular is provided in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the management of the Company for
use at the Evrim Meeting for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting. While it is expected that
the solicitation will be made primarily by mail, proxies may be solicited personally or by telephone by directors,
officers and employees of the Company (who will not be specifically remunerated therefor).
The information set forth below generally applies to registered holders of Evrim Shares. If you are a beneficial holder
of Evrim Shares (i.e., your Evrim Shares are held through a broker, financial institution or other nominee), see
“General Proxy Matters – Advice for Beneficial Holders of Evrim Shares”.
Appointment and Revocation of Proxies
Registered Evrim Shareholders who cannot attend the Evrim Meeting in person may vote by proxy either by mail,
personal delivery, fax, telephone or over the internet. The enclosed form of proxy with respect to the Evrim Meeting
(the “Proxy”) must be received by Computershare, the Company’s transfer agent, no later than 9:00 a.m. (Vancouver
time) on the second Business Day preceding the date of the Evrim Meeting or any adjournment or postponement
thereof. Registered Evrim Shareholders must return the properly completed Proxy to Computershare as follows:
(a)

by mail or personal delivery to Computershare, 100 University Avenue, 8th Floor, Toronto, Ontario,
Canada M5J 2Y1, Attention: Proxy Department;

(b)

by fax to Computershare, to the attention of the Proxy Department at 1-866-249-7775 (toll free
within Canada and the U.S.) or 416-263-9524 (international);

(c)

by telephone by calling 1-866-732-8683 (toll free within Canada or the U.S.) from a touch tone
telephone and referring to your control number provided on the form of proxy delivered to you; or

(d)

over the internet by going to www.investorvote.com and following the online voting instructions
given to you and referring to your control number provided on the form of proxy delivered to you.

To be valid, the Proxy must be executed by a Registered Evrim Shareholder or a Registered Evrim Shareholder’s
attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the Registered Evrim Shareholder is a body corporate, by a duly authorized
officer or attorney. If the form of Proxy is executed by an attorney for an individual Registered Evrim Shareholder or
by an officer or attorney of a Registered Evrim Shareholder that is a company or association, documentation
evidencing the power to execute the Proxy may be required with signing capacity stated. If not dated, the Proxy will
be deemed to have been dated the date that it is mailed to the Registered Evrim Shareholder.
The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy with respect to the Proxy, being J. Patrick Nicol, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and Mahesh Liyanage, Chief Financial Officer of the Company. A Registered Evrim
Shareholder may appoint a person or company (who need not be an Evrim Shareholder) other than the persons
specified in the Proxy to represent the Evrim Shareholder at the Evrim Meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof by striking out the printed name of such person and inserting such other person or
company’s name in the blank space provided in that Proxy or by completing another proper form of proxy
and, in either case, depositing the completed Proxy at the office of Computershare so as to arrive no later than
9:00 a.m. (Vancouver time) on the second Business Day preceding the date of the Evrim Meeting or any
adjournment or postponement thereof. Registered Evrim Shareholders must return the properly completed
Proxy to Computershare as follows:
(a)

by mail or personal delivery to Computershare, 100 University Avenue, 8th Floor, Toronto, Ontario,
Canada M5J 2Y1, Attention: Proxy Department;

(b)

by fax to Computershare, to the attention of the Proxy Department at 1-866-249-7775 (toll free
within Canada and the U.S.) or 416-263-9524 (international);
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(c)

by telephone by calling 1-866-732-8683 (toll free within Canada or the U.S.) from a touch tone
telephone and referring to your control number provided on the form of proxy delivered to you,
provided that it is not possible to appoint an alternative proxyholder by telephone; or

(d)

over the internet by going to www.investorvote.com and following the online voting instructions
given to you and referring to your control number provided on the form of proxy delivered to you.

If you appoint a proxyholder, other than the management designees, that proxyholder must attend and vote at
the Evrim Meeting for your vote to be counted.
The time limit for deposit of proxies may be waived or extended by the Chair of the Evrim Meeting at his or her
discretion, without notice.
A Registered Evrim Shareholder executing the Proxy may indicate the manner in which the appointee is to vote with
respect to any specific item by checking the appropriate space. The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy will
vote the Evrim Shares in respect of which they are appointed by proxy on any ballot that may be called for in
accordance with the instructions thereon. In the absence of such instructions, such Evrim Shares will be voted in
favour of each of the matters referred to herein.
A Proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked at any time prior to its use. A Registered Evrim Shareholder
who has given a Proxy may revoke the Proxy by:
(a)

completing and signing a Proxy bearing a later date and depositing it at the offices of
Computershare, Attention: Proxy Department, 8th Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario,
M5J 2Y1;

(b)

depositing an instrument in writing executed by the Registered Evrim Shareholder or by the
Registered Evrim Shareholder’s attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the Registered Evrim
Shareholder is a body corporate, by a duly authorized officer or attorney either with Computershare,
Attention: Proxy Department, 8th Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2Y1 at any
time up to and including the last Business Day preceding the day of the Evrim Meeting or any
adjournment or postponement thereof or with the Chair of the Evrim Meeting prior to the
commencement of the Evrim Meeting on the day of the Evrim Meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof; or

(c)

in any other manner permitted by Law.

Such instrument will not be effective with respect to any matter on which a vote has already been cast pursuant to
such Proxy.
Only Registered Evrim Shareholders have the right to revoke a Proxy. Non-Registered Evrim Shareholders that wish
to change their voting instructions must, in sufficient time in advance of the Evrim Meeting, contact their Intermediary
to arrange to change their voting instructions.
Voting of Evrim Shares Represented by Management Proxies
On any matter to be acted upon or any ballot that may be called for at the Evrim Meeting, the Evrim Shares represented
by each properly executed Proxy in favour of the persons designated in the enclosed Proxy received by the Company
will be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the specifications given by the Registered Evrim
Shareholder. In the absence of such specifications in an enclosed Proxy where the Registered Evrim Shareholder
has appointed the persons whose names have been pre-printed in the enclosed Proxy as the Evrim
Shareholder’s nominee at the Evrim Meeting, the Evrim Shares represented by such Proxies will be voted FOR
each of the matters specified in this Circular, including the Evrim Resolution.
The enclosed Proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with respect to
amendments to or variations of matters identified in the accompanying Notice of Meeting and with respect to
other matters, if any, which may properly come before the Evrim Meeting. At the date of this Circular, the
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management of the Company knows of no such amendments, variations, or other matters to come before the
Evrim Meeting. However, where a Registered Evrim Shareholder has appointed the persons whose names have
been pre-printed in the enclosed Proxy as the Registered Evrim Shareholder’s nominee at the Evrim Meeting,
if any amendments or variations to matters identified in the accompanying Notice of Meeting or other matters
which are not now known to management of the Company should properly come before the Evrim Meeting,
the enclosed Proxy may be voted on such matters in accordance with the best judgment of the person voting
the Proxy.
Advice to Beneficial Holders of Evrim Shares
Registered Evrim Shareholders or the persons they validly appoint as their proxies are permitted to vote at the Evrim
Meeting. However, in many cases, Evrim Shares beneficially owned by a person (a “Non-Registered Evrim
Shareholder”) are registered either: (i) in the name of an intermediary (an “Intermediary”) (including banks, trust
companies, securities dealers or brokers and trustees or administrators of self-administered RRSPs, RRIFs, RESPs
and similar plans) that the Non-Registered Evrim Shareholder deals with in respect of the Evrim Shares, or (ii) in the
name of a clearing agency (such as CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc.) of which the Intermediary is a
participant, and therefore are not a Registered Evrim Shareholder. Only Registered Evrim Shareholders or duly
appointed proxyholders are permitted to vote at the Evrim Meeting. Without specific instructions, Intermediaries
are prohibited from voting securities for their clients.
Applicable regulatory policy requires intermediaries to seek voting instructions from non-registered shareholders in
advance of shareholder meetings. Every intermediary has its own mailing procedures and provides its own return
instructions, which should be carefully followed by Non-Registered Evrim Shareholders in order to ensure that their
Evrim Shares are voted at the Evrim Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Often, the form of proxy
supplied to a Non-Registered Evrim Shareholder by its intermediary is identical to the form of proxy provided to
Registered Evrim Shareholders; however, its purpose is limited to instructing the Registered Evrim Shareholder on
how to vote on behalf of the Non-Registered Evrim Shareholder. The majority of intermediaries now delegate
responsibility for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. (“Broadridge”).
Broadridge typically mails a scannable voting instruction form in lieu of the form of proxy. If you are a NonRegistered Evrim Shareholder (holding your Evrim Shares through a bank, broker, trust company, or
custodian) you are requested to complete and return the voting instruction form to Broadridge by mail or
facsimile. Alternatively Non-Registered Evrim Shareholders can call the toll-free telephone number printed on
their voting instruction form or go to www.proxyvote.com and enter their 16 digit control number to deliver
their voting instructions. Broadridge tabulates the results of all instructions received and provides appropriate
instructions respecting the voting of Evrim Shares to be represented at the Evrim Meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof. Evrim may utilize Broadridge QuickVote™ service to assist Non Registered Evrim
Shareholders that are “non-objecting beneficial owners” with voting their Evrim Shares over the telephone.
If you have questions, you may contact the Company by: (i) telephone, toll free in North America at 1-855-240-3727
or at 604-248-8648; or (ii) e-mail to info@evrimresources.com.
Distribution to NOBOs
In accordance with the requirements of NI 54-101, Evrim will have caused its agent to distribute copies of the Meeting
Materials as well as a voting instruction form directly to each Non-Registered Evrim Shareholders who has provided
instructions to an Intermediary that such Non-Registered Evrim Shareholder does not object to the Intermediary
disclosing ownership information about the beneficial owner (a “Non-Objecting Beneficial Owner” or “NOBO”).
These Meeting Materials are being sent to both Registered Evrim Shareholders and Non-Registered Evrim
Shareholders. If you are a Non-Registered Evrim Shareholder, and the Company or its agent has sent these materials
directly to you, your name and address and information about your holdings of Evrim Shares have been obtained in
accordance with applicable securities regulatory requirements from the Intermediary holding on your behalf.
By choosing to send these Meeting Materials to you directly, the Company (and not the Intermediary holding on your
behalf) has assumed responsibility for (i) delivering these materials to you, and (ii) executing your proper voting
instructions. Please return your voting instructions as specified in the request for voting instructions.
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The Meeting Materials distributed by Evrim’s agent to NOBOs include a voting instruction form (“VIF”). These VIFs
are to be completed and returned to Computershare in accordance with the instructions. Computershare is required to
follow the voting instructions properly received from NOBOs. Computershare will tabulate the results of the VIFs
received from NOBOs and will provide voting instructions at the Evrim Meeting with respect to the Evrim Shares
represented by the VIFs they receive. If the VIF is executed by an attorney for an individual shareholder or by an
officer or attorney of a shareholder that is a company or association, documentation evidencing the power to execute
the VIF may be required with signing capacity stated.
If an NOBO wishes to attend the Evrim Meeting and vote in person (or have another person attend and vote on behalf
of the NOBO), the NOBO should insert the name of the NOBO (or the name of the person that the NOBO wants to
attend and vote on the NOBO’s behalf) in the space provided on the VIF and return it to Computershare in accordance
with the instructions provided on the VIF. If Computershare or the Company receives a written request that the NOBO
or its nominee be appointed as proxyholder, if management is holding a proxy with respect to Evrim Shares
beneficially owned by such NOBO, the Company must arrange, without expense to the NOBO, to appoint the NOBO
or its nominee as proxyholder in respect of those Evrim Shares. Under NI 54-101, unless corporate Law does not
allow it, if the NOBO or its nominee is appointed as proxyholder by the Company in this manner, the NOBO or its
nominee, as applicable, must be given the authority to attend, vote and otherwise act for and on behalf of management
in respect of all matters that come before the Evrim Meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the Evrim
Meeting. If the Company receives such instructions at least one Business Day before the deadline for submission of
proxies, it is required to deposit the proxy within that deadline, in order to appoint the NOBO or its nominee as
proxyholder. If an NOBO requests that the NOBO or its nominee be appointed as proxyholder, the NOBO or its
appointed nominee, as applicable, will need to attend the Evrim Meeting in person in order for the NOBOs vote to be
counted.
Distribution to OBOs
In addition, the Company will have caused its agent to deliver copies of the Meeting Materials to the clearing agencies
and Intermediaries for onward distribution to those Non-Registered Evrim Shareholders who have provided
instructions to an Intermediary that the beneficial owner objects to the Intermediary disclosing ownership information
about the beneficial owner (each an “Objecting Beneficial Owner” or “OBO”).
Applicable regulatory policy requires intermediaries to seek voting instructions from OBOs in advance of shareholder
meetings. Every intermediary has its own mailing procedures and provides its own return instructions, which should
be carefully followed by OBOs in order to ensure that their Evrim Shares are voted at the Evrim Meeting or any
adjournment or postponement thereof. Often, the form of proxy supplied to an OBO by its intermediary is identical to
the form of proxy provided to Registered Evrim Shareholders; however, its purpose is limited to instructing the
Registered Evrim Shareholder on how to vote on behalf of the OBO. The majority of intermediaries now delegate
responsibility for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge. Broadridge typically mails a scannable voting
instruction form in lieu of the form of proxy. If you are an OBO (holding your Evrim Shares through a bank, broker,
trust company, or custodian) you are requested to complete and return the voting instruction form to Broadridge by
mail or facsimile. Alternatively OBOs can call the toll-free telephone number printed on their voting instruction form
or go to www.proxyvote.com and enter their 16 digit control number to deliver their voting instructions. Broadridge
tabulates the results of all instructions received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of Evrim
Shares to be represented at the Evrim Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.
Intermediaries are required to forward the Meeting Materials to OBOs unless an OBO has waived his or her right to
receive them. Intermediaries often use service companies, such as Broadridge, to forward the Meeting Materials to
OBOs. Generally, those OBOs who have not waived the right to receive Meeting Materials will either:
(a)

be given a Proxy which has already been signed by the Intermediary (typically by a facsimile
stamped signature), which is restricted as to the number of Evrim Shares beneficially owned by the
OBO, but which is otherwise uncompleted. This Proxy need not be signed by the OBO. In this case,
the OBO who wishes to submit a Proxy should properly complete the Proxy and deposit it with
Computershare in the manner set out above in this Circular, with respect to the Evrim Shares
beneficially owned by such OBO; or
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(b)

more typically, be given a voting information form which is not signed by the Intermediary and
which, when properly completed and signed by the OBO and returned to the Intermediary or its
service company, will constitute voting instructions which the Intermediary must follow. Typically,
the voting information form will consist of a one page pre-printed form. The purpose of this
procedure is to permit the OBO to direct the voting of the Evrim Shares beneficially owned by such
OBO.

If an OBO wishes to attend the Evrim Meeting and vote in person (or have another person attend and vote on behalf
of the OBO), the OBO should insert the OBO’s name (or the name of the person the OBO wants to attend and vote
on the OBO’s behalf) in the space provided for that purpose on the request for voting instructions form and return it
to the OBO’s Intermediary or send the Intermediary another written request that the OBO or its nominee be appointed
as proxyholder. The Intermediary is required under NI 54-101 to arrange, without expense to the OBO, to appoint the
OBO or its nominee as proxyholder in respect of the OBO’s Evrim Shares. Under NI 54-101, unless corporate Law
does not allow it, if the Intermediary makes an appointment in this manner, the OBO or its nominee, as applicable,
must be given authority to attend, vote and otherwise act for and on behalf of the Intermediary (who is the registered
shareholder) in respect of all matters that come before the Evrim Meeting and any adjournment or postponement of
the Evrim Meeting. An Intermediary who receives such instructions at least one Business Day before the deadline for
submission of proxies is required to deposit the proxy within that deadline, in order to appoint the OBO or its nominee
as proxyholder. If an OBO requests that the Intermediary appoint the OBO or its nominee as proxyholder, the OBO
or its appointed nominee, as applicable, will need to attend the Evrim Meeting in person in order for the OBO’s vote
to be counted.
Notice-and-Access
The Company is not sending the Meeting Materials to Registered Evrim Shareholders or Non-Registered Evrim
Shareholders using notice-and-access delivery procedures.
Voting Securities of the Company and Principal Holders Thereof
The Evrim Board has fixed the close of business on June 29, 2020 as the record date (the “Record Date”), being the
date for the determination of the registered holders of Evrim Shares entitled to receive notice of, and vote at, the Evrim
Meeting. All such holders of record of Evrim Shares on the Record Date are entitled either to attend and vote thereat
in person the Evrim Shares held by them or, provided a completed and executed Proxy shall have been delivered to
Computershare, within the time specified in the accompanying Notice of Meeting, to attend and to vote by Proxy the
Evrim Shares held by them.
The authorized share capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of Evrim Shares. As at the Record Date,
there were 85,295,817 Evrim Shares issued and outstanding. Each Evrim Share entitles the holder thereof to one vote
on all matters to be acted upon at the Evrim Meeting. The Company has no other class of voting securities.
Business may be transacted at the Evrim Meeting if one or more persons who are, or who represent by proxy, one or
more Evrim Shareholders who, in the aggregate, hold at least 5% of the issued Evrim Shares entitled to be voted at
the Evrim Meeting, is present at the Evrim Meeting. Only Evrim Shareholders of record at the close of business on
the Record Date, who either attend the Evrim Meeting personally or complete and deliver a Proxy in the manner and
subject to the provisions described above, will be entitled to vote their Evrim Shares or to have their Evrim Shares
voted at the Evrim Meeting. The failure of any Evrim Shareholder to receive notice of the Evrim Meeting does not
deprive the Evrim Shareholder of the right to vote at the Evrim Meeting.
To the knowledge of the directors and executive officers of the Company, as at the date hereof, the following are the
only persons or companies that beneficially own or exercise control or direction over, directly or indirectly, 10% or
more of the voting rights attached to all of the issued and outstanding Evrim Shares:
Beneficial Owner
Altius Resources Inc.

Evrim Shares
11,464,875

Percentage of issued and
outstanding Evrim Shares
13.44%
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Beneficial Owner

Percentage of issued and
outstanding Evrim Shares

Evrim Shares

Global Strategic Management Inc. d/b/a Adrian Day
Asset Management

10,132,528

11.88%

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The size of the Evrim Board is currently set at four. At the Evrim Meeting, the Evrim Shareholders will be asked to
elect four directors to succeed the present directors whose term of office will expire at the conclusion of the Evrim
Meeting. Each director elected will hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company
at which a director is elected, unless the director’s office is earlier vacated in accordance with the constating documents
of the Company or the provisions of the BCBCA, as applicable.
The following table sets out the names and municipalities of residence of management’s nominees for election as
directors, all offices in the Company each nominee now holds, the date of initial appointment of each nominee as a
director, the number of Evrim Shares and Evrim Options beneficially owned by each nominee, directly or indirectly,
or over which control or direction is exercised by such nominee, and each nominee’s principal occupation, business
or employment.
Period from
which Nominee
has been a
Director

Number of
Evrim Shares[1]

Number of
Evrim Options[1]

J. Patrick (“Paddy”) Nicol[3]
Coquitlam, BC, Canada
President & Chief Executive
Officer, Director

Dec. 23, 2010

1,496,877

1,000,000 [4]

President & Chief Executive
Officer of Evrim

David A. Caulfield, P.Geo.[2,3]
Quadra Island, BC, Canada
Director

Dec. 23, 2010

1,012,000

Nil

Independent Geologist and
corporate director

Paul van Eeden[2,3]
Aurora, ON, Canada
Director

Dec. 23, 2010

4,000,000

Nil

President, Cranberry Capital
Inc., a private investment
holding company

John Thompson, Ph.D.[2]
Vancouver, BC, Canada
Director

May 13, 2015

33,000

100,000[5]

Principal of PetraScience
Consultants, an exploration,
development and technology
consultancy

Name and Address of Nominee
and Present Position with the
Company

Principal Occupation

1.

Securities beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised, which
information has been furnished by the nominees.

2.

Member of the Compensation Committee.

3.

Member of the Audit Committee.

4.

The Evrim Options have an exercise price of $0.25 per share and expiry date of November 9, 2022.

5.

The Evrim Options expired on May 13, 2020, during the blackout period, therefore its expiry date is extended
until 10 business days subsequent to the blackout being lifted.

If the Arrangement is completed, it is anticipated that J. Patrick Nicol and John Thompson will resign and Bob Felder
and Tim Janke will be appointed by the Evrim Board to fill the resulting vacancies. See “The Arrangement” and “The
Arrangement Agreement”.
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UNLESS THE EVRIM SHAREHOLDER HAS SPECIFIED IN THE ENCLOSED FORM OF PROXY THAT
THE EVRIM SHARES REPRESENTED BY SUCH PROXY ARE TO BE VOTED AGAINST THE
ELECTION RESOLUTION, PROXIES HELD BY MANAGEMENT NOMINEES WILL BE VOTED IN
FAVOUR OF SUCH MATTERS.
Advance Notice Requirements for Nominations
The Company’s Articles (the “Articles”) require that advance notice be provided to the Company in circumstances
where nominations of persons for election to the Evrim Board are made by Evrim Shareholders other than pursuant to
a requisition of a meeting of Evrim Shareholders made pursuant to the provisions of the BCBCA or a shareholder
proposal made pursuant to the provisions of the BCBCA. The Articles fix a deadline by which Evrim Shareholders
must submit nominations to the Company prior to any annual or special meeting of Evrim Shareholders and sets forth
the minimum information that an Evrim Shareholder must include in the notice to the Company for the notice to be
in proper written form. As of July 8, 2020, the Company had not received any nominations. A copy of the Articles
have been filed under the Company’s profile at http://www.sedar.com.
No proposed director is to be elected under any arrangement or understanding between the proposed director and any
other person or company except the directors and executive officers of the Company acting solely in such capacity.
To the best of management’s knowledge and except as disclosed herein, no proposed director:
(a)

is, at the date of this Circular, or has been, within 10 years before the date of this Circular, a director,
chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company (including the Company) that, while
that person was acting in that capacity;
(i)

was subject to an order that was issued while the proposed director was acting in the
capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer; or

(ii)

was subject to an order that was issued after the proposed director ceased to be a director,
chief executive officer or chief financial officer and which resulted from an event that
occurred while that person was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or
chief financial officer;

(b)

is, as at the date of this Circular, or has been within 10 years before the date of this Circular, a
director or executive officer of any company (including the Company) that, while that person was
acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became
bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject
to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver,
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or

(c)

has, within the 10 years before the date of this Circular, become bankrupt, made a proposal under
any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or
trustee appointed to hold the assets of the proposed director.

Paul van Eeden was a director and executive Chairman of Synodon Inc. until November 17, 2016. On November 30,
2016, a receiver was appointed under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) pursuant to a Court Order of the
Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta and on May 8, 2017 Synodon Inc. was cease traded by the Alberta Securities
Commission.
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
At the Evrim Meeting, Smythe LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, of Vancouver, British Columbia will be
recommended by management of the Company for reappointment as auditors of the Company at remuneration to be
fixed by the directors. Smythe LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants was appointed as the Company’s auditors
effective January 5, 2011.
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UNLESS THE EVRIM SHAREHOLDER HAS SPECIFIED IN THE ENCLOSED FORM OF PROXY THAT
THE EVRIM SHARES REPRESENTED BY SUCH PROXY ARE TO BE VOTED AGAINST THE
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS, PROXIES HELD BY MANAGEMENT
NOMINEES WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF SUCH MATTER.
APPROVAL OF STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company’s current stock option plan (the “2018 Plan”) is a 10% “rolling plan” in compliance with the
requirements of TSXV Policy 4.4 Incentive Stock Options (“Policy 4.4”). The Evrim Board adopted the 2018 Plan on
June 8, 2018 and was subsequently approved by Evrim Shareholders at its July 16, 2018 and July 16, 2019 annual
general meetings. Pursuant to Policy 4.4, Evrim Shareholders are required to approve on a yearly basis stock option
plans which have a “rolling plan” ceiling. Under the 2018 Plan, the Company may grant stock options pursuant to
which Evrim Shares may be purchased by directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company up to a
maximum of 10% of the issued and outstanding capital of the Company.
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the 2018 Plan.
The 2018 Plan provides that Evrim Options may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the
Company, as such terms are defined in Policy 4.4.
The 2018 Plan is administered by the Evrim Board.
The 2018 Plan provides for the issuance of stock options to acquire up to that number of Evrim Shares (the “Plan
Ceiling”) equal to 10% of the Company’s issued and outstanding share capital as at the date of grant, subject to
standard anti-dilution adjustments. This is a “rolling” Plan Ceiling as the number of Evrim Shares reserved for issuance
pursuant to the grant of stock options will increase as the Company’s issued and outstanding share capital increases.
The Plan Ceiling includes outstanding stock options granted prior to the implementation of the 2018 Plan. If a stock
option expires or otherwise terminates for any reason, the number of Evrim Shares in respect of that expired or
terminated stock option shall again be available for the purposes of the 2018 Plan.
The 2018 Plan may be amended or terminated by the Evrim Board at any time, but such amendment or termination
will not alter the terms or conditions of any option awarded prior to the date of such amendment or termination. Any
stock option outstanding when the 2018 Plan is amended or terminated will remain in effect until it is exercised or
expires or is otherwise terminated in accordance with the provisions of the 2018 Plan.
The 2018 Plan provides that other terms and conditions, including vesting provisions, may be attached to a particular
stock option, at the discretion of the Evrim Board. All stock option grants are to be evidenced by the execution of an
option agreement, substantially in the form attached as Schedule 1 to the 2018 Plan.
The exercise price of the stock options granted under the 2018 Plan shall be as set by the Evrim Board, but shall not
be less than the discounted market value of the Evrim Shares on the date of the grant, in accordance with the policies
of the TSXV.
The 2018 Plan provides that it is solely within the discretion of the Evrim Board to determine to whom stock options
should be granted and in what amounts. The Evrim Board may issue a majority of the options to insiders of the
Company. However, the number of Evrim Shares which may be reserved for issuance pursuant to stock options
granted to insiders of the Company under the 2018 Plan, together with all of the Company’s other previously
established or proposed share compensation arrangements, in aggregate may not exceed 10% of the total number of
issued and outstanding Evrim Shares on a non-diluted basis. Further, the number of Evrim Shares which may be
issuable under the 2018 Plan, together with all of the Company’s other previously established or proposed share
compensation arrangements:
(a)

to insiders of the Company, in aggregate, shall not exceed 10% of the outstanding Evrim Shares;

(b)

to any one optionee, other than to a consultant or employees providing investor relations activities
shall not exceed 5%, in aggregate, of the outstanding Evrim Shares in any 12 month period on a
non-diluted basis;
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(c)

to any one consultant to the Company, shall not exceed 2%, in aggregate, of the outstanding Evrim
Shares in any 12 month period; and

(d)

all such persons of the Company providing investor relations activities (as defined by the policies
of the TSXV), in aggregate, shall not exceed 2%, in aggregate, of the outstanding Evrim Shares in
any 12 month period.

A stock option may be granted for a period of up to ten years from the date of the grant. If the optionee resigns or is
terminated other than for cause, all unexercised stock options previously granted to such optionee will expire after 90
days. If the optionee was providing investor relations services to the Company, then the stock options will expire after
30 days. All unvested stock options will be cancelled immediately. If an optionee is terminated for cause, all stock
options expire immediately.
Management of the Company will ask the Evrim Shareholders to approve the following resolution at the Evrim
Meeting:
“BE IT RESOLVED AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION that, subject to regulatory approval:
(a)

the Company’s stock option plan (the “2018 Plan”) be and is hereby re-adopted and re-approved;

(b)

the Company be authorized to grant stock options pursuant and subject to the terms and conditions
of the 2018 Plan, entitling the option holders to purchase up to that number of Evrim Shares that is
equal to 10% of the issued and outstanding Evrim Shares of the Company as at the time of the grant;
and

(c)

the directors and officers of the Company be authorized and directed to perform all such acts and
deeds and things and execute, under the seal of the Company or otherwise, all such documents,
agreements and other writings as may be required to give effect to the true intent of these
resolutions.”

MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDS THAT THE EVRIM SHAREHOLDERS VOTE IN FAVOUR OF THE
RE-APPROVAL OF THE 2018 PLAN. UNLESS THE EVRIM SHAREHOLDER HAS SPECIFIED IN THE
ENCLOSED FORM OF PROXY THAT THE EVRIM SHARES REPRESENTED BY SUCH PROXY ARE
TO BE VOTED AGAINST THE RE-APPROVAL OF THE 2018 PLAN, PROXIES HELD BY
MANAGEMENT NOMINEES WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF SUCH MATTER.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
National Instrument 58-101 - Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices (“NI 58-101”) requires issuers to
disclose the corporate governance practices that they have adopted and National Instrument 58-201 - Corporate
Governance Guidelines provides guidance on corporate governance practices. In addition, the Company is subject to
National Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees (“NI 52-110”), which has been adopted in various Canadian provinces
and territories and which prescribes certain requirements in relation to audit committees. A full description of each of
the corporate governance practices of the Company with respect to NI 58-101 is set out below.
The Evrim Board’s responsibilities include strategic planning, appointing and overseeing management, succession
planning, risk identification and management, environmental oversight, communications with other parties and
overseeing financial and corporate issues. The Evrim Board believes that good corporate governance practices provide
an important framework for timely response by the Evrim Board to situations that may directly affect shareholder
value. The Evrim Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy which includes several guidelines for disclosure
controls and procedures, and trading policies. These policies are posted on the Company’s website at
www.evrimresources.com.
Board of Directors
The Evrim Board must have the capacity, independent of management, to fulfill its responsibilities. Independence is
based upon the absence of relationships and interests that could compromise the ability of a director to exercise
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judgment with a view to the best interests of the Company. The Evrim Board is responsible for determining whether
or not each director is an independent director. To do this, the Evrim Board analyzes all the relationships of the
directors with the Company and its subsidiaries.
The following directors are considered to be independent: David A. Caulfield, Paul van Eeden, and John Thompson.
J. Patrick Nicol, who is the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is considered not to be independent.
The Evrim Board takes specific precautions for any transactions that involve related parties or directors that are not
independent. This is accomplished by having a meeting of independent directors with no management representatives
present. The Chairman of the Evrim Board also acts as Chair of this independent subcommittee. The Company’s legal
counsel provides guidance on documenting the decisions and actions of the independent directors. Alan J. Hutchison
of Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP, is the Company’s legal counsel. He is a practicing barrister and solicitor in British
Columbia.
Directorships
Directors of the Company are not directors of any other reporting issuers as of the date of this Circular.
Orientation and Continuing Education
New directors of the Company are provided with an orientation and education program which includes written
information about the duties of directors and the business and operations of the Company. New directors are provided
with opportunities to meet with each senior officer of the Company to have their questions answered or to obtain
additional information. On an ongoing basis, the Company’s legal counsel will provide memoranda concerning
particular issues that may be of concern to the Evrim Board.
Ethical Business Conduct
The Evrim Board has found that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors by the Company’s governing
corporate legislation, common law, and the restrictions placed by applicable corporate legislation on an individual
director’s participation in decisions of the Evrim Board, in which the director has an interest, have been sufficient to
ensure that the Evrim Board operates independently of management and in the best interests of the Company. The
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct which encourages ethical business practices for all employees, officers and
directors.
Nomination of Directors
The size and current membership of the Evrim Board is reviewed each year prior to the directors making any
recommendations to the Evrim Shareholders in respect of the election of the Evrim Board at the annual meeting of the
Evrim Shareholders. Nominations to the Evrim Board are made after taking into account the number of directors
required to carry out the Evrim Board’s duties effectively and the need to maintain the Evrim Board’s diversity of
views and experience. Prior to appointing any new director or recommending any new nominee for election to the
Evrim Board, a Nominating Committee of the Evrim Board will be struck to identify prospective Evrim Board
members and interview each candidate to determine his or her area of expertise and qualifications to serve as a director
of the Company.
Compensation
The Evrim Board has determined that the compensation of directors and officers should be comparable to similar
organizations taking into consideration such matters as time commitment, responsibility and trends in director and
executive compensation. For more information regarding compensation paid to directors and executives, see
“Executive Compensation”.
Other Board Committees
There are no standing committees of the Evrim Board other than the Audit Committee and the Compensation
Committee.
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The Audit Committee is the Company’s primary standing committee of the Evrim Board. The Audit Committee
reviews four times per year the accounting policies, internal control procedures and provide the Company’s external
auditors with instructions. The majority of the members of the Audit Committee are independent members of the
Evrim Board and all are financially literate. See “Audit Committee and Relationship with Auditors” below for
additional information about the Audit Committee.
The Compensation Committee is composed of three independent directors of the Evrim Board. The Compensation
Committee meets at least on an annual basis to review management performance and compensation.
Recommendations from the Compensation Committee are referred to the entire Evrim Board at the budget review
meeting for approval. The Compensation Committee reviews the goals and objectives for the Chief Executive
Officer’s performance.
Assessments
The Evrim Board takes responsibility for monitoring and assessing its effectiveness and the performance of individual
directors, and its committees, including reviewing the Evrim Board’s decision-making processes and quality and
adequacy of information provided by management.
AUDIT COMMITTEE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH AUDITORS
NI 52-110 requires the Company, as a venture issuer, to disclose annually in its Management Information Circular
certain information concerning the constitution of its Audit Committee and its relationship with its independent
auditors, which is set forth below.
The Audit Committee’s Charter
The Audit Committee has adopted an Audit Committee Charter, attached as Appendix F – “Audit Committee Charter”,
which includes the following significant responsibilities as responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
•

reviewing the appointment of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer;

•

reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control and the adequacy
and timeliness of its financial reporting processes;

•

reviewing all financial disclosure prior to filing or distribution;

•

reviewing the Company’s financial reporting and accounting standards and principles and significant
changes in such standards or principles;

•

reviewing significant related party transactions and potential conflicts of interest; and

•

recommending the appointment of the external auditor, approving all audit engagement terms and fees
and pre-approving all audit, non-audit and assurance services provided to the Company by the external
auditor.

Composition of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is comprised of three directors, Paul van Eeden, David A. Caulfield, and J. Patrick Nicol.
Members are considered independent members of the Evrim Board pursuant to the meaning of “independent” provided
in NI 52-110 except for J. Patrick Nicol, Chief Executive Officer of the Company. All three members are considered
financially literate pursuant to NI 52-110.
Relevant Education and Experience
This section describes the relevant education and experience of the Company’s Audit Committee members.
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Paul van Eeden has significant business experience and is currently President of an investment holding company. Mr.
van Eeden is experienced in reading and analyzing financial statements. Mr. van Eeden is the Chair of the Audit
Committee.
David A. Caulfield has significant experience as a senior executive in the mineral exploration industry. He is wellversed in reviewing budgets and financial statements and management discussion and analysis reports.
J. Patrick Nicol has significant experience as a senior executive in the mineral exploration industry. He is well-versed
in reviewing budgets and financial statements and management discussion and analysis reports.
Committee Oversight
Since the commencement of the Company’s most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2019, the
Evrim Board has not failed to adopt a recommendation of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external
auditor.
Reliance on Certain Exemptions
Since the commencement of the Company’s most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2019, the
Company has not relied on the exemptions contained in section 2.4 “De Minimis Non-Audit Services” or Part 8
“Exemptions” of NI 52-110. Section 2.4 of NI 52-110 provides an exemption from the requirement that the Audit
Committee must pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided by the auditor, where the total amount of fees
related to the non-audit services are not expected to exceed 5% of the total fees payable to the auditor in the fiscal
year in which the non-audit services were provided. Part 8 of NI 52-110 permits a company to apply to the Canadian
securities authorities for an exemption from the requirements of NI 52-110, in whole or in part.
Exemptions
The Company is relying on the exemption provided by section 6.1 of NI 52-110 which provides that the Company, as
a venture issuer, is not required to comply with Part 3 (Composition of the Audit Committee) and Part 5 (Reporting
Obligations) of NI 52-110.
External Auditor Service Fees
The fees paid by the Company to its auditor in each of the last two fiscal years, by category, are as follows.
Fiscal Year ended
December 31, 2019

Fiscal Year ended
December 31, 2018

Audit Fees

$ 35,000

$ 30,000

Audit-Related Fees

$ 427

$ 360

Tax Fees – Canadian and US

$ 7,500

$ 7,500

Total fees billed

$ 42,927

$ 37,860

The Company’s external auditors are Smythe LLP, Chartered Accountants. Full-time, permanent employees of the
auditor perform all services. The nature of the services provided by the auditors under each of the categories indicated
in the table is described below.
Audit Fees
Audit fees includes those fees billed during the fiscal year for professional services rendered by the auditors for the
audit of the Company’s annual financial statements and services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or engagements.
Audit-Related Fees
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Audit-related fees were for assurance and related services reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review
of the annual statements that are not reported under “Audit Fees” above. This included review of financial statements
by an independent consultant as required by generally accepted auditing standards, registration fees for Canadian
Public Accountability Board and disbursements made by the auditor on behalf of the Company.
Tax Fees
Tax fees were for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning professional services. These services consisted of tax
compliance, including the review of tax returns and tax planning and advisory services relating to common forms of
domestic and international taxation (i.e. income tax, capital tax, goods and services tax, payroll tax and value added
tax).
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
It is within the mandate of the Audit Committee to approve all audit and non-audit related fees. The Audit Committee
has pre-approved specifically identified non-audit related services, including tax compliance and review of tax returns
as submitted to the Audit Committee from time to time. The auditors also present the estimate for the annual auditrelated services to the Audit Committee for approval prior to undertaking the annual audit of the financial statements.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
The purpose of this Compensation Discussion and Analysis is to provide information about the Company’s executive
compensation objectives and processes and to discuss compensation decisions relating to its named executive officers
(“Named Executive Officers”) listed in the Summary Compensation Table that follows. During its financial year
ended December 31, 2019, five individuals were Named Executive Officers (as defined in Canadian securities Laws)
of the Company, namely J. Patrick Nicol, President and Chief Executive Officer; Mahesh Liyanage, Chief Financial
Officer; Dave Groves, Vice President of Exploration; Charles Funk, former Vice President New Opportunities and
Exploration; and Stewart Harris, former Vice President Technical Services.
Compensation Objectives, Principles and Process
The Company has determined that the officers and employees of the Company should be compensated in a form and
amount that takes into account such factors as professional qualifications, responsibility within the organization, and
trends in executive compensation. The Company conducted a survey of compensation data, as disclosed in financial
statements or information circulars, for selected companies with similar business models, at similar stages of
development and with similar resources available to them. Specific companies considered in this survey were Almadex
Minerals Ltd., Avrupa Minerals Ltd., Eagle Plains Resources Ltd., Eurasian Minerals Inc., Lara Exploration Ltd.,
Millrock Resources Inc., Outcrop Gold Corp., Mirasol Resources Ltd. and Riverside Resources Inc. This data was
used to determine appropriate levels of compensation for fiscal 2018 and fiscal 2019.
The compensation package for each Named Executive Officer consists of a base salary, vacation commensurate with
years of service, benefits available to all employees of the Company, an annual bonus based upon the Company’s
success in executing the joint venture model of mineral exploration and Evrim Options. The Compensation Committee
determines the compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and provides recommendation to the Chief Executive
Officer for other executive officers. The Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer,
determines compensation of staff members who are not executive officers.
It is difficult to assess appropriate performance targets for an exploration company, since the projects change within
the fiscal year and success in exploration can be as much a function of the geology and project circumstances as it is
the result of personal effort. The Compensation Committee determined that the Company’s success in negotiating and
managing joint venture or option agreements for mineral properties would represent the best standard for determining
short and long-term incentive programs. The incentive program will be reviewed on an annual basis by the
Compensation Committee to ensure that compensation remains competitive with industry standards.
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Annual bonuses for all staff are based on company metrics from joint venture exploration, option payments, and joint
venture management fees. The total bonus pool is based on a percentage of annual expenditures by joint venture
partners as evidenced by invoices where the Company is the operator or expenditure reports where the Company is
not the operator. Option payments and management fees are based on actual receipts. The distribution of the bonus
pool is based on an annual assessment of employees’ Key Performance Indicators. Employees receiving perfect scores
will receive a full bonus, weight ranked against other employee salaries. Residual amount for employees not receiving
perfect scores will be distributed to other employees in the Company, based on their weighted annual salary.
The 2018 Plan allows for the issuance of up to 10% of issued and outstanding Evrim Shares as Evrim Options. The
Evrim Board adopted the 2018 Plan on June 8, 2018 and was subsequently approved by Evrim Shareholders at its July
16, 2018 and July 16, 2019 annual general meetings.
The Compensation Committee is charged with the responsibility of reviewing the performance of the Chief Executive
Officer on an annual basis, assisting with goal-setting and measurement of performance with respect to those goals,
which are an integral part of the Company’s overall compensation program.
Neither the Evrim Board nor any of its committees have considered the implications of risk associated with the
Company’s compensation policies and practices.
No Named Executive Officer or director of Evrim is permitted to purchase financial instruments, including, for greater
certainty, prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars, or units of exchange funds, that are designed to
hedge or offset a decrease in market value of equity securities granted as compensation or held, directly or indirectly,
by the Named Executive Officer or director of Evrim.
Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth information concerning the annual and long term compensation for services rendered to
the Company for the financial periods ended December 31, 2019, December 31, 2018, and December 31, 2017, in
respect of the individuals who were the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (or who acted in a
similar capacity as) as of December 31, 2019, or at any time during the financial year, or other executive officers or
individuals whose total compensation during such period exceeded $150,000, being the Named Executive Officers.
Non-equity incentive
plan compensation

awards
($)

Annual
incentive
plans
($)

Longterm
incentive
plans
($)

Optionbased

Year

Salary
($)

Sharebased
awards
($)

J. Patrick Nicol
President &
Chief Executive
Officer[2]

2019
2018
2017

240,000
220,000
195,208

NIL
NIL
NIL

25,221
66,127
42,053

27,350
53,958
13,473

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

292,571
340,085
250,734

Mahesh N.
Liyanage
Chief Financial
Officer[3]

2019
2018
2017

200,000
200,000
163,333

NIL
NIL
NIL

25,221
66,127
42,053

23,698
30,344
11,120

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

248,919
296,471
216,506

Dave Groves
Vice President
of Exploration[4]

2019
2018
2017

112,222
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

98,602
N/A
N/A

19,068
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

229,892
N/A
N/A

Charles Funk
Former VP New
Opportunities and
Exploration[5]

2019
2018
2017

150,000
200,000
163,333

NIL
NIL
NIL

17,348
99,191
63,079

6,623
30,788
11,055

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

173,971
329,979
237,467

Name and
Principal Position

[1]

Pension
value
($)

All other
compensation
($)

Total
compensation
($)
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Stewart Harris
Former VP
Technical
Services[6]

[1]
[2]
[3]

[4]
[5]
[6]

2019
2018
2017

140,000
160,000
143,958

NIL
NIL
NIL

12,210
49,595
31,540

7,524
26,038
9,690

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

159,734
235,633
185,188

The value of the option-based award was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model on vested Evrim
Options.
Mr. Nicol was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer on December 23, 2010. Amounts in this table include
total remuneration for the fiscal years.
Mr. Liyanage was appointed Chief Financial Officer on July 11, 2013. Amounts in this table include total
remuneration for the fiscal years. Evrim entered into an agreement with Mirasol Resources Ltd. to share CFO services
effective March 1, 2016. Evrim received $50,000 and $84,250 during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The agreement was terminated in June 2018.
Mr. Groves was appointed Vice President of Exploration on June 18, 2019. Amounts in this table include total
remuneration for the fiscal years.
Mr. Funk was appointed Vice President New Opportunities and Exploration on April 22, 2016 and ended the
employment on September 5, 2019. Amounts in this table include total remuneration for the fiscal years.
Mr. Harris was appointed Vice-President Technical Services on August 1, 2014. He was Vice President Exploration
since September 5, 2012 and ended the employment on November 6, 2019. Amounts in this table include total
remuneration for the fiscal years.

Incentive Plan Awards
The following Evrim Options awarded to the Named Executive Officers were outstanding as of the end of the financial
year ended December 31, 2019. The market price of the Evrim Shares closed at $0.32 on December 31, 2019.
Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards
Option-based Awards

Number of
securities
underlying
unexercised
options
Name

Share-based Awards

Number of
Market or
Evrim Shares Market or payout value of
Value of
or units of payout value vested shareunexercised in- Evrim Shares of share- based based awards
the- money that have not awards that not paid out or
Option
Option
[1]
exercise price expiration date
options
vested
have not vested distributed

(#)

($)

($)

(#)

($)

($)

J. Patrick Nicol

1,000,000

$0.25

Nov. 9, 2022

70,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

Mahesh N. Liyanage

1,000,000

$0.25

Nov. 9, 2022

70,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

Dave Groves

1,000,000

$0.32

Jul. 4, 2024

NIL

N/A

N/A

N/A

Charles Funk

Nil

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Stewart Harris

450,000

$0.25

Feb. 3, 2020

31,500

N/A

N/A

N/A

[1]

Unexercised “in-the-money” Evrim Options refer to those options in respect of which the market value of the
underlying security as at the financial year ended December 31, 2019, exceeds the exercise or base price of the Evrim
Option. The closing price of Evrim Shares as at December 31, 2019 was $0.32.

The following table sets forth information for each Named Executive Officers with respect to value vested or earned
during the 2018 fiscal year in connection with incentive plan awards.
Incentive Plan Awards — Value Vested or Earned During the Year

Name

Option-based awards Value vested during the
year[1]

Share-based awards - Value
vested during the year
($)

($)
J. Patrick Nicol

42,000

Non-equity incentive plan
compensation - Value earned
during the year
($)

NIL

27,350

- 37 -

Option-based awards Value vested during the
year[1]

Name

Share-based awards - Value
vested during the year
($)

Non-equity incentive plan
compensation - Value earned
during the year

($)
Mahesh N. Liyanage

($)

42,000

NIL

23,698

Dave Groves

NIL

NIL

19,068

Charles Funk

NIL

NIL

6,273

Stewart Harris

31,500

NIL

7,524

[1]

The value of the option-based awards vested during the financial year ended December 31, 2019 is based on the
difference between the closing market price of the Evrim Shares on the vesting date of the Evrim Options and the
exercise price of the Evrim Options.

Pension Plan Benefits
The Company does not have a defined benefit plan, defined contribution plan or deferred compensation plan.
Termination and Change of Control Benefits
The Company has signed employment contracts with the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer which
would provide compensation or benefits in the event of termination of employment or changes in responsibility. The
contract provisions include payment of eighteen months’ salary to the Chief Executive Officer in the event of
termination following a Change of Control (as defined below) while the other senior officers would receive twelve
months’ salary. There would be no additional payment to compensate for benefits. A Change of Control is defined as:
•

a take-over bid (as defined in the Securities Act (British Columbia)) of the Company pursuant to which more
than 50% of the outstanding Evrim Shares of the Company are tendered;

•

a change of control of the Evrim Board, defined as the election by the Evrim Shareholders of less than a
majority of the persons nominated for election by management of the Company;

•

a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all the assets of the Company outside of the normal course
of business;

•

a sale, exchange or other disposition of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Company in a single or a
series of related transactions;

•

a termination of the Company’s business or the liquidation of its assets; or

•

a merger, amalgamation or plan of arrangement or other corporate restructuring of the Company in a
transaction or series of transactions in which the Evrim Shareholders as a group, prior to such merger,
amalgamation or plan of arrangement or other corporate restructuring, own less than a majority of the
outstanding shares of the new or continuing corporation on a fully diluted basis.

In the event the Company terminates the employment of any of the Named Executive Officers without just cause, a
severance payment equal to three months’ salary and benefits would be paid.
If a Change of Control had occurred on December 31, 2019, the Company would have incurred total additional salary
costs of $560,000. If the Company had terminated each of these officers without just cause, the Company would have
incurred additional salary and benefit costs of $110,000.
The Arrangement is not a Change of Control.
Compensation of Directors

- 38 -

During the Company’s financial year ending December 31, 2019, the Company paid each of the non-executive
directors a monthly stipend of $3,000 for their services in their capacity as directors. They were paid an additional
$500 per month for serving on any of the standing committees and an additional $500 per month for serving as a chair
of a standing committee. The Evrim Board chair received an additional $1,667 per month. There is no additional cash
remuneration for attendance at meetings. J. Patrick Nicol is included in the “Summary Compensation Table” above
for Named Executive Officers and received no additional compensation for his services as director.
The following table summarizes the compensation for directors during the financial year ended December 31, 2019:
Non-equity
incentive plan
compensation
($)

Share- based Option- based
Fees earned
awards
awards[1]
($)
($)
($)

Name

Pension
value
($)

All other
compensation
($)

Total
($)

David A. Caulfield

51,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

51,000

John Thompson

39,000

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

39,000

Paul van Eeden

67,500

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

67,500

[1]

The value of the option-based award was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

Incentive Plan Awards
The following Evrim Option awards to the directors who are not Named Executive Officers were outstanding as of
the end of the financial year ended December 31, 2019. The market price of the Evrim Shares closed at $0.32 on
December 31, 2019.
Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards
Option-based Awards
Number of
securities
underlying
unexercised
options
Name
David A. Caulfield

Share-based Awards

Number of
Evrim Shares
Value of
or units of
unexercised in- Evrim Shares
Option
that have not
Option expiration the- money
[1]
exercise price
vested
options
date

(#)

($)

NIL

N/A

John Thompson

100,000

0.18

Paul van Eeden

NIL

N/A

(#)

($)
N/A
[2]

May 13, 2020
N/A

Market or
payout value
of share- based
awards that
have not vested

Market or
payout value of
vested sharebased awards
not paid out or
distributed

($)

($)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

14,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

[1]

Unexercised “in-the-money” options refer to those Evrim Options in respect of which the market value of the
underlying security as at the financial year ended December 31, 2019, exceeds the exercise or base price of the Evrim
Options. The closing price of the Evrim Shares as at December 31, 2019 was $0.32.

[2]

Expiry date extended to 10 days after the blackout period is lifted.

Director Incentive Plan Awards — Value Vested or Earned During the Year
Non-equity incentive plan
Option-based awards — Value Share-based awards — Value compensation — Value earned
vested during the year
during the year
vested during the year[1]
Name

($)

($)

($)

David A. Caulfield

NIL

NIL

NIL

John Thompson

NIL

NIL

NIL

Paul van Eeden

NIL

NIL

NIL
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[1]

The value of the option-based awards vested during the financial year ended December 31, 2019 is based on the
difference between the closing market price of the Evrim Shares on the vesting date of the Evrim Options and the
exercise price of the Evrim Options.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
The table below sets out the outstanding Evrim Options as of the end of the Company’s most recently completed fiscal
year ended December 31, 2019.

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options, warrants
and rights

Plan Category

(a)

Number of securities remaining
available under equity
Weighted-average exercise compensation plans (excluding
price of outstanding options, securities reflected in column
warrants and rights
(a))
(b)

(c)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders

4,815,000

0.27

3,714,581

TOTAL

4,815,000

0.27

3,714,581

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
None of the current or former directors, executive officers and employees of the Company are, as of December 31,
2019, indebted to the Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor are any of these individuals indebted to another entity
which indebtedness is the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar arrangement or
understanding provided by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
None of the directors or executive officers of the Company, no proposed nominee for election as a director of the
Company, nor any associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing, has at any time since the beginning of the Company’s
last completed financial year been indebted to the Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor have any of these individuals
been indebted to another entity which indebtedness is the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or
similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
Other than the Arrangement and to the knowledge of management of the Company, no director or executive officer
of the Company, no person who beneficially owns or controls, directly or indirectly, Evrim Shares carrying 10% or
more of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Evrim Shares (each of the foregoing being an “Informed
Person”), no director or executive officer of an entity that is itself an Informed Person or a subsidiary of the Company,
no proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company and no associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing,
has any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction since the beginning of the Company’s last completed
financial year or in any proposed transaction which, in either case, has materially affected or would materially affect
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Other than the Arrangement, none of the directors or executive officers of the Company, nor any person who has held
such a position at any time since the beginning of the last completed financial year of the Company, nor any associate
or affiliate of the foregoing, has any material interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of securities
or otherwise, in any matter to be acted on at the Evrim Meeting.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
The Company has not entered into any management contracts for the services of any director or senior officer of the
Company. The management functions of the Company and its subsidiaries are not performed to any substantial degree
by any person or company other than the directors and executive officers of the Company or its subsidiaries.
THE ARRANGEMENT
The purpose of the Arrangement is to effect the combination of the businesses of Evrim and Renaissance. The
Arrangement will result in the acquisition by Evrim of all of the issued and outstanding Renaissance Shares (other
than Renaissance Shares held by a Renaissance Dissenting Shareholder, which will be repurchased for cancellation
by Renaissance) for the Consideration Shares, being 1.2448 Evrim Shares for each Renaissance Share held
immediately prior to the Arrangement. As a result of the Arrangement, Renaissance will become a wholly-owned
Subsidiary of Evrim.
As at the date hereof, there are 85,295,817 Evrim Shares issued and outstanding. Evrim Shareholders will hold 50%
of the post-Arrangement entity, Orogen, on an undiluted basis (assuming no additional Evrim Shares are issued by
Evrim prior to the Effective Date, and no Evrim Options, Renaissance Options or Renaissance Warrants or Dissent
Rights are exercised). The Arrangement will be implemented by way of a court-approved Plan of Arrangement under
the BCBCA pursuant to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, the Interim Order and the Final Order.
Background to the Arrangement
Renaissance is a corporation existing under the Laws of the Province of British Columbia. Renaissance is a western
U.S. focused mineral exploration company using a project generator business model. Renaissance applies the
extensive exploration experience and high-end technical skills of its team members to search for and acquire high
quality precious metal exploration projects that are then offered for joint venture to industry partners who provide
exploration funding. The goal of Renaissance has been to keep actively pursuing new, quality discovery opportunities
for the benefit of both investors and industry partners. Renaissance maintains a large portfolio of gold and silver
exploration properties. Renaissance’s objective is to place its projects into exploration and alliance agreements, testing
as many drill targets as possible and providing maximum exposure to success through discovery. In the past,
Renaissance has entered into exploration agreements with well-known resource companies such as Newmont Mining,
Kinross Gold U.S.A., Coeur Mining, Hochschild Mining and AngloGold. Over US$28M has been spent by
Renaissance's exploration and alliance partners since 2011. Renaissance currently has three properties under
exploration funding agreements including one with OceanaGold U.S. Holding Inc., a subsidiary of OceanaGold
Corporation. In June, 2020 AngloGold exercised its right to acquire a 100% interest in the Silicon project in the Bare
Mountain mining district, with Renaissance retaining a 1% NSR. See Appendix C - “Information Concerning
Renaissance”.
Evrim is a corporation existing pursuant to the Laws of the Province of British Columbia. Evrim is a mineral
exploration company that also uses a project generator business model. Evrim’s objective is to participate in significant
exploration discoveries through joint ventures and strategic alliances. Evrim is well financed, has a diverse range of
quality projects and a database covering substantial areas of Mexico and portions of western Canada and southwestern
United States. Evrim’s projects are advanced through option and joint venture agreements with industry partners to
provide maximum exposure to exploration success. Evrim’s business plan also includes royalty creation utilizing
Evrim’s exploration expertise and existing projects. In the past, Evrim has entered into numerous exploration, alliance,
and funding agreements with well-known mining companies including Newmont Corporation, Antofagasta plc, Vale
S.A., ArcelorMittal S.A., First Quantum Minerals Ltd., Coeur Mining, Inc. and First Majestic. Over $30 million has
been spent by Evrim’s exploration partners since 2011. Evrim currently has one property under option with Golden
Ridge Resources Ltd. and an alliance with Yamana Gold Inc. Evrim also owns a 2% net smelter return royalty on the
Ermitaño West deposit, being developed by First Majestic and planned to be in production in 2021.
Evrim’s management and technical team regularly consider and investigate opportunities to enhance value for the
Evrim Shareholders, including monitoring the activities and assets of various industry participants in order to identify
possible strategic transactions. The execution of the Arrangement Agreement was the result of the arm’s length
negotiations between Renaissance and Evrim, their respective boards of directors, the Renaissance Special Committee
comprised of independent directors of Renaissance, and their respective legal advisors.
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In late 2016 representatives of Renaissance and Evrim met to discuss a potential merger transaction. Since both
companies carry on mineral exploration businesses using a project generator business model and have a number of
common shareholders, there was an alignment in corporate objectives and potential synergies available; however, the
parties did not advance discussions beyond a preliminary stage.
In the third quarter of 2019 at the Precious Metals Summit in Beaver Creek, Colorado, J. Patrick Nicol, Evrim’s Chief
Executive Officer was introduced to Bob Felder, Renaissance’s Chief Executive Officer, who had been appointed
after the 2016 discussions. Additional informal telephone discussions were held during October and November 2019.
On December 2, 2019 Renaissance and Evrim entered into reciprocal confidentiality agreements to facilitate the
exchange of confidential information for the purpose of conducting due diligence reviews.
In January 2020, at the Mineral Exploration Roundup conference in Vancouver, the executive management teams
from Renaissance and Evrim met to consider synergies available through a potential merger transaction. Subsequent
to that meeting, but prior to the Prospectors & Developers Association of Canada Conference in March 2020, Evrim
sent a Letter of Intent to Renaissance proposing a “merger of equals” transaction to be announced at that conference.
Renaissance declined to sign such Letter of Intent, but the parties met at the Prospectors & Developers Association of
Canada Conference to continue preliminary discussions.
On March 23, 2020 the Renaissance Board appointed the Renaissance Special Committee consisting of four
independent directors, Lee Graber, Tim Janke, Dieter Krewedl, and Robert Schafer, with a mandate to assess and
examine the proposed business combination with Evrim, or an alternative to a transaction with Evrim. The
Renaissance Special Committee was also vested with the authority to engage and retain professional advisors,
including a financial advisor to review the proposed transaction and render an independent fairness opinion to the
Renaissance Special Committee and the Renaissance Board.
Through the course of initial discussions in late 2019 and early 2020, the management teams of Renaissance and
Evrim advanced discussions on the synergies of a potential merger transaction, with alignment on business models,
depth of technical teams, financial resources and geographic diversity along the Western Cordillera region of North
America.
On April 9, 2020, Renaissance and Evrim entered into a non-binding letter agreement under which they agreed to a
period of exclusivity for one month to facilitate in depth due diligence reviews leading to a potential “merger of
equals” transaction. The parties subsequently extended the exclusivity periods pursuant to letter agreements entered
into on May 11, 2020 and May 22, 2020.
On May 5, 2020, Dundee Goodman was engaged by Renaissance to provide an opinion as to the fairness, from a
financial point of view, of the consideration to be received by Renaissance Shareholders pursuant to the Arrangement.
During April and May 2020, the management teams of Renaissance and Evrim met twice by video conference to
discuss technical highlights of each company’s royalty holdings, property portfolio, including their strategies of
generative exploration and business development. A particular focus was on northwestern Mexico, western United
States, and northwestern British Columbia. The potential for both royalty assets was also reviewed. In addition, on
April 9, 2020, Mr. Nicol had a video-conference discussion with Mr. Felder and the Renaissance Board to discuss the
corporate strategy and vision of a combined entity.
On May 21, 2020, Renaissance announced that it had received notice from AngloGold that AngloGold had elected to
make the final payment of US$2,400,000 in respect of its option to acquire a 100% interest in the Silicon project in
the Bare Mountain mining district of Nevada. AngloGold subsequently made the required payment on June 2, 2020
and exercised its option to earn a 100% interest in the Silicon project, with Renaissance retaining a 1% net smelter
return royalty interest in the project. This clarified the nature of Renaissance’s ongoing interest in the Silicon project
and enabled Renaissance and Evrim to determine the relative values of their assets and mineral property interests.
On May 25, 2020, Evrim’s legal counsel, Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP, provided Renaissance’s legal counsel
Stikeman Elliott LLP, with a draft arrangement agreement. Over the next two weeks the management teams and legal
counsel of both Renaissance and Evrim held several video meetings and phone calls to discuss certain due diligence
matters, transaction structure issues and the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, Plan of Arrangement and the Voting
Support Agreements.
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The Evrim Board met on June 7, 2020 to review the results of Evrim’s due diligence review of Renaissance and the
proposed terms for the overall transaction.
During this period, the Renaissance Special Committee met a number of times and was provided extensive materials
summarizing the results of the technical, legal, financial and tax due diligence conducted to date together with
information on the current structure and proposed terms for the overall transaction.
On June 9, 2020, the Evrim Board met. Following consideration of a number of factors and relying on legal and other
advisors and discussions with management, the Evrim Board unanimously resolved that:
•

the Arrangement and the Arrangement Agreement are in the best interests of Evrim and, in particular, are
fair to the Evrim Shareholders;

•

the Arrangement is approved;

•

the Arrangement Agreement, substantially in the form presented to this meeting, is approved and Evrim is
authorized to enter into, deliver and perform all of its obligations under the Arrangement Agreement; and

•

the Evrim Board recommends that the Evrim Shareholders vote in favour of the Evrim Resolution.

On June 9, 2020 the Renaissance Board, on the recommendation of the Renaissance Special Committee and after
consultation with its legal and financial advisors, unanimously resolved to approve the Arrangement, to enter into the
Arrangement Agreement, and to recommend that the Renaissance Securityholders vote in favour of the Arrangement
and the Arrangement Resolution.
The Arrangement Agreement and the other definitive transaction documentation were finalized and executed later that
day. A joint press release announcing the Arrangement was issued by Renaissance and Evrim on June 10, 2020.
Recommendation of the Evrim Board
After careful consideration, including a thorough review of the Arrangement Agreement and other matters, including
those discussed in this Circular, the Evrim Board has unanimously determined that the Arrangement is in the best
interest of Evrim and has approved the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement. Accordingly, the
Evrim Board has unanimously approved the Arrangement and unanimously recommends that the Evrim
Shareholders vote FOR the Evrim Resolution.
All members of the Evrim Board that hold Evrim Shares will vote their Evrim Shares, in their capacity as Evrim
Shareholders, in favor of the Arrangement Resolution.
Reasons for the Recommendation of the Evrim Board
In making its recommendation that the Evrim Shareholders vote for the Evrim Resolution, the Evrim Board considered
and relied upon a number of factors, including:
Benefits to Shareholders
(a)

Increased Diversification. The Arrangement creates a more diversified company with opportunities in
expanded geological environments and diversification among political jurisdictions. Evrim Shareholders
will continue to have meaningful exposure to Evrim’s portfolio of exploration projects, including the 2%
net smelter returns royalty in respect of the Ermitaño West gold deposit, and Evrim’s strong balance sheet,
including significant cash, while at the same time benefitting from exposure to Renaissance’s diversified
portfolio of exploration projects, including the 1% net smelter returns royalty over the Silicon project,
Renaissance's strong balance sheet and solid executive, finance and operations management capability.

(b)

Increased Market Capitalization and Greater Liquidity. Evrim Shareholders will have the opportunity to
participate in a combined company that should have increased market capitalization and that is anticipated
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to receive greater market attention than Evrim and Renaissance currently receive on a combined basis,
which should also result in greater liquidity.
(c)

Retention of Key Personnel. J. Patrick Nicol, President of Chief Executive Officer of Evrim, is expected to
be the President and Chief Executive Officer of Orogen. In addition, the intended retention of Evrim’s
technical team will encourage continued exploration of Evrim’s existing mineral exploration projects.
Further, Evrim has covenanted to not terminate any full-time employees of Renaissance or its subsidiaries,
except for “just cause” or due to its financial hardship, for a period of six months following the Effective
Date. This covenant will help encourage the continued involvement of Renaissance’s experienced team of
geologists in the exploration of Renaissance’s existing Nevada claims and will allow the Renaissance
technical team access to the proprietary Yamana Gold Inc. database, to which Evrim currently has access,
for use in generative efforts.

(d)

Experienced Board of Directors. Following the Arrangement, Orogen will benefit from an experienced
board of directors led by Paul van Eeden, as Chairman, with David Caulfield joining from Evrim and
Robert Felder and Tim Janke joining from Renaissance.

Procedural Safeguards
(e)

Comprehensive Arm’s Length Negotiations. The terms of the Arrangement are the result of a
comprehensive negotiation process, undertaken with the oversight and participation of each party’s legal
counsel.

(f)

Ability to Respond to Unsolicited Offers. Subject to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, the Evrim
Board will remain able to respond to any unsolicited bona fide written proposal that, having regard for all
of the terms and conditions of such proposal, if consummated in accordance with its terms, may lead to a
transaction more favourable to Evrim Shareholders from a financial point of view than the Arrangement.

See Appendix D - “Information Concerning Orogen” for further information concerning Orogen following completion
of the Arrangement.
The Evrim Board also considered several potential issues regarding and risks resulting from the Arrangement,
including:
(a) The risks to Evrim if the Arrangement is not completed, including the costs to Evrim in resources and
management attention in pursuing the Arrangement and the restrictions on the conduct of business prior to
the completion of the Arrangement, including the ability to raise new funding.
(b) The Arrangement Agreement’s restrictions on Evrim soliciting third parties to make an Acquisition Proposal
prior to completion of the Arrangement and the specific requirements regarding what constitutes a Superior
Proposal.
(c) The Termination Fee of $1,000,000 payable to Renaissance in certain circumstances, including if Evrim
enters into an agreement with a third party to acquire Evrim that constitutes a Superior Proposal.
(d) The conditions to Renaissance’s obligations to complete the Arrangement.
(e) The right of Renaissance to terminate the Arrangement Agreement under certain limited circumstances.
(f) The potential risk of not obtaining certain consents from third parties required to complete the Arrangement,
including from the Court, Renaissance Securityholders, Evrim Shareholders, or any other third party whose
consent is required.
(g) The potential negative effect on Evrim’s relationship with its stakeholders, including customers, suppliers,
and employees.

- 44 -

The Evrim Board’s reasons for recommending the Arrangement include certain assumptions relating to forwardlooking information, and such information and assumptions are subject to various risks. See “Risk Factors”.
The foregoing summary of the information and factors considered by the Evrim Board is not intended to be exhaustive.
In view of the variety of factors and the amount of information considered in connection with its evaluation of the
Arrangement, the Evrim Board did not find it practical to, and did not, quantify or otherwise attempt to assign any
relative weight to each specific factor considered in reaching its conclusion and recommendation. The Evrim Board’s
recommendation was made after considering all of the above-noted factors and in light of the results of technical and
legal due diligence on Evrim and Renaissance’s properties, prospects, assets and liabilities; the Evrim Board’s
knowledge of the business, financial condition and prospects of Renaissance, and was also based on the advice of
legal advisors to the Evrim Board. In addition, individual members of the Evrim Board may have assigned different
weights to different factors.
Evrim Shareholder Approval
At the Evrim Meeting, Evrim Shareholders will be asked to consider and, if thought advisable, to pass, with or without
variation, the Evrim Resolution authorizing the Arrangement, the full text of which is set out in Appendix A - “Evrim
Resolution”. In order to become effective, the Evrim Resolution must be approved by an affirmative vote of a simple
majority of the votes cast on the Evrim Resolution by Evrim Shareholders present in person or represented by proxy
at the Evrim Meeting.
The Evrim Resolution is not mandated by the BCBCA or the rules of the TSXV. However, Evrim considers it
appropriate and good governance to obtain the approval of Evrim Shareholders for the transactions contemplated by
the Arrangement Agreement. The Evrim Shareholder Approval is also a condition precedent to the Arrangement. In
the event the Evrim Shareholder Approval is not obtained, Evrim will not complete the Arrangement unless each of
Evrim and Renaissance agree to amend the Arrangement Agreement. There can be no assurances that will happen.
It is the intention of the persons named in the instrument of proxy enclosed with the Meeting Materials, if not
expressly directed to the contrary in such instrument of proxy, to vote such proxy in favour of the Evrim
Resolution.
Description of the Arrangement
The following description of the Arrangement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Plan of
Arrangement, which is attached as Appendix B – “Plan of Arrangement” of this Circular.
The purpose of the Arrangement is to effect the combination of the businesses of Renaissance and Evrim through the
acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding Renaissance Shares by Evrim. Pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement,
Evrim and Renaissance have agreed to complete the Arrangement pursuant to which, among other things, Evrim will
acquire all the issued and outstanding Renaissance Shares. On completion of the Arrangement, Renaissance
Shareholders and Evrim Shareholders will hold 50% of the resulting entity.
If approved, the Arrangement will become effective at the Effective Time, which is expected to be at 12:01 a.m.
(Vancouver time) on the Effective Date, which is expected to be in the third quarter of 2020. At the Effective Time,
the following shall occur or be deemed to occur sequentially in the following order:
1.

each Renaissance Share held by a Dissenting Renaissance Shareholder shall be deemed to be transferred by
the holder thereof, without any further act or formality on its part, free and clear of all liens, claims and
encumbrances, to Renaissance and Renaissance shall thereupon be obliged to pay the amount therefor
determined and payable in accordance with Article 4 of the Plan of Arrangement, and: (i) the name of such
holder shall be removed from the central securities register as a holder of Renaissance Shares and such
Renaissance Shares shall be cancelled and cease to be outstanding; and (ii) such Dissenting Renaissance
Shareholders will cease to have any rights as Renaissance Shareholders other than the right to be paid the fair
value for their Renaissance Shares by Renaissance;

2.

each Renaissance Share (other than Dissenting Shares or a Renaissance Share held by Evrim or any
Subsidiary of Evrim) shall be deemed to be transferred to Evrim and, in consideration therefor, Evrim shall
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issue the Consideration Shares for each Renaissance Share, subject to Section 3.3 and Article 5 of the Plan
of Arrangement;
3.

each Renaissance Option outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether vested or unvested)
shall be exchanged for an option (each a “Replacement Option”): (i) to acquire from Evrim that number of
Evrim Shares equal to the product of: (A) the number of Renaissance Shares subject to such Renaissance
Option immediately prior to the Effective Time; and (B) the Exchange Ratio, provided that, if the foregoing
would result in a fraction of an Evrim Share being issuable, the aggregate number of Evrim Shares otherwise
issuable shall be rounded down to the nearest whole number of Evrim Shares; (ii) at the same aggregate
exercise price as the Renaissance Option for which the Replacement Option was exchanged, the per share
exercise price of the Replacement Option shall be an amount equal to the quotient of: (A) the aggregate
exercise price of the Replacement Option; divided by (B) the number of Evrim Shares issuable on full
exercise of the Replacement Option, provided that the aggregate exercise price payable on any full or partial
exercise of a Replacement Option shall be rounded up to the nearest whole cent; and (iii) all other terms and
conditions of the Replacement Options will be the same as the Renaissance Option for which it was
exchanged, except that notwithstanding the terms of the Renaissance Stock Option Plan, in circumstances in
which the Expiry Date (as that term is defined in the Renaissance Stock Option Plan) of the Replacement
Options pursuant to section 5.5 of the Renaissance Stock Option Plan would otherwise have been accelerated
to 90 days following the specified event, the Expiry Date shall not be accelerated to a date that is earlier than
six months following the Effective Date; and

4.

each Renaissance Warrant shall be exchanged for a share purchase warrant (each a “Replacement
Warrant”) to purchase Evrim Shares in accordance with the terms of the applicable agreement or warrant
certificate relating to such Renaissance Warrant such that, following the Effective Time; (i) each
Replacement Warrant shall be exercisable to acquire from Evrim, other than as provided herein, the number
of Evrim Shares equal to the product of: (A) the number of Renaissance Shares subject to such Renaissance
Warrant immediately prior to the Effective Time; and (B) the Exchange Ratio, provided that, if the foregoing
would result in a fraction of an Evrim Share being issuable, the aggregate number of Evrim Shares otherwise
issuable shall be rounded down to the nearest whole number of Evrim Shares; and (ii) at the same aggregate
exercise price as the Renaissance Warrant for which the Replacement Warrant was exchanged, the per share
exercise price of the Replacement Warrant shall be the amount equal to the quotient of: (A) the aggregate
exercise price of the Replacement Warrant; divided by (B) the number of Evrim Shares issuable on full
exercise of the Replacement Warrant, provided that the aggregate exercise price payable on any full or partial
exercise of a Replacement Warrant shall be rounded up to the nearest whole cent.

No fractional Evrim Shares will be issued in connection with the Arrangement. The number of Evrim Shares to be
issued will be rounded down to the nearest whole number of Evrim Shares if any person would otherwise be entitled
to a fractional Evrim Share.
Following the Effective Time certificates or other document evidencing Renaissance Options or Renaissance Warrants
shall be replaced by documents or certificates evidencing Replacement Options or Replacement Warrants, as
applicable. Until such time as Orogen delivers such new certificates representing Replacement Options or
Replacement Warrants the certificates or other documents representing the Renaissance Options or Renaissance
Warrants shall be deemed to represent Replacement Options or Replacement Warrants, as applicable.
See Appendix B – “Plan of Arrangement” for additional information.
Court Approval
The BCBCA requires that the Court approve the Arrangement.
On July 8, 2020, Renaissance obtained the Interim Order providing for the calling and holding of the Renaissance
Meeting and other procedural matters and filed a Notice of Hearing of Petition to approve the Arrangement.
The Court hearing in respect of the Final Order is expected to take place at 9:45 (Vancouver time), on August 17,
2020, or as soon thereafter as counsel for Renaissance may be heard, at the Courthouse, 800 Smithe Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, subject to the Renaissance Securityholder Approval and the Evrim Shareholder Approval. At the
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hearing, the Court will consider, among other things, the fairness of the terms and conditions of the Arrangement and
the rights and interests of every person affected. The Court may approve the Arrangement in any manner the Court
may direct, subject to compliance with such terms and conditions, if any, as the Court deems fit.
The Court is authorized to conduct a hearing at which the fairness of the terms and conditions of the Arrangement will
be considered. Under the terms of the Interim Order, each Renaissance Securityholder, as well as any creditors of
Renaissance, will have the right to appear and make submissions at the application for the Final Order. Subject to the
Court ordering otherwise, only those persons who file a response in compliance with the Interim Order will be
provided with notice of the materials to be filed with the Court and the opportunity to make submissions in support or
opposition of the Final Order.
Dissent Rights
Registered Renaissance Shareholders have Dissent Rights with respect to the Arrangement. Any Registered
Renaissance Shareholders who dissent from the Arrangement Resolution in accordance with sections 237 to 247 of
the BCBCA, as modified by the Plan of Arrangement, the Interim Order and the Final Order, will be entitled to be
paid by Renaissance the fair value of the Renaissance Shares held by such Renaissance Shareholders determined as at
the close of business on the business day immediately preceding the date on which the Arrangement Resolution is
approved by the Renaissance Shareholders. The Dissent Rights with respect to the Arrangement must be strictly
complied with in order for Registered Renaissance Shareholders to receive cash representing the fair value of
Renaissance Shares held.
Regulatory Matters
In addition to the Evrim Shareholder Approval, the Renaissance Securityholder Approval, the Interim Order and the
Final Order described above, certain regulatory approvals will also be required in order to consummate the
Arrangement, as further described below.
The Renaissance Shares are currently listed and posted for trading on the TSXV under the symbol “REN”. Following
completion of the Arrangement, Renaissance will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Evrim and Evrim will change
its name to “Orogen Royalties Inc.” and it is anticipated that the Renaissance Shares will be delisted from the TSXV
and Orogen will apply to the applicable Canadian securities regulators to have Renaissance cease to be a reporting
issuer. The Evrim Shares are currently listed and posted for trading on the TSXV under the symbol “EVM”. Following
the Arrangement and Orogen Shares are expected to begin trading under the symbol “OGN”.
It is a condition to the completion of the Arrangement that the TSXV will have conditionally approved the listing of
the Evrim Shares to be issued pursuant to the Arrangement as well as the Evrim Shares issuable on due exercise of
the Replacement Options and the Replacement Warrants. As of the date of this Circular, Evrim has not yet obtained
conditional approval of the TSXV for the Arrangement.
Evrim Shareholders should be aware that the final approvals have not yet been given by the regulatory authorities
referred to above. Neither Renaissance nor Evrim can provide any assurances that such approvals will be obtained.
Voting Support Agreements
Renaissance has entered into Voting Support Agreements with each of the officers, directors and certain shareholders
of Evrim, pursuant to which the Evrim Locked-up Shareholders have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of
the Voting Support Agreements, to vote their Evrim Shares in favour of the Evrim Resolution to approve the issuance
of Evrim Shares in connection with the Arrangement. The Evrim Locked-up Shareholders collectively beneficially
own or exercise control or direction over 18,141,752 Evrim Shares and 3,100,000 Evrim Options, representing
approximately 21.3% of the outstanding Evrim Shares and 23.7% of the outstanding Evrim Shares and Evrim Options,
calculated as a single class as of the date hereof.
Evrim has similarly entered into Voting Support Agreements with each of the officers, directors and certain
shareholders of Renaissance, pursuant to which the Renaissance Locked-up Shareholders have agreed, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Voting Support Agreements, to vote their Renaissance Shares, Renaissance Options and
Renaissance Warrants in favour of the Arrangement Resolution to approve the Arrangement. The Renaissance
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Locked-up Shareholders collectively beneficially own or exercise control or direction over 16,236,063 Renaissance
Shares, 3,614,200 Renaissance Options and 5,716,216 Renaissance Warrants, representing approximately 23.7% of
the outstanding Renaissance Shares and 27.3% of the outstanding Renaissance Shares, Renaissance Options and
Renaissance Warrants, calculated as a single class as of the date hereof.
Their respective obligations under the Voting Support Agreements may be terminated at any time on the written
agreement of either Renaissance or Evrim, as the case may be, and the Locked-up Shareholders, and will be terminated
if the Arrangement Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms.
Risk Factors
Evrim Shareholders who vote in favour of the Evrim Resolution will be voting in favour of combining the businesses
of Evrim and Renaissance and to invest in the business of Renaissance. There are certain risk factors associated with
the Arrangement and an investment in Renaissance which should be carefully considered by Evrim Shareholders,
including the fact that the Arrangement may not be completed if, among other things, the Evrim Resolution is not
approved at the Evrim Meeting, the Arrangement Resolution is not approved at the Renaissance Meeting or if any
other conditions precedent to the completion of the Arrangement are not satisfied or waived, as applicable. Readers
are cautioned that such risk factors are not exhaustive.
See “Risk Factors”.
THE ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT
The description of the Arrangement Agreement, both below and elsewhere in this Circular, is a summary only, is not
exhaustive and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, which is
incorporated by reference herein and may be found under Evrim’s profile on SEDAR at http://www.sedar.com.
Effective Date and Conditions of Arrangement
If the Evrim Resolution and Arrangement Resolution are passed, the Final Order of the Court is obtained approving
the Arrangement and all other conditions to the Arrangement Agreement are satisfied or waived, the Arrangement
will become effective at 12:01 a.m. (Vancouver time) on the Effective Date. It is currently expected that the Effective
Date will be in the third quarter of 2020. See “The Arrangement Agreement – Conditions to the Arrangement Becoming
Effective.”
Orogen Board of Directors and Management
As of the Effective Time and subject to applicable Law, the Orogen board of directors shall be composed of two
nominees of each of Renaissance and Evrim. It is currently expected that the Orogen board of directors will be
composed of Paul van Eeden, David Caulfield, Bob Felder and Tim Janke following the Effective Time.
Representations and Warranties
The Arrangement Agreement contains representations and warranties made by each Party to the other Party. Those
representations and warranties were made solely for purposes of the Arrangement Agreement and may be subject to
important qualifications, limitations and exceptions agreed to by the Parties in connection with negotiating its terms
and as set out in certain disclosure delivered in connection with the Arrangement Agreement. In particular, some of
the representations and warranties are subject to a contractual standard of materiality or Material Adverse Effect
different from that generally applicable to public disclosure, or are used for the purpose of allocating risk between the
Parties to the Arrangement Agreement. For the foregoing reasons, you should not rely on the representations and
warranties contained in the Arrangement Agreement as statements of factual information at the time they were made
or otherwise.
The representations and warranties provided by Evrim in favour of Renaissance relate to, among other things, Evrim
Board approval, organization and qualification, authority relative to the Arrangement Agreement, absence of certain
violations, capitalization, reporting status and securities Laws, ownership of Subsidiaries, Evrim public filings,
financial statements, internal controls and financial reporting, books and records, undisclosed liabilities, material
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changes, litigation, Taxes, property, contracts, permits, environmental matters, regulatory matters, employee benefits,
issuance of securities in connection with the Arrangement, labour and employment, related party transactions,
registration rights, restrictions on business activities, brokers, insurance, United States securities Laws, arrangements
with shareholders, Investment Canada Act and the Evrim Shareholder Rights Plan.
The representations and warranties provided by Renaissance in favour of Evrim relate to, among other things,
Renaissance Board approval, the Fairness Opinion, organization and qualification, authority relative to the
Arrangement Agreement, absence of certain violations, capitalization, reporting status and securities Laws, ownership
of Subsidiaries, Renaissance public filings, financial statements, internal controls and financial reporting, books and
records, undisclosed liabilities, material changes, litigation, Taxes, property, contracts, permits, environmental
matters, regulatory matters, employee benefits, labour and employment, related party transactions, registration rights,
restrictions on business activities, brokers, insurance, United States securities Laws and arrangements with
shareholders.
Conditions to the Arrangement Becoming Effective
In order for the Arrangement to become effective, certain conditions must have been satisfied or waived which
conditions are summarized below.
Mutual Conditions Precedent
The obligations of Evrim and Renaissance to complete the Arrangement will be subject to the fulfillment of, among
others, the following conditions precedent, which may only be waived with the mutual consent of the Parties:
1.

the Interim Order and the Final Order shall each have been obtained on terms consistent with the Arrangement
Agreement, and shall not have been set aside or modified in a manner unacceptable to Renaissance or Evrim,
acting reasonably, on appeal or otherwise;

2.

the Renaissance Securityholder Approval shall have been obtained at the Renaissance Meeting in accordance
with the Interim Order;

3.

the Evrim Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained at the Evrim Meeting;

4.

there shall not exist any prohibition at Law, including a cease trade order, injunction or other prohibition or
order at Law or under applicable legislation, against Evrim or Renaissance which shall prevent the
consummation of the Arrangement;

5.

the Key Regulatory Approvals, including the Consideration Shares and the Evrim Shares underlying the
Replacement Options and Replacement Warrants being conditionally approved for listing on the TSXV and
any third party consents shall have been obtained;

6.

the Arrangement Agreement shall not have been terminated in accordance with its terms;

7.

the distribution of the securities pursuant to the Arrangement shall be exempt from the prospectus and
registration requirements of applicable securities Laws either by virtue of exemptive relief from the securities
regulatory authorities of each of the provinces and territories of Canada or by virtue of applicable exemptions
under securities Laws and shall not be subject to resale restrictions under applicable securities Laws (other
than as applicable to control persons or pursuant to section 2.6 of National Instrument 45-102 – Resale of
Securities); and

8.

the distribution of the Consideration Shares, Replacement Options and Replacement Warrants pursuant to
the Arrangement shall be exempt from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act pursuant to Section
3(a)(10) thereof.

Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Evrim
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The obligations of Evrim to complete the Arrangement will also be subject to the fulfillment of the following
conditions precedent, any of which may be waived by Evrim:
1.

all covenants of Renaissance under the Arrangement Agreement to be performed on or before the Effective
Time which have not been waived by Evrim shall have been duly performed by Renaissance in all material
respects, and Evrim shall have received a certificate of Renaissance addressed to Evrim and dated the
Effective Time, signed by two executive officers on behalf of Renaissance (on Renaissance’s behalf and
without personal liability), confirming the same as at the Effective Date;

2.

all representations and warranties of Renaissance set forth in the Arrangement Agreement that are qualified
by the expression “Material Adverse Effect” shall be true and correct in all respects, as though made on and
as of the Effective Time (except for representations and warranties made as of a specified date, the accuracy
of which shall be determined as of that specified date), and all other representations and warranties made by
Renaissance in the Arrangement Agreement that are not so qualified shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the Effective Date as if made on and as of such date (except for representations and warranties
made as of a specified date the accuracy of which shall be determined as of that specified date); and Evrim
shall have received a certificate of Renaissance addressed to Evrim and dated the Effective Time, signed on
behalf of Renaissance by two executive officers of Renaissance (on Renaissance’s behalf and without
personal liability), confirming the same as at the Effective Date;

3.

since the date of the Arrangement Agreement, there shall not have occurred any event, occurrence,
development or circumstance that, individually or in the aggregate has had or would reasonably be expected
to have a Material Adverse Effect on Renaissance; and

4.

holders of no more than 5% of the Renaissance Shares shall have exercised Dissent Rights.

Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Renaissance
The obligations of Renaissance to complete the Arrangement will also be subject to the fulfillment of the following
conditions precedent, any of which may be waived by Renaissance:
1.

all covenants of Evrim under the Arrangement Agreement to be performed on or before the Effective Time
which have not been waived by Renaissance shall have been duly performed by Evrim in all material respects,
and Renaissance shall have received a certificate of Evrim, addressed to Renaissance and dated the Effective
Time, signed on behalf of Evrim by two executive officers of Evrim (on Evrim’s behalf and without personal
liability), confirming the same as of the Effective Date;

2.

all representations and warranties of Evrim set forth in the Arrangement Agreement that are qualified by the
expression “Material Adverse Effect” shall be true and correct in all respects, as though made on and as of
the Effective Time (except for representations and warranties made as of a specified date, the accuracy of
which shall be determined as of that specified date), and all other representations and warranties made by
Evrim in the Arrangement Agreement that are not so qualified shall be true and correct in all material respects
as of the Effective Date as if made on and as of such date (except for representations and warranties made as
of a specified date the accuracy of which shall be determined as of that specified date); and Renaissance shall
have received a certificate of Evrim, addressed to Renaissance and dated the Effective Time, signed on behalf
of Evrim by two executive officers of Evrim (on Evrim’s behalf and without personal liability), confirming
the same as at the Effective Date;

3.

since the date of the Arrangement Agreement, there shall not have occurred any event, occurrence,
development or circumstance that, individually or in the aggregate has had or would reasonably be expected
to have a Material Adverse Effect on Evrim;

4.

Evrim shall have delivered evidence satisfactory to Renaissance of the approval of the listing and posting for
trading on the TSXV of the Consideration Shares, the Evrim Shares underlying the Replacement Options and
Evrim Shares underlying the Replacement Warrants at the Effective Time;
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5.

the actions required to be taken by Evrim to reconstitute the Evrim Board with effect as and from the Effective
Time shall have been taken; and

6.

Evrim shall, following the receipt of the Final Order and prior to the Effective Time, have provided the
Depositary with sufficient Evrim Shares in escrow to pay the Consideration Shares to the Renaissance
Shareholders pursuant to the Arrangement and the Depositary shall have confirmed receipt of such Evrim
Shares.

Covenants
Covenants of Evrim
Evrim has made certain covenants to Renaissance, including that:
1.

Evrim shall, and shall cause each of its material Subsidiaries to, conduct its business in the ordinary course
of business consistent with past practice, except as required to comply with Laws, directives, guidelines or
recommendations by any Governmental Entity in connection with or in response to the COVID-19 pandemic;

2.

Evrim shall, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to, perform all obligations required to be performed by
Evrim or any of its Subsidiaries under the Arrangement Agreement, co-operate with Renaissance in
connection the Arrangement Agreement, and do all such other acts and things as may be necessary or
desirable in order to consummate and make effective, as soon as reasonably practicable, the transactions
contemplated in the Arrangement Agreement and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Evrim
shall and, where appropriate, shall cause its Subsidiaries to:
(a)

apply for and use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all Key Regulatory Approvals relating
to Evrim or any of its Subsidiaries and Evrim shall file as soon as reasonably practicable with all
applicable Governmental Entities all notices, applications, submissions or other documents or
information required and, without limiting the foregoing, Evrim shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to satisfy, as soon as reasonably possible, any requests for information and documentation
received from any Governmental Entity in connection with such approval; and, in doing so, keep
Renaissance reasonably informed as to the status of the proceedings related to obtaining such
approvals, including providing Renaissance with copies of all related applications and notifications
in draft form (except where such material is confidential in which case it will be provided (subject to
applicable Laws) to Renaissance’s outside counsel on an “external counsel” basis), in order for
Renaissance to provide its reasonable comments thereon;

(b)

subject to the terms and conditions of the Arrangement Agreement and of the Plan of Arrangement
and applicable Laws, Evrim shall issue the Consideration Shares, Replacement Warrants and
Replacement Options to be issued pursuant to the Arrangement at the time provided in the
Arrangement Agreement, and such Replacement Warrants to be issued pursuant to the Plan of
Arrangement will:
i.

have been duly created and issued and a sufficient number of Evrim Shares will be reserved
for issuance on due exercise of the Replacement Warrants, and the Evrim Shares issuable on
the exercise of the Replacement Warrants will, on due exercise of the Replacement Warrants,
be duly authorized and will be validly issued as fully paid and non-assessable shares in the
capital of Evrim; and

ii.

not be, and the Evrim Shares issuable on exercise of the Replacement Warrants will not be,
issued in violation of the notice of articles, articles, or other constating document of Evrim or
any Material Contract, undertaking or commitment to which Evrim is bound;

and such Replacement Options to be issued pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement will:
iii.

have been duly created and granted and a sufficient number of Evrim Shares will be reserved
for issuance upon due exercise of the Replacement Options, and the Evrim Shares issuable
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upon the exercise of the Replacement Options will, on due exercise of the Replacement
Options, be duly authorized and will be validly issued as fully paid and non-assessable shares
in the capital of Evrim; and
iv.

3.

not be, and the Evrim Shares issuable on exercise of the Replacement Options will not be,
issued in violation of the notice of articles, articles, or other constating document of Evrim or
any Material Contract, undertaking or commitment to which Evrim is bound;

(c)

ensure that, with effect as and from the Effective Time, the Evrim Board will consist of four directors,
two nominees of each of the Parties provided all such members of the Evrim Board consent to act as
director on the Evrim Board, meet the qualification requirements to serve as a director under the rules
and policies of the TSXV and shall be eligible under the BCBCA to serve as a director;

(d)

change its name to “Orogen Royalties Inc.” with effect as soon as practicable following the Effective
Time in order to enable certificates representing the Consideration Shares, Replacement Options and
Replacement Warrants to be issued when required by the Plan of Arrangement under the name
“Orogen Royalties Inc.”;

(e)

defend all lawsuits or other legal, regulatory or other proceedings against Evrim challenging or
affecting the Arrangement Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the
Arrangement Agreement;

(f)

use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Renaissance in making the necessary arrangements to
restructure, payout or otherwise deal with Evrim’s and Renaissance’s indebtedness;

(g)

use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain, as soon as practicable following execution of the
Arrangement Agreement, any third party consents, approvals and notices required under any of the
Material Contracts; and

(h)

until the earlier of the Effective Time and termination of the Arrangement Agreement, Evrim shall,
subject to applicable Law, make available and cause to be made available to Renaissance, and the
agents and advisors thereto, information reasonably requested by Renaissance for the purposes of
preparing, considering and implementing integration and strategic plans for the combined businesses
of Evrim and Renaissance following the Effective Date and confirming the representations and
warranties of Evrim set out in the Arrangement Agreement; and

from and after the Effective Time, Evrim shall cause Renaissance to honour all of the obligations of
Renaissance and any of its subsidiaries under those employment arrangements of Renaissance and
notwithstanding that the Arrangement Agreement shall not give any employees of Renaissance or any of its
subsidiaries any right to continued employment, Evrim covenants not to terminate any full-time employees
of Renaissance or its subsidiaries, except for “just cause” or due to its financial hardship, for a period of six
months following the Effective Date.

Covenants of Renaissance
Renaissance has made certain covenants to Evrim, including that:
1.

Renaissance shall, and shall cause each of its material Subsidiaries to, conduct its business in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice, except as required to comply with Laws, orders, directives,
guidelines or recommendations by any Governmental Entity in connection with or in response to the COVID19 pandemic;

2.

Renaissance shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the current insurance (or re-insurance)
policies maintained by Renaissance or any of its Subsidiaries, including directors’ and officers’ insurance,
not to be cancelled or terminated or any of the coverage thereunder to lapse, unless simultaneously with such
termination, cancellation or lapse, replacement policies underwritten by insurance or re-insurance companies
of nationally recognized standing having comparable deductions and providing coverage equal to or greater
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than the coverage under the cancelled, terminated or lapsed policies for substantially similar premiums are
in full force and effect; provided that, subject to insurance and indemnification provisions of the Arrangement
Agreement, none of Renaissance or any of its Subsidiaries shall obtain or renew any insurance (or reinsurance) policy for a term exceeding 12 months other than customary run off directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for a period of up to six years from the Effective Date;
3.

Renaissance shall, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to, perform all obligations required or desirable to
be performed by Renaissance or any of its Subsidiaries under the Arrangement Agreement, co-operate with
Evrim in connection therewith, and do all such other acts and things as may be necessary or desirable in order
to consummate and make effective, as soon as reasonably practicable, the transactions contemplated in the
Arrangement Agreement and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Renaissance shall and, where
applicable, shall cause its Subsidiaries to:
(a)

apply for and use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all Key Regulatory Approvals relating
to Renaissance or any of its subsidiaries and Renaissance shall file as soon as reasonably practicable
with all applicable Governmental Entities all notices, applications, submissions or other documents
or information required and, without limiting the foregoing, Renaissance shall use its commercially
reasonable efforts to satisfy, as soon as reasonably possible, any requests for information and
documentation received from any Governmental Entity in connection with such approval; and, in
doing so, keep Evrim reasonably informed as to the status of the proceedings related to obtaining
such approvals, including providing Evrim with copies of all related applications and notifications,
in draft form (except where such material is confidential in which case it will be provided (subject to
applicable Laws) to Evrim’s outside counsel on an “external counsel” basis), in order for Evrim to
provide its reasonable comments thereon, which shall be given due and reasonable consideration;

(b)

use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain as soon as practicable following execution of the
Arrangement Agreement all third party consents, approvals and notices required under, and shall
obtain all amendments reasonably requested by Evrim in respect of, any Material Contracts;

(c)

subject to the terms and conditions of the Arrangement Agreement and of the Plan of Arrangement
and applicable Laws, Renaissance shall do all things necessary under the terms of the Renaissance
Shareholder Rights Plan to terminate such plan immediately prior to completion of the Arrangement;

(d)

defend all lawsuits or other legal, regulatory or other proceedings against Renaissance challenging or
affecting the Arrangement Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the
Arrangement Agreement;

(e)

use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Evrim in making the necessary arrangements to
restructure, payout or otherwise deal with Evrim’s and Renaissance indebtedness; and

(f)

until the earlier of the Effective Time and termination of the Arrangement Agreement, Renaissance
shall, subject to applicable Law, make available and cause to be made available to Evrim, and the
agents and advisors thereto, information reasonably requested by Evrim for the purposes of
preparing, considering and implementing integration and strategic plans for the combined businesses
of Evrim and Renaissance following the Effective Date and confirming the representations and
warranties of Renaissance set out in the Arrangement Agreement.

Mutual Covenants
Each Party has also made certain covenants to the other Party, including that:
1.

it shall, and shall cause its Subsidiaries to, use commercially reasonable efforts to satisfy (or cause the
satisfaction of) the conditions precedent to its obligations under the Arrangement Agreement to the extent
the same is within its control and to take, or cause to be taken, as promptly as practicable, all other actions
and to do, or cause to be done, all other things necessary, proper or advisable under all applicable Laws to
complete the Plan of Arrangement, including using its commercially reasonable efforts to: (i) obtain all Key
Regulatory Approvals required to be obtained by it; (ii) effect all necessary registrations, filings and
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submissions of information requested by Governmental Entities required to be effected by it in connection
with the Plan of Arrangement; (iii) oppose, lift or rescind any injunction or restraining order against it or
other order or action against it seeking to stop, or otherwise adversely affecting its ability to make and
complete, the Plan of Arrangement; (iv) co-operate with the other Party in connection with the performance
by it and its Subsidiaries of their obligations under the Arrangement Agreement, including giving the other
Party a reasonable opportunity to review and comment on any filing or submission being made to a
Governmental Entity in connection with the Key Regulatory Approvals, which comments the receiving Party
shall give due consideration to, and providing the other Party with a final copy of any filing or submission
made to a Governmental Entity (where a Party regards any information in a filing or submission to be both
confidential and competitively sensitive, the supplying Party may restrict the supply of such information to
the receiving Party’s external legal counsel only and such receiving Party shall not request or receive such
information from its external legal counsel without the supplying Party’s written consent); (v) provide the
other Party with any communications received from a Governmental Entity in connection with obtaining the
Key Regulatory Approvals; (vi) neither Party shall attend any meeting with a Governmental Entity in
connection with obtaining the Key Regulatory Approvals, whether such meeting will be by teleconference
or in person, without affording the other Party a reasonable opportunity to attend such meeting (provided that
the Governmental Entity does not object to the attendance of both Parties at any such meeting); in addition,
subject to the terms and conditions of the Arrangement Agreement, none of the Parties shall knowingly take
or cause to be taken any action which would reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement; and (vii) the Parties shall
exchange such information that a Party reasonably requests for the purposes of determining whether any
filing or notices to a Governmental Entity under any competition or anti-trust laws outside of Canada must
be submitted in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Arrangement Agreement;
2.

it shall not take any action, refrain from taking any commercially reasonable action, or permit any action to
be taken or not taken, which is inconsistent with the Arrangement Agreement or which would reasonably be
expected to significantly impede the making or completion of the Plan of Arrangement except as permitted
by the Arrangement Agreement; and

3.

it shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that the Section 3(a)(10) Exemption is available for
the issuance of Consideration Shares to the Renaissance Shareholders in exchange for their Renaissance
Shares, the issuance of the Replacement Warrants to Renaissance Warrantholders in exchange for their
Renaissance Warrants and the issuance of Replacement Options to Renaissance Optionholders in exchange
for their Renaissance Options pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement,

provided, however, that Evrim shall not be required to take any steps or actions that would, in its sole discretion, affect
Evrim’s or its Subsidiaries’ right to own, use or exploit its business, operations or assets or those of Renaissance or
any of its Subsidiaries including, for greater certainty, divesting or agreeing to divest of any assets of Evrim,
Renaissance or any of their respective Subsidiaries, terminating any existing relationships, contractual rights or
obligations of Evrim, Renaissance or any of their respective Subsidiaries or effecting any change or restructuring of
Evrim, Renaissance or any of their respective Subsidiaries in order to obtain the Key Regulatory Approvals prior to
the Outside Date.
Indemnification and Insurance
Evrim will, or will cause Renaissance and its Subsidiaries to, maintain in effect without any reduction in scope or
coverage for six years from the Effective Date customary policies of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
providing protection no less favourable to the protection provided by the policies maintained by Renaissance and its
Subsidiaries which are in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date and providing protection in respect of claims
arising from facts or events which occurred on or prior to the Effective Date; provided, however, that prior to the
Effective Date, Renaissance may, in the alternative, purchase run off directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for a
period of up to six years from the Effective Date with the prior written consent of Evrim.
Evrim will honour all rights to indemnification or exculpation now existing in favour of present and former officers
and directors of Renaissance and its Subsidiaries and such rights shall survive the completion of the Plan of
Arrangement and shall continue in full force and effect.
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Renaissance will act as agent and trustee of the benefits of the foregoing for its directors and officers and those of its
Subsidiaries for the purpose of the above indemnification and insurance rights and obligations, which will survive the
execution and delivery of the Arrangement Agreement and the completion of the Arrangement and will be enforceable
against Evrim.
Non-Solicitation Covenant and Acquisition Proposal
Each Party has covenanted to the other Party that it shall not, directly or indirectly, through its Representatives:
1.

make, solicit, assist, initiate, promote, facilitate or knowingly encourage (including by way of furnishing
information or entering into any form of agreement, arrangement or understanding) the initiation of any
inquiries or proposals regarding an Acquisition Proposal;

2.

participate, directly or indirectly, in any discussions or negotiations with any person (other than the other
Party or any of its affiliates) regarding, or furnish to any person any information or otherwise co-operate
with, respond to, assist or participate in, an Acquisition Proposal; provided, however, a Party may
communicate with any person making an Acquisition Proposal for the purpose of advising such person of
the restrictions under the Arrangement Agreement, clarifying the terms and conditions of any inquiry,
proposal or offer made by such person, and advising such person that the Acquisition Proposal could not
reasonably be expected to result in a Superior Proposal;

3.

approve, accept, endorse or recommend, or propose publicly to accept, approve, endorse or recommend, any
Acquisition Proposal;

4.

accept or enter into or publicly propose to accept or enter into, any letter of intent, agreement in principle,
agreement, understanding, undertaking or arrangement or other contract in respect of an Acquisition
Proposal, or requiring it to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the Arrangement, or providing for the
payment of any break, termination or other fees or expenses to any person in relation to an Acquisition
Proposal;

5.

make a Change in Recommendation; or

6.

make any public announcement or take any other action inconsistent with the recommendation of the Evrim
Board to approve the Arrangement, in the case of Evrim, or the Renaissance Board, in the case of
Renaissance.

Each Party has covenanted to the other Party that it will cause its Subsidiaries and Representatives to immediately
cease and cause to be terminated any solicitation, encouragement, discussion or negotiation with any persons
conducted prior to the Arrangement Agreement by it, its Subsidiaries or any Representatives with respect to any
Acquisition Proposal, and, in connection therewith, such Party will discontinue access to any of its confidential
information (and not establish or allow access to any of its confidential information, or any data room, virtual or
otherwise) and shall as soon as possible request, to the extent that it is entitled to do so (and exercise all rights it has
to require) the return or destruction of all confidential information regarding such Party and its Subsidiaries previously
provided to any such person or any other person and will request (and exercise all rights it has to require) the
destruction of all material including or incorporating or otherwise reflecting any material confidential information
regarding such Party and its Subsidiaries. Each Party has agreed that neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries, shall
terminate, waive, amend or modify any provision of any existing confidentiality agreement relating to an Acquisition
Proposal or any standstill agreement to which it or any of its Subsidiaries is a party and each Party undertook to enforce
all standstill, non-disclosure, non-disturbance, non-solicitation and similar covenants that it or any of its Subsidiaries
have entered into prior to the date of the Arrangement Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing and any other provision of the Arrangement Agreement or of any other agreement
between Evrim and Renaissance, if at any time following the date of the Arrangement Agreement and prior to
obtaining the Renaissance Securityholder Approval, in the case of Renaissance, or the Evrim Shareholder Approval,
in the case of the Evrim, a Party receives a bona fide, written Acquisition Proposal that did not result from a breach
of the Arrangement Agreement and that the board of directors of such Party determines in good faith constitutes or, if
consummated in accordance with its terms (disregarding, for the purposes of any such determination, any term of such
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Acquisition Proposal that provides for a due diligence investigation), could reasonably be expected to lead to a
Superior Proposal, then such Party may, in response to a request made by the party making such Acquisition Proposal
provided it is in compliance with the Arrangement Agreement:
1.

furnish information with respect to such Party and its Subsidiaries to the person making such Acquisition
Proposal; and/or

2.

enter into, participate, facilitate and maintain discussions or negotiations with, and otherwise cooperate with
or assist, the person making such Acquisition Proposal;

provided that such Party shall not, and shall not allow its Representatives to, disclose any non-public information to
such person: (i) if such non-public information has not been previously provided to, or is not concurrently provided
to the other Party hereto; and (ii) without entering into an agreement with such person substantially in the form of the
Confidentiality Agreement containing terms that are no more favourable to such person than those found in the
Confidentiality Agreement; provided, however, that any such agreement shall not preclude such person from making
a Superior Proposal.
Each Party shall promptly notify the other Party, at first orally and then in writing within 24 hours of receipt of the
Acquisition Proposal, of the material terms and conditions thereof, and the identity of the person or persons making
the Acquisition Proposal, and shall provide the other Party with a copy of any such proposal, inquiry, offer or request,
a copy of any agreement entered into in accordance with the right to match provisions of the Arrangement Agreement
and a copy of any other agreements which relate to the Acquisition Proposal to which it has access, or any amendment
to any of the foregoing. The Party receiving the Acquisition Proposal shall thereafter also provide such other details
of such proposal, inquiry, offer or request, or any amendment to any of the foregoing, as the other Party may reasonably
request and shall keep the other Party fully informed as to the status, including any changes to the material terms, of
such proposal, inquiry, offer or request, or any amendment to any of the foregoing, and shall respond promptly to all
inquiries from the other Party with respect thereto.
Subject to the right to match provisions of the Arrangement Agreement, (i) prior to obtaining the Renaissance
Securityholder Approval, if Renaissance receives an Acquisition Proposal that did not result from a breach of the
Arrangement Agreement and which the Renaissance Board concludes in good faith constitutes a Superior Proposal, it
may, subject to compliance with the procedures set forth in the Arrangement Agreement, terminate the Arrangement
Agreement to enter into a definitive agreement with respect to such Superior Proposal, and (ii) prior to obtaining the
Evrim Shareholder Approval, if Evrim receives an Acquisition Proposal that did not result from a breach of the
Arrangement Agreement, it may, subject to certain conditions set out in the Arrangement Agreement, terminate the
Arrangement Agreement to enter into a definitive agreement with respect to such Superior Proposal.
Nothing contained in the Arrangement Agreement prohibits either Party from taking any action or making a Change
in Recommendation or from making any disclosure to any of its securityholders prior to the Effective Time including,
for greater certainty, disclosure of a Change in Recommendation in respect of an Acquisition Proposal, if, in the good
faith judgment of such Party, after consultation with outside legal counsel, failure to take such action or make such
disclosure would be inconsistent with such board of directors’ exercise of its fiduciary duties or such action or
disclosure is otherwise required under applicable Law (including by responding to an Acquisition Proposal under a
directors’ circular or otherwise as required under securities Laws).
Right to Match
Each Party has covenanted that it will not accept, approve, endorse, recommend or enter into any agreement,
understanding or arrangement in respect of a Superior Proposal (other than a confidentiality and standstill agreement
permitted by the non-solicitation provisions of the Arrangement Agreement) unless:
1.

the Party receiving such proposal (the “Receiving Party”) has complied with its obligations under the nonsolicitation provisions of the Arrangement Agreement and has provided the other Party (the “Responding
Party”) with a copy of the Superior Proposal and all related documentation to be delivered pursuant to the
Arrangement Agreement; and
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2.

a period (the “Response Period”) of five business days has elapsed from the date that is the later of: (x) the
date on which the Responding Party receives written notice from the Receiving Party that it has determined,
subject only to compliance with the right to match provisions of the Arrangement Agreement, to accept,
approve, endorse, recommend or enter into a binding agreement to proceed with such Superior Proposal; and
(y) the date the Responding Party receives a copy of the Superior Proposal and all related documents to be
delivered pursuant to the Arrangement Agreement.

During the Response Period, the Responding Party will have the right, but not the obligation, to offer to amend the
Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement, including modification of the consideration. The Receiving
Party shall review any such offer by the Responding Party to amend the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of
Arrangement to determine whether the Acquisition Proposal to which the Responding Party is responding would
continue to be a Superior Proposal when assessed against the Arrangement as it is proposed in writing by the
Responding Party to be amended. If the Receiving Party determines that the Acquisition Proposal no longer constitutes
a Superior Proposal, when assessed against the Arrangement Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement as they are
proposed to be amended by the Responding Party, the Receiving Party will cause it to enter into an amendment to the
Arrangement Agreement with the Responding Party incorporating the amendments to the Arrangement Agreement
and Plan of Arrangement as set out in the written offer to amend, and will promptly reaffirm its recommendation of
the Arrangement by the prompt issuance of a press release to that effect. If the Receiving Party determines that the
Acquisition Proposal continues to be a Superior Proposal, it may recommend that holders of its securities accept such
Superior Proposal provided that before doing so it terminates the Arrangement Agreement and pays the Termination
Fee.
The board of the Receiving Party shall promptly reaffirm its recommendation of the Arrangement by news release
after any Acquisition Proposal which is not determined to be a Superior Proposal is publicly announced or the
Receiving Party determines that a proposed amendment to the terms of the Arrangement Agreement would result in
an Acquisition Proposal constituting a Superior Proposal no longer being a Superior Proposal. The Receiving Party
shall provide the Responding Party and its outside legal counsel with a reasonable opportunity to review the form and
content of any such new release and shall make all reasonable amendments to such new release as requested by the
Responding Party and its legal counsel.
Each successive amendment to any Acquisition Proposal that results in an increase in, or modification of, the
consideration (or value of such consideration) to be received by the holders of the Receiving Party’s securities shall
constitute a new Acquisition Proposal for the purposes of the right to match provisions of the Arrangement Agreement
and the Responding Party shall be afforded a new Response Period and the right to match in respect of each such
Acquisition Proposal.
Where at any time within ten days before the Renaissance Meeting or the Evrim Meeting, as applicable, the Receiving
Party has provided the Responding Party with a notice under the right to match provisions of the Arrangement
Agreement, an Acquisition Proposal has been publicly disclosed or announced, and the Response Period has not
elapsed, then, subject to applicable Laws, at the Responding Party’s request, the Receiving Party will postpone or
adjourn the Renaissance Meeting or the Evrim Meeting, as applicable, to a date acceptable to the Responding Party,
acting reasonably, which shall not be later than ten days after the scheduled date of the Renaissance Meeting or the
Evrim Meeting, as applicable, and shall, if the Parties amend the terms of the Arrangement Agreement to ensure that
the details of such amended agreement are communicated to the shareholders of the Receiving Party prior to the
resumption of the adjourned meeting.
Termination Fee
If a Party enters into an agreement, understanding or arrangement to effect an Acquisition Proposal that is a Superior
Proposal, makes a Change in Recommendation in respect of the Arrangement or breaches the non-solicitation
provisions of the Arrangement Agreement, then such Party will pay or cause to be paid to the other Party the
Termination Fee, being $1,000,000.
In addition to the foregoing, if the Arrangement Agreement is terminated due to the failure by the securityholders of
one of the Parties (such Party the “Non-Approving Party”) to approve the Arrangement Resolution or the Evrim
Resolution, as the case may be, at the applicable securityholders’ meeting, and prior to such securityholders’ meeting,
an Acquisition Proposal, or the intention to make an Acquisition Proposal with respect to the Non-Approving Party
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has been made to the Non-Approving Party or publicly announced and not withdrawn and within 12 months of the
date of such termination:
1.

the announced Acquisition Proposal is consummated by the Non-Approving Party; or

2.

the Non-Approving Party and/or one or more of its Subsidiaries enters into a definitive agreement in respect
of, or the board of directors of the Non-Approving Party approves or recommends, any Acquisition Proposal
which is subsequently consummated at any time thereafter,

provided that, for the purposes of the above “20%” in the definition of “Acquisition Proposal” shall be deemed to be
references to “50%”, then the Non-Approving Party will pay to the other Party the Termination Fee within two
Business Days following the closing of the applicable transaction.
Termination
Subject to payment of the Termination Fee where applicable, the Arrangement Agreement may be terminated at any
time:
1.

by mutual written agreement of Renaissance and Evrim; or

2.

by either Renaissance or Evrim, if:
(a)

the Effective Time shall not have occurred on or before the Outside Date, except that this right to
terminate the Arrangement Agreement shall not be available to any Party whose failure to fulfill any
of its obligations or whose breach of any of its representations and warranties under the Arrangement
Agreement has been the cause of, or directly resulted in, the failure of the Effective Time to occur
by such Outside Date;

(b)

after the date of the Arrangement Agreement, there shall be enacted or made any applicable Law
that makes consummation of the Arrangement illegal or otherwise prohibited or enjoins Renaissance
or Evrim from consummating the Arrangement and such applicable Law (if applicable) or
enjoinment shall have become final and non-appealable;

(c)

the Arrangement Resolution shall have failed to obtain the Renaissance Securityholder Approval at
the Renaissance Meeting (including any adjournment or postponement thereof) in accordance with
the Interim Order;

(d)

the Evrim Resolution shall have failed to obtain the Evrim Shareholder Approval at the Evrim
Meeting (including any adjournment or postponement thereof);

(e)

the other Party’s board of directors makes a Change in Recommendation;

(f)

such Party, prior to such Party’s securityholder meeting (being either the Renaissance Meeting or
the Evrim Meeting, as the case may be) enters into a legally binding agreement with respect to a
Superior Proposal, provided that concurrently with such termination, such Party pays the
Termination Fee;

(g)

any of the mutual conditions or conditions for the benefit of such Party is not satisfied, and such
condition is incapable of being satisfied by the Outside Date;

(h)

subject to the notice and cure provisions of the Arrangement Agreement, a breach of any
representation or warranty or failure to perform any covenant or agreement on the part of the other
Party set forth in the Arrangement Agreement (other than the non-solicitation provisions) shall have
occurred that would cause the mutual conditions or conditions for the benefit of such Party not to
be satisfied, and such conditions are incapable of being satisfied by the Outside Date; provided that
such Party is not then in breach of the Arrangement Agreement so as to cause any of the mutual
conditions or conditions for the benefit of the other Party not to be satisfied;
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(i)

the other Party is in breach or in default of any of its non-solicitation obligations or covenants set
forth in the Arrangement Agreement other than an immaterial breach of same to provide notice of
an Acquisition Proposal to such Party within a prescribed period;

(j)

the other Party’s securityholder meeting (being either the Renaissance Meeting or the Evrim
Meeting, as the case may be) has not occurred on or before August 28, 2020, provided that this right
to terminate the Arrangement Agreement shall not be available to such Party if the failure by such
Party to fulfil any obligation under the Arrangement Agreement is the cause of, or results in, the
failure of the other Party’s securityholder meeting to occur on or before such date; or

(k)

the other Party enters into a legally binding agreement relating to a Superior Proposal.
INFORMATION CONCERNING RENAISSANCE

Evrim Shareholders who vote in favour of the Evrim Resolution will be voting in favour of combining the businesses
of Evrim and Renaissance and to invest in the business of Renaissance.
See “General Proxy Information - Information Contained in this Circular Regarding Renaissance”.
See also Appendix C – “Information Concerning Renaissance” and refer to Renaissance’s filings with Canadian
securities regulatory authorities which may be found under Renaissance’s company profile on SEDAR at
http://www.sedar.com.
INFORMATION CONCERNING OROGEN
As a result of the Arrangement, Renaissance Shareholders will hold 50% of the issued and outstanding Orogen Shares.
As of the Effective Time, Orogen will be managed by J. Patrick Nicol as President and Chief Executive Officer and
Paul van Eeden as Chairman, both of whom are currently in those same roles with Evrim. Bob Felder, Chief Executive
Officer of Renaissance, will take on the role of Senior Vice President of Orogen to facilitate the smooth integration of
Renaissance’s business with Evrim and to provide region specific expertise and experience to Orogen. Subject to
applicable Law, the Orogen board of directors shall be composed of two nominees of each of Renaissance and Evrim.
It is currently expected that the Orogen board of directors will be composed of Paul van Eeden, David Caulfield, Bob
Felder and Tim Janke following the Effective Time.
Orogen will continue to execute on the historical and combined visions of Evrim and Renaissance of building a
company focused on project generation but with a renewed focus on organic royalty creation and royalty acquisition.
See Appendix D – “Information Concerning Orogen”.
After the Effective Time, the Orogen common shares (being Evrim Shares) will continue to trade on the TSXV.
For further information concerning the business and operations of Orogen following completion of the Arrangement,
see Appendix D – “Information Concerning Orogen”.
Pro-Forma Consolidated Financial Information of Evrim
See Appendix E - “Unaudited Pro-Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Evrim” for the Pro-Forma
Financial Statements. The Pro-Forma Financial Statements have been compiled from underlying financial statements
of Renaissance and Evrim and prepared in accordance with IFRS. The Pro-Forma Financial Statements may not be
appropriate for other purposes. Adjustments have been made to prepare the Pro-Forma Financial Statements, which
adjustments are based on certain assumptions. Both the adjustments and the assumptions made are described in the
notes to the Pro-Forma Financial Statements.
The Pro-Forma Financial Statements are presented for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of:
(i) the operating or financial results that would have occurred had the Arrangement actually occurred at the times
contemplated by the notes to the Pro-Forma Financial Statements; or (ii) the results expected in future periods.
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Reference should be made, among other things, to Evrim’s audited annual consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the three months
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, each of which is filed under Evrim’s company profile on SEDAR, and Renaissance’s
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the nine months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019,
audited annual consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial statements for the six months ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, each of which is
filed under Renaissance’s company profile on SEDAR.
RISK FACTORS
Evrim Shareholders who vote in favour of the Evrim Resolution will be voting in favour of combining the businesses
of Evrim and Renaissance and to invest in the business of Renaissance. There are certain risk factors associated with
the Arrangement and an investment in Renaissance which should be carefully considered by Evrim Shareholders,
including the fact that the Arrangement may not be completed if, among other things, the Evrim Resolution is not
approved at the Evrim Meeting, the Arrangement Resolution is not approved at the Renaissance Meeting or if any
other conditions precedent to the completion of the Arrangement are not satisfied or waived, as applicable. Readers
are cautioned that such risk factors are not exhaustive. These risk factors should be considered in conjunction with the
other information included in this Circular, Appendices C – “Information Concerning Renaissance” and D –
“Information Concerning Orogen”, including the documents incorporated by reference therein, and documents filed
by Evrim pursuant to applicable Laws from time to time. Specifically, see “Risk Factors” in Appendix C –
“Information Concerning Renaissance” for further information concerning the risk factors of Renaissance, and “Risk
Factors” in Appendix D – “Information Concerning Orogen” for further information concerning the risk factors of
Orogen.
The Arrangement May Not Be Completed
Each of the Parties has the right to terminate the Arrangement Agreement in certain circumstances. Accordingly, there
is no certainty, nor can the Parties provide any assurance, that the Arrangement Agreement will not be terminated
before the completion of the Arrangement.
In addition, the completion of the Arrangement is subject to a number of conditions precedent, certain of which are
outside the control of the Parties, including obtaining approval of Evrim Shareholders of the Evrim Resolution,
approval of the TSXV and approval of the Court. There is no certainty, nor can the Parties provide any assurance, that
these conditions will be satisfied, or if satisfied, when they will be satisfied.
There are a number of material risks to which Evrim is subject relating to the Arrangement not being completed,
including the following:
(a)

certain costs related to the Arrangement, such as legal, financial advisor and accounting fees must
be paid by Evrim even if the Arrangement is not completed;

(b)

if the Arrangement is not completed, the market price of Evrim Shares may be adversely affected;
and

(c)

if the Arrangement Agreement is terminated and the Evrim Board decides to seek another merger
or business combination, there can be no assurance that it will be able to find a party willing to pay
an equivalent or more attractive price than the price to be paid pursuant to the Arrangement and,
under certain circumstances, Evrim may be required to pay the Termination Fee.

The Arrangement may be delayed and business affected due to outbreaks of communicable diseases, including
COVID-19
The continued and prolonged effects of the ongoing global outbreak of COVID-19 may delay or prevent the
completion of the Arrangement. Among other things, Governmental Entities in certain jurisdictions have ordered the
mandatory closure of all nonessential workplaces, which may disrupt the ability of Renaissance and Evrim to close
the Arrangement in the timing contemplated including potential delays in respective shareholder meetings, court
hearings and the receipt of requisite regulatory approvals.
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In addition, the impacts of COVID-19, among other things, have and may affect the ability of Renaissance and Evrim
to operate for an indeterminate period of time, may affect the health or safety of employees or contractors, may impede
access to services, contractors and supplies, may lead to heightened regulatory scrutiny by Governmental Entities,
may lead to restrictions on transferability of currency, may cause business continuity issues and may result in failures
of various local administration, logistics and critical infrastructure. Such effects and disruptions to business continuity
as a result of the effects of COVID-19 may impact the ability to consummate the Arrangement or the timing thereof
and may have an adverse effect on Renaissance, Evrim and Orogen’s financial position and results of operations. The
full extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the contemplated timing and completion of the Arrangement and on the
respective operations of Renaissance, Evrim and Orogen will depend on future developments, which are uncertain
and cannot be predicted at this time.
The Termination Fee, if triggered, may discourage other parties from attempting a transaction with Evrim
Under the Arrangement Agreement, Evrim is required to pay a termination fee of $1,000,000 in the event the
Arrangement Agreement is terminated in certain circumstances. The Termination Fee may discourage other parties
from attempting a transaction with Evrim.
Possible Failure to Realize Anticipated Benefits of the Arrangement
The ability to realize the benefits of the Arrangement will depend in part on successfully consolidating functions and
integrating operations, procedures and personnel in a timely and efficient manner, as well as on the Parties’ ability to
realize the anticipated growth opportunities and synergies from integrating businesses following completion of the
Arrangement. This integration will require the dedication of management effort, time and resources which may divert
management’s focus and resources from other strategic opportunities available to Orogen following completion of the
Arrangement, and from Evrim and Renaissance’s operational matters during this process. The integration process may
result in the loss of key employees or directors and the disruption of ongoing business and employee relationships that
may adversely affect the ability of Orogen to achieve the anticipated benefits of the Arrangement as well as any
anticipated benefits from possible future acquisitions.
Risks Related to the Businesses of Evrim and Renaissance
Each of the businesses of Evrim and Renaissance are subject to significant risks. See the risk factors set out in the
Appendix C - “Information Concerning Renaissance” included in this Circular. While Evrim has completed due
diligence investigations, including reviewing technical, environmental, legal, tax accounting, financial and other
matters, on Renaissance, certain risks either may not have been uncovered or are not known at this time. Such risks
may have an adverse impact on Evrim and the combined assets of Evrim and Renaissance following the Arrangement
and may have a negative impact on the value of Orogen Shares.
Evrim and Renaissance Expect to Each Incur Significant Costs Associated with the Arrangement
Each of Evrim and Renaissance will incur significant direct transaction costs in connection with the Arrangement.
While such costs were anticipated, actual direct transaction costs incurred in connection with the Arrangement may
be higher than expected. Moreover, certain of Evrim and Renaissance’s costs related to the Arrangement, including
legal, financial advisory services, accounting, printing and mailing costs, must be paid even if the Arrangement is not
completed.
While the Arrangement is pending, Evrim is restricted from taking certain actions
The Arrangement Agreement restricts Evrim from taking specified actions until the Arrangement is completed without
the consent of Renaissance, which may adversely affect the ability of Evrim to execute certain business strategies.
These restrictions may prevent Evrim from pursuing attractive business opportunities that may arise prior to the
completion of the Arrangement.
The pending Arrangement may divert the attention of Evrim’s management
The pending Arrangement could cause the attention of Evrim’s management to be diverted from the day-to-day
operations. These disruptions could be exacerbated by a delay in the completion of the Arrangement and could have
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an adverse effect on the business, operating results or prospects of Evrim regardless of whether the Arrangement is
ultimately completed.
Dissent Rights
Registered Renaissance Shareholders have the right to exercise certain dissent and appraisal rights and demand
payment of the fair value of their Renaissance Shares in cash in connection with the Arrangement in accordance with
the BCBCA, as modified and supplemented by the Interim Order, the Plan of Arrangement and the Final Order. If
there are a significant number of Dissenting Renaissance Shareholders, a substantial cash payment may be required
to be made to such Renaissance Shareholders that could have an adverse effect on the financial condition and cash
resources if the Arrangement is completed.
Evrim Shares Issued in Connection with the Arrangement May Have a Market Value Different Than Expected
Pursuant to the Arrangement, each Renaissance Shareholder will be entitled to receive 1.2448 Evrim Shares for each
Renaissance Share held, subject to adjustment for fractional shares. Because the exchange ratio under the Arrangement
will not be adjusted to reflect any changes in the market value of Evrim Shares or the Renaissance Shares, the market
values of the Evrim Shares and the Renaissance Shares at the Effective Time may vary significantly from the values
at the date of this Circular. If the market price of Evrim Shares decline, the value of the consideration received by
Renaissance Shareholders will decline as well. Variations may occur as a result of changes in, or market perceptions
of changes in, the business, operations or prospects of Evrim, market assessments of the likelihood the Arrangement
will be consummated, regulatory considerations, general market and economic conditions, changes in the prices of
gold and other factors over which neither Party has control.
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DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL
The contents and the sending of the Company’s Notice of Meeting and this Circular have been approved by the Evrim
Board.
DATED: July 8, 2020
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Signed)

“J. Patrick Nicol”
J. Patrick Nicol
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

APPENDIX A
EVRIM RESOLUTION
The text of the Evrim Resolution which the Evrim Shareholders will be asked to pass at the Evrim Meeting is as
follows:
BE IT RESOLVED AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
THAT:
1.

The arrangement agreement dated June 9, 2020 between the Evrim Resources Corp. (the “Company”) and
Renaissance Gold Inc. (“Renaissance”), together with the schedules attached thereto (the “Arrangement
Agreement”), as the Arrangement Agreement may be modified or amended in accordance with its terms, the
actions of the directors of the Company in approving the Arrangement Agreement and the actions of the
directors and officers of the Company in executing and delivering the Arrangement Agreement and any
amendments thereto in accordance with its terms are hereby ratified and approved.

2.

The performance by the Company of its obligations under the Arrangement Agreement, including the
issuance of: (i) the Consideration Shares (as defined in the Arrangement Agreement) to the holders of
common shares of Renaissance (“Renaissance Shares”) as fully paid and non-assessable shares in the capital
of the Company; (ii) Replacement Warrants (as defined in the Arrangement Agreement) to the holders of the
outstanding warrants to purchase Renaissance Shares; and (iii) Replacement Options (as defined in the
Arrangement Agreement) to the holders of the outstanding options to purchase Renaissance Shares, all
pursuant to a court-approved statutory plan of arrangement under the British Columbia Business
Corporations Act (the “Act”) in accordance with the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, be and is hereby
ratified, authorized and approved.

3.

Notwithstanding that this resolution has been passed (and the Arrangement Agreement adopted) by the
shareholders of the Company, the board of directors of the Company is hereby authorized and empowered,
without further notice to or approval of the shareholders of the Company, at any time prior to the Final Order
(as defined in the Arrangement Agreement): (i) to amend, modify or supplement the Arrangement Agreement
to the extent permitted by the Arrangement Agreement; and (ii) not to proceed with the Arrangement (as
defined in the Arrangement Agreement) or any other transactions contemplated by the Arrangement
Agreement, or otherwise give effect to these resolutions.

4.

Any one director or officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of
and in the name of the Company to execute or cause to be executed, under the corporate seal of the Company
or otherwise, and to deliver or cause to be delivered, all documents, agreements and instruments and to do
all such other things, including delivering such documents as are necessary or desirable to the director
appointed under the Act for filing in accordance with the Arrangement Agreement, as such officer or director,
may deem necessary or desirable to implement the foregoing resolutions and the matters authorized hereby,
such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of any such documents,
agreements or instruments or doing of any such act or thing.

APPENDIX B
PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT
(see attached)

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT UNDER SECTION 288 OF THE
BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT (BRITISH COLUMBIA)
ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
1.1

Definitions

In this Plan of Arrangement, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words and terms with the initial letter
or letters thereof capitalized shall have the meanings ascribed to them below:
“affiliate” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Securities Act (British Columbia);
“Arrangement” means the arrangement under section 288 of the BCBCA on the terms and subject to the conditions
set out in this Plan of Arrangement, subject to any amendments or variations thereto in accordance with section 8.3 of
the Arrangement Agreement or Section 6.1 or at the direction of the Court in the Final Order with the prior written
consent of Renaissance and Evrim, each acting reasonably;
“Arrangement Agreement” means the arrangement agreement dated June 8, 2020 between Evrim and Renaissance,
as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time in accordance with the terms
thereof;
“Arrangement Resolution” means the special resolution of the Renaissance Securityholders approving the
Arrangement to be considered at the Renaissance Meeting, substantially in the form and content of Schedule B to the
Arrangement Agreement;
“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia);
“Business Day” means any day, other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a statutory or civic holiday in Vancouver, British
Columbia;
“Consideration” means the consideration to be received by the Renaissance Shareholders pursuant to this Plan of
Arrangement for their Renaissance Shares, consisting of 1.2448 Evrim Shares for each Renaissance Share;
“Court” means the Supreme Court of British Columbia;
“Depositary” means any trust company, bank or financial institution agreed to in writing between Evrim and
Renaissance for the purpose of, among other things, exchanging certificates representing Renaissance Shares for the
Consideration in connection with the Arrangement;
“Dissent Rights” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 4.1;
“Dissenting Shareholder” means a registered holder of Renaissance Shares who has duly and validly exercised their
Dissent Rights in strict compliance with the dissent procedures set out under Division 2 of Part 8 of the BCBCA, as
modified by Section 4.1, the Interim Order and the Final Order and who has not withdrawn or been deemed to have
withdrawn such exercise of Dissent Rights;
“DRS” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.2;
“Effective Date” means the date upon which the Arrangement becomes effective as set out in the Arrangement
Agreement;
“Effective Time” means 12:01 a.m. (Vancouver time) on the Effective Date;
“Evrim” means Evrim Resources Corp.;
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“Evrim Shares” means the common shares in the capital of Evrim as constituted on the date hereof;
“Exchange Ratio” means 1.2448 Evrim Shares for each Renaissance Share;
“Final Order” means the final order of the Court pursuant to Section 291 of the BCBCA, approving the Arrangement
after a hearing upon the procedural and substantive fairness of the terms and conditions of the Arrangement as such
order may be affirmed, amended, modified, supplemented or varied by the Court at any time prior to the Effective
Date or, if appealed, then, unless such appeal is withdrawn or denied, as affirmed or as amended on appeal;
“final proscription date” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto Section 5.5;
“Former Renaissance Securityholders” means the holders of Renaissance Shares, Renaissance Warrants and
Renaissance Options immediately prior to the Effective Time;
“Former Renaissance Shareholders” means the holders of Renaissance Shares immediately prior to the Effective
Time;
“Interim Order” means the interim order of the Court, after being informed of the intention to rely upon the
exemption from the registration requirements under section 3(a)(10) of the U.S. Securities Act with respect to the
issuance of Evrim Shares issuable as Consideration, Replacement Options and Replacement Warrants pursuant to the
Arrangement, providing for, among other things, the calling and holding of the Renaissance Meeting, as the same may
be amended by the Court with the consent of Renaissance and Evrim, each acting reasonably;
“Parties” means, Renaissance and Evrim and “Party” means any of them;
“Plan of Arrangement” means this plan of arrangement and any amendments or variations hereto made in accordance
with section 8.3 of the Arrangement Agreement or Section 6.1 of this Plan of Arrangement or at the direction of the
Court;
“Renaissance” means Renaissance Gold Inc.;
“Renaissance Meeting” means the special meeting of the Renaissance Securityholders, including any adjournment
or postponement thereof, to be called and held in accordance with the Interim Order to consider the Arrangement
Resolution and such other matters as may be determined;
“Renaissance Optionholder” means the holders of the Renaissance Options;
“Renaissance Options” means the outstanding options to purchase Renaissance Shares granted under the Renaissance
Stock Option Plan;
“Renaissance Securityholders” means the Renaissance Shareholders, the Renaissance Optionholders and the
Renaissance Warrantholders;
“Renaissance Shareholders” means the holders of the Renaissance Shares;
“Renaissance Shares” means the common shares of Renaissance, as currently constituted;
“Renaissance Stock Option Plan” means the stock option plan of Renaissance dated December 7, 2018, and last
adopted by the Renaissance Shareholders on November 8, 2019, as amended;
“Renaissance Warrantholder” means the holders of Renaissance Warrants;
“Renaissance Warrants” means the outstanding share purchase warrants to purchase Renaissance Shares;
“Replacement Option” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.1(d);
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“Replacement Warrants” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 3.1(e);
“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada), as amended form time to time;
“Transmittal Letter” means the letter of transmittal sent to holders of Renaissance Shares for use in connection with
the Arrangement;
“U.S. Securities Act” means the United States Securities Act of 1933; and
“U.S. Tax Code” means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986.
In addition, words and phrases used herein and defined in the BCBCA and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
same meaning herein as in the BCBCA unless the context otherwise requires.
1.2

Interpretation Not Affected by Headings

The division of this Plan of Arrangement into articles, sections, paragraphs and subparagraphs and the insertion of
headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this
Plan of Arrangement. The terms “this Plan of Arrangement”, “hereof”, “herein”, “hereto”, “hereunder” and similar
expressions refer to this Plan of Arrangement and not to any particular article, section or other portion hereof and
include any instrument supplementary or ancillary hereto. Unless the contrary intention appears, references in this
Plan of Arrangement to an Article or Section, by number or letter or both refer to the Article or Section, respectively,
bearing that designation in this Plan of Arrangement.
1.3

Number, Gender and persons

In this Plan of Arrangement, unless the context otherwise requires, words importing the singular shall include the
plural and vice versa, words importing the use of either gender shall include both genders and neuter and the word
person and words importing persons shall include a natural person, firm, trust, partnership, association, corporation,
joint venture or government (including any governmental agency, political subdivision or instrumentality thereof) and
any other entity or group of persons of any kind or nature whatsoever.
1.4

Date for any Action

If the date on which any action is required to be taken hereunder is not a Business Day, such action shall be required
to be taken on the next succeeding day which is a Business Day.
1.5

Statutory References

Any reference in this Plan of Arrangement to a statute includes all rules and regulations made or promulgated
thereunder, all amendments to such statute or regulation in force from time to time and any statute or regulation that
supplements or supersedes such statute or regulation.
1.6

Currency

Unless otherwise stated, all references herein to amounts of money are expressed in lawful money of Canada.
1.7

Governing Law

This Plan of Arrangement shall be governed, including as to validity, interpretation and effect, by the laws of the
Province of British Columbia and the laws of Canada applicable therein.
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1.8

Binding Effect

This Plan of Arrangement will become effective at the Effective Time and shall be binding upon Evrim, Renaissance,
the Renaissance Shareholders, the Renaissance Optionholders and the Renaissance Warrantholders.
ARTICLE 2
ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT
2.1

Arrangement Agreement

This Plan of Arrangement is made pursuant to, and is subject to the provisions of, the Arrangement Agreement, except
in respect of the sequence of the steps comprising the Arrangement, which shall occur in the order set forth herein.
ARTICLE 3
ARRANGEMENT
3.1

Arrangement

At the Effective Time, the following shall occur and shall be deemed to occur sequentially in the following order
without any further act or formality:
(a)

each Renaissance Share held by a Dissenting Shareholder shall be deemed to be transferred by the
holder thereof, without any further act or formality on its part, free and clear of all liens, claims and
encumbrances, to Renaissance and Renaissance shall thereupon be obliged to pay the amount
therefor determined and payable in accordance with Article 4 hereof, and: (i) the name of such
holder shall be removed from the central securities register as a holder of Renaissance Shares and
such Renaissance Shares shall be cancelled and cease to be outstanding; and (ii) such Dissenting
Shareholders will cease to have any rights as Renaissance Shareholders other than the right to be
paid the fair value for their Renaissance Shares by Renaissance;

(b)

each Renaissance Share (other than a Renaissance Share held by a Dissenting Shareholder or a
Renaissance Share held by Evrim or any subsidiary of Evrim) shall be deemed to be transferred to
Evrim and, in consideration therefor, Evrim shall issue the Consideration for each Renaissance
Share, subject to Section 3.3 and Article 5;

(c)

each Renaissance Option outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (whether vested or
unvested) shall be exchanged for an option (each a “Replacement Option”): (i) to acquire from
Evrim that number of Evrim Shares equal to the product of: (A) the number of Renaissance Shares
subject to such Renaissance Option immediately prior to the Effective Time; and (B) the Exchange
Ratio, provided that, if the foregoing would result in a fraction of an Evrim Share being issuable,
the aggregate number of Evrim Shares otherwise issuable shall be rounded down to the nearest
whole number of Evrim Shares; (ii) at the same aggregate exercise price as the Renaissance Option
for which the Replacement Option was exchanged, the per share exercise price of the Replacement
Option shall be an amount equal to the quotient of: (A) the aggregate exercise price of the
Replacement Option; divided by (B) the number of Evrim Shares issuable on full exercise of the
Replacement Option, provided that the aggregate exercise price payable on any full or partial
exercise of a Replacement Option shall be rounded up to the nearest whole cent; and (iii) all other
terms and conditions of the Replacement Options will be the same as the Renaissance Option for
which it was exchanged, except that notwithstanding the terms of the Renaissance Stock Option
Plan, in circumstances in which the Expiry Date (as that term is defined in the Renaissance Option
Plan) of the Replacement Options pursuant to section 5.5 of the Renaissance Option Plan would
otherwise have been accelerated to 90 days following the specified event, the Expiry Date shall not
be accelerated to a date that is earlier than six months following the Effective Date; and
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(d)

3.2

each Renaissance Warrant shall be exchanged for a share purchase warrant (each a “Replacement
Warrant”) to purchase Evrim Shares in accordance with the terms of the applicable agreement or
warrant certificate relating to such Renaissance Warrant such that, following the Effective Time; (i)
each Replacement Warrant shall be exercisable to acquire from Evrim, other than as provided
herein, the number of Evrim Shares equal to the product of: (A) the number of Renaissance Shares
subject to such Renaissance Warrant immediately prior to the Effective Time; and (B) the Exchange
Ratio, provided that, if the foregoing would result in a fraction of an Evrim Share being issuable,
the aggregate number of Evrim Shares otherwise issuable shall be rounded down to the nearest
whole number of Evrim Shares; and (ii) at the same aggregate exercise price as the Renaissance
Warrant for which the Replacement Warrant was exchanged, the per share exercise price of the
Replacement Warrant shall be the amount equal to the quotient of: (A) the aggregate exercise price
of the Replacement Warrant; divided by (B) the number of Evrim Shares issuable on full exercise
of the Replacement Warrant, provided that the aggregate exercise price payable on any full or partial
exercise of a Replacement Warrant shall be rounded up to the nearest whole cent.

Effective Time Procedures

Following the receipt of the Final Order and prior to the Effective Date, Evrim shall deliver or arrange to be delivered
to the Depositary certificates or direct registration (“DRS”) advice-statements representing the Evrim Shares required
to be issued to Former Renaissance Shareholders in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.1, which certificates
or DRS advice-statements shall be held by the Depositary as agent and nominee for such Former Renaissance
Shareholders for distribution to such Former Renaissance Shareholders in accordance with the provisions of Article 5.
Subject to the provisions of Article 5, and upon return of a properly completed Transmittal Letter by a registered
Former Renaissance Shareholder together with certificates representing Renaissance Shares and such other documents
as the Depositary may require, Former Renaissance Shareholders shall be entitled to receive delivery of certificates or
DRS advice-statements representing the Evrim Shares to which they are entitled pursuant to Section 3.1.
3.3

Evrim Shares
(a)

No fractional Evrim Shares shall be issued to Former Renaissance Shareholders. The number of
Evrim Shares to be issued to Former Renaissance Shareholders shall be rounded down to the nearest
whole Evrim Share in the event that a Former Renaissance Shareholder is entitled to a fractional
share representing less than a whole Evrim Share; and

(b)

All Evrim Shares issued pursuant hereto shall be deemed to be validly issued and outstanding as
fully paid and non-assessable shares for the purposes of the BCBCA.
ARTICLE 4
DISSENT RIGHTS

4.1

Dissent Rights

Registered Renaissance Shareholders (other than Evrim and its affiliates) may exercise dissent rights with respect to
Renaissance Shares held by such Dissenting Shareholders (“Dissent Rights”) in connection with the Arrangement
pursuant to and in the manner set forth in Division 2 of Part 8 of the BCBCA, as modified by the Interim Order, the
Final Order and this Section 4.1; provided that the written notice setting forth the objection of such registered
Renaissance Shareholder to the Arrangement Resolution must be received by Renaissance not later than 5:00 p.m.
(Vancouver time) on the day that is two Business Days immediately preceding the date of the Renaissance Meeting
(as it may be adjourned or postponed from time to time). Each Dissenting Shareholder who duly exercises its Dissent
Rights in accordance with this Section 4.1, shall be deemed to have transferred all Renaissance Shares held by such
Dissenting Shareholder and in respect of which Dissent Rights have been validly exercised, to Renaissance, free and
clear of all liens, as provided in Section 3.1(a) and if such Dissenting Shareholder:
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4.2

(a)

is ultimately entitled to be paid fair value for its Renaissance Shares, such Dissenting Shareholder:
(i) shall be deemed not to have participated in the transactions in Article 3 (other than Section
3.1(a)); (ii) will be entitled to be paid the fair value of such Renaissance Shares by Renaissance,
which fair value, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in section 245 of the BCBCA,
shall be determined as of the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding the date
on which the Arrangement Resolution was adopted; and (iii) will not be entitled to any other
payment or consideration, including any payment that would be payable under the Arrangement if
such Dissenting Shareholder had not exercised its Dissent Rights in respect of such Renaissance
Shares; or

(b)

ultimately is not entitled, for any reason, to be paid fair value for such Renaissance Shares, such
Dissenting Shareholder shall be deemed to have participated in the Arrangement on the same basis
as a non‐dissenting holder of Renaissance Shares and shall be entitled to receive only the
Consideration contemplated by Section 3.1(b) that such Dissenting Shareholder would have
received pursuant to the Arrangement if such Dissenting Shareholder had not exercised its Dissent
Rights.

Recognition of Dissenting Holders
(a)

In no circumstances shall Evrim, Renaissance or any other person be required to recognize a person
exercising Dissent Rights unless such person is the registered holder of the Renaissance Shares in
respect of which such Dissent Rights are purported to be exercised.

(b)

For greater certainty, in no case shall Evrim, Renaissance or any other person be required to
recognize any Dissenting Shareholder as a holder of Renaissance Shares in respect of which Dissent
Rights have been validly exercised after the completion of the transfer under Section 3.1(a), and the
name of such Dissenting Shareholder shall be removed from the register of Renaissance
Shareholders as to those Renaissance Shares in respect of which Dissent Rights have been validly
exercised at the same time as the event described in Section 3.1(a) occurs. In addition to any other
restrictions under Division 2 of Part 8 of the BCBCA, none of the following persons shall be entitled
to exercise Dissent Rights: (i) any holder of a Renaissance Option; (ii) any holder of a Renaissance
Warrant; and (iii) any Renaissance Shareholder who votes or has instructed a proxyholder to vote
such Renaissance Shareholder’s Renaissance Shares in favour of the Arrangement Resolution (but
only in respect of such Renaissance Shares).
ARTICLE 5
DELIVERY OF EVRIM SHARES

5.1

Delivery of Evrim Securities

Upon surrender to the Depositary for cancellation of a certificate or DRS advice-statement that immediately before
the Effective Time represented one or more outstanding Renaissance Shares that were exchanged for Evrim Shares in
accordance with Section 3.1, together with a duly completed Transmittal Letter and such other documents and
instruments as would have been required to effect the transfer of the Renaissance Shares formerly represented by such
certificate or DRS advice-statement under the BCBCA and the constating documents of Renaissance and such
additional documents and instruments as the Depositary may reasonably require, the holder of such surrendered
certificate shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor, and the Depositary shall deliver to such holder following
the Effective Time, a certificate or DRS advice-statement representing the Evrim Shares that such holder is entitled to
receive in accordance with Section 3.1.
After the Effective Time and until surrendered for cancellation as contemplated by this Section 5.1, each certificate or
DRS advice-statement that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented one or more Renaissance Shares shall
be deemed at all times to represent only the right to receive in exchange therefor a certificate or DRS advice-statement
representing Evrim Shares that the holder of such certificate is entitled to receive in accordance with Section 3.1.
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Following the Effective Time certificates or other document evidencing Renaissance Options or Renaissance Warrants
shall be replaced by documents or certificates evidencing Replacement Options or Replacement Warrants, as
applicable. Following the Effective Time Evrim shall deliver to former holders of Renaissance Options and
Renaissance Warrants certificates representing the Replacement Warrants and Replacement Options that such holder
is entitled to receive in accordance with Section 3.1. Until such time as Evrim delivers such new certificates
representing Replacement Options or Replacement Warrants the certificates or other documents representing the
Renaissance Options or Renaissance Warrants shall be deemed to represent Replacement Options or Replacement
Warrants, as applicable.
5.2

Lost Certificates

If any certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented one or more outstanding Renaissance Shares
that were exchanged in accordance with Section 3.1 shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an
affidavit of that fact by the holder claiming such certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed, the Depositary shall deliver
in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, a certificate representing Evrim Shares that such holder is
entitled to receive in accordance with Section 3.1. When authorizing such delivery of a certificate representing Evrim
Shares that such holder is entitled to receive in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, the holder to
whom a certificate representing such Evrim Shares is to be delivered shall, as a condition precedent to the delivery of
such Evrim Shares, give a bond satisfactory to Evrim and the Depositary in such amount as Evrim and the Depositary
may direct, or otherwise indemnify Evrim and the Depositary in a manner satisfactory to Evrim and the Depositary,
against any claim that may be made against Evrim or the Depositary with respect to the certificate alleged to have
been lost, stolen or destroyed and shall otherwise take such actions as may be required by the constating documents
of Renaissance.
5.3

Distributions with Respect to Unsurrendered Certificates

No dividend or other distribution declared or made after the Effective Time with respect to Evrim Shares with a record
date after the Effective Time shall be delivered to the holder of any unsurrendered certificate or DRS advice-statement
that, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented outstanding Renaissance Shares unless and until the holder
of such certificate or DRS advice-statement shall have complied with the provisions of Section 5.1 or Section 5.2.
Subject to applicable law and to Section 5.4, at the time of such compliance, there shall, in addition to the delivery of
a certificate representing Evrim Shares to which such holder is thereby entitled, be delivered to such holder, without
interest, the amount of the dividend or other distribution with a record date after the Effective Time theretofore paid
with respect to such Evrim Shares.
5.4

Withholding Rights

Evrim, Renaissance and the Depositary, as applicable, shall be entitled to deduct and withhold, from any amounts
payable or otherwise deliverable to any person under this Plan of Arrangement and from all dividends or other
distributions otherwise payable to any Former Renaissance Securityholders, such amounts as Evrim, Renaissance or
the Depositary is required or permitted to deduct and withhold with respect to such payment under the Tax Act, the
U.S. Tax Code or any provision of any applicable federal, provincial, state, local or foreign tax law or treaty, in each
case, as amended. To the extent that amounts are so withheld, such withheld amounts shall be treated for all purposes
hereof as having been paid to such person in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made, provided
that such withheld amounts are actually remitted to the appropriate taxing authority.
5.5

Limitation and Proscription

To the extent that a Former Renaissance Shareholder shall not have complied with the provisions of Section 5.1 or
Section 5.2 on or before the date that is six years after the Effective Date (the “final proscription date”), then the
Evrim Shares that such Former Renaissance Shareholder was entitled to receive shall be automatically cancelled
without any repayment of capital in respect thereof and the certificates or DRS advice-statements representing such
Evrim Shares shall be delivered to Evrim by the Depositary and the share certificates shall be cancelled by Evrim, and
the interest of the Former Renaissance Shareholder in such Evrim Shares shall be terminated as of such final
proscription date.
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ARTICLE 6
AMENDMENTS
6.1

Amendments to Plan of Arrangement

Evrim and Renaissance reserve the right to amend, modify or supplement this Plan of Arrangement at any time and
from time to time, provided that each such amendment, modification or supplement must be (i) set out in writing, (ii)
agreed to in writing by Evrim and Renaissance, (iii) filed with the Court and, if made following the Renaissance
Meeting, approved by the Court, and (iv) communicated to holders or former holders of Renaissance Shares if and as
required by the Court.
Any amendment, modification or supplement to this Plan of Arrangement may be proposed by Renaissance at any
time prior to the Renaissance Meeting provided that Evrim shall have consented thereto in writing, with or without
any other prior notice or communication, and, if so proposed and accepted by the persons voting at the Renaissance
Meeting (other than as may be required under the Interim Order), shall become part of this Plan of Arrangement for
all purposes.
Any amendment, modification or supplement to this Plan of Arrangement that is approved by the Court following the
Renaissance Meeting shall be effective only if: (i) it is consented to in writing by each of Evrim and Renaissance; and
(ii) if required by the Court, it is consented to by the Renaissance Securityholders voting in the manner directed by
the Court.
ARTICLE 7
FURTHER ASSURANCES
7.1

Further Assurances

Notwithstanding that the transactions and events set out herein will occur and be deemed to occur in the order set out
in this Plan of Arrangement without any further act or formality, each of Evrim and Renaissance will make, do and
execute, or cause to be made, done and executed, any such further acts, deeds, agreements, transfers, assurances,
instruments or documents as may reasonably be required by any of them in order to further document or evidence any
of the transactions or events set out herein.
ARTICLE 8
U.S. SECURITIES LAW MATTERS
8.1

U.S. Securities Law Matters

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, this Plan of Arrangement will be carried out with the intention
that (i) all Evrim Shares to be issued to Renaissance Shareholders in exchange for their Renaissance Shares pursuant
to this Plan of Arrangement, as applicable, will be issued and exchanged in reliance on the exemption from the
registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act as provided by section 3(a)(10) thereof and applicable state
securities laws, and pursuant to the terms, conditions and procedures set forth in the Arrangement Agreement; (ii) all
Replacement Options to be issued to Renaissance Optionholders in exchange for their Renaissance Options pursuant
to this Plan of Arrangement will be issued and exchanged in reliance upon the exemption from the registration
requirements of the U.S. Securities Act as provided by section 3(a)(10) thereof; and (iii) all Replacement Warrants to
be issued to Renaissance Warrantholders in exchange for their Renaissance Options pursuant to this Plan of
Arrangement will be issued and exchanged in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the
U.S. Securities Act as provided by section 3(a)(10) thereof.

APPENDIX C
INFORMATION CONCERNING RENAISSANCE
(see attached)

APPENDIX C
INFORMATION CONCERNING RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
The following information is provided by Renaissance Gold Inc. (“Renaissance” or the “Company”), is presented
on a pre-Arrangement basis (except where otherwise indicated) and reflects the current business, financial and share
capital position of Renaissance.
CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Name, Address and Incorporation
Renaissance was incorporated under the name 0881833 B.C. Ltd. pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (British
Columbia) on May 25, 2010, and it changed its name to Renaissance Gold Inc. on September 17, 2010. It was
incorporated for the purpose of acquiring part of the exploration business of AuEx Ventures, Inc.
Renaissance’s operating office is located at 4750 Longley Lane, Suite 106, Reno, NV 89502. Renaissance’s corporate
and registered and records office located at Unit 1 – 15782 Marine Drive, White Rock, British Columbia, V4B 1E6.
Renaissance is a reporting issuer in the provinces of Alberta, British Columbia and Ontario. The Renaissance Shares
are listed on the TSXV under the trading symbol “REN” and on the OTCQB under the symbol “RNSGF”. The fiscal
year end of Renaissance is June 30. It is anticipated that, as soon as reasonably practicable after completion of the
Arrangement, the Renaissance Shares will be delisted from trading on the TSXV.
The authorized share capital of Renaissance consists of an unlimited number of Renaissance Shares without par value,
of which, 68,521,030 Renaissance Shares were issued and outstanding as of the Record Date and an unlimited number
of preferred shares, of which none have been issued.
Intercorporate Relationships
Renaissance has the following direct and indirect subsidiaries:
Name of Subsidiary
Renaissance Exploration Inc.
Kinetic Gold Corp.

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation
Nevada
British Columbia

Proportion
Ownership of Interest
100% by Renaissance
100% by Renaissance

Principal Activity
Mineral exploration
Holding company

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
Description of the Business
Renaissance is an exploration stage business engaged in the acquisition and exploration of mineral properties located
primarily in the western United States. Renaissance’s business model is to identify and secure mineral properties for
which it seeks suitable funding partners. Once funding partners are found, an exploration and option to earn-in
agreement is entered into enabling the earn-in partner to obtain an interest in the property by conducting and funding
exploration on that property and, in some cases, making staged cash and share payments to Renaissance.
On June 30, 2020, Renaissance completed the amalgamation of two of its subsidiaries, Renaissance Exploration Inc.
with Kinetic Gold (US) Inc. with Renaissance Exploration Inc. as the surviving entity. The exploration projects that
were held by Kinetic Gold (US) Inc. prior to the amalgamation will, upon delivery of a certificate of merger to the
regulators, be re-registered in the name of Renaissance Exploration Inc.
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Production and Services
Renaissance’s strategy is to apply the extensive exploration experience and high-end technical skills of its team
members to search for and acquire high quality precious metal exploration projects that are then offered for joint
venture to industry partners who provide exploration funding. Renaissance maintains a large portfolio of gold and
silver exploration properties. Renaissance’s objective is to place its projects into exploration agreements, testing as
many drill targets as possible and providing maximum exposure to success through discovery. In June 2020
Renaissance received the final payment of US$2,400,000 from AngloGold Ashanti NA (“AngloGold”) in respect of
AngloGold’s exercise of its right to acquire a 100% interest in the Silicon project in the Bare Mountain mining district.
Renaissance retains a 1% net smelter return royalty on future production, within a defined area of interest, within the
project area comprising approximately 15,000 acres (6,070 hectares).
Specialized Skill and Knowledge
Many aspects of Renaissance’s business require specialized skill and knowledge. Such skills and knowledge include
the areas of geology, drilling, logistical planning and implementation of exploration programs and accounting.
Renaissance retains executive officers and consultants with experience in mining, geology, exploration and
development in the United States and generally, as well as executive officers and consultants with relevant accounting
experience.
Competitive Conditions
Companies operating in the mining industry must manage risks, which are beyond the direct control of company
personnel. Among these risks are those associated with exploration, title defects, environmental damage, commodity
prices, foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
The mineral exploration and mining industry is competitive and Renaissance will be required to compete for the
acquisition of attractive mineral permits, claims, leases and other mineral interests for exploration and development
projects. As a result of this competition, the majority of which is with companies with greater financial resources than
Renaissance, Renaissance may not be able to acquire or retain attractive properties in the future on terms it considers
acceptable. The ability of Renaissance to acquire and retain mineral properties in the future will depend on its success
with its existing properties, its success in identifying and staking additional mineral properties, its ability to enter into
future earn-in agreements, joint venture, royalty and similar agreements and its ability to obtain additional financing
to fund further exploration activities. Renaissance also competes with other mining companies for investment capital
with which to fund such projects and for the recruitment and retention of qualified employees.
Components
Over the past several years, increased mineral exploration activity on a global scale has made some services difficult
to procure, particularly skilled and experienced contract drilling personnel. It is possible that delays or increased costs
may be experienced in order to proceed with drilling activities during the current period. Such delays could
significantly affect Renaissance if, for example, commodity prices fall significantly, thereby reducing the
attractiveness of one of Renaissance’s properties and reducing the opportunity Renaissance may have had to enter into
an earn-in agreement in respect of a particular project had such tests been completed in a timely manner before the
fall of such prices. In addition, assay labs are often significantly backlogged, thus significantly increasing the time
that Renaissance waits for assay results. Such delays can slow down work programs, thus increasing field expenses
or other costs (such as property payments which may have to be made before all information to assess the desirability
of making such payment is known, or causing Renaissance to not make a significant property payment before all
information is available).
Cycles
The Company is an exploration company. At this time, issues of seasonality or market fluctuations have a minor
impact on the expenditure patterns, although the majority of the United States exploration costs are incurred in the
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months of June through November. The mining business is subject to mineral price cycles. The marketability of
minerals and mineral concentrates is also affected by worldwide economic cycles.
Environmental Protection
All aspects of Renaissance’s field operations will be subject to environmental regulations and generally will require
approval by appropriate regulatory authorities prior to commencement. Any failure to comply could result in fines
and penalties. Renaissance’s operations are presently primarily focused in Nevada, United Stated and are subject to
national and local laws and regulations.
Renaissance may also be held liable should environmental problems be discovered that were caused by former owners
and operators of its properties. Renaissance conducts its mineral exploration activities in compliance with applicable
environmental protection legislation. Renaissance is not aware of any existing environmental problems related to any
of its properties that may result in material liability to Renaissance.
Employees
As at the date of this Circular, Renaissance has five full-time equivalent employees and two part-time contractors.
Foreign Operations
Renaissance faces certain risks as a company operating in the United States, including changes to or invalidation of
government mining regulations; expropriation or revocation of land or property rights; changes in foreign ownership
rights; changes in foreign taxation rates; corruption; uncertain political climate; terrorist actions or war; and lack of a
stable economic climate.
Social and Environmental Policies
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. In order to protect its
employees, contractors and do our part for the safety of our communities, the Company implemented a work from
home strategy at both its Reno, Nevada and White Rock, B.C. offices until further notice. The Company currently has
4 of its projects in option or earn-in agreements. Given the current uncertainty due to the COVID-19 threat and the
highly volatile financial markets, drilling plans are uncertain at this time, but will be reported when plans materialize
later in the year.
OPERATING HISTORY
Renaissance has actively pursued its prospect generator business model, and in the past three years has entered into
15 new partner-funded agreements, including, 13 earn-in agreements, one option agreement and one exploration
alliance. This resulted in ten partner-funded drilling programs and expenditures in excess of $14 million, exclusive of
AngloGold’s significant expenditures at the Silicon project during this period. Renaissance also maintained an
aggressive generative exploration program during this period, which resulted in seven new high-quality projects
brought into the Renaissance exploration portfolio. This approach has allowed Renaissance to drill test several targets
annually and continue to generate and market new targets to potential funding partners.
At the date of this Circular, Renaissance has three properties under exploration funding agreements:
Project
Jupiter
Maggie Creek
Spring Peak

Funding Partner
Ramelius Resources Limited (“Ramelius”)
Orevada Metals Inc. (“Orevada”)
OceanaGold U.S. Holding Inc. (“OceanaGold”), a subsidiary of OceanaGold Corporation

Below are highlights of activity by Renaissance and its funding partners on its exploration properties since the
beginning of the Company’s financial year ended June 30, 2018.
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AngloGold
In May 2017, Renaissance entered into an option agreement with AngloGold whereby AngloGold has acquired the
Silicon project from the Company for a series of payments totaling US$3,000,000 over 3 years as follows: US$100,000
in June 2017 (received), US$200,000 in May 2018 (received), US$300,000 in May 2019 (received), and
US$2,400,000 in June 2020 (received). Renaissance retains a 1% net smelter return royalty on future production,
within a defined area of interest, within the project area comprising approximately 15,000 acres (6,070 hectares).
Silicon Project
The Silicon project is near Corvus Gold Inc’s North Bullfrog and Mother Lode projects, and the Sterling mine, which
was acquired by Coeur Mining, Inc. from Northern Empire Resources for $117 million in 2018. Both properties have
been active and reporting good drill results.
On September 17, 2018, Renaissance reported that AngloGold had completed an initial drilling test comprised of
2,346 meters in six core holes at one of several target areas on the Silicon project. The program goal was to test the
deeper levels of a large, exposed alteration zone, initially identified by Renaissance geologists as characteristic of the
barren, upper levels of a low sulfidation epithermal system.
AngloGold conducted drilling through May 2019 and to date have completed 28 reverse circulation holes totaling
11,156 meters and 19 core holes totaling 7,863 meters.
In June 2020 Renaissance received the final payment of US$2,400,000 from AngloGold in respect of AngloGold’s
exercise of its right to acquire a 100% interest in the Silicon project. Renaissance retains a 1% net smelter return
royalty on future production, within a defined area of interest, within the project area comprising approximately 15,000
acres (6,070 hectares).
AngloGold is currently working to obtain a Plan of Operations permit to allow further drilling.
Ramelius
In November 2017, the Company entered into a farm-in and joint venture agreement with Ramelius, an Australian
public company, whereby Ramelius has the right to earn a 75% interest in the Jupiter property by spending
US$3,000,000 over a five year period.
Jupiter Project
Ramelius completed a Phase 1 drill program on the Jupiter Project in December 2017 as a first test of two drill targets.
The results of this program were positive and encountered anomalous gold mineralization in several holes drilled in
the NE Pediment target including an intercept of 30 feet (9.1 meters) of 1.10 g/t Au.
In August 2018, Ramelius completed a Phase 2 drill program totaling seven reverse circulation drill holes totaling
1,547 meters. The program encountered several anomalous intercepts associated with jasperoidal alteration developed
along the Tertiary-Paleozoic contact and in proximity to the graben bounding basement faults, however no increase
in grade was observed. The basement structures intercepted in one hole were visually encouraging, but unmineralized.
The third drill campaign under this agreement began in mid-October 2019 and is designed to test “Long Canyon-type”
targets occurring along the Cambrian-Ordovician unconformity. One earlier hole drilled in 2017 tested this target and
encountered jasperoidal alteration at the unconformity. The current program is designed to further test this horizon in
the vicinity of mapped mineralized structures containing gold in rock-chip assays up to 0.98 g/t. Results from this
program were negative, however Ramelius has maintained their interest in the project and is continuing to develop
additional targets on the project.
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Orevada
Orevada has an option to earn a 70% interest in the Maggie Creek project located in Eureka Creek, Nevada, by
spending US$4,500,000 over a 5-year period to earn an initial 50% interest, and an additional 20% interest by funding
the completion of a feasibility study by February 15, 2028.
Maggie Creek
The Maggie Creek project lies in the heart of the Carlin Trend, adjacent to Nevada Gold Mines’ Gold Quarry Mine.
The project covers the NE projection of the Chukar-Alunite Fault Zone which is mineralized at Gold Quarry and the
SE projection of the Castle Reef Fault Zone which is mineralized at the Leeville Mine. Historical drilling has
encountered gold mineralization in the upper plate of the Roberts Mountains Allochthon ranging in grade from below
detection limit to more than 1 g/t Au in numerous drill holes. A window of lower plate carbonate rocks is exposed in
the core of the Renaissance claim block. Gold mineralization in the window has been drilled at the Rainbow deposit
just south of Renaissance’s claim block.
On September 11, 2019, U.S. Gold Corp. (NASDAQ:USAU) announced their acquisition of Orevada including the
earn-in agreement on the Maggie Creek Project. On December 17, 2019, the Company executed an amendment to the
earn-in agreement with Orevada to extend the time period by which the first and second work obligations (totaling
US$300,000) must be spent to June 15, 2021. This will allow the new owner time to become familiar with the project
and design an appropriate exploration program.
OceanaGold
On January 25, 2019, the Company announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with OceanaGold, a
subsidiary of OceanaGold Corporation, granting OceanaGold the option to earn a 51% interest in the Spring Peak
project located in Nevada. To maintain the option, OceanaGold must pay the Company US$200,000 and spend
US$4,000,000 (US$150,000 committed) over a five year period. Once vested, OceanaGold has a one-time option to
elect to earn an additional 24% interest by spending an additional US$6,000,000 by January 17, 2028. If a party’s
participating interest in the joint venture is reduced to 10% or less then such party’s participating interest shall
automatically be converted to a 1% NSR royalty.
Additionally, on February 20, 2019, the Company announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with
OceanaGold granting OceanaGold the option to earn a 51% interest in the Fat Lizard exploration project located in
Nevada. Pursuant to the agreement, OceanaGold paid the Company US$25,000 on signing. To maintain the option,
OceanaGold must pay the Company an additional US$200,000 and spend US$3,000,000 (US$250,000 committed)
over a five year period. Once vested, OceanaGold has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 24% interest by
spending an additional US$5,000,000 by February 14, 2028. Once vested, the parties will contribute capital for the
joint venture’s expenditures in accordance with their respective participating interests subject to straight-line dilution.
If a party’s participating interest in the joint venture is reduced to 10% or less then such party’s participating interest
shall automatically be converted to a 2% NSR royalty.
Spring Peak Project
OceanaGold is the operator of the project. During the 2019 field season, OceanaGold completed geologic mapping
and sampling and a coincident CSAMT and soil survey. The CSAMT results map several linear areas of high
resistivity which are coincident with mapped silicification, structures, interpreted hydrothermal vents and anomalous
Sb, As and Au in soils. The coincidence of these features has led to the generation of a number of compelling targets
on the project. Permitting with the U.S. Forest Service is completed and OceanaGold has informed Renaissance that
they have decided against beginning a drill program at high elevation late in the season due to the risk of winter
weather and associated logistical concerns. The drilling program is planned for Q3 2020.
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Fat Lizard
Fat Lizard project, Nye County, Nevada comprises a gold and silver bearing volcanic-hosted, low- sulfidation
epithermal system. The presence of steam-heated alteration suggests a shallow level of exposure above a boiling zone.
Mineralization occurs along a 1.2 kilometer long mineralized fault zone and is open to the west. A half-graben setting
controls mineralization and suggests structural intersections and horsetailing are present at moderate depths. Spectral
measurements have been used to map high-level alteration including kaolinite, dickite, and alunite-bearing zones.
Limited illite-smectite alteration is present in a narrow upthrown structural block and is associated with anomalous
gold (up to 0.49 g/t) and silver (up to 10.8 g/t) in rock chips. Potential Au-Ag-rich mineralization may occur at
relatively shallow depths within a boiling horizon. This prospect had never been drilled.
A three hole, 1,303 meter oriented core program was completed in September 2019. The program was designed to
test deeper levels of an exposed high-level alteration system. No reportable intercepts were encountered in the drilling.
On December 19, 2019, OceanaGold notified Renaissance of their decision to withdraw from the project. Following
subsequent internal review of the results of the program, Renaissance has decided against doing any further work on
the project.
Kinross
In May 2017, the Company entered into an exploration option agreement with Kinross Gold U.S.A, Inc. (“Kinross”)
granting Kinross the option to acquire a 70% interest within ten years, in the Spruce East, Buffalo Canyon, and
Diamond Point exploration projects located in Nevada. On signing, Kinross advanced Renaissance US$500,000 to
carry out and conduct exploration for the first agreement year among the three projects as directed by Kinross.
In addition, Renaissance granted Kinross a right of first refusal (the “ROFR”) for up to three additional properties
within a defined area of interest in Nevada. The ROFR expired on May 15, 2020.
Spruce East
Drilling during the Phase 1 five hole reverse circulation drill program, totaling 1,215 meters, conducted in 2017,
encountered significant zones of anomalous geochemistry and meaningful gold intercepts further defining a Carlinlike system which remains open to expansion. A Phase 2 follow-up drill program was designed to offset mineralization
in the Cicada target as well as test additional targets throughout the project. The program consisted of nine reverse
circulation drill holes, totaling 2,316 meters and was completed in August 2018. Based on the results, Kinross
terminated the earn-in agreement on the project. Renaissance subsequently reduced the size of the claim block and
continued to market the project, however no additional work is planned.
Buffalo Canyon
The 2017 drilling program encountered long runs of low-grade gold mineralization which expanded the footprint of
known mineralization on the project and included the highest single assay received to date of 5 feet (1.5 meters) @
5.34 g/t Au. Despite this encouragement, Kinross decided to not continue to earn-in on the project. The property is
now being actively marketed to attract a new funding partner.
Diamond Point
All of the 2017 drill holes bottomed in Chainman Shale and did not reach the target stratigraphy of the Webb
formation. Gold values in 5 foot (1.5 meters) surface sample intervals ranged from below detection limits to 0.29 g/t
Au, establishing the continuation of the surface gold showings along the West fault under shallow alluvial cover 400
meters to the north. Kinross decided to not continue to earn-in on this project. The Company still holds claims on the
project and continues to market the project on the Carlin Trend.
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S2 Resources
On July 31, 2017, the Company announced that it had signed a definitive agreement with Nevada Star Exploration
LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of S2 Resources Ltd. (“S2 Resources”). The agreement grants S2 Resources the
option to acquire a 70% interest in the Ecru, South Roberts and Pluto projects located in Nevada. S2 Resources must
spend US$3,000,000 per project over a five year period to earn a 70% interest, with a committed expenditure of
US$200,000 per project by the second anniversary of the agreement. Upon signing the definitive agreement, S2
Resources paid the Company US$75,000.
Ecru Project
S2 Resources is the operator of the project. The Ecru project is a Carlin-type target in the heart of the Cortez Trend,
located to the north of Nevada Gold Mines’ Pipeline Complex and Robertson property.
On February 14, 2019, Renaissance announced the results from the initial stratigraphic drilling program. Two holes,
totaling 4,105 feet were drilled with the following combined objectives: determining the thickness of the upper plate
stratigraphy; determining the depth to the more prospective lower plate carbonate stratigraphy; collecting preliminary
data on the subsurface geochemistry and alteration within the project area; and testing two geophysical anomaly
scenarios, namely an audiomagnetotelluric (“AMT”) conductivity high coincident with a gravity high, and an AMT
low coincident with a gravity low adjacent to interpreted intersecting structures which may have acted as conduits for
mineralizing fluids. Neither hole successfully penetrated into the more prospective lower plate carbonate sequence
beneath the upper plate siliciclastic sequence, but hole NECD0001 intersected a 229 foot (83 meter) thick section of
limestone and calcareous mudstones within the siliciclastic sediments. It is not yet known if this represents part of the
upper plate siliciclastic sequence, or a thrusted wedge of prospective lower plate carbonates structurally interleaved
into the upper plate sequence. The main part of the AMT anomaly, which appears to be open along the project’s
southern and western boundaries adjacent to Nevada Gold Mines’ Robertson property, is as yet untested. Samples
were submitted for biostratigraphic age dating using microfossils in order to clarify the stratigraphy and the potential
for such structural repetition and interleaving of upper and lower plate rocks. Unfortunately, the preservation and
recovery of microfossils was not sufficient to make a definitive determination.
S2 Resources acquired magnetic data over the project area in 2019 which defined a large, circular magnetic feature
(up to 2 kilometers across) comprising four discrete magnetic highs. These magnetic highs broadly coincide with
gravity lows and surround a central gravity high. The circular magnetic feature is located at the intersection of
interpreted structures and may represent a buried intrusion or intrusions. This interpretation is supported by S2
Resource’s 2018 drilling results, which intersected a number of narrow, low-grade gold-silver intercepts with the best
result of 3.66 meters @ 1.65 g/t gold and 9.7 g/t silver, including 1.22 meters @ 3.4 g/t gold. This mineralized interval
is associated with zones of brecciation, silicification and overprinting argillic alteration, within broader multi-element
geochemical haloes (with elevated antimony, arsenic, mercury, copper, zinc, molybdenum and tellurium), consistent
with an intrusion related origin. The identification of a potential intrusive complex within the Ecru project is
considered highly significant, given that Nevada Gold Mines’ 2.7 million ounce Robertson gold deposit, located
immediately south of the Ecru project, is an intrusion related gold-silver skarn deposit. Additionally, there is no
discernable magnetic signature associated with the large gravity high located to the northeast of the intrusive complex.
This is significant as the magnetic results do not indicate the presence of a buried intrusion, suggesting that the gravity
high may represent an uplifted body of prospective lower plate carbonate sediments consistent with a Carlin-style gold
target. On March 31, 2020, S2 Resources notified the Company of its decision to withdraw from the project. The
Company retains the claims on the project and is continuing to market the project, located in the heart of the Battle
Mountain-Eureka (Cortez) Trend.
Pluto Project
S2 Resources completed four reverse circulation drill holes on the Pluto project in October-November 2017 and did
not encounter any significant gold mineralization. Accordingly, S2 Resources informed the Company that it would
not be continuing with the earn-in on the Pluto Project. After further evaluation of the results of the drilling, the
Company has decided to not maintain the property.
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South Roberts Project
As announced on June 27, 2018, the objective of the initial three hole core drilling program totaling 1,100 meters was
to test multiple target horizons associated with specific favorable stratigraphic units and contacts, located in the crest
of a concealed anticline, as interpreted from past drilling and strongly supported by new controlled source
audiomagnetotellurics (CSAMT) survey lines. Favorable host rocks were intersected in the predicted position and the
best assay result was 1.65 meters (5.4 feet) @ 0.17 g/t gold from 491.7 meters in hole NSRD0001, associated with a
zone of strong brecciation and carbonate veining. All three holes intersected the Webb-Devils Gate contact confirming
the presence of an anticline. Holes NSRD0001 and NSRD0003 both intersected zones of collapse breccia,
decalcification and minor silicification, with anomalous arsenic, antimony and mercury (maximum values of 491 ppm,
38 ppm and 2 ppm respectively), and weakly anomalous gold. These results may represent a distal signature of Carlinstyle mineralization on this contact away from the drill holes. On October 19, 2018, S2 Resources notified Renaissance
of their decision to withdraw from the project. Renaissance maintains the claims and is continuing to market the
project.
Coeur
In May 2017, the Company entered into an exploration alliance agreement with Coeur Mining, Inc. (“Coeur”)
whereby Coeur funded US$250,000 per year in generative exploration expenses for a minimum of two years, during
which the parties identified and explored potential precious metals mining opportunities on lands in the State of
Nevada within defined areas of interest. Coeur advanced the Company the first US$250,000 in June 2017 and the
second US$250,000 in May 2018. Renaissance presented several target ideas to Coeur based on exploration work
undertaken from the proceeds of the advances and they decided to go forward with an earn-in agreement on the Cine
Mountain project. The exploration alliance terminated in May, 2019.
Cine Mountain
In November 2017, Renaissance entered into an exploration earn-in option agreement with Coeur whereby Coeur has
the option to acquire a 70% interest in the Cine Mountain project by spending US$3,000,000 over three years, with a
minimum annual work commitment of US$250,000. Upon signing the agreement, Coeur made a one-time payment
to the Company of US$50,000. In September 2018, Coeur terminated the agreement without drilling the project and
the targets remain untested. Renaissance is continuing to market this project.
Radius
In May 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with Radius Gold Inc. (“Radius”) giving them an option to
acquire the Spring Peak project.
Spring Peak Project
The Spring Peak project is located in Mineral County, Nevada and hosts a low-sulfidation epithermal gold system
with significant gold associated with an anomalous pathfinder geochemical signature on surface. The system is fully
preserved from surface sinters to basement, contains classic banded veins and quartz after calcite boiling textures.
Historic drilling from the 1980s and 1990s consisted of shallow, mostly vertical drill holes, but consistently
encountered anomalous gold mineralization, with assays from drill chips up to 1.9 g/t Au. Several targets exist on the
property to test for high-grade bonanza veins associated with boiling horizons.
Radius completed the necessary baseline studies in 2017 to satisfy the U.S. Forest Service permitting requirements
and were finalizing steps to getting the required bonding in place. Permitting delays prevented a planned drill program
in the summer of 2018 and in August 2018 Radius terminated the agreement.
Ginguro
In April 2018, the Company entered into an exploration earn-in agreement with Ginguro Jake Inc. (“Ginguro”), a
subsidiary of Ginguro Gold Pty. Ltd. on its Jake Creek project in Humboldt County, Nevada. The agreement grants
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Ginguro the option to acquire a 70% interest in the Jake Creek project by spending US$3,000,000 over a 5-year period
and making payments of US$15,000 (received) and US$10,000 (received) before the first anniversary of the
agreement. The Jake Creek project is a low-sulfidation epithermal gold target on the western margin of the Northern
Nevada Rift, in a very similar geologic environment to the Midas gold deposit.
Pursuant to an option agreement between Ivy Minerals Inc. (“IMI”) and Kinetic Gold (US) Inc., effective August 12,
2013 (as amended), the Company exercised its option to purchase 100% of the Jake Creek project from IMI for the
agreed upon consideration of 372,541 Renaissance Shares (issued April 19, 2018 at a value of $85,684).
Jake Creek Project
Ginguro completed a 1,000 sample soil geochemistry program utilizing ALS Minerals’ Ionic Leach™ method. The
results of this survey were integrated with geophysical and drill data to plan the next phase of drilling on the project.
In 2019-2020 Ginguro failed to meet its expenditure requirements on the project and the agreement was terminated.
Renaissance is actively seeking another funding partner for the project.
Hochschild
On January 17, 2019, Renaissance announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with Hochschild Mining
(US) Inc. (“Hochschild”), a subsidiary of Hochschild Mining plc, granting Hochschild the option to earn a 51%
interest in the Company’s Ferguson Mountain exploration project located in Nevada. To maintain the option,
Hochschild must pay the Company US$275,000 and spend US$3,000,000 (US$200,000 committed) over a five year
period. Once vested, Hochschild has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 19% interest by spending an
additional US$3,000,000 by December 11, 2027. Once vested, the parties will contribute capital for the joint venture’s
expenditures in accordance with their respective participating interests subject to straight-line dilution. If a party’s
participating interest in the joint venture is reduced to 10% or less then such party’s participating interest shall
automatically be converted to a 3% NSR royalty.
On January 17, 2019, Renaissance also announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with Hochschild,
granting Hochschild the option to earn a 51% interest in the Company’s Mars exploration project located in Nevada.
To maintain the option, Hochschild must pay the Company US$275,000 and spend US$5,000,000 (US$300,000
committed) over a five year period. Once vested, Hochschild has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 19%
interest by spending an additional US$5,000,000 by December 11, 2027.
Ferguson Mountain
The Ferguson Mountain project is located in Elko County, Nevada and hosts a Carlin-type target in Devonian and
younger carbonate host rocks. Renaissance is the operator of the project. The Renaissance technical team completed
geologic mapping and soil and rock chip sampling over the project area, which detected geochemical leakage up
structure from target horizons at depth. The targets are defined by the intersection of mapped high-angle mineralized
structures and several low-angle stratigraphic and structural horizons, including the top of the Devonian unconformity
and other horizons where structural and/or chemical ground preparation is likely to be well developed.
A seven hole, 1,415 meter reverse circulation drill program was completed in September 2019 testing several favorable
structural and stratigraphic targets associated with mapped, mineralized high-angle structures. No reportable intercepts
were encountered in the drilling, and Hochschild notified the Company of their decision to withdraw form the project
on November 4, 2019. Upon subsequent internal review of the drilling results, Renaissance was satisfied that the
targets were adequately tested and no further work is planned on the project.
Mars
The Mars project is located in Lincoln County, Nevada and hosts a Carlin-type target in lower Paleozoic sedimentary
rocks, characterized by anomalous gold in soils, and extensive jasperoid alteration with rock chip assays up to 3.7 g/t
Au. The gold system is exposed over a 4.5 kilometer strike length and occurs peripheral to a Mesozoic intrusive center.
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Historic work included three shallow drill programs which encountered multiple low-grade gold intercepts but tested
the system to a depth of only 250 feet.
Hochschild funded a soil geochemistry survey, additional geologic mapping and an induced polarization (IP) survey.
These new data were combined with existing gravity data to design several new, district scale structural and
stratigraphic targets on the project. A ten hole, 2,320 meter reverse circulation drill program was completed in early
October 2019, testing a variety of structural and stratigraphic targets. The drilling program tested multiple alteration
cells over approximately 3 km and intercepted silicified carbonates under clay-altered volcanics. Silicification was
associated with strong As (up to 2200 ppm), Sb (up to 681 ppm) and Hg (up to 18 ppm) but subeconomic levels of
gold. The best intercept in the program was 20 feet (6.1 meters) grading 0.39 g/t Au in hole RM19-09. Hochschild has
informed the Company of their termination of the earn-in agreement on the project, and Renaissance has decided that
the targets were adequately tested and plans no further work on the project.
Generative exploration
The Company continues to take an aggressive approach to its generative exploration efforts in anticipation of
increasing demand for exploration in an improving gold market. Between April, 2018 and April, 2020, Renaissance
generated seven new projects and it is the Company’s goal to keep actively pursuing new, quality discovery
opportunities to benefit both investors and industry partners.
•

The Ghost Ranch project is located in Elko County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open ground
beginning in April, 2018. The project is a shallow pediment target located SE of Nevada Gold Mines’ Long
Canyon Mine and along a northwest trend of gold occurrences. The target is indicated by gravity data, enzyme
leach soil geochemistry and a pH survey. The Company is currently seeking a funding partner.

•

The Manhattan Gap project is located in Lincoln County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open
ground in September, 2018 in the historically productive Pioche (Pb-Zn-Ag) District. The project targets
polymetallic carbonate replacement mineralization along the Cambro-Ordovician unconformity. Multiple
undrilled targets are indicated by surface sampling, geologic mapping, and a detailed gravity survey. The
Company is currently seeking a funding partner.

•

The McDO project is located in Malheur County, Oregon, and was acquired through staking on open ground
in January, 2019. The project was generated during reconnaissance exploration around the McDermitt
caldera, which is known to host epithermal precious metal mineralization as well as lithium and uranium.
The upper levels of the targeted system are represented by anomalous mercury on surface, and the project
targets low sulfidation epithermal gold-silver mineralization beneath the mercury occurrence associated with
caldera related structures. The Company is currently seeking a funding partner.

•

The Ted project is located in Mineral County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open ground
between June and October 2019. The project was generated as part of the Company’s ongoing generative
exploration program. Extensive surface clay alteration, anomalous mercury and gold values and shallow
historic drilling support the existence of a gold-bearing epithermal system, which has not been tested to
interpreted target depths. The Company is currently seeking funding partner.

•

The Baby Doe project is located in Esmeralda County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open
ground in July 2019. The project lies within a large, shallow level, steam heated alteration zone containing
historic mercury mines. Outcropping, drilled gold systems occur to the north and south of the project area
and the most intensely altered portion of the system has seen only limited historic drilling and no known
deeper tests of the system. The Company is currently seeking a funding partner.

•

The Polaris project is located in Lake County, Oregon and was acquired through staking on open ground in
August and September 2019. A large, structurally controlled, steam-heated alteration zone characterized by
the presence of alunite and kaolinite occurs on the east edge of a rhyolite dome complex and contains
pervasive mercury mineralization. These strong alteration features are often associated with the upper levels
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of epithermal gold systems, and represent a compelling, underexplored target. The Company is currently
seeking a funding partner.
•

The Elba project is located in Esmeralda County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open ground
in April 2020. The project area is located approximately 45 km west-northwest of Tonopah, Nevada and sits
within a large (8 square kilometers) alteration zone which is hosted by an arcuate rhyolite dome field. The
domes are altered to alunite+kaolinite, and much of the alteration is covered by a thin veneer of alluvium.
Alunite altered hydrothermal breccias and leached silica have been observed on the margins of the alluvial
cover, indicating the system is likely to extend under cover. This represents a significant target with minimal
historic drilling in a very favorable jurisdiction which closely resembles Renaissance’s Silicon project.

Arrangement Agreement
On June 9, 2020, Renaissance announced that Renaissance and Evrim entered into the Arrangement Agreement to
combine in a merger-of-equals in which Evrim will acquire all of the outstanding Renaissance Shares. It is expected
that following completion of the Arrangement, Evrim will be renamed Orogen Royalties Inc. and will focus on project
generation, as has been the history of both Evrim and Renaissance, but with a renewed focus on organic royalty
creation and royalty acquisition. Under the terms of the Arrangement Agreement, each Renaissance Share will be
exchanged for 1.2448 Consideration Shares, which will result in Renaissance Shareholders and Evrim Shareholders
each holding 50% of the issued and outstanding shares of Orogen. See “The Arrangement”, “The Arrangement
Agreement”, “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward- Looking Information” and “Risk Factors” in this Circular.
DIVIDENDS OR DISTRIBUTIONS
Renaissance has not declared, and does not intend to declare, cash dividends or distributions on its securities.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Renaissance’s audited annual consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 (the
“Renaissance Annual Financial Statements”), together with the notes thereto, are attached to this Appendix C as
Exhibit 1. Renaissance’s condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the three and nine months ended
March 31, 2020 (“Renaissance Interim Financial Statements”), together with the notes thereto, are attached to this
Appendix C as Exhibit 2.
See Exhibit 1 to this Appendix C for Renaissance’s MD&A for the year ended June 30, 2019 and for the year ended
June 30, 2018. See Exhibit 2 to this Appendix C for Renaissance’s MD&A for the three and nine months ended March
31, 2020. The attached MD&As should be read in conjunction with the Renaissance Annual Financial Statements and
the Renaissance Interim Financial Statements, together with the notes thereto, which are attached as Exhibits 1 and 2
to this Appendix C.
Additional Disclosure for Venture Issuers Without Significant Revenue
The financial statements included in Exhibits 1 and 2 to this Appendix C provide a breakdown of Renaissance’s
expenses and mineral property costs for the annual period ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the three and nine month
periods ended March 31, 2020.
OUTSTANDING SECURITY DATA
As at the record date, there were:
(a) 68,521,030 Renaissance Shares issued and outstanding;
(b) 6,445,000 Renaissance Options; and
(c) 18,719,548 Renaissance Warrants
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Description of the Renaissance Securities
Renaissance Shares
The authorized share capital of Renaissance consists of an unlimited number of Renaissance Shares and an unlimited
number of preferred shares, of which none are outstanding.
Each Renaissance Share carries one vote at all meetings of Renaissance Shareholders, to receive dividends if, as and
when declared by the directors and, subject to the rights of holders of any shares ranking in priority to or on a parity
with the Renaissance Shares, and to participate rateably in the liquidation, dissolution, winding-up or other distribution
of assets of Renaissance. The Renaissance Shares do not carry any pre-emptive, subscription, redemption or
conversion rights, nor do they contain any sinking or purchase fund provisions.
The preferred shares may be issued from time to time in one or more series, each series comprising the number of
shares, designation, privileges, restrictions and conditions which the Renaissance Board determines by resolution. On
the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Renaissance or on any other distribution of assets of Renaissance among
Renaissance Shareholders for the purpose of winding up its affairs, the preferred shares rank prior to the Renaissance
Shares in respect of repayment of capital and, if applicable, dividends.
Renaissance Options
A description of Renaissance Options contained under the heading “Option-based awards” in this Appendix C.
Renaissance Warrants
Each holder of a Renaissance Warrant is entitled to purchase from Renaissance such number of Renaissance Shares
represented by the Renaissance Warrant for the exercise price and until the expiry time stated on such Renaissance
Warrant.
Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan
Renaissance has a shareholder rights plan that was adopted by Renaissance Shareholders on September 30, 2011 to
ensure, to the extent possible, that all holders of Renaissance Shares and the Renaissance Board have adequate time
to consider and evaluate any take-over bid, the Renaissance Board has adequate time to identify, solicit, develop and
negotiate value-enhancing alternatives, as considered appropriate, to any take-over bid and the Renaissance
Shareholders are treated fairly in connection with any take-over bid.
Renaissance does not believe that the Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan is intended to apply to an Arrangement
and, to ensure that the provisions of the Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan have not been triggered by the
Arrangement Agreement with Evrim, the Renaissance Board has passed a resolution waiving the application of the
Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan in respect to the Arrangement pursuant to section 5.1(b) of the Renaissance
Shareholder Rights Plan.
It is a condition to the closing of the Arrangement that Renaissance shall do all things necessary under the terms of
the Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan to terminate such plan immediately prior to completion of the Arrangement.
If the Arrangement Resolution is passed by the requisite majorities of Renaissance Shareholders and Renaissance
Securityholders at the Meeting, Renaissance plans to amend the Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan so that the
expiry time of the Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan occurs immediately prior to the effective time of the
Arrangement. This amendment has been passed by the Renaissance Board, but pursuant to sections 5.4(b) of the
Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan, the amendment is subject to prior approval of Renaissance Shareholders.
For this reason the Arrangement Resolution includes the approval of Renaissance Securityholder to the termination
of the Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan, to be effected by way of amendment to the expiry time of the Renaissance
Shareholder Rights Plan.
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If the Arrangement Resolution is passed and the other conditions to closing are satisfied, it is anticipated that the
Renaissance Shareholder Rights Plan will be terminated and all rights issued thereunder shall be cancelled without
any payment in respect thereof immediately before the Effective Time.
CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION
There have not been any material changes in the share and loan capital of Renaissance, on a consolidated basis, since
March 31, 2020, the date of Renaissance’s most recently filed financial statements.
PRIOR SALES
Prior Sales
The table below sets forth the details of the price at which securities have been issued or are to be issued by
Renaissance, the number of securities issued at that price and the date on which the securities were issued for the 12month period before the date of this Circular.
Date of Issue

Type of Security

Number of
Securities

Issue or Exercise
Price per
Security ($)
$0.285

July 17, 2019

Renaissance Options

2,770,000

February 6, 2020

Renaissance Shares

60,000

$0.258

March 16, 2020

Renaissance Options

200,000

$0.185

Reason for Issue

Incentive
Renaissance Options
Renaissance Option
exercise
Incentive
Renaissance Options

Trading Price and Volume
The Renaissance Shares are listed for trading on the TSXV under the symbol “REN”. The following table sets forth,
for the 12-month period before the date of this Circular, details of the closing price ranges and total trading volume,
on a monthly basis, of the Renaissance Shares traded through the facilities of the TSXV:
Period
July 1 – July 8, 2020
June 2020
May 2020
April 2020
March 2020
February 2020
January 2020
December 2019
November 2019
October 2019
September 2019
August 2019
July 2019

High
($)
0.58
0.42
0.42
0.32
0.295
0.37
0.34
0.33
0.355
0.34
0.385
0.41
0.325

Low
($)
0.495
0.35
0.285
0.20
0.185
0.265
0.305
0.30
0.255
0.26
0.295
0.29
0.23

Volume
1,104,945
5,864,065
992,254
1,001,077
1,670,183
1,807,148
2,408,606
768,269
532,929
870,388
489,216
1,231,277
997,776

On June 10, 2020, the last trading day before the date of the announcement of the Arrangement, the closing price of
the Renaissance Shares on the TSXV was $0.41 per Renaissance Share. On July 8, 2020, the date of this Circular, the
closing price of the Renaissance Shares on the TSXV was $0.58 per Renaissance Share.
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ESCROWED SECURITIES
To Renaissance’s knowledge there are no securities of Renaissance held in escrow.
PRINCIPAL SECURITYHOLDERS
To the knowledge of Renaissance’s directors and executive officers, as of the date of this Circular, the following
persons beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, Renaissance Securities carrying
more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Renaissance Securities of that class.
No. of Renaissance Securities
Owned, Controlled or Directed
(non- diluted)
6,887,014 Renaissance Shares
6,800,000 Renaissance Shares
5,716,216 Renaissance Warrants

Name

John Tognetti
Altius Resources Inc.

Percentage of Outstanding
Renaissance Securities (nondiluted)
10.05%
9.92% of Renaissance Shares
30.54% of Renaissance Warrants

Notes:
1) Altius Resources Inc. beneficially owns, or exercises control or direction over 13.36% of Renaissance
Securities on a fully-diluted basis
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Name, Occupation and Security Holding
The following table sets out the names of Renaissance’s directors and executive officers, their municipalities of
residence, the positions and offices which they presently hold with Renaissance, and their respective principal
occupations as at the date of the Circular. The term of office of each director expires at the next annual meeting of the
Renaissance Shareholders.
Name and
State/Province and
Country of
Residence

Position with
Company

Principal Occupation

Ronald L. Parratt
Nevada, USA

Director and
Executive
Chairman

Executive Chairman since May 29, 2017 and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company from
July 25, 2016 to November 14, 2017.

Robert P. Felder
Nevada, USA

Director,
President and
Chief
Executive
Officer

President of the Company since May 29,
2017 and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since November 14, 2017. Founder
and President of Kinetic Gold Corp. from
June 8, 2011 to May 29, 2017.

Richard L. Bedell,
Jr.
Nevada, USA

Director

Founder and Vice President of AuEx
Ventures, Inc., President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company from March 31, 2011
until July 25, 2016 and Executive Vice
President of the Company from July 25, 2016
until June 30, 2018 and Technical.
Advisor from July 1, 2018.

Director or
Officer
since

May 25,
2010

May 29,
2017

May 25,
2010

Voting Securities
Beneficially
Owned or
Controlled (3)
1,586,706
Renaissance
Shares
589,000
Renaissance
Options
870,865
Renaissance
Shares
670,000
Renaissance
Options
2,923,234
Renaissance
Shares
512,900
Renaissance
Options

C-15

Name and
State/Province and
Country of
Residence

Position with
Company

Timothy M. Janke
Director

(2)

Nevada, USA

Lee A. Graber (1) (2)
California, USA

Director

Principal Occupation

Mining industry consultant, a Director of U.S.
Gold Corp. a publicly trading mining
company, and from August 2014 to April 3,
2019 the Chief Operating Officer of Pershing
Gold Corporation.

Mining industry and private equity
consultant. From December 2006 to April
2018 Partner Pacific Road Capital
Management Pty Limited and a director of
Pacific Road Capital.

Dieter A. Krewedl
Director

(1) (2)

Mining industry consultant

California, USA

Doris Meyer
British Columbia,
Canada

September
17, 2010

September
17, 2010

135,677
Renaissance
Shares
419,800
Renaissance
Options
336,573
Renaissance
Shares
419,800
Renaissance
Options
310,879
Renaissance
Shares
394,800
Renaissance
Options

Mining industry consultant

March 17,
2020

200,000
Renaissance
Options

Chief Financial
Officer

President and a director of Golden Oak
Corporate Services Ltd. a provider of
corporate compliance and financial reporting
services.

September
13, 2013

290,000(4)
Renaissance
Options

Corporate
Secretary

Founder and a director of Golden Oak
Corporate Services Ltd. a provider of
corporate compliance and financial reporting
services.

Utah, USA
Dan O’Brien
British Columbia,
Canada

August
8, 2011

Voting Securities
Beneficially
Owned or
Controlled (3)

Director

Robert W. Schafer
(1) (2)

Director or
Officer
since

May 25,
2010

83,422
Renaissance
Shares
287,900(4)
Renaissance
Options

Notes:
(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

Member of the Audit Committee, Lee Graber (Chair), Dieter A. Krewedl and Robert W. Schafer
Member of the Compensation Committee, Dieter A. Krewedl (Chair), Lee Graber, Robert W. Schafer and Timothy M. Janke
Information as to ownership of shares has been taken from insider reports or other disclosure documents electronically filed with
regulators by the entity and publicly available through the Internet at the web site for the Canadian System for Disclosure by Insiders
(SEDI) at www.sedi.ca or the Canadian System for Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR) at www.sedar.com.
Includes 170,000 Renaissance Options held by Golden Oak Corporate Services Ltd., a corporate secretarial and financial reporting
services company controlled by Dan O’Brien and Doris Meyer.

As at the date of this Circular, the directors and officers of Renaissance, as a group, beneficially own, directly or
indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, 6,247,356 Renaissance Shares representing approximately 9.12% of
the issued and outstanding Renaissance Shares. The number of Renaissance Shares beneficially owned, directly or
indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised by each director and officer as at the date of this Circular is
based on information furnished by Renaissance’s transfer agent and by the directors and officers themselves.
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Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions
No director or executive officer of Renaissance (or personal holding company) is, as at the date of this Circular, or
was within 10 years before the date of this Circular, a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any
company (including Renaissance) that:
(a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order denying the relevant company access to any
exemptions under securities legislation that was in effect for more than 30 consecutive days while the director
or executive officer was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer,
or
(b) was subject to a cease trade or similar order or an order denying the relevant company access to any
exemptions under securities legislation that was in effect for more than 30 consecutive days that was issued
after the director or executive officer ceased to be a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer
and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in the capacity as director, chief
executive officer or chief financial officer.
No director or executive officer of Renaissance (or personal holding company), or, to the knowledge of Renaissance’s
management, a Renaissance Shareholder holding a sufficient number of Renaissance Shares to affect materially the
control of Renaissance:
(a) is, as at the date of this Circular, or has been within the 10 years before the date of this Circular, a director or
executive officer of any company (including Renaissance) that, while that person was acting in that capacity,
or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any
legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement
or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or
(b) has, within the 10 years before the date of this Circular, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any
legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings,
arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold
the assets of the director, executive officer or shareholder.
No director or executive officer of Renaissance (or personal holding company), or, to the knowledge of Renaissance’s
management, a Renaissance Shareholder holding a sufficient number of Renaissance Shares to affect materially the
control of Renaissance, has been subject to:
(a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory
authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority, or
(b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered
important to a reasonable investor in making an investment decision.
Conflicts of Interest
There are no existing or potential material conflicts of interest between Renaissance or a subsidiary of Renaissance
and a director or officer of Renaissance or of a subsidiary of Renaissance.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation Excluding Compensation Securities
The following information is provided as required under Form 51-102F6V – Statement of Executive Compensation –
Venture Issuers. All amounts in this form are expressed in Canadian dollars.
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Named Executive Officers
“Named Executive Officers” and “NEOs” means each of the following individuals:
(a)

each individual who, in respect of the company, during any part of the most recently completed
financial year, served as chief executive officer, including an individual performing function similar to
a chief executive officer;

(b)

each individual who, in respect of the company, during any part of the most recently completed
financial year, served as chief financial officer, including an individual performing function similar to
a chief financial officer;

(c)

in respect of the company and its subsidiaries, the most highly compensated executive officer other
than the individuals identified in paragraphs (a) and (b) at the end of the most recently completed
financial year whose total compensation was more than $150,000, as determined in accordance with
subsection 1.3(5), for that financial year;

(d)

each individual who would be a named executive officer under paragraph (c) but for the fact that the
individual was not an executive officer of the company, and was not acting in a similar capacity, at the
end of that financial year.

During the most recent fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Company had three NEOs.

Name
and
position

Robert P.
Felder,
President,
Chief
Executive
Officer and
Director
Golden
Oak
Corporate
Services
Ltd. (2),
Chief
Financial
Officer and
Corporate
Secretary
Ronald L.
Parratt,
Executive
Chairman
and
Director

Table of compensation excluding Renaissance Options and compensation securities
Year
Salary (1),
Bonus
Committee
Value of
Value of all
Total
consulting
($)
or meeting
perquisites
other
compensation
fee,
fees
($)
compensation
($)
retainer or
($)
($)
commission
($)
2019
2018

181,088
171,554

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

181,088
171,554

2019
2018

90,000
90,000

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

90,000
90,000

2019
2018

15,885
37,897

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

15,885
37,897
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Name
and
position

Table of compensation excluding Renaissance Options and compensation securities
Year
Salary (1),
Bonus
Committee
Value of
Value of all
Total
consulting
($)
or meeting
perquisites
other
compensation
fee,
fees
($)
compensation
($)
retainer or
($)
($)
commission
($)

Richard L.
Bedell,
Technical
Advisor
and
Director

2019
2018

15,885
76,201

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

15,885
76,201

Lee A.
Graber,
Director

2019
2018

3,971
3,810

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

3,971
3,810

Dieter A.
Krewedl,
Director

2019
2018

3,971
3,810

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

3,971
3,810

Robert G.
Boaz,(3)
Director

2019
2018

3,971
3,810

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

3,971
3,810

Timothy
M. Janke,
Director

2019
2018

3,971
3,810

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

3,971
3,810

Notes:
(1)

(2)
(3)

Where necessary, salary or all other compensation, paid or payable in United States (“US”) dollars, was converted from US to Canadian
dollars using the exchange rate of 1.3237417 in 2019 and 1.2700167 in 2018, that prevailed during the period during which the NEOs
were paid.
Consulting fees are paid to Golden Oak Corporate Services Ltd., which provides Doris Meyer’s and Dan O’Brien’s services to the
Company as Corporate Secretary and Chief Financial Officer respectively.
Mr. Boaz resigned from the Renaissance Board in March 2020.

External Management Companies
None of the NEOs or directors of the Company have been retained or employed by an external management company
which has entered into an understanding, arrangement or agreement with the Company to provide management
services to the Company, directly or indirectly.
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Renaissance Options and Other Compensation Securities
Compensation Securities
Name and
position

Ronald
L.
Parratt, Executive
Chairman and
Director
Robert P. Felder,
President, Chief
Executive Officer
and Director
Richard
L.
Bedell, Technical
Advisor
and
Director
Dan
O’Brien,
Chief Financial
Officer
Doris
Meyer,
Corporate
Secretary
Lee A. Graber,
Director
Dieter A.
Krewedl,
Director
Robert G.
Boaz,(4) Director
Timothy M.
Janke, Director

Type of
compensatio
n security

Number of
compensation
securities,
number of
underlying
securities, and
percentage of
class

Date of
issue or
grant

Issue,
conversio
n or
exercise
price ($)

Closing
price of
security
or
underlyi
ng on
date of
grant ($)

Closing
price of
security
or
underlyin
g security
at year
end ($)

Renaissance
Options

160,000 (1)
0.23% (2) (3)

Renaissance
Options

Expiry
date

Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023

200,000 (1)
0.29% (2) (3)

Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023

Renaissance
Options

140,000 (1)
0.20% (2) (3)

Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023

Renaissance
Options

60,000 (1)
0.09% (2) (3)

Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023

Renaissance
Options

60,000 (1)
0.09% (2) (3)

Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023

Renaissance
Options

120,000 (1)
0.18% (2) (3)

Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023

Renaissance
Options

120,000 (1)
0.18% (2) (3)

Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023

Renaissance
Options
Renaissance
Options

120,000 (1)
0.18% (2) (3)
120,000 (1)
0.18% (2) (3)

Aug 14,
2018
Aug 14,
2018

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

$0.205

$0.205

$0.235

Aug 14,
2023
Aug 14,
2023

Notes:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Each Renaissance Option entitles the holder to purchase one common share of the Company.
This figure represents the number of underlying Renaissance Shares issuable upon exercise of the stock option as a percentage of the
total issued and outstanding Renaissance Shares as at June 30, 2019, being 68,461,030 Renaissance Shares.
This Renaissance Option was fully vested on the date of grant.
Mr. Boaz resigned from the Renaissance Board in March 2020.

No compensation securities were re-priced, cancelled and replaced, extended or otherwise materially modified during
the Company’s most recently completed financial year ended June 30, 2019.
No compensation securities were exercised by any NEO or director of the Company during the most recently
completed financial year ended June 30, 2019.
As of June 30, 2019, the total compensation securities held by NEO’s and directors of the Company were as follows:
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Name and position

Ronald L. Parratt,
Executive Chairman
and Director
Robert P. Felder,
President, Chief
Executive Officer
and Director
Richard L. Bedell,
Technical Advisor
and Director
Dan O’Brien, Chief
Financial Officer
Doris Meyer,
Corporate Secretary
Lee A. Graber,
Director
Dieter A. Krewedl,
Director
Robert G. Boaz,
Director
Timothy M. Janke,
Director

Type of compensation
security

Total number of
compensation securities

Total number of Renaissance
Shares underlying compensation
securities

Renaissance Options

369,000

369,000

Renaissance Options

360,000

360,000

Renaissance Options

312,900

312,900

Renaissance Options

120,000

120,000

Renaissance Options

117,900

117,900

Renaissance Options

249,800

249,800

Renaissance Options

224,800

224,800

Renaissance Options

249,800

249,800

Renaissance Options

249,800

249,800

Stock option plans and other incentive plans
The Company has in place the Renaissance Stock Option Plan pursuant to which the Company may grant incentive
Renaissance Option to directors, officers, employees, and consultants of the Company or any of its affiliates (“Eligible
Persons”). In accordance with the rules and policies of the TSXV, Renaissance Shareholders must each year approve
the Renaissance Stock Option Plan.
The Company does not have any other compensation security plans.
Employment, consulting and management agreements
The Company has the following arrangements in respect of remuneration received or that may be received by the
NEOs in the Company’s most recently completed fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 in respect of compensating such
officers in the event of termination of employment (as a result of resignation, retirement, change of control, etc.) or a
change in responsibilities following a change of control.
Mr. Ronald L. Parratt entered into an employment agreement with the Company on July 25, 2016 replacing a contract
entered into on November 2, 2010. Under the 2016 agreement, Mr. Parratt is employed for an indefinite period of time
unless he is terminated in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Mr. Parratt served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company from inception until March 31, 2011, when he was appointed Executive Chairman.
On July 25, 2016, Mr. Parratt was re-appointed to the position of President and Chief Executive Officer and the office
of Executive Chairman was vacant. On May 29, 2017 Mr. Parratt was appointed Executive Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. On November 14, 2017 Mr. Parratt was appointed Executive Chairman. From July 25, 2016 until
November 14, 2017 Mr. Parratt was paid an annual salary of US$60,000 and from November 14, 2017 Mr. Parratt is
paid an annual salary of US$12,000.
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Mr. Richard L. Bedell entered into an employment agreement with the Company on July 25, 2016 replacing a contract
entered into on November 2, 2010. Under the 2016 agreement, Mr. Bedell is employed for an indefinite period of time
unless he is terminated in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Mr. Bedell served first, as Executive Vice
President from the Company’s inception until March 31, 2011, when he was appointed President and Chief Executive
Officer until July 25, 2016 when he was re-appointed to the position of Executive Vice President until June 30, 2018.
The agreement contains provisions in respect of Mr. Bedell’s annual base salary, which from July 1, 2013 to June 30,
2018 was US$60,000 and benefits and from July 1, 2018 is US$12,000 a year. Mr. Bedell is no longer an executive
officer of the Company and is now a Technical Advisor.
Mr. Robert P. Felder entered into an employment agreement with the Company on May 29, 2017 to serves as President
of the Company at an annual salary of US$120,000 and benefits. On November 14, 2017, Mr. Felder was appointed
as President and Chief Executive Officer and his annual salary is now US$144,000 and benefits.
The employment agreements described above for each of Messrs. Parratt, Bedell and Felder provide that any
incremental increases in base salary may be determined by the Renaissance Board. Under each agreement, the
employee is entitled to paid vacation time each year, reimbursement for the use of his personal vehicle for valid
company business and to participate in any benefit plans provided by the Company to its employees.
Termination and Change of Control Benefits
All three employment agreements described above may be terminated by the employee on giving the Company three
months’ written notice, provided that the Company may waive such notice, in which case the employee’s employment
will terminate upon the Company giving such waiver. The agreements can be terminated by the Company for cause
without notice and without cause on payment of US$36,000 for each of Mr. Parratt and Mr. Bedell and US$144,000
for Mr. Felder. On a defined change of control event and if the employee terminates his employment within 90 days
or if his employment is terminated by the Company within one year, the employee would be paid US$72,000 as
severance pay for each of Mr. Parratt and Mr. Bedell and US$144,000 for Mr. Felder. The Arrangement does not
constitute a change of control.
The Company acknowledges in the agreements that, each employee shall not acquire any mineral exploration interest
in any property other than for the Company, Mr. Parratt and Mr. Bedell may continue to hold the mineral exploration
interests set forth in each of their agreements. Mr. Parratt’s mineral interests include a 0.5% net smelter return royalty
(“NSR”) held by him in the Company’s Buffalo Canyon property, which is held by Mr. Parratt through Parratt
Geological Services, LLC. Mr. Bedell’s mineral interests include a 0.5% NSR held by him in the Company’s Buffalo
Canyon property through GeoCorp, a Nevada Company.
Golden Oak Corporate Services Ltd., Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary
On November 2, 2010, the Company entered into a consulting agreement (“Golden Oak Agreement”) with Golden
Oak Corporate Services Ltd. (“Golden Oak”), a company in which Dan O’Brien and Doris Meyer are directors.
Golden Oak provides their services as the Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary of the Company and the
provision as an independent contractor by Golden Oak to the Company of accounting, financial, corporate and
regulatory compliance services in consideration of an annual service fee plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of
reasonable office costs and expenses and all pre-approved travel and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Golden Oak
in furtherance of or in connection with the business of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Golden Oak Agreement
was for an initial term of one year and, unless terminated in accordance with its terms, is automatically renewed
annually. The annual fee of $90,000 was last set on July 1, 2017. The Golden Oak Agreement may be terminated by
the Company for cause without notice at any time upon ten days’ written notice of termination specifying the date of
such termination, in which event the Company shall pay to Golden Oak a lump sum of $90,000 and, upon such
payment and reimbursement of any other amounts then due and owing, Golden Oak shall have no further recourse
from the Company. On a defined change of control event and if Golden Oak terminates its services within 90 days
following the event, or if Golden Oak’s services are terminated by the Company without cause, Golden Oak will be
entitled to be paid by the Company a lump sum of $90,000. The Golden Oak Agreement may be terminated by Golden
Oak upon 60 days’ written notice to the Company provided that the Company may waive such notice, in which case
Golden Oak’s services will terminate upon the Company giving such waiver. During the 60 day notice period, Golden
Oak will agree to perform their obligations to the Company if the Company requests such performance and will
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perform such obligations in the manner directed by the Company. The Golden Oak Agreement contains non-disclosure
and non-solicitation provisions typical of an agreement of its nature.
Under the terms of the employment agreements detailed above, in the event of termination other than for cause, then
Messrs. Parratt, Bedell and Felder would be entitled to the following compensation and Golden Oak would be entitled
to the following fees:

Name

Position

Termination value
without cause

Termination
value on change
of control

Ronald L. Parratt

Executive Chairman

$47,113

$94,226

Richard L. Bedell

Technical Advisor

$47,113

$94,226

Robert P. Felder

President and Chief Executive Officer

$188,453

$188,453

Golden Oak

Chief Financial Officer, Corporate
$90,000
$90,000
Secretary
Note: All Renaissance Options immediately vest on a change of control. Renaissance Options that have vested as of
the date of termination remain exercisable for 90 days following termination. The value of unexercised “in-the-money
options” at June 30, 2019 are detailed under “Outstanding option-based awards” above. The US dollar termination
values have been translated to Canadian dollar equivalents at an exchange rate of 1.3087 on June 30, 2019. The
Arrangement does not constitute a change of control, and as such, change of control payments are not payable.
Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company procures a comprehensive directors’ and officers’ liability insurance program. Subject to policy
conditions, this program is intended to cover each individual’s liability arising from their duties as a director or officer
of the Company provided, they acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Company.
Renaissance may, prior to the Effective Time, purchase prepaid non-cancellable run-off directors’ and officers’
liability insurance providing coverage for a period of six years from the Effective Date with respect to claims arising
from or related to facts or events which occur on or prior to the Effective Date.
Compensation of Non-Executive Directors
In fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 the non-executive directors were paid a flat rate of US$3,000 per annum. On March
1, 2020 this flat rate was increased to US$8,000 per annum.
Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenditures incurred in performing their duties as directors.
The Company may, from time to time, grant Renaissance Options to purchase Renaissance Shares to the directors.
Oversight and description of director and NEO compensation
Compensation Philosophy
Our overall compensation philosophy is to provide a compensation package that enables us to attract, retain and
motivate executive officers and employees to achieve our short-term and long-term business goals. Consistent with
this philosophy, the following goals provide a framework for our executive officer’s compensation program:
•

Pay competitively to attract, retain, and motivate executive officers;

•

Relate total compensation for each executive officer to overall company performance;

•

Aggregate the elements of total compensation to reflect competitive market requirements and to address
strategic business needs;
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•

Expose a portion of each executive officer’s compensation to risk, the degree of which will positively
correlate to the level of the named executive officer’s responsibility and performance; and

•

Align the interests of our named executive officers with those of the Renaissance Shareholders.

The Company’s directors or NEO’s are not permitted to purchase financial instruments, including, for greater
certainty, prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars, or units of exchange funds that are designed to
hedge or offset a decrease in market value of equity securities granted as compensation or held, directly or indirectly,
by the NEO or director.
Oversight of Executive Compensation Program
The Compensation Committee is responsible for establishing a compensation policy and administering the
compensation programs of our executive officers. In fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 the members of the Compensation
Committee were Dieter A. Krewedl (Chair), Robert Boaz, Lee Graber and Tim Janke, each an independent director
under the rules of the TSXV and applicable securities legislation. On March 17, 2020 Robert Boaz resigned as a
director and Robert Schafer was appointed in his place to the Compensation Committee.
The amount of compensation paid by the Company to each of its executive officers and the terms of those persons’
employment is determined solely by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee considers the
implications of risks associated with the Company’s compensation policies and practices and considers the
compensation paid by the Company to mitigate those policies and practices that could encourage a named executive
officer or any employee of the Company to take inappropriate or excessive risks in order to enhance any portion of
their compensation package.
The Compensation Committee also recommends the amount of compensation paid by the Company to its independent
directors.
Compensation Program Overview
The compensation package is comprised of:
•

base salary or fees;

•

equity based compensation in the form of Renaissance Options to purchase Renaissance Shares pursuant
to the Renaissance Stock Option Plan.

In making determinations of salary levels for the executive officers, the Compensation Committee considers the equity
compensation provided under the Renaissance Stock Option Plan to provide a compensation package that encourages
and motivates performance.
Base Salary
The base salary currently paid to our executive officers is commensurate with the nature of our business and their
individual experience, duties and scope of responsibilities.
The Company intends for salary levels to be consistent with competitive practices of comparable institutions and each
executive’s level of responsibility. The Compensation Committee is likely to determine the level of any salary (or
salary increase) after reviewing the qualifications, experience, and performance of the particular executive officer and
the nature of our business, the complexity of its activities, and the importance of the executive’s contribution to the
success of the business through discussion only, with no formal objectives (performance or otherwise) or criteria.
The Compensation Committee may also take into consideration salaries paid to others in similar positions in the
Company’s industry based on the experience of the Compensation Committee members and review of publicly
available information. The discussion of the information and factors considered and given weight by the Compensation
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Committee is not intended to be exhaustive, but it is believed to include all material factors considered by the
Compensation Committee. In reaching the determination to approve and recommend the current base salaries of the
Company’s executive officers, the Compensation Committee did not assign any relative or specific weight to the
factors which were considered, and the members may have given a different weight to each factor. The Compensation
Committee will review and adjust the base salaries of our executive officers when deemed appropriate.
Option-based awards
Executive officers of the Company, as well as directors, employees and consultants (together the “Optionees”), are
eligible to participate in the Renaissance Stock Option Plan. Renaissance Option grants are an important part of the
Company’s incentive strategy permitting Optionees to share in any appreciation of the market value of the Company’s
shares over a stated period of time, and it is intended to reinforce commitment to long-term growth and shareholder
value. Renaissance Options reward overall corporate performance, as measured through the price of the Company’s
shares, and enables participants to acquire and maintain an ownership position in the Company.
The Compensation Committee recommends the individual Renaissance Options to the Renaissance Board and the size
of the grants are dependent on, among other things, each individual’s level of responsibility, authority and importance
to the Company and the degree to which such long-term contribution to the Company will be responsible for its longterm success. The Compensation Committee and the Renaissance Board also evaluate the number of Renaissance
Option an individual has been granted, the exercise price of the Renaissance Option and the term remaining on those
Renaissance Option when considering further grants. Renaissance Option are usually priced at the closing trading
price of the Renaissance Shares on the business day immediately preceding the date of grant and the current policy of
the Renaissance Board is that Renaissance Options expire five years from the date of grant.
The Company normally grants Renaissance Option to an executive officer when they first join the Company based on
their level of responsibility. Additional grants may be made periodically to ensure that the number of Renaissance
Option granted to any particular officer is commensurate with the officer’s ongoing level of responsibility within the
Company.
Benefits and Perquisites
The Company’s named executive officers do not receive perquisites or benefits that are not generally available to all
employees of the Company. All the Company’s employees receive reimbursement for the use of personal vehicles for
valid company business. The Company makes contributions equal to 4% of the salaries of participating U.S. resident
employees on their behalf to a 401K defined contribution retirement plan available to all U.S. resident employees of
the Company.
Pension Plan Benefits
The Company has no formal pension, retirement or other long-term incentive compensation plan in place for its
directors, officers or employees.
The following information is as of June 30, 2019, the Company’s most recently completed financial year.

Plan Category

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights
(a)

Equity
compensation plans
approved by
securityholders

4,065,000

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights
(b)

$0.33

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance under
equity compensation plans (excluding
securities reflected in column (a))
(c)

2,781,103
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Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance under
equity compensation plans (excluding
securities reflected in column (a))

Equity
compensation plans
not approved by
securityholders

Nil

Nil

Nil

Total

4,065,000

$0.33

2,781,103

Plan Category

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
No director or executive officer of Renaissance, and no associate of any such director or executive officer:
(a)
is, or at any time since the beginning of Renaissance’s most recently completed financial year has been,
indebted to Renaissance or any of its subsidiaries; or
(b)
is or has been indebted to another entity whose indebtedness to such other entity is, or at any time since the
beginning of the most recently completed financial year has been, the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter
of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by Renaissance or any of its subsidiaries.
AUDIT COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors
The Renaissance Board adopted a Charter mandating its responsibilities for the stewardship of the business and for
acting in the best interests of the Company and the Renaissance Shareholders. Pursuant to the Charter, the Renaissance
Board discharges its responsibilities directly and through its Committees of the Renaissance Board, currently
consisting of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee. The Renaissance Board assigns to these
Committees the general responsibility for developing the Company’s approach to: (i) financial reporting and internal
controls; (ii) issues relating to compensation of directors, officers and employees; and (iii) corporate governance issues
and matters relating to nomination of directors.
The Renaissance Board facilitates its exercise of independent supervision over management by ensuring that the
Renaissance Board is composed of at least half of independent directors. The Renaissance Board is composed of seven
directors, four of whom are considered to be independent. Messrs. Graber, Janke, Schafer, and Dr. Krewedl are
considered independent. Messrs. Parratt, Bedell and Felder are not. In determining whether a director is independent,
the Renaissance Board chiefly considers whether the director has a relationship which could or could be perceived to
interfere with the director’s ability to objectively assess the performance of management. On this basis, Mr. Parratt,
Mr. Bedell and Mr. Felder because of holding executive offices, now or in the past three years, are not considered to
be independent directors.
The independent directors do not hold regularly scheduled meetings at which non-independent directors and members
of management are not in attendance. However, the independent directors regularly hold in-camera sessions exclusive
of non-independent directors and members of management, which process facilitates open and candid discussion
amongst the independent directors.
The Renaissance Board is responsible for approving long-term strategic plans and annual operating plans and budgets
recommended by management. Renaissance Board consideration and approval is also required for material contracts
and business transactions, and all debt and equity financing transactions.
The Renaissance Board delegates to management responsibility for meeting defined corporate objectives,
implementing approved strategic and operating plans, carrying on the Company’s business in the ordinary course,
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managing the Company’s cash flow, evaluating new business opportunities, recruiting staff and complying with
applicable regulatory requirements. The Renaissance Board also looks to management to furnish recommendations
respecting corporate objectives, long-term strategic plans and annual operating plans.
Directorships
Certain of the directors of the Company are also directors of other reporting issuers (or equivalent) in a jurisdiction or
a foreign jurisdiction as follows:
Name of director

Other reporting issuer (or equivalent in a foreign jurisdiction)

Richard L. Bedell

•

Magna Terra Minerals Inc.

Timothy M. Janke

•

US Gold Corp.

Robert Schafer

•
•
•

Amur Minerals Corporation
Volcanic Gold Mines Inc.
Electric Royalties Ltd.

Position Descriptions
The Renaissance Board has not adopted written position descriptions for the Chief Executive Officer, and the Chairs
of each of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee delineating the roles and responsibilities inherent
to the position being fulfilled. Generally, the Chairperson of each Renaissance Board Committee is charged with
fulfilling the mandate as contained in each Committee charter and is given the specific written authority to execute
the business of the Committee as outlined and approved by the Renaissance Board. Each Committee Chairperson is
charged with the responsibility of reviewing and, if necessary, changing and adapting the respective Committee charter
to respond to developing issues and presenting the changed charter to the Renaissance Board for approval. The
Committee Chairperson organizes the meetings of the Committee, develops and circulates agendas, conducts the
meetings, records minutes, and follows-up on outstanding Committee business. The Committee Chairperson reports
to the full Renaissance Board on each meeting of the Committee and makes recommendations for specific actions and
decisions.
The Chief Executive Officer’s primary role is to manage the Company in an effective, efficient and forward-looking
way and to fulfil the priorities, goals and objectives determined by the Renaissance Board in the context of the
Company’s strategic plans, budgets and responsibilities specifically detailed with a view to increasing shareholder
value.
Orientation and Continuing Education
The Company has not yet developed an official orientation or training program for new directors, however, any new
directors will be provided the opportunity to become familiar with the Company by meeting with the other directors
and with officers and employees. Orientation activities will be tailored to the particular needs and experience of each
director and the overall needs of the Renaissance Board. Potential candidates will be provided with publicly available
materials in order to acquaint themselves with the Company and its directors including recent press releases, financial
reports and other relevant materials. Upon being appointed, a new director will be provided with a Board of Directors’
Manual with additional information including articles, in corporate documents, committee charters, certain
confidential insider information and other information in order to be fully informed.
The Renaissance Board encourages each director to stay current on developing corporate governance requirements
through continuous improvement and education. Directors are routinely provided information and publications on
developing regulatory issues.
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Ethical Business Conduct
Code of Ethics and Conduct
The Renaissance Board has adopted a Code of Business Ethics and Conduct (the “Code”) applicable to all of its
directors, officers and employees, including the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and other persons
performing financial reporting functions. The Code has been developed to communicate to directors, officers and
employees’ standards for business conduct in the use of the company time, resources and assets, and to identify and
clarify proper conduct in areas of potential conflict of interest. Each director, officer and employee is provided a copy
of the Code and asked to sign an acknowledgement that the standards and principles of the Code will be maintained
at all times on the Company business. The Code is designed to deter wrongdoing and promote (a) honest and ethical
conduct; (b) compliance with laws, rules and regulations; (c) prompt internal reporting of Code violations; and (d)
accountability for adherence to the Code. Violations from standards established in the Code; and specifically,
“Whistleblower” situations, are reported to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and can be reported anonymously.
The Chairperson of the Audit Committee would report to the Renaissance Board any reported violations at least
quarterly, or more frequently depending on the specifics of the reported violation. To date, there have been no reported
violations. The Company intends to timely disclose on its web site amendments to, or waivers from, certain provision
of the Code that apply to the Company’s directors or executive officers.
The Code of Business Ethics and Conduct is available on the Company web site at www.RenGold.com and is posted
on its profile at www.sedar.com.
Conflict of Interest Policy
When proposed transactions or agreements in which directors or officers may have an interest, material or not, are
presented to the Renaissance Board, such interest is disclosed and the persons who have such an interest are not
allowed to vote on the proposal.
Timely Disclosure, Confidentiality and Insider Trading Policy
The Company has adopted a Timely Disclosure, Confidentiality and Insider Trading Policy to assist directors, officers,
employees and contractors in meeting their obligations under applicable securities laws, rules and regulations and the
rules and regulations of the stock exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed. The policy prohibits trading
on material, non-public information and describes certain blackout periods and insider reporting obligations under
applicable law.
Whistleblower Policy
The Company has adopted a whistleblower policy that governs the process through which its officers, employees and
others, either directly or anonymously, can notify the Chairman of the Audit Committee or counsel to the Company,
of concerns relating to the Company’s accounting, internal controls or auditing matters.
Audit Committee
The Renaissance Board has appointed an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is ultimately responsible for the
policies and practices relating to integrity of financial and regulatory reporting, as well as internal controls to achieve
the objectives of safeguarding of corporate assets; reliability of information; and compliance with policies and laws.
Audit Committee Charter
The Audit Committee is ultimately responsible for the policies and practices relating to integrity of financial and
regulatory reporting, as well as internal controls to achieve the objectives of safeguarding of corporate assets;
reliability of information; and compliance with policies and laws. The Renaissance Board of Directors of the Company
adopted an Audit Committee Charter mandating the role of the Audit Committee in supporting the Renaissance Board
of Directors in meeting its responsibilities to the Renaissance Shareholders on September 17, 2010.
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The Audit Committee Charter is available on the Company web site at www.RenGold.com and attached as Exhibit 3
to this Appendix C.
Audit Committee Members
In fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, Robert Boaz (Chair), Lee Graber and Dieter A. Krewedl were members of the
Company’s Audit Committee, each of whom are considered “independent” as that term is defined in applicable
securities legislation, and all three of the Audit Committee members can be considered to be “financially literate” in
that they have the ability to read and understand financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of
accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be
expected to be raised by the Company’s consolidated financial statements. On March 17, 2020 Robert Boaz resigned
as a director and Robert Schafer was appointed in his place to the Audit Committee, and Lee Graber was named Chair
in place of Robert Boaz.
Relevant Education and Experience
All of the Audit Committee members are experienced businessmen with experience in financial matters; each has a
broad understanding of accounting principles used to prepare financial statements and varied experience as to general
application of such accounting principles, as well as the internal controls and procedures necessary for financial
reporting, garnered from working in their individual fields of endeavor. Mr. Graber is a mining consultant with over
35 years of experience, who has sat on a number of boards and audit committees of similar types of companies. Dr.
Krewedl has a PhD in Geology and has more than 35 years in the mining industry has held positions as an officer and
director of several public mining companies. Mr. Schafer is a mining consultant with over 40 years of experience,
who has sat on a number of boards of similar types of companies. In addition, each of the members of the Audit
Committee have knowledge of the role of an audit committee in the realm of reporting companies from their years of
experience as directors of public companies other than the Company.
Audit Committee Oversight
Since the commencement of the Company’s most recently completed financial year, the Renaissance Board has not
failed to adopt a recommendation of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor.
Pre-Approved Policies and Procedures for Non-Audit Services
The Company’s Audit Committee Charter requires that management seek approval from the Audit Committee of all
non-audit services to be provided to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Company’s external auditor prior
to engaging the external auditor to perform those non-audit services.
External Auditor Service Fees (by category)
The fees paid or accrued by the Company to its auditor in each of the last two financial years, by category, are as
follows:
June 30, 2019
Audit fees

June 30, 2018

$40,000

$40,000

Audit related fees

2,006

3,503

Tax preparation fees

8,750

7,000

$50,756

$50,503

Total
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Nomination of Directors
The Renaissance Board considers the skills and attributes that would be required of a new director. Current directors
and senior management are requested to advise the Chairman of the Renaissance Board of potential candidates. Once
candidates are identified, the Chairman of the Renaissance Board, alone or with other directors, interviews the
individuals and advises the Renaissance Board the results of the interviews and makes a recommendation on a
candidate to the Renaissance Board for its approval.
The Renaissance Board seeks to select well-qualified candidates with a diversity of background, experience and
geographic location to maintain a well-balanced and highly competent group of directors with the ability to act together
effectively. The Renaissance Board is responsible for implementing orientation and education programs for new
members of the Renaissance Board and implementing procedures for assessing the effectiveness of the Renaissance
Board and its committees and for assessing the contribution of each of the Company’s directors.
Compensation
The Renaissance Board has established a Compensation Committee, comprised of Dieter A. Krewedl (Chair), Lee
Graber, Tim Janke and since March 23, 2020, Robert Schafer. The Committee’s primary function is to assist the
Renaissance Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by establishing appropriate performance criteria for the
senior management team and approving the compensation of the senior management team and the directors.
Additionally, the Committee is responsible for:
•

Reviewing and approving and then recommending to the Renaissance Board salary, bonus, and other
benefits, direct or indirect, and any change control packages of the Chairperson of the Renaissance Board
(if any), the President, the Chief Executive Officer and other members of the senior management team.

•

Recommendation of salary guidelines to the Renaissance Board.

•

Administration of the Company’s compensation plans, including stock option plans, outside directors’
compensation plans, and such other compensation plans or structures as are adopted by the Company from
time-to-time.

•

Research and identification of trends in employment benefits.

•

Establishment and periodic review of the Company’s policies in the area of management benefits and
perquisites.

Other Board Committees
There are no other committees currently appointed by the Renaissance Board.
Assessments
The Renaissance Board assesses, at least annually, the effectiveness of the Renaissance Board as a whole, the
Committees of the Renaissance Board and the contribution of individual directors, including considering the
appropriate size of the Renaissance Board.
RISK FACTORS
Renaissance’s principal activity is the acquisition and exploration of mineral properties located primarily in the
western United States. Companies in this industry are subject to many and varied kinds of risks, including but not
limited to, economic, including fluctuations in market prices for metals, financial, environmental, social, security, and
political. Additionally, due to factors that often cannot be anticipated, few mineral projects successfully achieve
development or commercial production. While risk management cannot eliminate the impact of all potential risks,
Renaissance strives to manage such risks to the extent possible and practicable.
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The risks and uncertainties described in this section are considered by management to be the most important in the
context of Renaissance’s business. They are not listed in order of importance, nor are they inclusive of all the risks
and uncertainties Renaissance may be subject to.
Risk related to the COVID-19 Pandemic.
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. The effect of COVID-19 and
the actions recommended to combat COVID-19 are changing rapidly.
The extent to which COVID-19 will continue to impact Renaissance’s business, including its operations and the
market for its securities, will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted at
this time, and include the duration, severity, and scope of the outbreak and the actions taken to contain or treat the
COVID-19 pandemic. In particular, the continued spread of COVID-19 globally could materially and adversely
impact Renaissance’s business including without limitation, employee health, workforce productivity, increased
insurance premiums, limitations on travel, the availability of industry experts and personnel, restrictions to its drill
program and/or the timing to process drill and other metallurgical testing, and other factors that will depend on future
developments beyond Renaissance’s control, which may have a material and adverse effect on Renaissance’s business,
financial condition, and results of operations.
Renaissance is trying to assess the impact that COVID-19 might have on its exploration operations. Overall, the key
risks related to exploration activities currently relate to (a) availability of drilling and assay services; (b) the
procurement of goods and potential supply chain issues; and (c) impact to both site-based personnel and head office
personnel. In order to protect its employees, contractors and do our part for the safety of our communities, the
Company implemented a work from home strategy at both its Reno, Nevada and White Rock, B.C. offices until further
notice. The Company currently has four of its projects in option or earn-in agreements. Given the current uncertainty
due to the COVID-19 threat and the highly volatile financial markets, drilling plans are uncertain at this time.
Renaissance will continue to closely monitor the directives of all levels of government in both Canada and the United
States and remains committed to the health and safety of its personnel.
In addition, the actual and threatened spread of COVID-19 globally could continue to have impacts on global
economies and financial markets, resulting in an economic downturn, affecting the trading price of Renaissance
Shares, and also adversely impact Renaissance’s ability to raise capital. Any of these developments, and others, could
have a material adverse effect on demand for precious and base metals and Renaissance’s business.
Mining is a high risk business.
Renaissance’s mineral property interests are of high risk and are considered to be speculative in nature. There is no
certainty that the expenditures made by Renaissance towards the search for and evaluation of minerals with regard to
its mineral property interests, or otherwise, will result in discoveries of commercial quantities of silver or other
minerals. Mineral exploration and mining involve considerable financial and technical risk. Substantial expenditures
are usually required to establish ore reserves, to evaluate metallurgical processes and to construct mining and
processing facilities at a particular site. It is impossible to assure that the current exploration programs planned by
Renaissance will result in profitable commercial mining operations, as few properties that are explored are ultimately
developed into producing mines. Even if commercial quantities of minerals are discovered, the exploration properties
might not be brought into a state of commercial production. Renaissance’s operations are subject to operational risks
and hazards inherent in the mineral exploration industry, including, but not limited to: variations in mineral grade;
deposit size; earthquakes and other natural disasters; density and other geological problems; hydrological conditions;
availability of power; metallurgical and other processing challenges; mechanical equipment performance problems;
the unavailability of materials and equipment including drill rigs and fuel; labour force disruptions; unanticipated
transportation costs; unanticipated regulatory changes; unanticipated or significant changes in the costs of supplies,
including fuel; and, adverse weather conditions. Should any of these risks or hazards affect any of Renaissance’s
exploration activities, Renaissance could suffer delays or a complete stoppage of its exploration activities, which could
have a material adverse effect on the business of Renaissance.
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Exploration and Evaluation Risks.
Mineral exploration involves many risks, which even a combination of experience, knowledge and careful evaluation
may not be able to overcome. Operations in which Renaissance has a direct or indirect interest will be subject to all
the hazards and risks associated with exploration and evaluation.
Governmental regulation may have negative impacts on Renaissance.
Renaissance’s operations, and potential new mineral exploration projects, are subject to extensive U.S. federal, state,
territorial, departmental, municipal and local laws, regulations and administrative decisions governing various matters,
including, but not limited to: mineral tenure; permitting; environmental legislation and protection; relations with
indigenous communities; management and use of toxic substances and explosives; management of natural resources;
land ownership and use; exploration, development of mines, construction, production and related operations, and
ongoing and post- closure reclamation; exports; transportation; price controls; taxation; mining royalties; development
criteria; labour standards and occupational health and safety, including mine safety; and, historic and cultural
(including archaeological and indigenous) preservation. The impact of these items may have an adverse effect on
Renaissance´s ability, or the ability of its funding partners to explore any of Renaissance’s properties, and to seek and
successfully obtain new mineral exploration projects, as well as the cost of related business development activities.
Additionally, the operations of Renaissance require licenses and permits from various governmental and nongovernmental authorities. Renaissance has obtained, or will obtain, all necessary licenses and permits required to carry
on with activities that it is currently conducting or which it proposes to conduct under applicable laws and regulations.
However, such licenses and permits are subject to change in regulations and in various operating circumstances. There
can be no assurance that Renaissance will be able to obtain all necessary licenses and permits required to carry out
exploration, development and mining operations at its proposed projects.
The mineral exploration industry is intensely competitive in all its phases.
Renaissance competes with many companies possessing greater financial resources and technical resources than itself
for the acquisition of mineral concessions, claims, leases, other mineral interests, equipment required to conduct its
activities, as well as for the recruitment and retention of qualified executives, employees, technical consultants, and
other external advisors.
Risks related to title to assets.
The acquisition of title to mineral properties is a very detailed and time consuming process. Rights over mineral
concessions and claims may be disputed. Renaissance cannot guarantee that title to any of its properties will not be
challenged, or that title to its properties will not be affected by an unknown title defect, or a dispute regarding the
boundaries of Renaissance’s properties.
Risks related to environmental matters.
All phases of Renaissance’s operations are subject to environmental risks. Certain types of mining operations require
the submission and approval of environmental impact studies as part of their permitting process. Regulations set forth
limitations on numerous activities, including, but not limited to, the suppression of vegetation, water usage, power
generation and transmission, location of exploration activities, the transportation, storage and use of explosives, as
well as the generation, transportation, storage, and disposal of all types of waste. A breach of any such regulations
may result in the imposition of fines and penalties, which may be substantial. Environmental legislation is evolving
in a manner which will likely require stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines and penalties for noncompliance, more stringent environmental assessments of proposed projects, and a heightened degree of responsibility
for companies and their directors, officers and employees. The cost of compliance with changes in governmental
regulations has the potential to reduce the viability or profitability of operations. In addition, environmental hazards
may exist on Renaissance’s properties or properties Renaissance may acquire, which are unknown to Renaissance and
which may have been caused by previous or existing owners or occupants of the properties.
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Joint Venture Risk.
Renaissance operates certain of its properties through joint ventures and is subject to the risks normally associated
with the conduct of joint ventures. Certain of the properties in which Renaissance has an interest are operated through
joint ventures with other mining companies and are subject to the risks normally associated with the conduct of joint
ventures. Such risks include: inability to exert control over strategic decisions made in respect of such properties;
disagreement with partners on how to develop and operate mines efficiently; inability of partners to meet their
obligations to the joint venture or third parties; and litigation between partners regarding joint venture matters. Any
failure of such other companies to meet their obligations to Renaissance or to third parties, or any disputes with respect
to the parties’ respective rights and obligations, could have a material adverse effect on the joint ventures or their
respective properties, which could have a material adverse effect on Renaissance.
Political Regulatory Risks.
Any changes in government policy may result in changes to laws affecting ownership of assets, mining policies,
monetary policies, taxation, rates of exchange, environmental regulations, labour relations, repatriation of income and
return of capital. This may affect both Renaissance’s ability to undertake exploration and development activities in
respect of present and future properties in the manner currently contemplated, as well as its ability to continue to
explore, develop and operate those properties in which it has an interest or in respect of which it has obtained
exploration and development rights to date. The possibility that future governments may adopt substantially different
policies, which might extend to expropriation of assets, cannot be ruled out.
Risks related to operating in remote locations.
Renaissance’s properties are located in remote areas. As a result, Renaissance’s operations and personnel may be
subject to operating and safety risks arising from several factors, including, but not limited to: water scarcity,
inadequate and poorly maintained roads; limited air transport options; and, deficient or non-existent public services,
including communications, energy, fire department, healthcare, water, and police. These risks may compound impacts
of some of the other risks identified in this document, including security, natural disasters, and social, among others.
Risks relating to Renaissance’s ability to raise funding to continue its exploration, development and mining
activities.
Renaissance has no revenues from operations and has recorded losses since inception. Renaissance expects to incur
operating losses in future periods due to continuing expenses associated with general and administrative costs, costs
of seeking new business opportunities, and advancing its properties. Renaissance has finite financial resources and its
ability to achieve and maintain profitability and positive cash flow is dependent upon its ability to:
•

generate revenues in excess of expenditures;

•

reduce costs in the event revenues are insufficient; and

•

secure near and long-term financing.

Historically, Renaissance has relied on equity financing to meet its capital requirements. Additional funds raised by
Renaissance through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities will cause current Renaissance Shareholders
to experience dilution. Such securities may grant rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of the Renaissance
Shareholders.
Renaissance does not have any contractual restrictions on its ability to incur debt and accordingly, Renaissance could
incur significant amounts of indebtedness to finance its exploration activity. Any such indebtedness could contain
covenants, which would restrict Renaissance’s operations.
In light of volatile commodity prices, the limited ability of junior mining issuers to access capital markets, Renaissance
may need to pursue alternative ways to finance its future exploration operations and seeks new business opportunities.
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There is no certainty that additional financing either through traditional equity and debt financing arrangements or an
alternative transaction, or any combination thereof will be available at all or on acceptable terms.
Risks relating to price fluctuations in metals.
World prices for commodities fluctuate and are affected by numerous factors including international economic and
political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional
consumptive patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to new mine developments and improved
mining and production methods. The effect of these factors on the price of commodities, and therefore an economic
downturn could have a negative impact on Renaissance.
Risks relating to litigation.
The mining industry is subject to legal claims, with and without merit. Renaissance may become involved in legal
disputes in the future. Defence and settlement costs can be substantial, even with respect to claims that have no merit.
Due to the inherent uncertainty of the litigation process, there can be no assurance that the solution reached for any
particular legal proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on Renaissance’s financial position or results of
operations.
Costs of Land Reclamation Risk.
It is difficult to determine the exact amounts which will be required to complete all land reclamation activities in
connection with the properties in which Renaissance holds an interest. Accordingly, it may be necessary to revise
planned expenditures and operating plans in order to fund reclamation activities. Such costs may have a material
adverse impact upon the financial condition and results of operations of Renaissance.
Risks relating to inadequate insurance or inability to obtain insurance.
Mineral exploration involves risks, which, even with a combination of experience, knowledge and careful evaluation,
mining companies may not be able to overcome. Operations in which Renaissance has a direct or indirect interest may
be subject to all the hazards and risks normally incidental to exploration of precious and non-precious metals, any of
which could result in work stoppages, damage to property, and possible environmental damage. Renaissance presently
has very limited commercial liability insurance and does not intend to increase its liability insurance. As a result of
having limited liability insurance, Renaissance could incur significant costs that could have a materially adverse effect
upon its financial condition and even cause Renaissance to cease operations.
The possible issuance of additional Renaissance Shares may impact the value of Renaissance Shares.
Renaissance is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Renaissance Shares without par value. Sales of substantial
amounts of Renaissance Shares (including Renaissance Shares issuable upon the exercise of Renaissance Options and
the exercise of Renaissance Warrants), or the perception that such sales could occur, could materially adversely affect
prevailing market prices for the Renaissance Shares and the ability of Renaissance to raise equity capital in the future.
Renaissance is reliant on the quality of its employees and being able to recruit and retain them.
Recruiting and retaining qualified personnel is critical to Renaissance’s success. Renaissance is dependent on the
services of key executives including Renaissance’s President and CEO, as well as other highly skilled and experienced
executives and personnel involved in managing Renaissance’s interests. The number of persons skilled in acquisition
and exploration of mining properties is limited and competition for such persons is intense. As Renaissance’s business
activity grows, Renaissance will require additional experienced financial, administrative and mining personnel as well
as operations staff. There can be no assurance that Renaissance will be successful in attracting, training and retaining
qualified personnel as competition for persons with these skill sets increases. If Renaissance is not successful in
attracting, training and retaining qualified personnel, the performance of its operations could be impaired, which could
have an adverse impact on Renaissance’s future cash flows, earnings, results of operations and financial condition.
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Despite efforts to attract and retain qualified personnel, as well as the retention of qualified advisors and consultants,
to manage Renaissance’s interests, even when those efforts are successful, people are fallible and human error could
result in significant uninsured losses to Renaissance. These could include loss or forfeiture of mineral claims or other
assets for non-payment of fees or taxes, significant tax liabilities in connection with any tax planning effort
Renaissance might undertake, and legal claims for errors or mistakes by Renaissance’s personnel.
Potential conflicts of interest.
Certain directors and officers of Renaissance are, and may continue to be, involved in the mining and mineral
exploration industry through their direct and indirect participation in corporations, partnerships or joint ventures,
which are potential competitors for Renaissance. Situations may arise in connection with potential acquisitions in
investment where the other interests of these directors and officers may conflict with the interests of Renaissance.
Directors and officers of Renaissance with conflicts of interests will be subject to and will follow the procedures set
out in applicable corporate and securities legislation, regulation, rules and policies.
Fluctuation in Market Value of Renaissance Shares.
The market price of the Renaissance Shares, as publicly traded shares, can be affected by many variables not directly
related to the corporate performance of Renaissance, including the market in which it is traded, the strength of the
economy generally, the availability and attractiveness of alternative investments and the breadth of the public market
for the stock. The effect of these and other factors on the market price of Reissuance Shares in the future cannot be
predicted. The lack of an active public market could have a material adverse effect on the price of Renaissance Shares.
Risks relating to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
Renaissance’s development and business opportunity expenditures are predominantly in U.S. dollars. Renaissance is
exposed to financial risk arising from fluctuations in the exchange rates between and among the U.S. dollar, Canadian
dollar, and the degree of volatility of these rates. Renaissance does not use derivative instruments to reduce its
exposure to foreign currency risks.
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS
Renaissance is not party to any legal proceedings or regulatory actions as of the date of the Circular. Renaissance is
not aware of any contemplated legal proceedings involving it or its operations.
INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
Except as set out below, no director or executive officer of Renaissance, no person or company that beneficially owns,
or controls or directs, directly or indirectly, more than 10 percent of the outstanding voting securities of Renaissance,
and no associate or affiliate of the foregoing, has any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction within the
three most recently completed financial years or during the current financial year that has materially affected or is
reasonably expected to materially affect Renaissance.
QUALIFIED PERSON
All technical data, as disclosed in this Schedule, has been verified by Renaissance’s qualified person, Robert Felder,
M.Sc. and Certified Professional Geologist as recognized by the American Institute of Professional Geologists
(AIPG).
AUDITOR
The auditor of Renaissance is Davidson and Company LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, 1200-609 Granville
St, Vancouver, BC V7Y.
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TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
The transfer agent and registrar for the Renaissance Shares is TSX Trust. The register of transfers of the Renaissance
Shares is maintained by TSX Trust at its offices in Vancouver, British Columbia.
MATERIAL CONTRACTS
Except for contracts made in the ordinary course of business, the following are the only Material Contracts entered
into by Renaissance since the beginning of the last financial year ending before the date of this Circular or before the
beginning of the last financial year ending before the date of this Circular for any material contract that is still in effect:
1.

Arrangement Agreement between Evrim Resources Corp. and Renaissance dated June 9, 2020.

Copies of such material contract may be inspected at any time up to the Meeting during normal business hours at the
business office of Renaissance at Unit 1 – 15782 Marine Drive, White Rock, British Columbia, V4B 1E6. Material
contracts not in the ordinary course of business are also available under Renaissance’s profile on the SEDAR website
at www.sedar.com.
INTERESTS OF EXPERTS
The independent auditor of the Company, Davidson and Company LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, provided
auditor’s reports dated October 23, 2019 and October 18, 2018, in respect of the 2019 Financial Statements and the
2018 Financial Statements.
As at the date hereof, Davidson and Company LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants have reported that they are
independent within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
British Columbia.

EXHIBIT 1
TO APPENDIX C
AUDITED ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE
30, 2019 AND 2018
AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

(see attached)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Year ended June 30, 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Renaissance Gold Inc.
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Renaissance Gold Inc. (the “Company”), which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated statements of
loss and comprehensive loss, cash flows, and changes in equity for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at June 30, 2019 and 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report includes
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
We obtained Management’s Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:









Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is David Harris.

“DAVIDSON & COMPANY LLP”
Vancouver, Canada
October 23, 2019

Chartered Professional Accountants

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Note
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Prepaid expenses

4
5
6

$

4,277,843 $
7,037
15,471
56,857
37,939
4,395,147

4,677,008
18,764
4,061
33,537
4,733,370

1,772,378
7,267
29,671
1,809,316

1,754,120
9,144
58,429
1,821,693

$

6,204,463 $

6,555,063

$

114,744 $
190,702
305,446

149,367
454,112
603,479

7

Non-current assets
Exploration and evaluation assets
Equipment
Reclamation bonds

8
9
10

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners

11
12

Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Share-based reserve
Other comprehensive income
Deficit

13
13

37,536,168
5,042,322
46,388
(36,725,861)
5,899,017
$

Nature of operations
Subsequent events

6,204,463 $

1
8 & 19

These consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on October 23, 2019.
They are signed on the Company’s behalf by:
“Robert Felder”, Director

“Robert Boaz”, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

36,400,820
4,493,063
64,851
(35,007,150)
5,951,584
6,555,063

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30,
2019

2018

Note
Expenses
Consulting
Depreciation
Exploration and evaluation expenditures, net
Exploration and evaluation recoveries
Foreign exchange
Insurance
Management fees earned
Office and miscellaneous
Professional fees
Regulatory and transfer agent fees
Rent
Salaries and benefits
Shareholder relations
Share-based compensation
Travel and related
Interest and other income
Gain on sale of equipment
Gain on sale of exploration and evaluation assets
Write-off of exploration and evaluation assets

14
9
8
8

$

14
13

9
8
8

Loss for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealized loss on marketable securities
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations

5

90,000 $
4,524
787,194
(448,677)
(2,916)
22,679
(78,866)
115,458
59,655
79,086
126,646
589,117
137,949
263,448
14,193

90,000
4,346
738,711
(317,504)
14,468
41,518
(69,998)
112,173
63,722
44,200
117,277
661,100
86,393
222,653
31,399

(1,759,490)
40,779
-

(1,840,458)
18,068
10,479
38,750
(705,124)

(1,718,711)

(2,478,285)

(11,727)
(6,736)

(13,609)
(1,648)

Comprehensive loss for the year

$

(1,737,174) $

(2,493,542)

Basic and diluted loss per common share

$

(0.03) $

(0.05)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

63,700,127

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

50,952,637

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30,
2019
CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year
Items not affecting cash:
Depreciation
Share-based compensation
Gain on sale of equipment
Gain on sale of exploration and evaluation assets
Write-off of exploration and evaluation assets
Accrued interest income
Unrealized foreign exchange
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Prepaid expenses
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners
Net cash used in operating activities

$

2018

(1,718,711) $

(2,478,285)

4,524
263,448
(6,871)
(1,027)

4,346
222,653
(10,479)
(38,750)
705,124
(19,385)

(4,539)
(56,857)
(4,402)
(34,623)
(263,410)
(1,822,468)

5,830
26,656
39,212
(453,886)
(1,996,964)

CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Exploration and evaluation asset additions
Exploration and evaluation asset recoveries
Proceeds on sale of exploration and evaluation assets
Purchase of equipment
Proceeds on sale of equipment
Reclamation bonds
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(217,809)
198,461
(2,683)
29,603
7,572

(183,410)
190,396
25,000
(7,066)
10,479
35,399

CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from private placement
Share issue costs
Net cash provided by financing activities

1,429,054
(7,895)
1,421,159

3,117,200
(157,337)
2,959,863

(5,428)

30,092

(399,165)

1,028,390

4,677,008

3,648,618

$

4,277,843 $

4,677,008

$

$
285,811
-

212,177
3,600
324,708
375
13,750
126,061
55,376

Effect of foreign exchange on cash
Change in cash during the year
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Shares issued for exploration and evaluation assets
Issuance of broker units
Warrant valuation - units
Warrant valuation - broker units
Receipt of marketable securities on sale of exploration and evaluation assets
Obligation to issue shares on acquisition of Kinetic
Reclamation bonds transferred from funding partners
Supplementary information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Number of
shares
Balance, June 30, 2018

62,744,814

Share
capital
$

36,400,820 $

-

1,143,243

-

Share issue costs

-

(7,895)

-

Share-based compensation

-

-

-

Comprehensive loss for the year

-

-

-

37,536,168 $

-

Private placement

Balance, June 30, 2019

5,716,216

Obligation to
issue shares

68,461,030

$

Number of
shares

$

4,493,063

$

285,811
263,448
$

5,042,322

Share
capital

Obligation to
issue shares

Share-based
reserve

33,427,802

$

$

-

-

1,429,054

-

-

(7,895)

-

-

263,448

(1,718,711)

(1,737,174)

46,388 $ (36,725,861) $

Other
comprehensive
income

5,899,017

Total
shareholders'
equity

Deficit

12,988,332

2,792,492

-

324,708

-

-

3,117,200

15,000

3,225

-

375

-

-

3,600

(160,937)

-

-

-

-

(160,937)

-

-

212,177
222,653

Share-based compensation
Comprehensive loss for the year
Balance, June 30, 2018

1,220,639
-

338,238
-

62,744,814

$

(126,061)
-

-

-

36,400,820 $

-

$

5,951,584

Private placement

-

3,945,327

64,851 $ (35,007,150) $

(18,463)
$

Total
shareholders'
equity

Deficit

48,520,843

Share issue costs
Shares issued for exploration and
evaluation assets

126,061

Other
comprehensive
income

Balance, June 30, 2017
Broker units

$

Share-based
reserve

222,653
$

4,493,063

80,108 $ (32,528,865) $

(15,257)
$

(2,478,285)

64,851 $ (35,007,150) $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5,050,433

(2,493,542)
5,951,584

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Renaissance Gold Inc. (the “Company” or “RenGold”) was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (British
Columbia) on May 25, 2010. The Company’s common shares are listed for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange under the
symbol REN and the OTCQB under the symbol RNSGF. RenGold’s head office is located at 4750 Longley Lane, Suite 106,
Reno, NV 89502. RenGold’s registered and corporate office is located at Unit 1 – 15782 Marine Drive, White Rock, British
Columbia, Canada, V4B 1E6.
RenGold is an exploration stage business engaged in the acquisition and exploration of mineral properties located in the western
United States of America (“USA”). RenGold’s business model is to identify and secure mineral properties for which it seeks
suitable funding partners. Once funding partners are found, an exploration and option to earn-in agreement is entered into on
the property enabling the earn-in partner to obtain an interest by conducting and funding exploration on that property.
The Company is in the process of exploring its exploration and evaluation assets and has not yet determined whether any of its
properties contain mineral reserves that are economically recoverable. The recoverability of the amounts spent for exploration
and evaluation assets is dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to
obtain the necessary financing to complete the exploration and development of its properties, and upon future profitable
production or proceeds from the disposition of the properties.
The operations of the Company will require various licenses and permits from various governmental authorities which are or
may be granted subject to various conditions and may be subject to renewal from time to time. There can be no assurance that
the Company will be able to comply with such conditions and obtain or retain all necessary licenses and permits that may be
required to carry out exploration, development and mining operations at its projects. Failure to comply with these conditions
may render the licences liable to forfeiture.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company will be
able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business in the foreseeable future. As at June 30,
2019, the Company had working capital of $4,089,701. Management estimates that these funds will provide the Company with
sufficient financial resources to carry out currently planned exploration and operations through the next twelve months.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption
were not appropriate.

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and Interpretations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC"). The policies applied in these financial statements are based on the IFRS issued
and outstanding as at the date the Board of Directors approved these financial statements for issue.
Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value. In addition, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting, except for cash flow information.
Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the parent Company’s functional currency
as well as being the functional currency for the Company’s Canadian subsidiary. The US dollar is the functional currency for
the Company’s US subsidiaries.
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RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
(i)

Critical accounting estimates
Critical accounting estimates are estimates and assumptions made by management that may result in a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year and are, but are not limited
to, the following:
The carrying value and the recoverability of exploration and evaluation assets - Management has determined that
exploration and evaluation costs incurred which were capitalized may have future economic benefits and may be
economically recoverable. Management uses several criteria in its assessments of economic recoverability and
probability of future economic benefits including geologic and other technical information, scoping and feasibility
studies, accessibility of facilities and existing permits.
Share-based compensation - The fair value of stock options issued are subject to the limitation of the Black-Scholes
option pricing model which incorporates market data and which involves uncertainty and subjectivity in estimates
used by management in the assumptions. Changes in the input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate
of stock options.
Recovery of deferred tax assets - Judgment is required in determining whether deferred tax assets are recognized in
the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unutilized tax losses, require
management to assess the likelihood that the Company will generate taxable earnings in future periods, in order to
utilize recognized deferred tax assets. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from
operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable
income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Company to realize the net deferred tax assets recorded
at the date of the statement of financial position could be impacted.
Additionally, future changes in tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates could limit the ability of
the Company to obtain tax deductions in future periods.
The Company has not recorded any deferred tax assets.

(ii)

Critical accounting judgments
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are, but are not limited to, the following:
Determination of functional currency - In accordance with IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates” management determined that the functional currency of the parent Company as well as the Company’s
Canadian subsidiary is the Canadian dollar and the functional currency of its US subsidiaries is the US dollar.
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RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of RenGold and its wholly owned subsidiaries, from the date
control was acquired. Control exists when the Company possesses power over an investee, has exposure to variable returns
from the investee and has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. Inter-company balances and
transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from inter-company transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation

Renaissance Exploration Inc.
Kinetic Gold (US) Inc.
Kinetic Gold Corp.

Nevada
Nevada
British Columbia

Ownership
interest as at
June 30, 2019
100%
100%
100%

Principal activity
Mineral exploration company
Mineral exploration company
Holding company

Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions in the financial statements of each entity in the Company.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are re-translated to the functional
currency at the reporting date exchange rate.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are re-translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences arising on re-translation are recognized in operations.
On consolidation, for subsidiaries with functional currencies other than Canadian dollars, the assets and liabilities are translated
into Canadian dollars using the period-end rate and the operations and cash flows are translated using the average rates of
exchange. Exchange adjustments arising when the opening net assets and the profit or loss are translated into Canadian dollars
are taken into a separate component of equity and reported in other comprehensive income or loss.
Equipment
Equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
recognized in operations on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of equipment, since this
most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated
useful lives for the current and comparative periods are from three to five years commencing from the year the equipment
available for its intended use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets
Upon acquiring the legal right to explore a mineral property, all direct costs related to the acquisition of exploration and
evaluation assets are capitalized. All direct costs related to the acquisition of mineral property interests are capitalized into
intangible assets. Exploration and evaluation expenditures incurred prior to the determination of the feasibility of mining
operations and a decision to proceed with development are charged to operations as incurred. Development expenditures
incurred subsequent to a development decision, and to increase or to extend the life of existing production, are capitalized and
will be amortized on the unit-of-production method based upon estimated proven and probable reserves. When there is little
prospect of further work on a property being carried out by the Company, the remaining deferred costs associated with that
property are charged to operations during the period such determination is made.
The Company assesses exploration and evaluation assets for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may exceed its recoverable amount.
Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental obligations
An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance is caused by
the exploration or development of a mineral property interest. Such costs arising from the decommissioning of plant and other
site preparation work, discounted to their net present value, are provided for and capitalized at the start of each project to the
carrying amount of the asset, along with a corresponding liability as soon as the obligation to incur such costs arises. The timing
of the actual rehabilitation expenditure is dependent on a number of factors such as the life and nature of the asset, the operating
license conditions and, when applicable, the environment in which the mine operates.
A liability is recognized for legal obligations relating to the restoration, rehabilitation and retirement of property, plant and
equipment obligations arising from the acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of those assets. Such
decommissioning liabilities are recognized at fair value, when a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made, in the period in
which the liability is incurred. A corresponding increase to the carrying amount of the related asset where one is identifiable
is recorded and amortized over the life of the asset. Where a related asset is not easily identifiable with a liability, the change
in fair value over the course of the year is expensed. The amount of the liability is subject to re-measurement at each reporting
period. The estimates are based principally on legal and regulatory requirements.
It is possible that the Company’s estimate of its ultimate reclamation liabilities could change as a result of changes in
regulations; the extent of environmental remediation required or completed and the means of reclamation or changes in cost
estimates. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively commencing in the period the estimate is revised.
The Company has no material restoration, rehabilitation and environmental obligations as any environmental disturbance to
date has been minimal.
Impairment
At each statement of financial position reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the assets belong.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

-4-

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment (continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized
immediately in operations, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
Provisions
Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events where it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
statement of financial position date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
receivable can be measured reliably.
Financial instruments
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) replaced IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“IAS 39”)
and all previous versions of IFRS 9. There was no material impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements as a
result of transitioning to IFRS 9 on July 1, 2018.
IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair
value. The classification and measurement of financial assets is based on the Company’s business models for managing its
financial assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”). Financial
assets are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at either (i) amortized cost; (ii) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), or (iii) at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
The following table summarizes the classification of the Company’s financial instruments under IAS 39 and IFRS 9:

Financial assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Reclamation bonds
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners

IAS 39

IFRS 9

FVTPL
Available for sale
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables

FVTPL
FVTOCI
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Amortized cost
Amortized cost
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
The following is the Company’s new accounting policy for financial instruments under IFRS 9:
Financial assets
On initial recognition, financial assets are recognized at fair value and are subsequently classified and measured at: (i) amortized
cost; (ii) FVTOCI; or (iii) FVTPL. The classification of financial assets is generally based on the business model in which a
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. A financial asset is measured at fair value net of
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition except for financial assets at FVTPL where transaction costs are
expensed. All financial assets not classified and measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI are classified as FVTPL. On initial
recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive income/loss.
The classification determines the method by which the financial assets are carried on the statement of financial position
subsequent to inception and how changes in value are recorded. Receivables, amounts due from funding partners, and
reclamation bonds are measured at amortized cost with subsequent impairments recognized in profit or loss. Cash is classified
as FVTPL. Marketable securities are measured at FVTOCI.
Impairment
An ‘expected credit loss’ impairment model applies which requires a loss allowance to be recognized based on expected credit
losses. The estimated present value of future cash flows associated with the asset is determined and an impairment loss is
recognized for the difference between this amount and the carrying amount as follows: the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to estimated present value of the future cash flows associated with the asset, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, either directly or through the use of an allowance account and the resulting loss is recognized in profit
or loss for the period.
In a subsequent period, if the amount of the impairment loss related to financial assets measured at amortized cost decreases,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognized.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are designated as either: (i) FVTPL; or (ii) amortized cost. All financial liabilities are classified and
subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial liabilities at FVTPL. The classification determines the method
by which the financial liabilities are carried on the statement of financial position subsequent to inception and how changes in
value are recorded. Trade and other payables and amounts due to funding partners are classified as other financial liabilities
and carried on the statement of financial position at amortized cost. As at June 30, 2019, the Company does not have any
derivative financial liabilities.
Loss per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”) data for its common shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit and loss attributable to common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted loss per share is calculated by dividing the
earnings (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding assuming that the proceeds to be received on
the exercise of dilutive share options and warrants are used to repurchase common shares at the average market price during
the period.
In the Company’s case, diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share, as the effect of outstanding share options and
warrants on loss per share would be anti-dilutive.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based compensation
The Company’s stock option plan allows Company employees and consultants to acquire shares of the Company. The fair
value of options granted is recognized as a share-based compensation expense with a corresponding increase in equity. An
individual is classified as an employee when the individual is an employee for legal or tax purposes (direct employee) or
provides services similar to those performed by a direct employee. Consideration paid on the exercise of stock options is
credited to share capital and the fair value of the options is reclassified from share-based reserves to share capital.
In situations where equity instruments are issued to non-employees and some or all of the services received by the entity as
consideration cannot be specifically identified, they are all measured at the fair value of the share-based payment; otherwise,
share-based compensation is measured at the fair value of the services received.
The fair value is measured at grant date and each tranche is recognized over the period during which the options vest. The fair
value of the options granted is measured using the Black-Scholes option pricing model taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. At each financial position reporting date, the amount recognized as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the number of stock options that are expected to vest.
Share-based compensation arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity
instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based compensation transactions.
Share capital
Common shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs, net of tax effects, directly attributable to the issue of common
shares are recognized as a deduction from equity.
Warrants
The Company uses the residual method for accounting for finance related warrants. Under this method warrants are assigned a
value equal to the excess of the unit purchase price over the then prevailing market price of the Company’s shares. When the
units are priced at or below market there is no excess and the warrants are valued at $Nil.
Income taxes
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary
differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable operations, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.
New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective as of June 30, 2019 and have
not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.
New standard IFRS 16, Leases
All leases result in the lessee obtaining the right to use an asset at the start of the lease and, if lease payments are made
over time, also obtaining financing. Accordingly, from the perspective of the lessee, IFRS 16 eliminates the
classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required by IAS 17 Leases and, instead,
introduces a single lessee accounting model. When applying that model, a lessee is required to recognize assets and
liabilities. A lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and accounts for those two
types of leases differently. This standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
The Company has not early adopted this new standard and this new standard is not expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements.

4.

CASH
June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Canadian dollar denominated deposits held in Canada
US dollar denominated deposits held in Canada
US dollar denominated deposits held in the USA

$

3,747,691 $
24,728
505,424

3,746,176
220,994
709,838

Total

$

4,277,843 $

4,677,008
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5.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES
June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Opening balance
Additions
Unrealized loss

$

18,764 $
(11,727)

18,623
13,750
(13,609)

Ending balance

$

7,037 $

18,764

In February 2014, the Company sold its Argentinean projects (Note 8) to Atala Resources Corporation (“Atala”), a Canadian
private company, and as part of the consideration received 500,000 common shares of Atala. On May 5, 2017, Atala was
acquired by Brionor Resources Inc. (“Brionor”), a Canadian publicly traded corporation, and the shareholders of Atala received
0.4382 of a Brionor share for each Atala share. Accordingly, RenGold received 219,101 common shares of Brionor. On June
9, 2017, Brionor changed its name to Magna Terra Minerals Inc. (“Magna Terra”).
As at June 30, 2017, the Company valued the 219,101 Magna Terra shares at $18,623.
On October 26, 2017, the Company received an additional 250,000 common shares Magna Terra valued at $13,750 related to
the cancelation of future cash payments (Note 8).
As at June 30, 2018, the Company valued the 469,101 Magna Terra shares at $18,764 and accordingly recorded an unrealized
loss on marketable securities of $13,609 for the year ended June 30, 2018.
As at June 30, 2019, the Company valued the 469,101 Magna Terra shares at $7,037 and accordingly recorded an unrealized
loss on marketable securities of $11,727 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

6.

RECEIVABLES
June 30,
2019

Amounts due from the Government of Canada pursuant to
goods and services input tax credits
Interest income
Other
Total
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June 30,
2018

$

2,056 $
6,871
6,544

1,740
2,321
-

$

15,471 $

4,061

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

7.

PREPAID EXPENSES
June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Prepaid insurance
Prepaid rent
Prepaid shareholder relations
Other

$

5,000 $
25,276
2,155
5,508

5,000
24,558
2,086
1,893

Total

$

37,939 $

33,537

8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

RenGold acquires mineral properties through staking and from third party vendors, some of which are subject to a net smelter
return (“NSR”) royalty. Subsequently, the Company may enter into agreements to sell a portion of its interest in its mineral
properties to third parties in exchange for exploration expenditures, royalty interests, cash, and/or share-based payments.
RenGold cannot guarantee title to all of its exploration and evaluation assets as the properties may be subject to prior mineral
rights applications with priority, prior unregistered agreements or transfers and title may be affected by undetected defects.
Exploration and evaluation assets capitalized to the consolidated statements of financial position are as follows:
June 30,
2017
Nevada:
Buffalo Canyon
Bunce
Cine Mountain
Diamond Point
Ecru
Ely Springs
Fat Lizard
Ferguson Mountain
Fireball Ridge
Ghost Ranch
Gilbert South
Jake Creek
Jupiter
Maggie Creek
Manhattan Gap
Mars
Pluto
Raven
Secret Canyon
Silicon
South Roberts
Spring Peak
Spruce East
Ted
Trinity Silver
Wood Hills South
Oregon:
McDO
Total

$

3,327
12,022
250,000
250,000
4,267
312,026
307,786
426,061
6,431
300,000
300,000
8,394
67,290

Additions
$

$ 2,247,604

20,280
126,493
1,340
2,117
85,684
12,648
3,228
25,051
6,948
99,878
11,920

Recoveries
$

$

395,587 $

$
(20,280)
(55,510)
(19,050)
(31,750)
(56,801)
(7,005)
-

Written
off

Foreign
exchange
adjustment

$
(250,000)
(276,036)
(99,878)
(79,210)

-

-

(190,396) $

(705,124) $

49 $
177
2,929
48
158
3,877
(477)
520
158
(1,170)
180
-

June 30,
2018
3,376
12,199
73,912
1,388
250,000
6,542
70,511
311,549
13,168
426,061
9,817
267,080
300,000
8,517
-

$

-

6,449 $ 1,754,120
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Additions
29,406
16,410
23,607
47,969
29,148
3,344
26,139
16,615
4,812
-

Recoveries
$

20,359
$

217,809 $

$
(29,406)
(17,798)
(33,094)
(13,237)
(42,316)
(26,139)
(36,471)
-

Written
off
-

-

-

(198,461) $

-

Foreign
exchange
adjustment
$

(20) $
(75)
(454)
376
(160)
(40)
(283)
202
(461)
(133)
202
225
(52)
(103)
(314)

$

June 30,
2019
3,356
12,124
73,458
217,282
23,447
6,502
56,991
311,751
47,508
426,061
13,028
267,282
280,369
8,465
4,709
20,045

(1,090) $ 1,772,378

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Buffalo Canyon, Nye County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Buffalo Canyon project through directly held unpatented claims. Two directors of
RenGold collectively have a 1% NSR royalty on certain of the Buffalo Canyon claims.
Bunce, Pershing County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Bunce project through directly held unpatented claims.
Cine Mountain, Nye County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Cine Mountain project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective November 27, 2017, until it was terminated August 20, 2018, the Company was party to an exploration earn-in option
agreement with Coeur Explorations Inc. (“Coeur”), a subsidiary of Coeur Mining. Upon signing the agreement, Coeur made
a one-time payment to the Company of $63,501 (US$50,000) which was recorded as exploration and evaluation recoveries on
the statement of loss and comprehensive loss for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Diamond Point, Elko/Eureka County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Diamond Point project through directly held unpatented claims.
Ecru, Lander County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Ecru project through directly held unpatented claims and a mineral lease.
On August 9, 2017, the Company exercised its option to purchase 100% of the Ecru project through the issue of 477,331
common shares valued at $126,493.
On July 31, 2017, the Company entered into an earn-in agreement with Nevada Star Exploration LLC (“Nevada Star”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of S2 Resources Ltd. The agreement grants Nevada Star the option to earn a 70% interest in the Ecru, Pluto
(see below) and South Roberts (see below) projects. Nevada Star must spend US$3,000,000 per project over a 5-year period
to earn a 70% interest, with a committed expenditure of US$200,000 per project to be expended by July 31, 2019 (completed).
Upon signing the earn-in agreement, Nevada Star paid the Company US$75,000 which was credited against the acquisition
costs of the projects and split evenly with $31,750 (US$25,000) credited to each project.
On July 30, 2018, the Company entered into a mining sublease agreement with Newmont USA Limited (“Newmont”). The
agreement covers certain lands adjacent to the Company’s already controlled claims. The agreement is for a period of 10 years,
with an option to extend the lease for an additional 5 years, and then indefinitely so long as mining, development or processing
operations are being conducted on the property on a continuous basis.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Ecru, Lander County, Nevada (continued)
To maintain the option, the Company is required to make annual payments as follows:
Payment
US$
$22,500 (paid)
$22,500 (paid subsequent to year-end)
$22,500
$22,500
$22,500
$22,500
$45,000

Date
July 30, 2018
July 30, 2019
July 30, 2020
July 30, 2021
July 30, 2022
July 30, 2023
Each anniversary thereafter until termination

These payments will be deemed advance royalty payments to be offset against any future royalty obligations in the event of a
mine being developed. Newmont holds a 0.875% NSR royalty and the underlying lease holder holds a 2.125% NSR royalty.
Ely Springs, Lincoln County, Nevada
The Company held its interest in the Ely Springs project through directly held unpatented claims that were allowed to lapse.
Accordingly, the Company wrote-off acquisition costs totaling $250,000 in the year ended June 30, 2018.
Fat Lizard, Nye County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Fat Lizard project through directly held unpatented claims.
On February 14, 2019, the Company entered into an earn-in agreement with OceanaGold U.S. Holdings Inc. (“OceanaGold”),
a subsidiary of OceanaGold Corporation granting OceanaGold the option to earn a 51% interest in the Fat Lizard exploration
project. Pursuant to the agreement, OceanaGold paid the Company $33,093 (US$25,000) on signing. This payment was first
credited against the acquisition costs for $1,395 (US$1,054) with the remainder of $31,698 (US$23,946) being recorded as
exploration and evaluation recoveries on the statement of loss and comprehensive loss for the year ended June 30, 2019. To
maintain the option, OceanaGold must pay the Company an additional US$200,000 and spend US$3,000,000 (US$250,000
committed) over a five year period. Once vested, OceanaGold has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 24% interest
by spending an additional US$5,000,000 by February 14, 2028. Once vested, the parties will contribute capital for the joint
venture’s expenditures in accordance with their respective participating interests subject to straight-line dilution. If a party’s
participating interest in the joint venture is reduced to ten percent (10%) or less then such party’s participating interest shall
automatically be converted to a 2% NSR royalty.
Ferguson Mountain, Elko County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Ferguson Mountain project through directly held unpatented claims.
On December 11, 2018, the Company entered into an earn-in agreement with Hochschild Mining (US) Inc. (“Hochschild”), a
subsidiary of Hochschild Mining plc, granting Hochschild the option to earn a 51% interest in the Ferguson Mountain
exploration project. Pursuant to the agreement, Hochschild paid the Company $33,094 (US$25,000) on signing which was
credited against acquisition costs. To maintain the option, Hochschild must pay the Company an additional US$275,000 and
spend US$3,000,000 (US$200,000 committed) over a five year period. Once vested, Hochschild has a one-time option to elect
to earn an additional 19% interest by spending an additional US$3,000,000 by December 11, 2027. Once vested, the parties
will contribute capital for the joint venture’s expenditures in accordance with their respective participating interests subject to
straight-line dilution. If a party’s participating interest in the joint venture is reduced to ten percent (10%) or less then such
party’s participating interest shall automatically be converted to a 3% NSR royalty.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Fireball Ridge, Churchill County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Fireball Ridge project through directly held unpatented claims and a mineral lease of
unpatented claims.
RenGold was assigned the April 15, 2003, as amended March 1, 2012, February 6, 2015 and May 25, 2017, mining lease and
option to purchase agreement with Janice E. Ehrhart and Charles Mabarak. The lease is renewable on April 15, 2027 on certain
milestones having been met. The owners retained a 3% NSR royalty and the annual payments are creditable against the NSR
royalty.
To maintain the option, the Company is required to make annual payments as follows:
Payment
US$
$36,000 (paid)
$10,000 (paid)
$10,000 (paid)

Date
April 15, 2003 to April 15, 2012
April 15, 2013
April 15, 2014
30 days after the execution of an exploration earn-in
agreement
Each anniversary thereafter until termination

$10,000
$10,000

In December 2012, the Company purchased private land for US$30,000. The seller retained a 1% NSR royalty.
Ghost Ranch, Elko County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Ghost Ranch project through directly held unpatented claims.
Gilbert South, Esmeralda County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Gilbert South project through directly held unpatented claims and a mineral lease of
unpatented claims.
On August 19, 2015, the Company entered into an agreement with Timberline Resources Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiary Wolfpack Gold (Nevada) Corporation (“Wolfpack”) whereby the Company acquired the Gilbert South project from
Wolfpack in exchange for a 1% NSR royalty that can be bought down at any time for US$1,500,000 or fractions thereof at the
pro-rata cost at any time during the term of the agreement. In addition, a 0.2% NSR royalty is payable to William M. Sheriff
and a 1.8% NSR royalty is payable to 5555 Gold, both of which exist under a pre-existing asset to purchase agreement.
On November 17, 2017, the Company entered into an option agreement with Nevada Select Royalty, Inc. (“Nevada Select”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ely Gold Royalties, to acquire two unpatented mining claims on the Gilbert South project in
exchange for an option payment of US$50,000 (the “Option Price”). If the option is exercised, Nevada Select will retain a 2%
NSR royalty.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Gilbert South, Esmeralda County, Nevada (continued)
To maintain the option, the Company is required to make annual payments as follows which will be credited against the Option
Price:
Date
On execution of the option agreement
On the Effective Date *
First anniversary of the Effective Date
Second anniversary of the Effective Date
Third anniversary of the Effective Date
Fourth anniversary of the Effective Date
Fifth anniversary through the tenth anniversary of the Effective
Date
*the Effective Date is the date on which a drill program is initiated

Payment
US$
$668 (paid)
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$10,000

Jake Creek, Humboldt County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Jake Creek project through directly held unpatented claims.
On April 19, 2018, the Company exercised its option to acquire 100% of the Jake Creek project through the issue of 372,541
common shares valued at $85,684.
On April 17, 2018, the Company entered into an exploration earn-in agreement with Ginguro Jake Inc., a subsidiary of Ginguro
Gold Pty. Ltd. (“Ginguro”). The agreement grants Ginguro the option to earn a 70% interest in the Jake Creek project by
spending US$3,000,000 over a 5-year period. Ginguro paid RenGold $19,050 (US$15,000) on signing and $13,237
(US$10,000) in April 2019. Both payments were credited against acquisition costs.
Jupiter, Nye County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Jupiter project through directly held unpatented claims and the project is subject to a 1%
NSR royalty to Altius Royalty Corporation (“Altius”).
On June 15, 2017, as amended, the Company entered into a binding terms sheet with Ramelius Resources Limited
(“Ramelius”), an Australian public company, which was superseded by a definitive agreement on November 30, 2017. The
agreement grants Ramelius the right to earn a 75% interest in the property by spending US$3,000,000 over a 5-year period.
Ramelius paid the Company a one-time payment of $32,443 (US$25,000) upon signing the binding term sheet, must spend
US$250,000 in the first year (completed), and must spend a minimum of US$100,000 in subsequent years to maintain the
agreement. Following completion of the earn-in, Ramelius will carry the Company’s share of joint venture expenditures up to
Ramelius making a decision to mine. Upon making a decision to mine, the Company must either contribute to ongoing joint
venture expenditures in proportion to its ownership interest, dilute to a royalty interest, or allow Ramelius to provide project
financing for the Company, whereby Ramelius increases its project interest to 80%.
Maggie Creek, Eureka County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Maggie Creek project through directly held unpatented claims.
On August 20, 2015, the Company entered into an agreement with Wolfpack whereby the Company acquired the Maggie Creek
project from Wolfpack in exchange for a 1% NSR royalty that can be bought down at any time for US$1,500,000 or fractions
thereof at the pro-rata cost at any time during the term of the agreement. In addition, a 2% NSR royalty is now payable to
EMX Royalty Corp. (formerly Eurasian Minerals Inc.) which exists under a pre-existing deed of royalties.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Manhattan Gap, Lincoln County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Manhattan Gap project through directly held unpatented claims.
Mars, Lincoln County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Mars project through directly held unpatented claims and a mineral lease.
On February 28, 2018, the Company entered into an exploration and mining lease and option to purchase agreement with Pilot
Gold (USA) Inc. (“Pilot”). The Company paid $12,648 (US$10,000) upon signing and will pay US$10,000 on each anniversary
of the agreement for up to ten years to complete the purchase option. The purchase option may be exercised at any time by
making all remaining payments. Upon exercising the option, the vendor’s interest would revert to a 3% NSR royalty, with 2%
buyable for US$1,000,000 per 1%. The Company has no work commitments under this agreement.
To maintain the option, the Company is required to make annual payments as follows:
Payment
US$
$10,000 (paid)
$10,000 (paid)
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000

Date
On execution of the option agreement
February 28, 2019
February 28, 2020
February 28, 2021
February 28, 2022
February 28, 2023
February 28, 2024
February 28, 2025
February 28, 2026
February 28, 2027

On December 11, 2018, the Company entered into an earn-in agreement with Hochschild, granting Hochschild the option to
earn a 51% interest in the Mars exploration project. Pursuant to the agreement, Hochschild paid the Company $33,093
(US$25,000) on signing. This payment was first credited against the acquisition costs for $13,237 (US$10,000) with the
remainder of $19,856 (US$15,000) being recorded as exploration and evaluation recoveries for the year ended June 30, 2019.
To maintain the option, Hochschild must pay the Company an additional US$275,000 and spend US$5,000,000 (US$300,000
committed) over a five year period. Once vested Hochschild has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 19% interest
by spending an additional US$5,000,000 by December 11, 2027. If a party’s participating interest in the joint venture is reduced
to ten percent (10%) or less then such party’s participating interest shall automatically be converted to a varying NSR royalty
based on ownership of the relevant claim and any underlying royalties on those claims.
On November 26, 2018, the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire 11 unpatented mining claims adjacent to
and just south of the Mars project. The owners retain a 1.5% NSR royalty, 1% of which may be purchased for US$1,000,000.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Mars, Lincoln County, Nevada (continued)
To maintain the option, the Company is required to make annual payments as follows:
Payment
US$
$5,000 (paid)
$5,000
$10,000
$10,000
$15,000
$20,000
$25,000
$25,000
$50,000
$50,000
$85,000

Date
On execution of the option agreement
November 26, 2019
November 26, 2020
November 26, 2021
November 26, 2022
November 26, 2023
November 26, 2024
November 26, 2025
November 26, 2026
November 26, 2027
November 26, 2028
McDO, Malheur County, Oregon

The Company holds its interest in the McDO project through directly held unpatented claims.
Pluto, Lander County, Nevada
The Company held its interest in the Pluto project through directly held unpatented mining claims and one mining lease.
Effective July 2017, until it was terminated March 6, 2018, the Company was party to an earn-in agreement with Nevada Star
(see Ecru above).
On April 6, 2018, the Company informed the underlying lease holder that they would not be continuing with the mining lease
and the remaining unpatented claims were allowed to lapse in August 2018. Accordingly, the Company wrote-off acquisition
costs totaling $276,036 in the year ended June 30, 2018.
Raven, Lander County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Raven project through directly held unpatented claims.
On August 9, 2017, the Company issued 370,767 common shares to Ivy Minerals, Inc. (“Ivy Minerals”) and granted Ivy
Minerals a 0.5% NSR royalty on the claims of the Raven property, as they are currently constituted, to acquire Ivy Minerals
49.9% interest, giving RenGold a 100% interest in the Raven project.
Secret Canyon, Pershing County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Secret Canyon project through directly held unpatented mining claims and one mining
lease.
Effective June 22, 2015, as amended April 12, 2017, the Company entered into an exploration and mining lease and option to
purchase agreement with Nevada Mine Properties II, Inc. (“Nevada Mine”). The owner retained a 3% NSR royalty subject to
a buy-down provision of which RenGold may purchase 2% by paying US$2,000,000.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Secret Canyon, Pershing County, Nevada (continued)
To maintain the option, the Company is required to make annual payments as follows:
Payment
US$
$2,500 (paid)
$2,500 (paid)
$2,500 (paid)
$2,500
$5,000
$5,000
$10,000
$15,000
$20,000
$25,000

Date

April 12, 2017
April 12, 2018
April 12, 2019
Annual payments until the Effective Date *
Within 30 days of the Effective Date
First anniversary of the Effective Date
Second anniversary of the Effective Date
Third anniversary of the Effective Date
Fourth anniversary of the Effective Date
Fifth anniversary of the Effective Date
Sixth anniversary through the thirtieth anniversary of the
Effective Date
$50,000
*the Effective Date is the date of execution of an agreement with a funding partner
Silicon, Nye County, Nevada

The Company holds its interest in the Silicon project through directly held unpatented mining claims and the project is subject
to a 1.5% NSR royalty to Altius.
On May 1, 2017, the Company entered into an option agreement with AngloGold Ashanti North America, Inc. (“AngloGold”).
Pursuant to the agreement, AngloGold paid the Company $129,114 (US$100,000) on signing and reimbursed the Company
$87,920 (US$68,083) for certain exploration costs incurred by the Company. AngloGold paid the Company $254,003
(US$200,000) in May 2018 which was recorded as exploration and evaluation recoveries for the year ended June 30, 2018.
AngloGold paid the Company $397,123 (US$300,000) in May 2019 which was recorded as exploration and evaluation
recoveries for the year ended June 30, 2019. To maintain the option, AngloGold must pay a final payment of US$2,400,000
by June 21, 2020. Upon RenGold having been paid a total of US$3,000,000, AngloGold would then own a 100% interest in
the property subject to RenGold retaining a 1% NSR royalty on future production. AngloGold may withdraw at any time
during the option period with no retained interest.
South Roberts, Eureka County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the South Roberts project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective January 2, 2012, until it was terminated May 1, 2019, the Company was party to a mineral lease and option to purchase
agreement with Harvest Gold Corporation (US) (“Harvest”). In June 2019, Harvest agreed to quit claim its ground to the
Company in exchange for a 1% NSR royalty.
Effective July 31, 2017, until it was terminated October 19, 2018, the Company was party to an earn-in agreement with Nevada
Star (see Ecru above).
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Spring Peak, Mineral County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Spring Peak project through an underlying mineral lease.
On January 20, 2012, as amended September 5, 2013 and April 12, 2016, the Company entered into a mineral lease and option
to purchase agreements with Gregory J. Kuzma and Heidi A. Kuzma (the “Kuzma lease”). The owners retain a 2.5% NSR
royalty, 1.5% of which may be purchased for US$500,000 per half percentage point. The Company has the option to purchase
the Spring Peak project for US$500,000 within one year following the completion of a technical report that documents a
minimum 500,000 ounce gold equivalent inferred resource.
To maintain the option, the Company is required to make annual payments as follows:
Payment
US$
$10,000 (paid)
$10,000 (paid)
$12,500 (paid)
$12,500 (paid)
$20,000
$30,000
$40,000
$50,000
$60,000
$60,000

Date
January 20, 2012
January 20, 2013
May 18, 2016
February 7, 2019
Thirty days (30) after the Permit Date *
First anniversary of the Permit Date
Second anniversary of the Permit Date
Third through twelfth anniversary of the Permit Date
Twelfth through sixteenth anniversary of the Permit Date
Each anniversary thereafter until termination
*the Permit Date is the date that a drill permit is issued

Effective May 18, 2016, until it was terminated July 16, 2018, the Company was party to an agreement with Radius Gold Inc.
On January 17, 2019, the Company entered into an earn-in agreement with OceanaGold granting OceanaGold the option to
earn a 51% interest in the Spring Peak exploration project. Pursuant to the agreement, OceanaGold paid the Company $19,856
(US$15,000) on signing which was credited against acquisition costs. To maintain the option, OceanaGold must pay the
Company an additional US$200,000 and spend US$4,000,000 (US$150,000 committed) over a five year period. Once vested,
OceanaGold has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 24% interest by spending an additional US$6,000,000 by
January 17, 2028. If a party’s participating interest in the joint venture is reduced to ten percent (10%) or less then such party’s
participating interest shall automatically be converted to a 1% NSR royalty.
Spruce East, Elko County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Spruce East project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective May 15, 2017, until it was terminated December 20, 2018, the Company was party to an exploration earn-in agreement
with Kinross Gold U.S.A., Inc.
Ted, Mineral County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Ted project through directly held unpatented claims.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Trinity Silver, Pershing County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Trinity Silver project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective July 29, 2005, until it was terminated May 8, 2018, the Company was party to a minerals lease and sublease agreement
with Newmont.
Although the Company still holds a small claim block, the Company wrote-off acquisition costs totaling $99,878 during the
year ended June 30, 2018 given that the above agreement was terminated.
Wood Hills South, Elko County, Nevada
The Company held its interest in the Wood Hills project through directly held unpatented mining claims that were allowed to
lapse. Accordingly, the Company wrote-off acquisition costs totaling $79,210 in the year ended June 30, 2018.
Coeur Alliance
Effective May 18, 2017, until it was terminated May 18, 2019, the Company was party to an exploration alliance agreement
with Coeur whereby Coeur funded US$500,000 in generative exploration over two years.
Argentina projects
In 2014, the Company sold its Argentinean projects to Magna Terra in exchange for cash, future cash payments, common
shares of Magna Terra (Note 5), and a NSR royalty on all properties of 4% less any underlying NSR royalty (including
governmental and underlying ownerships) to be not less than 1% or greater than 3%.
On September 6, 2017, the parties entered into an amending agreement whereby Magna Terra agreed to pay RenGold cash and
common shares of Magna Terra in exchange for cancelling the future cash payments. In October 2017, the Company received
$25,000 cash and 250,000 common shares of Magna Terra valued at $13,750. Accordingly, the Company recorded a gain on
sale of exploration and evaluation assets for $38,750 in the year ended June 30, 2018.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Exploration and evaluation expenditures included in the loss for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
Year ended June 30, 2019

Year ended June 30, 2018

Exploration and Recoveries from Net exploration Exploration and Recoveries from Net exploration
evaluation
funding
and evaluation
evaluation
funding
and evaluation
expenditures
partners
expenditures
expenditures
partners
expenditures
Nevada:
Arabia
Buffalo Canyon
Bunce
Cine Mountain
Diamond Point
Ecru
Ely Springs
Fat Lizard
Ferguson Mountain
Fireball Ridge
General reconnaissance
Ghost Ranch
Gilbert South
Golden Shears
Jake Creek
Jupiter
Maggie Creek
Manhattan Gap
Mars
Pluto
Raven
Secret Canyon
Silicon
South Roberts
Spring Peak
Spruce East
Ted
Trinity Silver
Wood Hills South

$

Oregon:
McDO
Utah:
Wildcat
Total

$

$
49,735
1,548
1,157
10,275
94,713
39,858
58,090
5,992
627,493
113,678
28,215
37,468
38,884
28,850
58,084
188,835
78,354
69,432
72,192
25,909
21,399
484,526
22,674
2,157,361

$
(36,531)
(92,305)
(36,413)
(54,330)
(323,951)
(32,557)
(38,884)
(24,174)
(171,264)
(61,248)
(20,257)
(15,107)
(483,394)
(1,390,415)

13,204
1,548
1,157
10,275
2,408
3,445
3,760
5,992
303,542
113,678
28,215
4,911
4,676
58,084
17,571
78,354
69,432
10,944
5,652
6,292
1,132
22,674
766,946

20,248

-

-

-

2,177,609 $

(1,390,415) $
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$

1,407 $
257,699
5,889
71,687
12,027
5,402
14,922
23,507
5,908
6,765
561,518
48,677
11,384
3,792
45,809
36,255
103,024
54,831
97,610
17,085
62,549
48,930
1,942
302,419
35,347
29,279
1,865,664

$
(252,279)
(71,687)
(7,134)
(4,975)
(298,599)
(1,260)
(40,473)
(44,783)
(58,267)
(47,674)
(1,942)
(299,706)
(1,128,779)

20,248

-

-

-

-

25,399

(23,573)

1,826

1,891,063 $

(1,152,352) $

787,194 $

1,407
5,420
5,889
4,893
427
14,922
23,507
5,908
6,765
262,919
48,677
11,384
2,532
5,336
36,255
103,024
10,048
97,610
17,085
4,282
1,256
2,713
35,347
29,279
736,885

738,711

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

9.

EQUIPMENT
Nevada
Office
equipment

Cost
At June 30, 2017
Additions
Disposals
Write-off
Foreign exchange
At June 30, 2018
Additions
Foreign exchange
At June 30, 2019

Field
equipment

Vehicles

Total

54,173 $
(10,655)
404
43,922
(270)
43,652 $

36,312 $
7,066
(11,885)
356
31,849
2,683
(226)
34,306 $

95,152 $
(953)
(3,672)
1,232
91,759
(565)
91,194 $

75,357 $
(36,875)
(249)
38,233
(235)
37,998 $

260,994
7,066
(37,828)
(26,212)
1,743
205,763
2,683
(1,296)
207,150

$

50,141 $
944
(10,655)
380
40,810
984
(263)
41,531 $

34,666 $
3,128
(11,885)
188
26,097
3,260
(197)
29,160 $

94,598 $
274
(953)
(3,672)
1,232
91,479
280
(565)
91,194 $

75,357 $
(36,875)
(249)
38,233
(235)
37,998 $

254,762
4,346
(37,828)
(26,212)
1,551
196,619
4,524
(1,260)
199,883

At June 30, 2018

$

3,112 $

5,752 $

280 $

-

$

9,144

At June 30, 2019

$

2,121 $

5,146 $

-

-

$

7,267

Accumulated depreciation
At June 30, 2017
Depreciation
Disposals
Write-off
Foreign exchange
At June 30, 2018
Depreciation
Foreign exchange
At June 30, 2019

$

Computers

$
$

Carrying amounts

$

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company sold equipment for proceeds of $10,479 with a net book value of $Nil and
accordingly recorded a gain on sale of equipment of $10,479.
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10.

RECLAMATION BONDS

The Company is required to post bonds, with the Bureau of Land Management and/or the State of Nevada and/or the USDA
Forest Service as appropriate, for reclamation of planned mineral exploration programs work associated with the Company’s
exploration and evaluation assets located in the United States. For the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets that are
being actively explored under funding arrangement agreements, the funding partners are responsible for bonding for the surface
disturbance created by the exploration programs funded by each of them on those projects. In some cases, the Company
purchases the bonding for funding partners in its own name for which it is reimbursed by the funding partner. When the surface
disturbance is reclaimed and paid for by the funding partner and the bond is eventually released to the Company, the Company
will pay the proceeds of the bond to that funding partner.
Buffalo
Canyon
At June 30, 2017
Additions
Foreign exchange

$

At June 30, 2018
Additions
Refunds
Foreign exchange
At June 30, 2019

11.

Diamond
Point

$
40,061
2,208

$
15,315
845

42,269
(29,603)
945
$

Total
55,376
3,053

16,160
(100)

13,611 $

58,429
(29,603)
845

16,060 $

29,671

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Trade payables
Due to related parties (Note 14)

$

111,775
2,969

$

148,049
1,318

Total

$

114,744

$

149,367

12.

AMOUNTS DUE TO FUNDING PARTNERS
June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Cash advances received in excess of exploration expenditures
Cash advances received in excess of reclamation work performed

$

190,702 $
-

409,900
44,212

Total

$

190,702 $

454,112
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13.

SHARE CAPITAL

a)

Authorized share capital

The authorized share capital is comprised of an unlimited number of common shares without par value and an unlimited number
of preferred shares without par value.
b)

Issued share capital

At June 30, 2019, the Company had 68,461,030 (2018 – 62,744,814) common shares issued and outstanding. A summary of
changes in share capital and reserves is contained on the consolidated statements of changes in equity for the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018.
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company:
i)

completed a non-brokered private placement with Altius Minerals Corporation through the issue of 5,716,216 units at
a price of $0.25 per unit for gross proceeds of $1,429,054. Each unit consists of one common share and one share
purchase warrant with each share purchase warrant exercisable into one common share of the Company at a price of
$0.50 per share until April 30, 2024. The warrants were valued at $285,811 using the residual value method. The
Company paid share issue costs of $7,895 cash
If the daily volume weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company is at least $0.75 per share
for 20 consecutive trading days in the period, the Company will have the right, exercisable within three trading days
thereof, to accelerate the expiry date of the warrants to the date which is 30 days after notice is given to the holders of
the warrants of the accelerated expiry date and a news release to that effect is given.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company:
i)

completed a private placement through the issue of 12,988,332 units at a price of $0.24 per unit for gross proceeds of
$3,117,200. Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant with each share purchase
warrant exercisable into one common share of the Company at a price of $0.48 per share until May 16, 2023. The
warrants were valued at $324,708 using the residual value method.
If the daily volume weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company is at least $0.72 per share
for 20 consecutive trading days in the period, the Company will have the right, exercisable within three trading days
thereof, to accelerate the expiry date of the warrants to the date which is 30 days after notice is given to the holders of
the warrants of the accelerated expiry date and a news release to that effect is given.
The Company paid finders’ fees of $132,700 cash, issued 15,000 broker units valued at $3,600, and paid other share
issue costs of $24,637 cash. The warrants included in the broker units have the same terms as the warrants issued in
the private placement. The broker warrants were valued at $375 using the residual value method.

ii) issued 370,767 common shares, that had been recorded as an obligation to issue shares of $126,061 as at June 30,
2017, to acquire Ivy Minerals 49.9% interest in the Raven project (Note 8);
iii) issued 477,331 common shares valued at $126,493 to exercise its option to acquire 100% of the Ecru project (Note
8); and
iv) issued 372,541 common shares valued at $85,684 to exercise its option to acquire 100% of the Jake Creek project
(Note 8).
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13.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

c)

Warrants

The continuity of warrants for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Expiry date
June 30, 2019
May 16, 2023 *
April 30, 2024 **

Exercise
price
$0.60
$0.48
$0.50

Weighted average exercise price

Balance,
June 30,
2018
4,900,000
13,003,332
17,903,332

Granted
5,716,216
5,716,216

$0.51

$0.50

Exercised
$0.00

Expired
(4,900,000)
(4,900,000)

Balance,
June 30,
2019
13,003,332
5,716,216
18,719,548

$0.60

$0.49

* If the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company is at least $0.72 per share for 20
consecutive trading days, the Company will have the right, exercisable within three trading days thereof, to accelerate the
expiry date of the warrants to the date which is 30 days after notice is given to the holders of the warrants of the accelerated
expiry date and a news release to that effect is given.
** If the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company is at least $0.75 per share for 20
consecutive trading days, the Company will have the right, exercisable within three trading days thereof, to accelerate the
expiry date of the warrants to the date which is 30 days after notice is given to the holders of the warrants of the accelerated
expiry date and a news release to that effect is given.
The continuity of warrants for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Expiry date
June 30, 2019
June 30, 2018
May 16, 2023

Exercise
price
$0.60
$0.35
$0.48

Weighted average exercise price

d)

Balance,
June 30,
2017
4,900,000
187,800
5,087,800

Granted
13,003,332
13,003,332

$0.59

$0.48

Exercised
$0.00

Expired
(187,800)
(187,800)

Balance,
June 30,
2018
4,900,000
13,003,332
17,903,332

$0.35

$0.51

Stock options

On December 7, 2018, the Company’s shareholders approved a rolling stock option plan (the “Plan”) pursuant to which the
Company may grant incentive stock options to directors, officers, employees and consultants. The Plan permits the granting
of up to 10% of the common shares of the Company issued and outstanding at the date of grant. The exercise price of an option
shall not be less than the discounted market price at the time of granting as prescribed by the policies of the TSX Venture
Exchange. The maximum term of the stock options is ten years from the grant date. Vesting terms are at the discretion of the
directors.
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

d)

Stock options (continued)

The continuity of stock options for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Expiry date
August 19, 2019 *
August 18, 2021
July 24, 2022
December 19, 2022
August 14, 2023

Exercise
price
$0.48
$0.57
$0.265
$0.265
$0.205

Weighted average exercise price

Balance,
June 30,
2018
560,000
835,000
838,000
20,000
2,253,000

Granted
1,880,000
1,880,000

$0.43

$0.21

Exercised
$0.00

Expired/
cancelled
(30,000)
(25,000)
(13,000)
(68,000)

Balance,
June 30,
2019
530,000
810,000
825,000
20,000
1,880,000
4,065,000

$0.47

$0.33

Expired/
cancelled
(859,997)
(682,000)
(20,000)
(40,000)
(22,000)
(1,623,997)

Balance,
June 30,
2018
560,000
835,000
838,000
20,000
2,253,000

$0.58

$0.43

* expired unexercised subsequent to year-end (Note 19)
At June 30, 2019, all stock options were exercisable.
The continuity of stock options for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Expiry date
July 20, 2017
March 15, 2018
August 19, 2019
August 18, 2021
July 24, 2022
December 19, 2022

Exercise
price
$0.71
$0.42
$0.48
$0.57
$0.265
$0.265

Weighted average exercise price

e)

Balance,
June 30,
2017
859,997
682,000
580,000
875,000
2,996,997

Granted
860,000
20,000
880,000

$0.56

$0.27

Exercised
$0.00

Shareholder rights plan

The Company has a shareholder rights plan (the “SH Rights Plan”) to ensure, to the extent possible, that all holders of common
shares of the Company and the Board of Directors have adequate time to consider and evaluate any such take-over bid, the
Board of Directors has adequate time to identify, solicit, develop and negotiate value-enhancing alternatives, as considered
appropriate, to any such take-over bid and the Company's shareholders are treated fairly in connection with any such take-over
bid. The SH Rights Plan was approved by the shareholders on September 30, 2011 and is in effect for 10 years.
f)

Share-based compensation

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded $263,448 of share-based compensation for options that vested
during the year as follows:
•

On August 14, 2018, the Company granted 1,880,000 stock options with a fair value of $263,448, or $0.14 per option,
all of which was recorded as share-based compensation in the year ended June 30, 2019. The fair value was estimated
on the grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following assumptions: 86.28% expected
stock price volatility, a 2.23% risk free interest rate, a five year expected life and zero expected dividend yield.
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13.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

f)

Share-based compensation (continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company recorded $222,653 of share-based compensation for options that vested
during the year as follows:
•

On December 19, 2017, the Company granted 20,000 stock options with a fair value of $3,493 or $0.17 per option,
all of which was recorded as share-based compensation for the year ended June 30, 2018. The fair value was estimated
on the grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following assumptions: 88.42% expected
stock price volatility, a 1.75% risk free interest rate, a five year expected life and zero expected dividend yield.

•

On July 24, 2017, the Company granted 860,000 stock options with a fair value of $156,762 or $0.18 per option, all
of which was recorded as share-based compensation for the year ended June 30, 2018. The fair value was estimated
on the grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following assumptions: 88.19% expected
stock price volatility, a 1.50% risk free interest rate, a five year expected life and zero expected dividend yield.

•

On August 18, 2016, the Company granted 875,000 stock options with a fair value of $335,077 or $0.38 per option,
of which $62,398 was recorded as share-based compensation for the year ended June 30, 2018 and $272,679 was
recorded for the year ended June 30, 2017. The fair value was estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model with the following assumptions: 86.55% expected stock price volatility, a 0.61% risk free
interest rate, a five year expected life and zero expected dividend yield.

14.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a)

Consulting fees

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company paid or accrued $90,000 (2018 – $90,000) to Golden Oak Corporate
Services Ltd. (“Golden Oak”). Golden Oak is a consulting company controlled by the Chief Financial Officer and Corporate
Secretary of the Company. Golden Oak provides the services of a Chief Financial Officer, a Corporate Secretary, and
accounting and administrative staff to the Company. The Chief Financial Officer and the Corporate Secretary are employees
of Golden Oak and are not paid directly by the Company.
b)

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management includes members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Chairman, the President and Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Corporate Secretary. The aggregate compensation paid, or payable, to key
management personnel, which include the amounts disclosed above, during the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:
Year ended June 30,
2019
2018

Relationship

Description

Officers
Independent directors
Golden Oak - Officers
Directors and officers

Salaries and benefits
$
Director fees included in salaries and benefits
Consulting fees
Share-based compensation

212,858 $
15,885
90,000
154,145

285,652
15,240
90,000
142,661

$

472,888 $

533,553

As at June 30, 2019, the Company owed $2,969 (2018 – $1,318) to Golden Oak and the CEO of the Company for the
reimbursement of expenditures (Note 11). All amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
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15.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

RenGold operates in one business segment being the acquisition and exploration of exploration and evaluation assets and has
one geographic segment being the USA. The total assets relate primarily to exploration and evaluation assets and equipment
and have been disclosed in Notes 8 and 9.

16.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are classified into one of the following categories: FVTPL; FVTOCI; or at amortized cost. The carrying
values of the Company’s financial instruments are classified into the following categories:

Financial Instrument
Cash
Marketable securities
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Reclamation bonds
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners

June 30,
2019

Category
FVTPL
FVTOCI
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

$

4,277,843 $
7,037
15,471
56,857
29,671
(114,744)
(190,702)

June 30,
2018
4,677,008
18,764
4,061
58,429
(149,367)
(454,112)

The Company’s financial instruments recorded at fair value require disclosure about how the fair value was determined based
on significant levels of inputs described in the following hierarchy:
Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active
markets are those in which transactions occur in sufficient frequency and value to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis.
Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1. Prices in Level 2 are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 valuations are based on inputs including quoted
forward prices for commodities, time value and volatility factors, which can be substantially observed or
corroborated in the market place.
Level 3 - Valuations in this level are those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.
The carrying values of receivables, amounts due from funding partners, reclamation bonds, trade and other payables, and
amounts due to funding partners approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature. Cash and marketable securities
are recorded at fair value using Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
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16.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk management
The Company’s risk exposures and the impact on the Company’s financial instruments are summarized as follows:
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of potential loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its liquid financial assets, including cash and receivables.
The Company limits the exposure to credit risk in its cash by only investing its cash with high-credit quality financial
institutions in business and savings accounts, guaranteed investment certificates and in government treasury bills which are
available on demand by the Company for its programs. The Company`s receivables primarily include balances receivable from
the government of Canada.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not have the resources to meet its obligations as they fall due. The Company
manages this risk by closely monitoring cash forecasts and managing resources to ensure that there is sufficient capital in order
to meet short-term business requirements. All of the Company’s financial liabilities are classified as current and are anticipated
to mature within the next sixty days.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and
commodity and equity prices. These fluctuations may be significant.
(a) Interest Rate Risk: The Company is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that its cash balances bear variable rates
of interest. The interest rate risks on cash and on the Company’s obligations are not considered significant.
(b) Foreign Exchange Risk: The Company expects to continue to raise equity predominately in Canadian dollars, however
the Company is primarily conducting business in the USA. As such, it is subject to fluctuations in the exchange rate
between the Canadian dollar and the US dollar. As at June 30, 2019, the Company holds 88% of its cash in Canadian
dollars. Management believes the foreign exchange risk related to currency conversions is minimal and therefore,
does not hedge its foreign exchange risk. The effect of a five percent change in the foreign exchange rate on the cash
held in the US dollar at June 30, 2019 would be approximately $27,000.
(c) Commodity Price Risk: While the value of the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets are related to the price
of gold and the outlook for this mineral, the Company currently does not have any operating mines and hence does
not have any hedging or other commodity based risks in respect to its operational activities.
Historically, the price of gold has fluctuated significantly and is affected by numerous factors outside of the Company’s
control, including but not limited to industrial and retail demand, central bank lending, forward sales by producers and
speculators, levels of worldwide production, short-term changes in supply and demand because of speculative hedging
activities, and certain other factors related specifically to gold.
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17.

MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Company manages its common shares, warrants and stock options as capital. The Company’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to pursue the development of its
exploration and evaluation assets and to maintain a flexible capital structure which optimizes the costs of capital at an acceptable
risk. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may attempt to issue new
shares, issue debt, acquire or dispose of assets, or adjust the amount of cash.
In order to facilitate the management of its capital requirements, the Company prepares expenditure forecasts that are updated
as necessary depending on various factors, including successful capital deployment and general industry conditions. In order
to maximize ongoing exploration efforts, the Company does not pay out dividends.
The Company’s investment policy is to keep its cash treasury on deposit in an interest bearing Canadian chartered bank account.
The Company expects its current capital resources will be sufficient to carry out its exploration plans and operations through
the next twelve months. There have been no changes to the Company’s approach to capital management for the years presented.

18.

INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:
Year ended June 30,
2019
2018
Loss for the year

$

(1,718,711) $

(2,478,285)

Expected income tax recovery
Change in statutory, foreign tax, foreign exchange rates and other
Permanent differences
Share issue costs
Adjustment to prior years provision versus statutory tax returns
Change in unrecognized deductible temporary differences
Total

$

(464,000) $
122,000
68,000
(2,000)
(120,000)
396,000
$

(673,000)
1,922,000
167,000
(42,000)
(39,000)
(1,335,000)
-

- 29 -

$

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended June 30, 2019

18.

INCOME TAXES (continued)

The significant components of the Company’s unrecorded deferred tax assets are as follows:
June 30,
2019
Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
Exploration and evaluation assets
Allowable capital losses
Equipment
Share issue costs
Marketable securities
Non-capital losses available for future periods
Total unrecognized deferred tax assets

June 30,
2018

$

275,000 $
435,000
6,000
34,000
5,000
4,333,000

229,000
435,000
6,000
46,000
3,000
3,973,000

$

5,088,000 $

4,692,000

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in these financial statements as it is not probable that they will be realized.
The significant components of the Company’s unrecognized temporary differences and tax losses are as follows:
June 30,
2019
Temporary differences
Exploration and evaluation assets
Equipment
Share issue costs
Marketable securities
Allowable capital losses
Non-capital losses available for future periods
Non-capital loss summary
Canada
USA

Expiry date range

$

1,310,000
30,000
127,000
37,000
1,609,000
19,802,000

no expiry date
no expiry date
2040 to 2043
no expiry date
no expiry date
see below

$

2,899,000 2029 to 2039
15,728,000 2021 to 2039

Tax attributes are subject to review, and potential adjustment, by tax authorities.

19.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 2019, the Company completed the following transactions:
a)

On July 17, 2019, the Company granted 2,770,000 stock options exercisable at a price of $0.285 per share until July
17, 2024; and

b) On August 19, 2019, 530,000 stock options expired unexercised.
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Introduction
The following is management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the results of operations and financial condition
of Renaissance Gold Inc. (the “Company” or “RenGold”) for the year ended June 30, 2019 and up to the date of this
MD&A, should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2019, together with the notes thereto (the “Financial Report”).
All financial information in this MD&A is derived from the Company’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars
unless otherwise indicated.
The effective date of this MD&A is October 23, 2019.

Description of the Business
RenGold was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) on May 25, 2010 and its
common shares are listed for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSX-V”) under the symbol REN and the
OTCQB under the symbol RNSGF. RenGold’s operating office is located at 4750 Longley Lane, Suite 106, Reno,
NV 89502. RenGold’s registered and corporate office is located at Unit 1 – 15782 Marine Drive, White Rock, British
Columbia, Canada, V4B 1E6.
RenGold is an exploration stage business engaged in the acquisition and exploration of mineral properties located
primarily in the western United States of America (“USA”). RenGold’s business model is to identify and secure
mineral properties for which it seeks suitable funding partners. Once funding partners are found, an exploration and
option to earn-in agreement is entered into on the property enabling the earn-in partner to obtain an interest by
conducting and funding exploration on that property.

Operational Highlights
During the year ended June 30, 2019, and to the date of this MD&A, RenGold continued its increased drilling activity
keeping the Company on the path to its next discovery. Generative exploration efforts continue to identify high quality
targets, which the Company looks forward to placing in deals with strong partners in the future.
Fiscal
2019

Activity
Private placements

$

Projects drilled **

1,429,054 $
6

Exploration and evaluation expenditures, before recoveries *

$

2,177,609 $

Fiscal
2018
3,117,200 $
7
1,891,063 $

Fiscal
2017
1,615,000
1
1,144,032

New agreements with funding partners
Projects funded under new agreements with funding partners

4
4

3
5

3
5

New exploration projects acquired through staking **
New exploration projects acquired through agreement
New exploration projects acquired through Kinetic acquisition

5
0
0

3
0
2

2
0
7

* In addition, funding partners also conducted additional exploration programs directly on RenGold’s projects as
required under the particular exploration earn-in agreements
** Fiscal 2019 numbers are for fiscal 2019 and up to the date of the MD&A
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Generative exploration
The Company continues to take an aggressive approach to its generative exploration efforts in anticipation of
increasing demand for exploration in an improving gold market. In the year ended June 30, 2019, and to the date of
this MD&A, RenGold has generated five new projects and it is the Company’s goal to keep actively pursuing new,
quality discovery opportunities to benefit both investors and industry partners.
•

The Ghost Ranch project is located in Elko County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open
ground. The project is a shallow pediment target located SE of Newmont Goldcorp’s Long Canyon Mine and
along a northwest trend of gold occurrences. The target is indicated by gravity data, enzyme leach soil
geochemistry and a pH survey. The Company is currently seeking a funding partner.

•

The Manhattan Gap project is located in Lincoln County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on
open ground in the historically productive Pioche (Pb-Zn-Ag) District. The project targets polymetallic
carbonate replacement mineralization along the Cambro-Ordovician unconformity. Multiple undrilled
targets are indicated by surface sampling, geologic mapping, and a newly completed gravity survey. The
Company is currently seeking a funding partner.

•

The McDO project is located in Malheur County, Oregon, and was acquired through staking on open ground.
The project was generated during reconnaissance exploration around the McDermitt caldera, which is known
to host epithermal precious metal mineralization as well as lithium and uranium. The upper levels of the
targeted system are represented by anomalous mercury on surface, and the project targets low sulfidation
epithermal gold-silver mineralization beneath the mercury occurrence associated with caldera related
structures. The Company is currently seeking a funding partner.

•

The Ted project is located in Mineral County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open
ground. The project was generated as part of the Company’s ongoing generative exploration
program. Extensive surface clay alteration, anomalous mercury and gold values and shallow historic drilling
support the existence of a gold-bearing epithermal system, which has not been tested to interpreted target
depths. The Company is currently seeking funding partner.

•

The Baby Doe project is located in Esmeralda County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open
ground in July 2019. The project lies within a large, shallow level, steam heated alteration zone containing
historic mercury mines. Outcropping, drilled gold systems occur to the north and south of the project area
and the most intensely altered portion of the system has seen only limited historic drilling and no known
deeper tests of the system. The Company is currently seeking a funding partner.
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Exploration projects with funding partners
At the date of this MD&A, RenGold has 8 properties under exploration funding agreements:
Project

Funding partner

Ecru

S2 Resources Ltd. (“S2 Resources”)

Fat Lizard

OceanaGold U.S. Holding Inc. (“OceanaGold”), a subsidiary
of OceanaGold Corporation

Ferguson Mountain

Hochschild Mining (US) Inc. (“Hochschild”), a subsidiary of
Hochschild Mining plc

Jake Creek

Ginguro Gold Pty. Ltd. (“Ginguro”)

Jupiter

Ramelius Resources Limited (“Ramelius”)

Mars

Hochschild

Silicon

AngloGold Ashanti North America, Inc. (“AngloGold”)

Spring Peak

OceanaGold

The highlights of activity by RenGold and its funding partners on its exploration properties during the year ended June
30, 2019 and to the date of this MD&A follow.
Ecru

Nevada Star Exploration LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of S2 Resources has an option to earn a
70% interest in the Ecru project located in Lander Country, Nevada, by spending US$3,000,000
over a five year period. S2 Resources is the operator of the project.
On February 14, 2019, the Company announced the results from the initial stratigraphic drilling
program. Two holes, totaling 4,105 feet were drilled with the following combined objectives:
determining the thickness of the upper plate stratigraphy; determining the depth to the more
prospective lower plate carbonate stratigraphy; collecting preliminary data on the subsurface
geochemistry and alteration within the project area; and testing two geophysical anomaly scenarios,
namely an audiomagnetotelluric (AMT) conductivity high coincident with a gravity high, and an
AMT low coincident with a gravity low adjacent to interpreted intersecting structures which may
have acted as conduits for mineralizing fluids. Neither hole successfully penetrated into the more
prospective lower plate carbonate sequence beneath the upper plate siliciclastic sequence, but hole
NECD0001 intersected a 229 foot (83 meter) thick section of limestone and calcareous mudstones
within the siliciclastic sediments. It is not yet known if this represents part of the upper plate
siliciclastic sequence, or a thrusted wedge of prospective lower plate carbonates structurally
interleaved into the upper plate sequence. The main part of the AMT anomaly, which appears to be
open along the project’s southern and western boundaries adjacent to Barrick’s Robertson property,
is as yet untested. Samples were submitted for biostratigraphic age dating using microfossils in order
to clarify the stratigraphy and the potential for such structural repetition and interleaving of upper
and lower plate rocks. Unfortunately, the preservation and recovery of microfossils was not
sufficient to make a definitive determination.
S2 Resources acquired magnetic data over the project area in 2019 which defined a large, circular
magnetic feature (up to 2 km across,) comprising four discrete magnetic highs. These magnetic
highs broadly coincide with gravity lows and surround a central gravity high. The circular magnetic
feature is located at the intersection of interpreted structures and may represent a buried intrusion or
intrusions. This interpretation is supported by S2 Resource’s 2018 drilling results, which intersected
narrow low-grade gold-silver intercepts associated with zones of brecciation, silicification and
overprinting argillic alteration, within broader multi-element geochemical haloes (with elevated
antimony, arsenic, mercury, copper, zinc, molybdenum and tellurium), consistent with an intrusion
related origin. The identification of a potential intrusive complex within the Ecru project is
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considered highly significant, given that Nevada Gold Mines’ 2.7 million ounce Robertson gold
deposit, located immediately south of the Ecru project, is an intrusion related gold-silver skarn
deposit (see Coral Gold’s NI43-101 report, January 2012). Additionally, there is no discernable
magnetic signature associated with the large gravity high located to the northeast of the intrusive
complex. This is significant as the magnetic results do not indicate the presence of a buried intrusion,
suggesting that the gravity high may represent an uplifted body of prospective lower plate carbonate
sediments consistent with a Carlin-style gold target. S2 Resources is now in a position to test several
targets spanning both know deposit styles within the project area.
Fat Lizard

On February 20, 2019, the Company announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with
OceanaGold granting OceanaGold the option to earn a 51% interest in the Fat Lizard exploration
project located in Nevada. Pursuant to the agreement, OceanaGold paid the Company US$25,000
on signing. To maintain the option, OceanaGold must pay the Company an additional US$200,000
and spend US$3,000,000 (US$250,000 committed) over a five year period. Once vested,
OceanaGold has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 24% interest by spending an
additional US$5,000,000 by February 14, 2028. Once vested, the parties will contribute capital for
the joint venture’s expenditures in accordance with their respective participating interests subject to
straight-line dilution. If a party’s participating interest in the joint venture is reduced to ten percent
(10%) or less then such party’s participating interest shall automatically be converted to a 2% NSR
royalty. OceanaGold is the operator of the project.
The Fat Lizard project, Nye County, Nevada comprises a gold and silver bearing volcanic-hosted,
low- sulfidation epithermal system. The presence of steam-heated alteration suggests a shallow level
of exposure above a boiling zone. Mineralization occurs along a 1.2 km long mineralized fault zone
and is open to the west. A half-graben setting controls mineralization and suggests structural
intersections and horsetailing are present at moderate depths. Spectral measurements have been used
to map high-level alteration including kaolinite, dickite, and alunite-bearing zones. Limited illitesmectite alteration is present in a narrow upthrown structural block and is associated with anomalous
gold (up to 0.49 g/t) and silver (up to 10.8 g/t). Potential Au-Ag-rich mineralization may occur at
relatively shallow depths within a boiling horizon. This prospect has never been drilled.
A three hole, 1,303 meter oriented core program was completed in September 2019. The program
was designed to test deeper levels of an exposed high-level alteration system. No reportable
intercepts were encountered in the drilling, and the results are being reviewed with OceanaGold to
determine the next step for this project.

Ferguson
Mountain

On January 17, 2019, the Company announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with
Hochschild, granting Hochschild the option to earn a 51% interest in the Company’s Ferguson
Mountain exploration project located in Nevada. To maintain the option, Hochschild must pay the
Company US$275,000 and spend US$3,000,000 (US$200,000 committed) over a five year period.
Once vested, Hochschild has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 19% interest by
spending an additional US$3,000,000 by December 11, 2027. Once vested, the parties will
contribute capital for the joint venture’s expenditures in accordance with their respective
participating interests subject to straight-line dilution. If a party’s participating interest in the joint
venture is reduced to ten percent (10%) or less then such party’s participating interest shall
automatically be converted to a 3% NSR royalty. RenGold is the operator of the project.
The Ferguson Mountain project is located in Elko County, Nevada and hosts a Carlin-type target in
Devonian and younger carbonate host rocks. The RenGold technical team completed geologic
mapping and soil and rock chip sampling over the project area, which detected geochemical leakage
up structure from target horizons at depth. The targets are defined by the intersection of mapped
high-angle mineralized structures and several low-angle stratigraphic and structural horizons,
including the top of the Devonian unconformity and other horizons where structural and/or chemical
ground preparation is likely to be well developed.
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A seven hole, 1,415 meter reverse circulation drill program was completed in September 2019
testing several favorable structural and stratigraphic targets associated with mapped, mineralized
high-angle structures. No reportable intercepts were encountered in the drilling, and the results are
being reviewed with Hochschild to determine the next step for this project.
Jake Creek

The Jake Creek project, located in Humboldt County, Nevada is subject to an earn-in agreement
with Ginguro whereby Ginguro can earn a 70% interest in the project by spending US$3,000,000
over a five year period. Ginguro is the operator of the project.
The earn-in agreement requires a minimum expenditure from Ginguro by the next anniversary date
of April 17, 2020. Ginguro has informed RenGold that they are working on finalizing a drill
program that will satisfy the expenditure commitment prior to the anniversary.

Jupiter

The Jupiter project, located in Nye County, Nevada is subject to an earn-in agreement with Ramelius
whereby Ramelius has an option to earn a 75% interest in the Jupiter project by spending
US$3,000,000 over a five year period. Ramelius is the operator of the project.
A Phase 2 follow-up drilling program was completed in August 2018 and was designed to followup gold intercepts encountered in the 2017 program. The program consisted of 7 reverse circulation
drill holes totaling 1,547 meters. The program encountered several anomalous intercepts
associated with jasperoidal alteration developed along the Tertiary-Paleozoic contact and in
proximity to the graben bounding basement faults, however no increase in grade was observed. The
basement structures intercepted in hole JURC0010 were visually encouraging, but unmineralized.
The third drill campaign under this agreement began in mid-October 2019 and is designed to test
“Long Canyon-type” targets occurring along the Cambrian-Ordovician unconformity. One earlier
hole drilled in 2017 tested this target and encountered jasperoidal alteration at the unconformity.
The current program is designed to further test this horizon in the vicinity of mapped mineralized
structures containing gold in rock-chip assays up to 0.98 g/t.

Mars

On January 17, 2019, the Company announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with
Hochschild, granting Hochschild the option to earn a 51% interest in the Company’s Mars
exploration project located in Nevada. To maintain the option, Hochschild must pay the Company
US$275,000 and spend US$5,000,000 (US$300,000 committed) over a five year period. Once
vested, Hochschild has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 19% interest by spending an
additional US$5,000,000 by December 11, 2027. RenGold is the operator of the project.
The Mars project is located in Lincoln County, Nevada and hosts a Carlin-type target in lower
Paleozoic sedimentary rocks, characterized by anomalous gold in soils, and extensive jasperoid
alteration with rock chip assays up to 3.7 g/t Au. The gold system is exposed over a 4.5 km strike
length and occurs peripheral to a Mesozoic intrusive center. Historic work included three shallow
drill programs which encountered multiple low-grade gold intercepts but tested the system to a depth
of only 250 feet.
Hochschild funded a soil geochemistry survey, additional geologic mapping and an induced
polarization (IP) survey. These new data were combined with existing gravity data to design several
new, district scale structural and stratigraphic targets on the project. A ten hole, 2,320 meter reverse
circulation drill program was completed in early October 2019. Drill samples have been submitted
to the laboratory for analysis and will be reported when they become available.
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Silicon

The Silicon project is under option to AngloGold and is located in the Bare Mountain mining district,
Nye County, Nevada. Pursuant to the agreement AngloGold has the option to acquire the Silicon
project for payments aggregating US$3,000,000 with the final payment of US$2,400,000 due by
June 21, 2020. Following completion of the exercise of the purchase option, RenGold would retain
a 1% net smelter return royalty on future production from the project. AngloGold is the operator of
the project.
The Silicon project is near Corvus Gold Inc’s (TSX.V:KOR) North Bullfrog and Mother Lode
projects, and the Sterling mine, which was acquired by Coeur Mining, Inc. (NYSE:CDE) from
Northern Empire Resources (TSX.V:NM) for $117 million. Both properties have been active and
reporting good drill results.
AngloGold conducted drilling through May 2019 and to date have completed 28 reverse circulation
holes totaling 11,156 meters and 19 core holes totaling 7,863 meters. AngloGold is currently
working to obtain a Plan of Operations permit to allow further drilling.

Spring Peak

On January 25, 2019, the Company announced that it had entered into an earn-in agreement with
OceanaGold granting OceanaGold the option to earn a 51% interest in the Spring Peak exploration
project located in Nevada. To maintain the option, OceanaGold must pay the Company US$200,000
and spend US$4,000,000 (US$150,000 committed) over a five year period. Once vested,
OceanaGold has a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 24% interest by spending an
additional US$6,000,000 by January 17, 2028. If a party’s participating interest in the joint venture
is reduced to ten percent (10%) or less then such party’s participating interest shall automatically be
converted to a 1% NSR royalty. OceanaGold is the operator of the project.
The Spring Peak project is located in Mineral County, Nevada and hosts a low-sulfidation
epithermal gold system with significant gold (many multi-gram samples, up to 35 g/t) associated
with an anomalous pathfinder geochemical signature on surface. The system is fully preserved from
surface sinters to basement, contains classic banded veins and quartz after calcite boiling textures.
Historic drilling from the 1980s and 1990s consisted of shallow, mostly vertical drill holes, but
consistently encountered anomalous gold mineralization, with assays from drill chips up to 1.9 g/t
Au. Several targets exist on the property to test for high-grade bonanza veins associated with boiling
horizons.
During the 2019 field season, OceanaGold completed geologic mapping and sampling and a
coincident CSAMT and soil survey. The CSAMT results map several linear areas of high resistivity
which are coincident with mapped silicification, structures, interpreted hydrothermal vents and
anomalous Sb, As and Au in soils. The coincidence of these features has led to the generation of a
number of compelling targets on the project. Permitting with the U.S. Forest Service is near
completion and OceanaGold has informed RenGold that they expect to have the permit soon,
however they have decided against beginning a drill program at high elevation this late in the season
due to the risk of winter weather and associated logistical concerns. The drilling program has been
rescheduled for Q2/Q3 2020.

Qualified Person
All technical data, as disclosed in this MD&A, has been verified by the Company’s qualified person, Robert Felder,
M.Sc. and Certified Professional Geologist as recognized by the American Institute of Professional Geologists
(AIPG).
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Selected Annual Information
Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30 2019
$
Statement of Loss
Net revenues
Net loss
Net loss per share
Financial Position:
Total assets
Long term debt
Dividends

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30 2018
$

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30 2017
$

Nil
1,718,711
(0.03)

Nil
2,478,285
(0.05)

Nil
(1,715,307)
(0.05)

6,204,463
Nil
Nil

6,555,063
Nil
Nil

5,991,161
Nil
Nil

Results of Operations
Results of Operations for the year ended June 30, 2019
The consolidated net loss for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $1,718,711 (2018 - $2,478,285).
The significant items and changes between the current year and the comparative year are discussed below.
The majority of the Company’s expenses are incurred in US dollars but reported in Canadian dollars. The exchange
rate at June 30, 2019 was 1.3087 compared to 1.3168 at June 30, 2018. The average exchange rate for the year ended
June 30, 2019 was 1.3237 compared to 1.2700 in the comparative year. The effect of these translation differences
distorts the actual expenditure comparisons.
Exploration and evaluation expenditures on RenGold projects for the year ended June 30, 2018, net of funding partner
contributions was $787,194 (2018 - $738,711). In the year ended 2019, expenditures before recoveries were
$2,177,609 an increase of $286,546 or 15% over expenditures before recoveries of $1,891,063 in the comparative
year. In addition to the exploration and evaluation expenditures recorded in RenGold’s accounts, funding partners
also conducted additional exploration programs directly on RenGold’s projects as required under the particular
exploration earn-in agreements.
Exploration and evaluation recoveries are related to payments from funding partners in excess of amounts deferred to
the statement of financial position. In the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded total recoveries of
$448,677 of which $397,123 was from AngloGold on the Silicon project, $31,698 was from OceanaGold on the Fat
Lizard project, and $19,856 was from Hochschild on the Mars project. In the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company
recorded total recoveries of $317,504 of which $254,003 was from AngloGold on the Silicon project and $63,501 was
from Coeur on the Cine Mountain project.
Management fees earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 were $78,866 (2018 - $69,998) and relate to a fee charged
to funding partners on project’s where RenGold is the operator.
Office and miscellaneous expenses plus rent for the year ended June 30, 2018 total $242,104 (2018 - $229,450) and
are comparable year over year.
Regulatory and transfer agent fees totaled $79,086 (2018 - $44,200) for the year ended June 30, 2019. The increase
relates primarily to the cost of the Company’s initial listing on the OTCQB.
Salaries and benefits totaled $589,117 (2018 - $661,100) for the year ended June 30, 2019. Additionally, exploration
and evaluation expenditures include $648,249 (2018 - $616,861) of salaries and benefits of which $243,219 (2018 –
$253,485) was recovered from funding partners. The decrease in salaries and benefits over the prior year is primarily
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due to more salaries and benefits being charged to funding partners as well as certain cost cutting measures undertaken
by the Company during the year.
Shareholder relations totaled $137,949 (2018 - $86,393) for the year ended June 30, 2019. The increase in shareholder
relation relates to increased attendance at various investor conferences.
Non-cash share-based compensation expense was $263,448 (2018 - $222,653) which relates to stock option grants
that vested during the year.
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company did not record any write-offs of its exploration and evaluation
assets while in the comparative year the Company recorded a wrote-off of $705,124.

Summary of Quarterly Results
3 Months
Ended
June 30,
2019
$

3 Months
Ended
March 31,
2019
$

3 Months
Ended
December 31,
2018
$

3 Months
Ended
September 30,
2018
$

3 Months
Ended
June 30,
2018
$

3 Months
Ended
March 31,
2018
$

3 Months
Ended
December 31,
2017
$

3 Months
Ended
September 30,
2017
$

Total
revenues

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Net loss

(2,146) *

(322,908)

(438,736)

(954,921)

(660,049)

(638,672)

(517,907)

(661,657)

(0.00)

(0.00)

(0.01)

(0.02)

(0.02)

(0.01)

(0.01)

(0.01)

Net loss per
share, basic
and diluted

* during the three months ended June 30, 2019, the Company received an option payment of $397,123 from
AngloGold on the Silicon project which reduced the loss for the period

Liquidity and Capital Resources
RenGold began the fiscal year with $4,677,008 cash. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company spent
$1,822,468 on operating activities, net of working capital changes, received $7,572 from investing activities, received
$1,421,159 from a private placement, net of share issue costs, with a negative $5,428 effect of foreign exchange on
cash to end at June 30, 2019 with $4,277,843 cash.
In April 2019, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement with Altius Minerals Corporation through
the issue of 5,716,216 units at a price of $0.25 per unit for gross proceeds of $1,429,054. Each unit consists of one
common share and one share purchase warrant with each share purchase warrant exercisable into one common share
of the Company at an exercise price of $0.50 per share until April 30, 2024.
As at June 30, 2019, the Company had working capital of $4,089,701. Management estimates that these funds will
provide the Company with sufficient financial resources to carry out currently planned exploration and operations
through the next twelve months.
At the date of this MD&A, the Company has 18,719,548 exercisable warrants outstanding at exercise prices ranging
from $0.48 to $0.50, and 6,305,000 exercisable stock options outstanding at exercise prices ranging from $0.205 to
$0.57, that if exercised will raise additional capital for the Company.
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Fourth Quarter
The Company began the fourth quarter with $2,704,416 cash. During the fourth quarter the Company recovered
$115,797 from operating activities, received $51,711 from investing activities, and received $1,421,159 from a private
placement, net of share issue costs, with a negative $15,240 effect of foreign exchange on cash so that the Company
ended the quarter and the year with $4,277,843 cash.

Contractual Obligations
The Company’s expenditure commitments on its exploration and evaluation assets are primarily at the Company’s
discretion. License fees and details of lease payments and minimum work commitments to maintain the option
agreement and the underlying exploration and evaluation asset option agreements are described in the notes to the
Financial Report. The Company will fund these expenditures with existing working capital.

Related Party Transactions
a)

Consulting fees

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company paid or accrued $90,000 (2018 – $90,000) to Golden Oak
Corporate Services Ltd. (“Golden Oak”). Golden Oak is a consulting company controlled by the Chief Financial
Officer and Corporate Secretary of the Company. Golden Oak provides the services of a Chief Financial Officer, a
Corporate Secretary, and accounting and administrative staff to the Company. The Chief Financial Officer and the
Corporate Secretary are employees of Golden Oak and are not paid directly by the Company.
b)

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management includes members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Chairman, the President and Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Corporate Secretary. The aggregate compensation paid, or
payable, to key management personnel, which include the amounts disclosed above, during the year ended June 30,
2019 and 2018 were as follows:
Year ended June 30,
2019
2018

Relationship

Description

Officers
Independent directors
Golden Oak - Officers
Directors and officers

Salaries and benefits
$
Director fees included in salaries and benefits
Consulting fees
Share-based compensation

212,858 $
15,885
90,000
154,145

285,652
15,240
90,000
142,661

$

472,888 $

533,553

As at June 30, 2019, the Company owed $2,969 (2018 – $1,318) to Golden Oak and the CEO of the Company for the
reimbursement of expenditures. All amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

Additional Disclosure for Venture Issuers without Significant Revenue
The components of exploration costs are described in Note 8 to the Financial Report.
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Outstanding Share Data as at the date of this MD&A
The authorized share capital of RenGold consists of an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number
of preferred shares issuable in series with special rights or restrictions attached.
Common
Shares issued
and
outstanding
68,461,030
68,461,030

Balance, June 30, 2019
Options granted
Options expired
Balance, date of this MD&A

Warrants
18,719,548
18,719,548

Stock
Options
4,065,000
2,770,000
(530,000)
6,305,000

Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
(i)

Critical accounting estimates
Critical accounting estimates are estimates and assumptions made by management that may result in a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year and are, but
are not limited to, the following:
The carrying value and the recoverability of exploration and evaluation assets - Management has determined
that exploration and evaluation costs incurred which were capitalized may have future economic benefits and
may be economically recoverable. Management uses several criteria in its assessments of economic
recoverability and probability of future economic benefits including geologic and other technical
information, scoping and feasibility studies, accessibility of facilities and existing permits.
Share-based compensation - The fair value of stock options issued are subject to the limitation of the BlackScholes option pricing model which incorporates market data, and which involves uncertainty and
subjectivity in estimates used by management in the assumptions. Changes in the input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate of stock options.
Recovery of deferred tax assets - Judgment is required in determining whether deferred tax assets are
recognized in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unutilized
tax losses, require management to assess the likelihood that the Company will generate taxable earnings in
future periods, in order to utilize recognized deferred tax assets. Estimates of future taxable income are based
on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the
extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the
Company to realize the net deferred tax assets recorded at the date of the statement of financial position could
be impacted.
Additionally, future changes in tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates could limit the
ability of the Company to obtain tax deductions in future periods.
The Company has not recorded any deferred tax assets.
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(ii) Critical accounting judgments
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are, but are not limited to, the following:
Determination of functional currency - In accordance with IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates” management determined that the functional currency of the parent Company as well as the
Company’s Canadian subsidiary is the Canadian dollar and the functional currency of its US subsidiaries is
the US dollar.
New Accounting Standards
Refer to the discussion of “New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective” in our Financial Report.
The Company has not applied any of the new and revised IFRS detailed therein, all of which have been issued but are
not yet effective at the date of this MD&A.

Financial Instruments and Risk Management
Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are classified into one of the following categories: fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”);
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”); or at amortized cost. The carrying values of the
Company’s financial instruments are classified into the following categories:
Financial Instrument
Cash
Marketable securities
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Reclamation bonds
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners

June 30,
2019

Category
FVTPL
FVTOCI
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

$

4,277,843 $
7,037
15,471
56,857
29,671
(114,744)
(190,702)

June 30,
2018
4,677,008
18,764
4,061
58,429
(149,367)
(454,112)

The Company’s financial instruments recorded at fair value require disclosure about how the fair value was determined
based on significant levels of inputs described in the following hierarchy:
Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.
Active markets are those in which transactions occur in sufficient frequency and value to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.
Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1. Prices in Level 2 are
either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 valuations are based on inputs
including quoted forward prices for commodities, time value and volatility factors, which can be
substantially observed or corroborated in the market place.
Level 3 - Valuations in this level are those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data.
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The carrying values of receivables, amounts due from funding partners, reclamation bonds, trade and other payables,
and amounts due to funding partners approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature. Cash and marketable
securities are recorded at fair value using Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
Risk management
The Company’s risk exposures and the impact on the Company’s financial instruments are summarized as follows:
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of potential loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its liquid financial assets, including
cash and receivables. The Company limits the exposure to credit risk in its cash by only investing its cash with highcredit quality financial institutions in business and savings accounts, guaranteed investment certificates and in
government treasury bills which are available on demand by the Company for its programs. The Company`s
receivables primarily include balances receivable from the government of Canada.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not have the resources to meet its obligations as they fall due. The
Company manages this risk by closely monitoring cash forecasts and managing resources to ensure that there is
sufficient capital in order to meet short-term business requirements. All of the Company’s financial liabilities are
classified as current and are anticipated to mature within the next sixty days.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, and commodity and equity prices. These fluctuations may be significant.
(a) Interest Rate Risk: The Company is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that its cash balances bear
variable rates of interest. The interest rate risks on cash and on the Company’s obligations are not considered
significant.
(b) Foreign Exchange Risk: The Company expects to continue to raise equity predominately in Canadian dollars,
however the Company is primarily conducting business in the USA. As such, it is subject to fluctuations in
the exchange rate between the Canadian dollar and the US dollar. As at June 30, 2019, the Company holds
88% of its cash in Canadian dollars. Management believes the foreign exchange risk related to currency
conversions is minimal and therefore, does not hedge its foreign exchange risk. The effect of a five percent
change in the foreign exchange rate on the cash held in the US dollar at June 30, 2019 would be approximately
$27,000.
(c) Commodity Price Risk: While the value of the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets are related to
the price of gold and the outlook for this mineral, the Company currently does not have any operating mines
and hence does not have any hedging or other commodity based risks in respect to its operational activities.
Historically, the price of gold has fluctuated significantly and is affected by numerous factors outside of the
Company’s control, including but not limited to industrial and retail demand, central bank lending, forward
sales by producers and speculators, levels of worldwide production, short-term changes in supply and demand
because of speculative hedging activities, and certain other factors related specifically to gold.
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-looking Statements
This MD&A may include or incorporate by reference certain statements or disclosures that constitute “forwardlooking information” under applicable securities laws. All information, other than statements of historical fact,
included or incorporated by reference in this MD&A that addresses activities, events or developments that RenGold
or its management expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future constitute forward-looking information.
Forward-looking information is provided through statements that are not historical facts and are generally, but not
always, identified by the words “expects”, “plans”, “anticipates”, “believes”, “intends”, “estimates”, “projects”,
“potential” and similar expressions, or that events or conditions “will”, “would”, “may”, “could” or “should” occur or
continue. These forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by RenGold and its
management in light of its experience and its perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future
developments, as well as other factors it believes are appropriate in the circumstances.
Although RenGold believes such forward-looking information and the expectations expressed in them are based on
reasonable assumptions, investors are cautioned that any such information and statements are not guarantees of future
realities and actual realities or developments may differ materially from those projected in forward-looking
information and statements. Whether actual results will conform to the expectations of RenGold is subject to a number
of risks and uncertainties, including those risk factors discussed under “Risk Management” in the above documents
incorporated herein by reference. In particular, if any of the risk factors materialize, the expectations, and the
predictions based on them, of RenGold may need to be re-evaluated. Consequently, all of the forward-looking
information in this MD&A and the documents incorporated herein by reference is expressly qualified by these
cautionary statements and other cautionary statements or factors contained herein or in documents incorporated by
reference herein, and there can be no assurance that the actual results or developments anticipated by RenGold will
be realized or, even if substantially realized, that they will have the expected consequences for RenGold.
Forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs, estimates and opinions of RenGold’s management on the date
the statements are made. Unless otherwise required by law, RenGold expressly disclaims any intention and assumes
no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements in the event that management’s beliefs, estimates or
opinions, or other factors, should change, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, and
RenGold does not have any policies or procedures in place concerning the updating of forward-looking information
other than those required under applicable securities laws. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements or forward-looking information.

Other Information
Additional information relating to RenGold is available for viewing on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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EXHIBIT 2
TO APPENDIX C
UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE
MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 AND 2019
AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
AND 2019

(see attached)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Nine months ended March 31, 2020

Notice to Reader
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Renaissance Gold Inc. have been prepared by management
and approved by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. In accordance with National Instrument
51-102 released by the Canadian Securities Administrators, the Company discloses that its external auditors have not
reviewed these condensed consolidated interim financial statements, notes to financial statements and the related quarterly
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

March 31,
2020

June 30,
2019

Note
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Marketable securities
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Advances and prepaid expenses

4
5
6

$

2,413,405 $
9,382
35,841
29,712
42,376
2,530,716

4,277,843
7,037
15,471
56,857
37,939
4,395,147

1,592,699
46,157
21,611
248,529
1,908,996

1,772,378
7,267
29,671
1,809,316

$

4,439,712 $

6,204,463

$

50,389 $
73,671
26,978
151,038
224,163
375,201

114,744
190,702
305,446
305,446

7

Non-current assets
Exploration and evaluation assets
Equipment
Reclamation bonds
Right-of-use assets

8
9
10
11

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners
Operating lease obligations
Operating lease obligations

12
11
11

Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Share-based reserve
Other comprehensive income
Deficit

13
13

37,561,544
5,555,836
74,891
(39,127,760)
4,064,511
$

Subsequent event

4,439,712 $

37,536,168
5,042,322
46,388
(36,725,861)
5,899,017
6,204,463

17

These condensed consolidated interim financial statements are approved for issue by the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors on May 26, 2020.
They are signed on the Company’s behalf by:
“Robert Felder”, Director

“Lee Graber”, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Three months ended March 31,
2020

2019

Nine months ended March 31,
2020

2019

Note
Expenses
Consulting
Depreciation
Exploration and evaluation expenditures, net
Exploration and evaluation recoveries
Foreign exchange
Insurance
Management fees earned
Office and miscellaneous
Professional fees
Regulatory and transfer agent fees
Rent
Salaries and benefits
Shareholder relations
Share-based compensation
Travel and related
Gain on sale of equipment
Interest expense on operating lease obligation
Interest income
Write-off of exploration and evaluation assets
Loss for the period
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Unrealized gain on marketable securities

$
9 & 11
8

13

9
11
8

5

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations

31,500 $
29,566
86,751
(20,425)
7,223
32,907
13,162
17,259
19,522
247,545
31,910
33,575
5,204
(535,699)
12,021
(1,826)
9,476
-

22,500 $
1,137
61,113
(31,638)
3,174
1,051
(11,685)
35,447
17,341
41,704
132,710
56,589
1,318
(330,761)
7,853
-

82,500 $
85,890
674,844
(11,646)
19,973
(55,312)
69,707
24,969
56,420
36,302
637,054
62,661
523,390
19,981
(2,226,733)
12,021
(5,434)
35,529
(217,282)

67,500
3,385
634,931
(44,780)
(3,793)
12,396
(52,904)
92,140
19,650
67,993
104,876
450,331
119,551
263,448
12,010
(1,746,734)
30,169
-

(516,028)

(322,908)

(2,401,899)

(1,716,565)

4,692

4,691

2,346

-

30,448

(3,715)

26,157

(1,275)

Comprehensive loss for the period

$

(480,888) $

(321,932) $

(2,373,396) $

(1,717,840)

Basic and diluted loss per common share

$

(0.01) $

(0.01) $

(0.04) $

(0.03)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

68,521,030

62,744,814

68,521,030

62,744,814

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)
Nine months ended March 31,
2019

2020
CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period
Items not affecting cash:
Depreciation
Share-based compensation
Gain on sale of equipment
Interest expense on operating lease obligation
Accrued interest income
Write-off of exploration and evaluation assets
Unrealized foreign exchange
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Advances and prepaid expenses
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners
Net cash used in operating activities

$

(2,401,899) $

(1,716,565)

85,890
523,390
(12,021)
5,434
(33,211)
217,282
(32,525)

3,385
263,448
(27,178)
(15,375)

12,841
27,145
(4,437)
(144,907)
(117,031)
(1,874,049)

2,113
(37,013)
(17,586)
(106,092)
(287,402)
(1,938,265)

CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Exploration and evaluation asset additions
Exploration and evaluation asset recoveries
Proceeds on sale of equipment
Purchase of equipment
Reclamation bonds
Net cash used in investing activities

(87,093)
66,373
12,021
(44,166)
9,851
(43,014)

(258,430)
184,688
29,603
(44,139)

CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Exercise of stock option
Net cash provided by financing activities

15,500
15,500

-

Effect of foreign exchange on cash

37,125

9,812

(1,864,438)

(1,972,592)

4,277,843

4,677,008
2,704,416

Decrease in cash during the period
Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period

$

2,413,405 $

Supplementary information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

$

-

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

-

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Number of
shares
Balance, June 30, 2019
Exercise of stock options

68,461,030

$

Share
capital

Share-based
reserve

37,536,168

$

60,000

25,376

Share-based compensation

-

-

Comprehensive loss for the period

-

-

Balance, March 31, 2020

68,521,030

$

Number of
shares
Balance, June 30, 2018

62,744,814

$

Share
capital

Share-based
reserve

36,400,820

$

-

Comprehensive loss for the period

-

-

62,744,814

$

36,400,820

5,555,836

4,493,063

28,503
$

$

(1,275)
$

5,899,017
15,500

-

523,390

(2,401,899)

(2,373,396)
4,064,511

Total
shareholders'
equity

Deficit

64,851 $ (35,007,150) $
-

4,756,511

-

74,891 $ (39,127,760) $

Other
comprehensive
income

263,448

$

46,388 $ (36,725,861) $
-

-

Total
shareholders'
equity

Deficit

-

523,390

$

-

$

(9,876)

37,561,544

Share-based compensation

Balance, March 31, 2019

5,042,322

Other
comprehensive
income

(1,716,565)

63,576 $ (36,723,715) $

5,951,584
263,448
(1,717,840)
4,497,192

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated interim financial statements.

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Renaissance Gold Inc. (the “Company” or “RenGold”) was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (British
Columbia) on May 25, 2010. The Company’s common shares are listed for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange under the
symbol REN and the OTCQB under the symbol RNSGF. RenGold’s head office is located at 4750 Longley Lane, Suite 106,
Reno, NV 89502. RenGold’s registered and corporate office is located at Unit 1 – 15782 Marine Drive, White Rock, British
Columbia, Canada, V4B 1E6.
RenGold is an exploration stage business engaged in the acquisition and exploration of mineral properties located in the western
United States of America (“USA”). The Company is in the process of exploring its exploration and evaluation assets and has
not yet determined whether any of its properties contain mineral reserves that are economically recoverable. The recoverability
of the amounts spent for exploration and evaluation assets is dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable
reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain the necessary financing to complete the exploration and development of its
properties, and upon future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of the properties.
The operations of the Company will require various licenses and permits from various governmental authorities which are or
may be granted subject to various conditions and may be subject to renewal from time to time. There can be no assurance that
the Company will be able to comply with such conditions and obtain or retain all necessary licenses and permits that may be
required to carry out exploration, development and mining operations at its projects. Failure to comply with these conditions
may render the licences liable to forfeiture.
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that
the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business in the foreseeable
future. As at March 31, 2020, the Company had working capital of $2,379,678. In May 2020, the Company received formal
notification from AngloGold Ashanti North America, Inc. indicating their decision to make the final payment of US$2,400,000
to the Company to complete the acquisition of 100% of the Silicon project (Note 17). Management estimates that these funds
will provide the Company with sufficient financial resources to carry out currently planned exploration and operations through
the next twelve months.
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. This contagious disease outbreak,
which has continued to spread, has adversely affected workforces, economies, and financial markets globally. It is not possible
for the Company to predict the duration or magnitude of the adverse impacts of the outbreak and its effects on the Company’s
business, ability to raise funds, or attract funding partners. In order to protect its employees, contractors and do our part for the
safety of our communities, the Company implemented a work from home strategy at both its Reno, Nevada and White Rock,
B.C. offices until further notice.
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going
concern assumption were not appropriate.

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Statement of compliance
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting (“IAS 34”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The
policies applied in these condensed consolidated interim financial statements are based on International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued and outstanding as at the date the Board of Directors approved these condensed consolidated interim
financial statements for issue.
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements do not include all of the information and disclosures required by
IFRS for annual financial statements and therefore should be read in conjunction with the Company’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Basis of measurement
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value. In addition, these condensed consolidated interim financial statements
have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash flow information.
Functional and presentation currency
These condensed consolidated interim financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the parent Company’s
functional currency as well as being the functional currency for the Company’s Canadian subsidiaries. The US dollar is the
functional currency for the Company’s US subsidiaries.
Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
(i)

Critical accounting estimates
Critical accounting estimates are estimates and assumptions made by management that may result in a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year and are, but are not limited
to, the following:
The carrying value and the recoverability of exploration and evaluation assets - Management has determined that
exploration and evaluation costs incurred which were capitalized may have future economic benefits and may be
economically recoverable. Management uses several criteria in its assessments of economic recoverability and
probability of future economic benefits including geologic and other technical information, scoping and feasibility
studies, accessibility of facilities and existing permits.
Share-based compensation - The fair value of stock options issued are subject to the limitation of the Black-Scholes
option pricing model which incorporates market data and which involves uncertainty and subjectivity in estimates
used by management in the assumptions. Changes in the input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate
of stock options.
Valuation of right-of-use asset and lease liabilities - The application of IFRS 16 requires the Company to make
judgments that affect the valuation of the right-of-use assets and the valuation of lease liabilities. These include
determining agreements in scope of IFRS 16, determining the contract term, and determining the interest rate used for
discounting of future cash flows. The lease term determined by the Company is comprised of the non-cancellable
period of lease agreements, periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not
to exercise that option. The present value of the lease payment is determined using a discount rate representing the
rate of a commercial mortgage rate, observed in the period when the lease agreement commences or is modified.
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RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Use of estimates and judgments (continued)
(i)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)
Recovery of deferred tax assets - Judgment is required in determining whether deferred tax assets are recognized in
the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unutilized tax losses, require
management to assess the likelihood that the Company will generate taxable earnings in future periods, in order to
utilize recognized deferred tax assets. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from
operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable
income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Company to realize the net deferred tax assets recorded
at the date of the statement of financial position could be impacted.
Additionally, future changes in tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates could limit the ability of
the Company to obtain tax deductions in future periods.
The Company has not recorded any deferred tax assets.

(ii)

Critical accounting judgments
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are, but are not limited to, the following:
Determination of functional currency - In accordance with IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates” management determined that the functional currency of the parent Company as well as the Company’s
Canadian subsidiaries is the Canadian dollar and the functional currency of its US subsidiaries is the US dollar.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied by the Company in these condensed consolidated interim financial statements are the same as
those applied by the Company as at and for the year ended June 30, 2019.
Adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations
On July 1, 2019, the Company adopted IFRS 16 – Leases (“IFRS 16”). IFRS 16 applies a control model to the identification
of leases, distinguishing between a lease and a service contract on the basis of whether the customer controls the leased asset.
For assets that meet the definition of a lease, IFRS 16 requires a single, on-balance sheet accounting model similar to finance
lease accounting, with exceptions for short-term leases, leases of low value assets, and mineral exploration leases. Accordingly,
IFRS 16 applies only to the Company’s office leases. The Company has applied IFRS 16 on a prospective basis (Note 11).
Standards issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective as of March 31, 2020 and have
not been applied in preparing these condensed consolidated interim financial statements. In addition, none of these standards
are applicable to the Company.
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RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

4.

CASH
March 31,
2020

June 30,
2019

Canadian dollar denominated deposits held in Canada
US dollar denominated deposits held in Canada
US dollar denominated deposits held in the USA

$

2,196,070 $
57,418
159,917

3,747,691
24,728
505,424

Total

$

2,413,405 $

4,277,843

5.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES
March 31,
2020

June 30,
2019

Opening balance
Unrealized gain (loss)

$

7,037 $
2,345

18,764
(11,727)

Ending balance

$

9,382 $

7,037

As at March 31, 2020, the Company held 469,101 common shares of Magna Terra Minerals Inc. valued at $9,382.

6.

RECEIVABLES
March 31,
2020

Amounts due from the Government of Canada pursuant to
goods and services input tax credits
Interest income
Other
Total

7.

June 30,
2019

$

2,630 $
33,211
-

2,056
6,871
6,544

$

35,841 $

15,471

ADVANCES AND PREPAID EXPENSES
March 31,
2020

June 30,
2019

Prepaid insurance
Prepaid rent
Prepaid shareholder relations
Other

$

12,125 $
15,969
4,362
9,920

5,000
25,276
2,155
5,508

Total

$

42,376 $

37,939
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RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

RenGold acquires mineral properties through staking and from third party vendors, some of which are subject to a net smelter
return (“NSR”) royalty. Subsequently, the Company may enter into agreements to sell a portion of its interest in its mineral
properties to third parties in exchange for exploration expenditures, royalty interests, cash, and/or share-based payments.
RenGold cannot guarantee title to all of its exploration and evaluation assets as the properties may be subject to prior mineral
rights applications with priority, prior unregistered agreements or transfers and title may be affected by undetected defects.
Exploration and evaluation assets capitalized to the consolidated statements of financial position are as follows:
June 30,
2019
Nevada:
Baby Doe
Buffalo Canyon
Bunce
Cine Mountain
Diamond Point
Ecru
Elba
Fat Lizard
Ferguson Mountain
Fireball Ridge
Ghost Ranch
Gilbert South
Jake Creek
Jupiter
Maggie Creek
Manhattan Gap
Mars
Raven
Secret Canyon
Silicon
South Roberts
Spring Peak
Spruce East
Ted
Trinity Silver
Oregon:
McDO
Polaris
Total

$

3,356
12,124
73,458
217,282
23,447
6,502
56,991
311,751
47,508
426,061
13,028
267,282
280,369
8,465
4,709
-

Additions
$

20,045
$ 1,772,378 $

Recoveries

15,876 $
23,782
4,801
6,600
26,401
1,083
8,550
87,093 $

$
(6,600)
(59,773)
-

Written
off

Foreign
exchange
adjustment

$
(217,282)
-

(66,373) $ (217,282) $
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1,069 $
282
1,019
6,175
1,318
2,331
546
4,789
(2,750)
3,994
1,095
(2,750)
(3,745)
791
395
1,685
639
16,883 $

March 31,
2020
16,945
3,638
13,143
79,633
25,100
30,579
7,048
61,780
309,001
51,502
426,061
14,123
264,532
243,252
10,339
5,104
21,730
9,189
1,592,699

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Details on the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets are found in Note 8 of the June 30, 2019 consolidated financial
statements and new items are noted below.
Baby Doe, Esmeralda County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Baby Doe project through directly held unpatented claims.
Ecru, Lander County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Ecru project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective July 31, 2017, until it was terminated March 31, 2020, the Company was party to an earn-in agreement with Nevada
Star Exploration LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of S2 Resources Ltd.
Effective July 30, 2018, until it was terminated April 24, 2020, the Company was party to a mining sublease with Newmont
USA Limited.
Elba, Esmeralda County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Elba project through directly held unpatented claims.
Fat Lizard, Nye County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Fat Lizard project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective February 14, 2019, until it was terminated December 19, 2019, the Company was party to an earn-in agreement with
OceanaGold U.S. Holdings Inc.
Ferguson Mountain, Elko County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Ferguson Mountain project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective December 11, 2018, until it was terminated November 4, 2019, the Company was party to an earn-in agreement with
Hochschild Mining (US) Inc.
Although the claims are still in good standing, the Company does not intend on continuing exploration on the Ferguson
Mountain project and accordingly wrote-off acquisition costs totaling $217,282 during the nine months ended March 31, 2020.
Jake Creek, Humboldt County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Jake Creek project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective April 17, 2018, until it was terminated March 31, 2020, the Company was party to an earn-in agreement with Ginguro
Jake Inc., a subsidiary of Ginguro Gold Pty. Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Maggie Creek, Eureka County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Maggie Creek project through directly held unpatented claims.
On August 20, 2015, the Company entered into an agreement with Wolfpack whereby the Company acquired the Maggie Creek
project from Wolfpack in exchange for a 1% NSR royalty that can be bought down at any time for US$1,500,000 or fractions
thereof at the pro-rata cost at any time during the term of the agreement. In addition, a 2% NSR royalty is now payable to
EMX Royalty Corp. (formerly Eurasian Minerals Inc.) which exists under a pre-existing deed of royalties.
On February 15, 2019, as amended on December 17, 2019, the Company entered into an exploration earn-in agreement with
Orevada Metals Inc. (“Orevada”), now a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Gold Corp. (“US Gold”). The agreement grants
Orevada the option to earn a 70% interest in the Maggie Creek project. Orevada must spend US$4,500,000 over a 5-year
period to earn an initial 50% interest, with a committed expenditure of US$300,000 to be expended by June 15, 2021. Upon
signing the earn-in agreement, Orevada paid the Company US$15,000 and reimbursed the Company a total of US$17,034
claim maintenance fees. Upon completing the initial earn-in expenditures Orevada shall vest its 50% interest by paying the
Company US$250,000 of which up to half may be paid in shares of U.S. Gold. Orevada shall have 60 days after vesting to
elect to increase its interest by an additional 20% interest by funding the completion of a feasibility study by February 15, 2028.
If Orevada needs more time then it must pay the Company US$100,000 on February 1, 2028 and each subsequent year, and
expend a minimum of US$1,000,000 each year, until a feasibility study is produced or Orevada terminates its election to
increase its percentage interest in which case it would revert to 50% and future work will be on a pro-rated basis with the
Company.
Mars, Lincoln County, Nevada
The Company holds its interest in the Mars project through directly held unpatented claims.
Effective December 11, 2018, until it was terminated December 17, 2019, the Company was party to an earn-in agreement with
Hochschild Mining (US) Inc.
Effective February 28, 2018, until it was terminated January 16, 2020, the Company was party to an exploration and mining
lease and option to purchase agreement with Pilot Gold (USA) Inc.
Effective November 26, 2018, until it was terminated January 16, 2020, the Company was party to an option agreement to
acquire 11 unpatented mining claims adjacent to and just south of the Mars project.
Polaris, Lake County, Oregon
The Company holds its interest in the Polaris project through directly held unpatented claims.
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8.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Exploration and evaluation expenditures included in the loss for the nine months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
Nine months ended March 31, 2020

Nine months ended March 31, 2019

Exploration and Recoveries from Net exploration Exploration and Recoveries from Net exploration
evaluation
funding
evaluation
funding
and evaluation
and evaluation
expenditures
partners
expenditures
partners
expenditures
expenditures
Nevada:
Baby Doe
Buffalo Canyon
Bunce
Cine Mountain
Diamond Point
Ecru
Elba
Fat Lizard
Ferguson Mountain
Fireball Ridge
General reconnaissance
Ghost Ranch
Gilbert South
Jake Creek
Jupiter
Maggie Creek
Manhattan Gap
Mars
Raven
Secret Canyon
Silicon
South Roberts
Spring Peak
Spruce East
Ted
Trinity Silver

$

Oregon:
McDO
Polaris
Total

$

71,406 $
11,759
1,653
15,080
24,086
26,272
2,581
16,954
408,038
6,716
230,550
59,063
25,869
25,111
54,971
27,549
28,118
626,610
32,293
23,612
26,300
13,617
15,840
3,521
15,144
1,373
1,794,086

$
(195)
(26,272)
(16,376)
(407,767)
(23,052)
(54,971)
(24,951)
(623,383)
(13,069)
(1,190,036)

46,017
24,777

-

1,864,880 $

(1,190,036) $

71,406 $
11,759
1,653
15,080
23,891
2,581
578
271
6,716
230,550
59,063
25,869
2,059
2,598
28,118
3,227
32,293
23,612
26,300
13,617
2,771
3,521
15,144
1,373
604,050
46,017
24,777
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674,844 $

$
49,735
1,548
776
10,275
61,851
38,387
31,412
5,992
478,293
69,279
28,215
35,868
38,884
27,123
52,009
59,773
78,354
65,943
69,021
21,275
23,820
485,704
22,674
1,756,211

$
(36,405)
(60,012)
(34,968)
(28,173)
(264,617)
(30,869)
(38,884)
(50,343)
(61,037)
(19,462)
(17,491)
(484,572)
(1,126,833)

5,553
-

-

1,761,764 $

(1,126,833) $

13,330
1,548
776
10,275
1,839
3,419
3,239
5,992
213,676
69,279
28,215
4,999
27,123
52,009
9,430
78,354
65,943
7,984
1,813
6,329
1,132
22,674
629,378
5,553
634,931

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

9.

EQUIPMENT
Nevada
Office
equipment

Cost
At June 30, 2019
Additions
Disposals
Foreign exchange
At March 31, 2020

Vehicles

Total

43,652 $
3,669
47,321 $

34,306 $
2,884
37,190 $

91,194 $
44,166
(45,351)
8,273
98,282 $

37,998 $
1,899
39,897 $

207,150
44,166
(45,351)
16,725
222,690

$

41,531 $
740
3,542
45,813 $

29,160 $
2,588
2,627
34,375 $

91,194 $
4,068
(45,351)
7,443
57,354 $

37,998 $
930
63
38,991 $

199,883
8,326
(45,351)
13,675
176,533

At June 30, 2019

$

2,121 $

5,146 $

At March 31, 2020

$

1,508 $

2,815 $

Accumulated depreciation
At June 30, 2019
Depreciation
Disposals
Foreign exchange
At March 31, 2020

$

Field
equipment

Computers

$
$

Carrying amounts
-

$

-

40,928 $

$

7,267

906 $

46,157

During the nine months ended March 31, 2020, the Company sold equipment with a net book value of $Nil for gross proceeds
of $12,021, and accordingly recorded a gain on disposal of equipment of $12,021.

10.

RECLAMATION BONDS

The Company is required to post bonds, with the Bureau of Land Management and/or the State of Nevada and/or the USDA
Forest Service as appropriate, for reclamation of planned mineral exploration programs work associated with the Company’s
exploration and evaluation assets located in the United States. For the Company’s exploration and evaluation assets that are
being actively explored under funding arrangement agreements, the funding partners are responsible for bonding for the surface
disturbance created by the exploration programs funded by each of them on those projects. In some cases, the Company
purchases the bonding for funding partners in its own name for which it is reimbursed by the funding partner. When the surface
disturbance is reclaimed and paid for by the funding partner and the bond is eventually released to the Company, the Company
will pay the proceeds of the bond to that funding partner.
Buffalo
Canyon

Diamond
Point

Total

At June 30, 2019
Refunds
Foreign exchange

$

13,611 $
1,145

16,060 $
(9,851)
646

29,671
(9,851)
1,791

At March 31, 2020

$

14,756 $

6,855 $

21,611
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11.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATION

The Company has a lease on its head office in Reno, Nevada which qualifies for reporting under IFRS 16.
On July 1, 2019, the Company recorded right-of-use assets totalling $305,680 with a corresponding entry to operating lease
obligations. The Company calculated the present value of the minimum lease payments using an interest rate of 7%.
Thereafter, the right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases which is three years.
The continuity of the right-of-use asset is as follows:
June 30,
2019

March 31,
2020
Opening balance
Adoption of IFRS 16
Depreciation
Foreign exchange

$

Ending balance

$

305,680
(77,564)
20,413

$

-

248,529

$

-

The continuity of the operating lease obligation is as follows:
June 30,
2019

March 31,
2020
Opening balance
Adoption of IFRS 16
Interest expense
Accretion
Foreign exchange

$

305,680
5,434
(80,552)
20,579

$

-

Ending balance

$

251,141

$

-

Current portion
Non-current portion

$

26,978
224,163

$

-

Total

$

251,141

$

-

12.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
March 31,
2020

June 30,
2019

Trade payables
Due to related parties (Note 13)

$

41,706
8,683

$

111,775
2,969

Total

$

50,389

$

114,744
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13.

SHARE CAPITAL

a)

Authorized share capital

The authorized share capital is comprised of an unlimited number of common shares without par value and an unlimited number
of preferred shares without par value.
b)

Issued share capital

At March 31, 2020, the Company had 68,521,030 (June 30, 2019 – 68,461,030) common shares issued and outstanding. A
summary of changes in share capital and reserves is contained on the consolidated statements of changes in equity for the nine
months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.
In February 2020, the Company issued 60,000 common shares on exercise of stock options for gross proceeds of $15,500.
c)

Warrants

The continuity of warrants for the nine months ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:

Expiry date
May 16, 2023 *
April 30, 2024 **

Exercise
price
$0.48
$0.50

Weighted average exercise price

Balance,
June 30,
2019
13,003,332
5,716,216
18,719,548
$0.49

Granted
-

Exercised
-

Expired
-

-

-

-

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Balance,
March 31,
2020
13,003,332
5,716,216
18,719,548
$0.49

* If the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company is at least $0.72 per share for 20
consecutive trading days, the Company will have the right, exercisable within three trading days thereof, to accelerate the
expiry date of the warrants to the date which is 30 days after notice is given to the holders of the warrants of the accelerated
expiry date and a news release to that effect is given.
** If the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company is at least $0.75 per share for 20
consecutive trading days, the Company will have the right, exercisable within three trading days thereof, to accelerate the
expiry date of the warrants to the date which is 30 days after notice is given to the holders of the warrants of the accelerated
expiry date and a news release to that effect is given.

- 11 -

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nine months ended March 31, 2020
(Unaudited – Expressed in Canadian dollars)

13.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

d)

Stock options

On December 7, 2018, the Company’s shareholders approved a rolling stock option plan (the “Plan”) pursuant to which the
Company may grant incentive stock options to directors, officers, employees and consultants. The Plan permits the granting
of up to 10% of the common shares of the Company issued and outstanding at the date of grant. The exercise price of an option
shall not be less than the discounted market price at the time of granting as prescribed by the policies of the TSX Venture
Exchange. The maximum term of the stock options is ten years from the grant date. Vesting terms are at the discretion of the
directors.
The continuity of stock options for the nine months ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:

Expiry date
August 19, 2019
August 18, 2021
July 24, 2022
December 19, 2022
August 14, 2023
July 17, 2024
March 16, 2025

Exercise
price
$0.48
$0.57
$0.265
$0.265
$0.205
$0.285
$0.185

Weighted average exercise price

Balance,
June 30,
2019
530,000
810,000
825,000
20,000
1,880,000
4,065,000

Granted
2,770,000
200,000
2,970,000

$0.33

$0.28

Exercised
(20,000)
(40,000)
(60,000)

Expired/
cancelled
(530,000)
(530,000)

Balance,
March 31,
2020
810,000
825,000
20,000
1,860,000
2,730,000
200,000
6,445,000

$0.26

$0.48

$0.29

At March 31, 2020, all stock options were exercisable.
e)

Share-based compensation

During the nine months ended March 31, 2020, the Company recorded $523,390 (2019 - $263,448) of share-based
compensation for options that vested during the period.
On July 17, 2019, the Company granted 2,770,000 stock options with a fair value of $489,815, or $0.18 per option, which was
recorded as share-based compensation in the nine months ended March 31, 2020. The fair value was estimated on the grant
date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following assumptions: 81.26% expected stock price volatility, a
1.45% risk free interest rate, a five-year expected life and zero expected dividend yield.
On March 16, 2020, the Company granted 200,000 stock options with a fair value of $33,575, or $0.17 per option, which was
recorded as share-based compensation in the nine months ended March 31, 2020. The fair value was estimated on the grant
date using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following assumptions: 83.45% expected stock price volatility, a
0.73% risk free interest rate, a five-year expected life and zero expected dividend yield.
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14.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a)

Consulting fees

During the three and nine months ended March 31, 2020, the Company paid or accrued $31,500 (2019 - $22,500) and $82,500
(2019 - $67,500) respectively to Golden Oak Corporate Services Ltd. (“Golden Oak”). Golden Oak is a consulting company
controlled by the Chief Financial Officer and the Corporate Secretary of the Company. Golden Oak provides the services of a
Chief Financial Officer, a Corporate Secretary, and accounting and administrative staff to the Company. The Chief Financial
Officer and the Corporate Secretary are employees of Golden Oak and are not paid directly by the Company.
b)

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management includes members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Chairman, the President and Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Corporate Secretary. The aggregate compensation paid, or payable, to key
management personnel, which include the amounts disclosed above, during the three and nine months ended March 31, 2020
and 2019 were as follows:
Three months ended March 31,
2020
2019

Nine months ended March 31,
2020
2019

Relationship

Description

Officers
Golden Oak - Officers
Directors and officers

Salaries and benefits
$
Consulting fees
Share-based compensation

56,454 $
31,500
33,575

46,327 $
22,500
-

167,364 $
82,500
312,964

156,717
67,500
154,145

$

121,529 $

68,827 $

562,828 $

378,362

As at March 31, 2020, the Company owed $8,683 (June 30, 2019 – $2,969) to two directors for directors’ fees and Golden Oak
for the reimbursement of expenditures (Note 12). All amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

15.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

RenGold operates in one business segment being the acquisition and exploration of exploration and evaluation assets and has
one geographic segment being the USA. The total assets relate primarily to exploration and evaluation assets and equipment
and have been disclosed in Notes 8 and 9.
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16.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are classified into one of the following categories: fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); fair value
through other comprehensive income (loss) (“FVTOCI”); or at amortized cost. The carrying values of the Company’s financial
instruments are classified into the following categories:

Financial Instrument
Cash
Marketable securities
Receivables
Amounts due from funding partners
Reclamation bonds
Right-of-use assets
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to funding partners
Operating lease obligations

March 31,
2020

Category
FVTPL
FVTOCI
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

$

2,413,405 $
9,382
35,841
29,712
21,611
248,529
(50,389)
(73,671)
(251,141)

June 30,
2019
4,277,843
7,037
15,471
56,857
29,671
(114,744)
(190,702)
-

The Company’s financial instruments recorded at fair value require disclosure about how the fair value was determined based
on significant levels of inputs described in the following hierarchy:
Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active
markets are those in which transactions occur in sufficient frequency and value to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis.
Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1. Prices in Level 2 are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 valuations are based on inputs including quoted
forward prices for commodities, time value and volatility factors, which can be substantially observed or
corroborated in the market place.
Level 3 - Valuations in this level are those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.
The carrying values of receivables, reclamation bonds, right-of-use assets, trade and other payables, amounts due to funding
partners, and operating lease obligations approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature. Cash and marketable
securities are recorded at fair value using Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
Risk management
The Company’s risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed by the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2019.

17.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In May 2020, the Company received formal notification from AngloGold Ashanti North America, Inc. (“AngloGold”)
indicating their decision to make the final payment of US$2,400,000 to the Company to complete the acquisition of 100% of
the Silicon project. The Company will retain a 1% NSR royalty within a defined area of interest.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
QUARTERLY HIGHLIGHTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Nine months ended March 31, 2020

Renaissance Gold Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the nine months ended March 31, 2020
The following is management’s discussion and analysis – quarterly highlights (“MD&A”) of the results of operations
and financial condition of Renaissance Gold Inc. (the “Company” or “RenGold”) for the nine months ended March
31, 2020 and up to the date of this MD&A, and has been prepared to provide material updates to the business
operations, financial condition, liquidity and capital resources of the Company since its last management discussion
and analysis for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 (the “Annual MD&A”).
This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Annual MD&A and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2019, together with the notes thereto, and the accompanying unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial statements and related notes thereto for the nine months ended March 31, 2020 (the
“Financial Report”).
All financial information in this MD&A is derived from the Company’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars
unless otherwise indicated.
The effective date of this MD&A is May 26, 2020.

Description of the Business
RenGold was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) on May 25, 2010 and its
common shares are listed for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSX-V”) under the symbol REN and the
OTCQB under the symbol RNSGF. RenGold’s operating office is located at 4750 Longley Lane, Suite 106, Reno,
NV 89502. RenGold’s registered and corporate office is located at Unit 1 – 15782 Marine Drive, White Rock, British
Columbia, Canada, V4B 1E6.
RenGold is an exploration stage business engaged in the acquisition and exploration of mineral properties located
primarily in the western United States of America (“USA”). RenGold’s business model is to identify and secure
mineral properties for which it seeks suitable funding partners. Once funding partners are found, an exploration and
option to earn-in agreement is entered into on the property enabling the earn-in partner to obtain an interest by
conducting and funding exploration on that property.

Operational Highlights
During the nine months ended March 31, 2020 and up to date of this MD&A, the Company completed the following:
•
•
•
•

Partners drilled four of the Company’s projects being the Silicon (described below), Mars, Ferguson
Mountain, and Fat Lizard projects.
Staked three new projects being the Baby Doe, Polaris, and Elba project (described below).
In March 2020, the Company closed its Reno and White Rock offices until further noticed due to concerns
over COVID-19.
In May 2020, the Company received formal notification from AngloGold indicating their decision to make
the final payment of US$2,400,000 to the Company to complete the acquisition of 100% of the Silicon
project.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the nine months ended March 31, 2020
COVID-19
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. This contagious disease
outbreak, which has continued to spread, has adversely affected workforces, economies, and financial markets
globally. It is not possible for the Company to predict the duration or magnitude of the adverse impacts of the outbreak
and its effects on the Company’s business, ability to raise funds, or attract funding partners.
In order to protect its employees, contractors and do our part for the safety of our communities, the Company
implemented a work from home strategy at both its Reno, Nevada and White Rock, B.C. offices until further notice.
Robert Felder, President & CEO states, “The COVID-19 threat has created a challenging situation around the world,
and we are fortunate to live at a time when our technical capabilities allow us to continue with our business remotely,
with only minimal disruption. We are in good financial shape to carefully steer the Company through this uncertain
time, and our generative activities are continuing and discussions with potential new partners remain ongoing.”
The Company currently has 4 of its projects in option or earn-in agreements. Given the current uncertainty due to the
COVID-19 threat and the highly volatile financial markets, drilling plans are uncertain at this time, but will be reported
when plans materialize later in the year.

Overall performance
Generative exploration
The primary business of RenGold is mineral exploration and during fiscal 2019, the Company brought in several highquality projects. During the nine months ended March 31, 2020, this activity continued with the addition of the Baby
Doe, Polaris, and Elba projects.
•

•

•

The Baby Doe project is located in Esmeralda County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open
ground in July 2019. The project lies within a large, shallow level, steam heated alteration zone containing
historic mercury mines. Outcropping drilled gold systems occur to the north and south of the project area
and the most intensely altered portion of the system has seen only limited historic drilling and no known
deeper tests of the system. The Company is currently seeking a funding partner.
The Polaris project is located in Lake County, Oregon and was acquired through staking on open ground in
August and September 2019. A large, structurally controlled, steam-heated alteration zone characterized by
the presence of alunite and kaolinite occurs on the east edge of a rhyolite dome complex and contains
pervasive mercury mineralization. These strong alteration features are often associated with the upper levels
of epithermal gold systems, and represent a compelling, underexplored target. The Company is currently
seeking a funding partner.
The Elba project is located in Esmeralda County, Nevada and was acquired through staking on open ground
in April 2020. The project area is located approximately 45 km west-northwest of Tonopah, Nevada and
sits within a large (8km2) alteration zone which is hosted by an arcuate rhyolite dome field. The domes are
altered to alunite+kaolinite, and much of the alteration is covered by a thin veneer of alluvium. Alunite
altered hydrothermal breccias and leached silica have been observed on the margins of the alluvial cover,
indicating the system is likely to extend under cover. This represents a significant target with minimal
historic drilling in a very favorable jurisdiction which closely resembles RenGold’s Silicon project.
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Exploration projects with funding partners
At the date of this MD&A, RenGold has 4 properties under exploration funding agreements:
Project

Funding partner

Jupiter

Ramelius Resources Limited (“Ramelius”)

Maggie Creek

Orevada Metals Inc. (“Orevada”)

Silicon

AngloGold Ashanti North America, Inc. (“AngloGold”)

Spring Peak

OceanaGold U.S. Holding Inc. (“OceanaGold”), a subsidiary
of OceanaGold Corporation

The highlights of activity by RenGold and its funding partners on its exploration properties during the nine months
ended March 31, 2020 and to the date of this MD&A follow.
Jupiter

The Jupiter project, located in Nye County, Nevada is subject to an earn-in agreement with Ramelius
whereby Ramelius has an option to earn a 75% interest in the Jupiter project by spending
US$3,000,000 over a five year period. Ramelius is the operator of the project.
The third drill campaign under this agreement was completed in late October 2019 and was designed
to test “Long Canyon-type” targets occurring along the Cambrian-Ordovician unconformity. One
earlier hole drilled in 2017 tested this target and encountered jasperoidal alteration at the
unconformity. This program was designed to further test this horizon in the vicinity of mapped
mineralized structures containing gold in rock-chip assays up to 0.98 g/t. Assays from this program
were disappointing, however Ramelius is considering additional exploration and drilling on the
project in 2020.

Maggie Creek

Orevada has an option to earn a 70% interest in the Maggie Creek project located in Eureka Creek,
Nevada, by spending US$4,500,000 over a 5-year period to earn an initial 50% interest, and an
additional 20% interest by funding the completion of a feasibility study by February 15, 2028.
The Maggie Creek project lies in the heart of the Carlin Trend, adjacent to Nevada Gold Mines’
Gold Quarry Mine. The project covers the NE projection of the Chukar-Alunite Fault Zone which
is mineralized at Gold Quarry and the SE projection of the Castle Reef Fault Zone which is
mineralized at the Leeville Mine. Historical drilling has encountered gold mineralization in the
upper plate of the Roberts Mountains Allochthon ranging in grade from below detection limit to
more than 1 g/t Au in numerous drill holes. A window of lower plate carbonate rocks is exposed in
the core of the RenGold claim block. Gold mineralization in the window has been drilled at the
Rainbow deposit just south of RenGold’s claim block.
On September 11, 2019, U.S. Gold Corp. (NASDAQ:USAU) announced their acquisition of
Orevada including the earn-in agreement on the Maggie Creek Project. On December 17, 2019, the
Company executed an amendment to the earn-in agreement with Orevada to extend the time period
by which the first and second work obligations (totaling US$300,000) must be spent to June 15,
2021. This will allow the new owner time to become familiar with the project and design an
appropriate exploration program.

Silicon

The Silicon project is under option to AngloGold and is located in the Bare Mountain mining district,
Nye County, Nevada. Pursuant to the agreement AngloGold has the option to acquire the Silicon
project for payments aggregating US$3,000,000 with the final payment of US$2,400,000 due by
June 21, 2020. Following completion of the exercise of the purchase option, RenGold would retain
a 1% net smelter return royalty on future production from the project. AngloGold is the operator of
the project.
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AngloGold conducted drilling through May 2019 and to date have completed 28 reverse circulation
holes totaling 11,156 meters and 19 core holes totaling 7,863 meters. AngloGold is currently
working to obtain a Plan of Operations (PoO”) permit to allow further drilling. AngloGold’s PoO
permit application was submitted to the Bureau of Land Management, who has prepared an
Environmental Assessment which is currently in circulation for a 45-day public comment period
lasting until June 5, 2020. If approved, their PoO will allow for up to 155 acres of surface
disturbance in phased exploration programs, and the proposed phase one program will include up
to 109 drill sites within a 3,630 acre project area located on unpatented mining claims. All of the
permitted drilling is within the RenGold area of interest.
In May 2020, the Company received formal notification from AngloGold indicating their decision
to make the final payment of US$2,400,000 to the Company to complete the acquisition of 100%
of the Silicon project.
Spring Peak

OceanaGold has an option to earn a 51% interest in the Spring Peak project located in Mineral
County, Nevada, by spending US$4,000,000 over a five year period. Once vested, OceanaGold has
a one-time option to elect to earn an additional 24% interest by spending an additional US$6,000,000
by January 17, 2028. OceanaGold is the operator of the project.
During the 2019 field season, OceanaGold completed geologic mapping and sampling and a
coincident CSAMT and soil survey. The CSAMT results map several linear areas of high resistivity
which are coincident with mapped silicification, structures, interpreted hydrothermal vents and
anomalous Sb, As and Au in soils. The coincidence of these features has led to the generation of a
number of compelling targets on the project. OceanaGold informed the Company that they received
the final drill permit from the U.S. Forest Service on December 13, 2019. Drilling is planned for Q3
2020.

Terminated Partner Agreements
Ecru

The Ecru project was under an earn-in agreement with S2 Resources Ltd. from July 31, 2017 until
it was terminated March 31, 2020. The claims are still in good standing, and the Company is actively
seeking another partner to continue exploration on the project.

Ferguson
Mountain

The Ferguson Mountain project was under an earn-in agreement with Hochschild Mining (US) Inc.
(Hochschild”) from December 11, 2018 until it was terminated on November 4, 2019. Although the
claims are still in good standing, the Company does not intend on continuing exploration on the
project and accordingly wrote-off acquisition costs totaling $217,282 during the nine months ended
March 31, 2020.

Mars

The Mars project was under an earn-in agreement with Hochschild from December 11, 2018 until
it was terminated December 17, 2019. The claims are still in good standing however the Company
has termination two third-party lease agreements and does not intend to continue exploration on the
project.

Fat Lizard

The Fat Lizard project was under an earn-in agreement with OceanaGold from February 14, 2019
until it was terminated December 19, 2019. The claims are still in good standing, and the Company
has termination does not intend to continue exploration on the project.

Jake Creek

The Jake Creek project was under an earn-in agreement with Ginguro Gold Pty. Ltd. from April 17,
2018 until it was terminated March 31, 2020. The claims are still in good standing, and the Company
is actively seeking another partner to continue exploration on the project.
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Qualified Person
All technical data, as disclosed in this MD&A, has been verified by the Company’s qualified person, Robert Felder,
M.Sc. and Certified Professional Geologist as recognized by the American Institute of Professional Geologists
(AIPG).

Trends
The Company is an exploration company. At this time, issues of seasonality or market fluctuations have a minor
impact on the expenditure patterns, although the majority of the USA exploration costs are incurred in the months of
June through November. The Company expenses its exploration, project investigation and general and administration
costs, and these amounts are included in the net loss for each quarter. The level of the Company’s exploration
expenditures is largely determined by the strength of its ability to obtain funding partners for its projects.

Financial Condition – nine months ended March 31, 2020
RenGold began the current fiscal period with $4,277,843 cash. During the nine months ended March 31, 2020, the
Company spent $1,874,049 on operating activities, net of funding partner contributions and working capital changes,
spent $43,014 on investing activities, and received $15,500 from the exercise of stock options, with a positive $37,125
effect of foreign exchange on cash to end at March 31, 2020 with $2,413,405.
Operating activities
The majority of the Company’s expenses are incurred in US dollars but reported in Canadian dollars. The exchange
rate at March 31, 2020 was 1.4187 compared to 1.3087 at June 30, 2019. The average exchange rate for the nine
months ended March 31, 2020 was 1.3283 compared to 1.3192 in the comparative period. The effect of these
translation differences distorts the actual expenditure comparisons.
Exploration and evaluation expenditures on RenGold projects for the nine months ended March 31, 2020, totaled
$1,864,880 (2019 - $1,761,764). Of the amount expended, partners funded $1,190,036 (2019 - $1,126,833) and
RenGold funded the balance of $674,844 (2019 - $634,931). Included in exploration and evaluation expenditures is
$452,727 (2019 - $496,249) of annual claim maintenance fees of which funding partners paid $196,696 (2019 $296,509). In addition to the exploration and evaluation expenditures recorded in RenGold’s accounts, funding
partners also conducted additional exploration programs directly on RenGold’s projects as required under the
particular exploration earn-in agreements.
Salaries and benefits charged to administration totaled $637,054 (2019 - $450,331) for the nine months ended March
31, 2020. Salaries and benefits charged to exploration and evaluation expenditures were an additional $362,764 (2019
- $437,093) of which $115,013 (2019 - $140,221) was recovered from funding partners.
Non-cash share-based compensation expense was $523,390 (2019 - $263,448) and relates to stock options granted
during the period.
On July 1, 2019, the Company recorded right-of-use assets totaling $305,680 with a corresponding entry to operating
lease obligations. The Company calculated the present value of the minimum lease payments using an interest rate of
7%. Thereafter, the right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases which is
three years. During the nine months ended March 31, 2020, the Company recorded interest expense of $5,434 on the
operating lease obligations and recorded depreciation of $77,564 on the right-of use assets.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
As at March 31, 2020, the Company had working capital of $2,379,678.
In May 2020, the Company received formal notification from AngloGold indicating their decision to make the final
payment of US$2,400,000 to the Company to complete the acquisition of 100% of the Silicon project.
Management estimates that these funds will provide the Company with sufficient financial resources to carry out
currently planned exploration and operations through the next twelve months.
At the date of this MD&A, the Company has 18,719,548 exercisable warrants outstanding at exercise prices ranging
from $0.48 to $0.50, and 6,445,000 exercisable stock options outstanding at exercise prices ranging from $0.185 to
$0.57, that if exercised will raise additional capital for the Company.

Contractual Obligations
The Company’s expenditure commitments on its exploration and evaluation assets are primarily at the Company’s
discretion. License fees and details of lease payments and minimum work commitments to maintain the option
agreement and the underlying exploration and evaluation asset option agreements are described in the notes to the
Financial Report. The Company will fund these expenditures with existing working capital.

Related Party Transactions
There are no additional related party transactions other than those disclosed in Note 13 of the Financial Report.

Additional Disclosure for Venture Issuers without Significant Revenue
The components of exploration costs are described in Note 8 to the Financial Report.

Outstanding Share Data as at the date of this MD&A
The authorized share capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited
number of preferred shares issuable in series with special rights or restrictions attached.
Common
Shares issued
and
outstanding
68,521,030
68,521,030

Balance, March 31, 2020
Balance, date of this MD&A
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Warrants
18,719,548
18,719,548

Stock
Options
6,445,000
6,445,000
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-looking Statements
This MD&A may include or incorporate by reference certain statements or disclosures that constitute “forwardlooking information” under applicable securities laws. All information, other than statements of historical fact,
included or incorporated by reference in this MD&A that addresses activities, events or developments that RenGold
or its management expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future constitute forward-looking information.
Forward-looking information is provided through statements that are not historical facts and are generally, but not
always, identified by the words “expects”, “plans”, “anticipates”, “believes”, “intends”, “estimates”, “projects”,
“potential” and similar expressions, or that events or conditions “will”, “would”, “may”, “could” or “should” occur or
continue. These forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by RenGold and its
management in light of its experience and its perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future
developments, as well as other factors it believes are appropriate in the circumstances.
Although RenGold believes such forward-looking information and the expectations expressed in them are based on
reasonable assumptions, investors are cautioned that any such information and statements are not guarantees of future
realities and actual realities or developments may differ materially from those projected in forward-looking
information and statements. Whether actual results will conform to the expectations of RenGold is subject to a number
of risks and uncertainties, including those risk factors discussed in the Annual MD&A and the documents incorporated
herein by reference. In particular, if any of the risk factors materialize, the expectations, and the predictions based on
them, of RenGold may need to be re-evaluated. Consequently, all of the forward-looking information in this MD&A
and the documents incorporated herein by reference is expressly qualified by these cautionary statements and other
cautionary statements or factors contained herein or in documents incorporated by reference herein, and there can be
no assurance that the actual results or developments anticipated by RenGold will be realized or, even if substantially
realized, that they will have the expected consequences for RenGold.
Forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs, estimates and opinions of RenGold’s management on the date
the statements are made. Unless otherwise required by law, RenGold expressly disclaims any intention and assumes
no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements in the event that management’s beliefs, estimates or
opinions, or other factors, should change, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, and
RenGold does not have any policies or procedures in place concerning the updating of forward-looking information
other than those required under applicable securities laws. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements or forward-looking information.

Other Information
Additional information relating to RenGold is available for viewing on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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EXHIBIT 3
TO APPENDIX C
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER OF RENAISSANCE

(see attached)

RENAISSANCE GOLD INC.
(formerly 0881833 B.C. LTD.)
CHARTER FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1.
1.1.

Purpose
The Audit Committee is ultimately responsible for the policies and practices relating to integrity
of financial and regulatory reporting, as well as internal controls to achieve the objectives of
safeguarding of corporate assets; reliability of information; and compliance with policies and
laws. Within this mandate, the Audit Committee’s role is to:
(a)

support the Board of Directors in meeting its responsibilities to shareholders;

(b)

verify the independence of the external auditor;

(c)

facilitate effective communications between management and the external auditor and
provide a link between the external auditor and the Board of Directors;

(d)

increase the credibility and objectivity of the Company’s financial reports and public
disclosure.

1.2.

The Audit Committee will make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding items
relating to financial and regulatory reporting and the system of internal controls following the
execution of the Committee’s responsibilities as described herein.

1.3.

The Audit Committee will undertake those specific duties and responsibilities listed below and
such other duties as the Board of Directors from time to time prescribe.

2.

Membership

2.1.

Each member of the Audit Committee must be a director of the Company.

2.2.

The Audit Committee will consist of at least three members, the majority of whom are neither
officers nor employees of the Company or any of its affiliates.

2.3.

The members of the Audit Committee will be appointed annually by and will serve at the
discretion of the Board of Directors.

3.
3.1.

4.
4.1.

Authority
In addition to all authority required to carry out the duties and responsibilities included in this
charter, the Audit Committee has specific authority to:
(a)

engage, and set and pay the compensation for, independent counsel and other advisors as
it determines necessary to carry out its duties and responsibilities; and

(b)

communicate directly with management and any internal auditor, and with the external
auditor without management involvement.

Duties and Responsibilities
The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:
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(a)

recommending to the Board of Directors the external auditor to be nominated by the
Board of Directors;

(b)

recommending to the Board of Directors the compensation of the external auditor;

(c)

reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan, fee schedule and any related services
proposals;

(d)

overseeing the work of the external auditor;

(e)

verifying that the external auditor is in good standing with the Canadian Public
Accountability Board and will enquire if there are any sanctions imposed by the CPAB
on the external auditor;

(f)

verifying that the external auditor meets the rotation requirements for partners and staff
on the Company’s audits;

(g)

reviewing and discussing with management and the external auditor the annual audited
financial statements, including discussion of material transactions with related parties,
accounting policies, as well as the external auditor’s written communications to the
Committee and to management;

(h)

reviewing the external auditor’s report, audit results and financial statements prior to
approval by the Board of Directors;

(i)

reporting on and recommending to the Board of Directors the annual financial statements
and the external auditor’s report on those financial statements, prior to Board approval
and dissemination of financial statements to shareholders and the public;

(j)

reviewing financial statements, MD&A and annual and interim earnings press releases
prior to public disclosure of this information;

(k)

ensuring adequate procedures are in place for review of all public disclosure of financial
information by the Company, prior to is dissemination to the public;

(l)

overseeing the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal accounting controls and
internal audit process and obtaining from the external auditor summaries and
recommendations for improvement of such internal controls and processes;

(m)

ensuring the integrity of disclosure controls and internal controls over financial reporting;

(n)

resolving disputes between management and the external auditor regarding financial
reporting;

(o)

establishing procedures to deal with complaints and concerns, from employees and
others, regarding questionable accounting , internal accounting controls or auditing
practises;

(p)

the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns
regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters;

(q)

reviewing and approving the Company’s hiring policies with respect to partners or
employees (or former partners or employees) of either a former or the present external
auditor;
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4.2.
5.

(r)

pre-approving all non-audit services to be provided to the Company or any subsidiaries
by the Company’s external auditor; and

(s)

overseeing compliance with regulatory authority requirements for disclosure of external
auditor services and Audit Committee activities.

The Audit Committee will report, at least annually, to the Board regarding the Committee’s
examinations and recommendations.
Meetings

5.1.

The quorum for a meeting of the Audit Committee is a majority of the members of the Committee
who are not officers or employees of the Company or of an affiliate of the Company.

5.2.

The members of the Audit Committee must elect a chair from among their number and may
determine their own procedures.

5.3.

The Audit Committee may establish its own schedule of meeting dates that it will provide to the
Board of Directors in advance.

5.4.

The Audit Committee will meet separately with the President and separately with the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company at least annually to review the financial affairs of the Company.

5.5.

The Audit Committee will meet with the external auditor of the Company at least once each year,
at such time(s) as it deems appropriate, to review the external auditor’s examination and report.

5.6.

The external auditor must be given reasonable notice of, and has the right to appear before and to
be heard at, each meeting of the Audit Committee.

5.7.

The chair of the Audit Committee must convene a meeting of the Audit Committee at the request
of the external auditor, to consider any matter that the auditor believes should be brought to the
attention of the Board of Directors or the shareholders.

6.
6.1.

7.
7.1.

Reports
The Audit Committee will record its recommendations to the Board in written form which will be
incorporated as a part of the minutes of the Board of Directors’ meeting at which those
recommendations are presented.
Minutes
The Audit Committee will maintain written minutes of its meetings, which minutes will be filed
with the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Renaissance Gold Inc. (formerly 0881833 B.C. Ltd). on September
17, 2010.

APPENDIX D
INFORMATION CONCERNING OROGEN
(see attached)

APPENDIX D
INFORMATION CONCERNING OROGEN
The following is a summary of Orogen, its business and operations, which should be read together with the
detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this Circular. The information
contained in this Appendix D, unless otherwise indicated, is given as of July 8, 2020.
All capitalized terms used in this Appendix D and not defined herein have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the
“Glossary of Terms” or elsewhere in this Circular. The following contains significant amounts of forward-looking
information. Readers are cautioned that actual results may vary. See also in this Circular, “Cautionary Statement
Regarding Forward-Looking Information”.
References to dollars ($) in this Circular shall mean Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.
Corporate Structure
Name, Address and Incorporation
As soon as practicable following the Effective Time, Evrim will change its name to “Orogen Royalties Inc.”
(“Orogen”). Orogen will continue to be governed by the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) following
the completion of the Arrangement. The Orogen Shares (including the Consideration Shares issued pursuant to the
Arrangement) will be listed for trading on the TSXV under the symbol “OGN”. Orogen will be a reporting issuer in
British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan and Ontario.
Orogen will have its head office, registered office and records office at 1201 – 510 West Hastings Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, V6B 1L8. Orogen will also have exploration offices in Reno, Nevada and Hermosillo,
Mexico.
Intercorporate Relationships
Orogen will hold a 100% direct or indirect interest in twelve subsidiaries. The following table sets forth Orogen’s
direct and indirect subsidiaries, as well as each subsidiary’s respective jurisdiction of incorporation and principal
activity.

Evrim Exploration Canada Corp.

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation
British Columbia, Canada

1124798 B.C. Ltd.

British Columbia, Canada

Mineral exploration company

1174610 B.C. Ltd.

British Columbia, Canada

Holding company

Evrim Resources (Barbados) Ltd.

Barbados

Holding company

Minera Evrim, S.A. de C.V.

Sonora, Mexico

Mineral exploration company

Servicios Mineros Orotac, S.A. de C.V.

Sonora, Mexico

Service company

Opata Resources, S.A. de C.V.

Sonora, Mexico

Mineral exploration company

Evrim Resources USA Inc.

Nevada, USA

Mineral exploration company

Renaissance Gold Inc.

British Columbia, Canada

Holding company

Name of Subsidiary

Principal activity
Mineral exploration company
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Renaissance Exploration Inc.

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation
Nevada, USA

Kinetic Gold Corp.

British Columbia, Canada

Holding company

Kinetic Gold (US) Inc.

Nevada USA

Mineral exploration company

Name of Subsidiary

Principal activity
Mineral exploration company

The following diagram sets forth the corporate structure of Orogen following the Arrangement:

Renaissance is in the process of amalgamating Renaissance Exploration Inc. with Kinetic Gold (US) Inc. with
Renaissance Exploration Inc. as the surviving entity. The amalgamation is expected to complete on June 30, 2020
and the projects held by Kinetic Gold (US) Inc. will, upon delivery of a Certificate of Merger to the regulators, be
re-registered in the name of Renaissance Exploration Inc.
Description of the Business of Orogen
On completion of the Arrangement, Orogen will continue to execute on the combined visions of Evrim and
Renaissance of building a company focused on organic royalty creation and royalty acquisition. Orogen will
continue to utilize a project generator business model to focus on organically generating royalties derived from its
portfolio of mineral property interests, joint ventures and alliances.
The two key components of Orogen’s business strategy will be:
•

Royalty Generation: Orogen will generate mineral property royalty interests through leveraging its
exploration expertise in western North America; broad project pipeline in Nevada, western Canada and
Mexico; and active exploration joint ventures and alliances, to discover and develop mineral projects which
can be sold or optioned to partner companies for retained royalty interests, advance minimum royalty
payments, project milestone payments and other considerations. These payments and considerations will
provide Orogen with financial benefits while mineral projects are developed and operated by other parties,
with little to no ongoing financial commitment on the part of Orogen.

•

Mineral Exploration: Orogen will also use its exploration expertise, broad project pipeline and active joint
ventures and alliances to discover and develop mineral exploration projects, with a focus on Nevada,
western Canada and Mexico. Orogen’s mineral exploration project portfolio will be used to generate
additional royalty interests and other transaction opportunities.
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Orogen will benefit from the extensive exploration experience and high-end technical skill of Evrim and
Renaissance team members joining Orogen as well as the database covering substantial areas of Mexico and
portions of western Canada and southwestern United States.
Orogen will be focused on using its business strategy to provide a foundation for Orogen’s future growth and
increase shareholder value over the long-term. Orogen will also target strategic acquisitions of royalty interests,
mineral properties and mineral exploration companies holding accretive assets as part of a broader consolidation
strategy.
Specialized Skills and Knowledge
All aspects of the business of Orogen will require specialized skills and knowledge. Such skills and knowledge
include the areas of geology, drilling, logistical planning, geophysics, metallurgy and mineral processing,
implementation of exploration programs, mine construction, mine operation and accounting.
Competitive Conditions
As a mineral exploration and development company with a focus on organic royalty creation and royalty acquisition,
Orogen may compete with other entities in the mineral exploration and development business in various aspects of
the business including: (a) seeking out and acquiring mineral exploration and development properties; (b) obtaining
the resources necessary to identify and evaluate mineral properties and to conduct exploration and development
activities on such properties; and (c) raising the capital necessary to fund its operations. The mining industry is
intensely competitive in all its phases, and Orogen may compete with other companies that have greater financial
resources and technical facilities. The ability of Orogen to acquire and retain mineral properties in the future will
depend on its success with the existing properties of Renaissance and Evrim, its success in identifying and staking
additional mineral properties, its ability to enter into future earn-in, joint venture, royalty and similar agreements and
its ability to obtain additional financing to fund further exploration activities. Competition could adversely affect
Orogen’s ability to acquire suitable properties or prospects in the future or to raise the capital necessary to continue
with operations.
Cycles
The mineral exploration business is subject to mineral price cycles. The marketability of minerals and mineral
concentrates and the ability to finance Orogen’s ongoing mineral exploration activities on favourable terms will also
be affected by worldwide economic cycles.
Foreign Operations
Orogen’s mineral projects will be located in Canada, the United States and Mexico. As such, Orogen’s operations
and investments may be affected by local political and economic developments, including expropriation,
invalidation of government orders, permits or agreements pertaining to mineral or property rights, political unrest,
labour disputes, limitations on repatriation of earnings, limitations on mineral exports, limitations on foreign
ownership, inability to obtain or delays in obtaining necessary mining permits, opposition to mining from local,
environmental or other non-governmental organizations, government participation, royalties, duties, rates of
exchange, high rates of inflation, price controls, exchange controls, currency fluctuations, taxation and changes in
laws, regulations or policies as well as by laws and policies of Canada affecting foreign trade, investment and
taxation.
Environmental Protection
All aspects of Orogen’s field operations will be subject to environmental regulations and generally will require
approval by appropriate regulatory authorities prior to commencement. Any failure to comply could result in fines
and penalties. Orogen may also be held liable should environmental problems be discovered that were caused by
former owners and operators of its properties.
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Description of Securities
The authorized share capital of Orogen will be the same as the currently authorized share capital of Evrim and the
rights associated with each Orogen Share will be the same as the rights associated with each Evrim Share. Orogen
will have an unlimited number of Orogen Shares authorized for issuance.
Based on pro-forma figures as of the date hereof that give effect to the Arrangement, it is anticipated that there will
be approximately: (i) 170,590,795 Orogen Shares issued and outstanding; (ii) 12,387,736 options to acquire Orogen
Shares issued and outstanding; and (iii) 23,302,092 warrants to acquire Orogen Shares issued and outstanding. See
“Pro-Forma Consolidated Capitalization” in this Appendix D – “Information Concerning Orogen”.
Selected Pro-Forma Financial Information
The unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements of Evrim (the “Pro-Forma Financial
Statements”) and accompanying notes are included in Appendix E – “Unaudited Pro-Forma Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements of Evrim” to this Circular. The Pro-Forma Financial Statements have been
compiled from the underlying financial statements of Evrim and Renaissance, both of which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS, in order to illustrate Evrim’s financial circumstances immediately following the
Arrangement. Evrim will change its name to “Orogen Royalties Inc.” following the Effective Time.
The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss for the three months ended March
31, 2020 combines the unaudited historical consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss of Evrim and the
unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss of Renaissance for the three months
ended March 31, 2020, to give effect to the Arrangement as if it had occurred on January 1, 2019. The unaudited
pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020 combines the historical unaudited
consolidated statement of financial position of Evrim and the historical unaudited consolidated statement of
financial position of Renaissance, as at that date, to give effect to the Arrangement as if it had occurred on March
31, 2020. The Pro-Forma Financial Statements do not purport to project Evrim or Renaissance’s respective
consolidated financial positions or the results of operations for any future period.
The Pro-Forma Financial Statements are based on certain assumptions and adjustments. The selected unaudited proforma condensed consolidated financial information set out below should be read in conjunction with, and is
qualified in its entirety by, the description of the Arrangement contained in this Circular and the Pro-Forma
Financial Statements included in this Circular in Appendix E – “Unaudited Pro-Forma Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements of Evrim”.
Evrim Resources
Corp.
(C$)

Renaissance Gold
Inc.
(C$)

Pro-forma
adjustments
(C$)

Pro-forma
consolidated
(C$)

Cash and cash
equivalents
Other current assets
Current assets

2,774,540
6,402,505
9,177,045

2,413,405
117,311
2,530,716

(800,000)
(800,000)

4,387,945
6,519,816
10,907,761

Non-current assets
Total assets

441,696
9,618,741

1,908,996
4,439,712

(1,592,699)
(2,392,699)

757,993
11,665,754

197,174
114,758
311,932

151,038
224,163
375,201

-

348,212
338,921
687,133

9,306,809

4,064,511

(2,392,699)

10,978,621

9,618,741

4,439,712

(2,392,699)

11,665,754

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total shareholders’
equity
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity
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Pro-Forma Consolidated Capitalization
The following table sets forth the capitalization of Evrim and Renaissance before giving effect to the Arrangement,
and the approximate capitalization of Orogen after giving effect to the Arrangement:
Category of Security

Amount Outstanding Before Giving
Effect to the Arrangement(1)(2)

Amount Outstanding After Giving
Effect to the Arrangement(2)

Evrim Shares

85,295,817

85,295,817

Renaissance Shares

68,521,030

85,294,978

N/A

170,590,795

Evrim Options

4,365,000

4,365,000

Renaissance Options

6,445,000

8,022,736

Total Orogen Options

N/A

12,387,736

Renaissance Warrants

18,719,548

23,302,092

Total Orogen Warrants

N/A

23,302,092

Total Orogen Securities

N/A

206,280,623

Total Orogen Shares

Notes:
(1)
See Arrangement Agreement dated June 9, 2020 between Evrim and Renaissance, which is incorporated by reference in this Circular
and available on SEDAR (www.sedar.com) under Evrim and Renaissance’s profiles.
(2)
Assuming that no Evrim Options, Renaissance Options or Renaissance Warrants are exercised between the date of the Arrangement
Agreement and the Effective Time.

Dividends
There are no restrictions in Evrim’s articles or elsewhere, other than customary general solvency requirements, which
would prevent Orogen from paying dividends following completion of the Arrangement.
Principal Securityholders
To the best of the knowledge of the directors and officers of Evrim and Renaissance, upon completion of the
Arrangement, there will be no persons or companies who will beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise
control or direction over, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to Orogen Shares, except
Altius Resources Inc., as follows:
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Shareholder and
Category of
Shareholdings

Before Giving Effect to the
Arrangement

After Giving Effect to the Arrangement

Number of Evrim Shares
and Renaissance Shares

Approximate Number of
Orogen Shares

Percentage
of Voting
Rights

Evrim Shares

11,464,875

11,464,875

6.7%

Renaissance Shares

6,800,000

8,464,640

5.0%

N/A

19,929,515

11.7%(1)

Altius Resources Inc.

Total Orogen Shares

Notes:
(1)
Altius Resources Inc. is also the holder of 5,716,216 Renaissance Warrants, which will be converted into 7,115,545 Orogen Warrants
pursuant to the Arrangement, resulting in Altius Resources Inc. holding, on a fully-diluted basis, securities carrying 13.1% of the
voting rights attached to Orogen Shares.

Officers and Directors of the Combined Company
The management team of Orogen following the Arrangement will be a combination of the current management
teams of Evrim and Renaissance, and will include the following individuals:
(i)

J. Patrick (“Paddy”) Nicol, President and Chief Executive Officer;

(ii)

Robert P. Felder, Senior Vice President;

(iii)

Dave Groves, Vice President, Exploration; and

(iv)

Mahesh Liyanage, Chief Financial Officer.

The board of directors of Orogen following the Arrangement will be comprised of two of the current Evrim directors
and two of the current Renaissance directors, as follows:
(i)

Paul van Eeden;

(ii)

David Caulfield;

(iii)

Bob Felder; and

(iv)

Tim Janke.

All of the four directors of Orogen will be considered independent directors of Orogen. It is expected that Orogen
will maintain the existing board committees of Evrim. Committee positions will be determined by the board of
directors of Orogen as needed.
The directors of Orogen will hold office until the next annual meeting of the Orogen Shareholders or until their
successor is duly appointed, unless their office is earlier vacated in accordance with the articles of Orogen or the
BCBCA.
After giving effect to the Arrangement, it is expected that the number of Orogen Shares beneficially owned, directly
or indirectly, or over which control or direction will be exercised, by the proposed directors and officers of Orogen
and their associates and affiliates, will be an aggregate of approximately 7,896,819 Orogen Shares representing
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approximately 4.6% of the estimated outstanding Orogen Shares on an undiluted basis following completion of the
Arrangement.
Name and
State/Province and
Country of Residence

Position with
Company

Principal Occupation

Number of
Orogen
Securities (1)

Paul van Eeden
ON, Canada

Director

President, Cranberry Capital Inc., a private investment
holding company

4,000,000
Orogen Shares

David A. Caulfield,
P.Geo.
BC, Canada

Director

Independent Geologist and corporate director

1,012,000
Orogen Shares

Robert P. Felder
Nevada, USA

Director and
Senior Vice
President

Senior Vice President of Orogen, previously President of
Renaissance since May 29, 2017 and Chief Executive Officer
of Renaissance since November 14, 2017. Founder and
President of Kinetic Gold Corp. from June 8, 2011 to May
29, 2017.

Timothy M. Janke,
Nevada, USA

Director

Mining industry consultant, a Director of U.S. Gold Corp. a
publicly trading mining company, and from August 2014 to
April 3, 2019 the Chief Operating Officer of Pershing Gold
Corporation.

J. Patrick (“Paddy”)
Nicol
BC, Canada

President and
Chief Executive
Officer

President & Chief Executive Officer of Orogen

Dave Groves
Idaho, USA

Vice President,
Exploration

Vice President, Exploration of Orogen since June 17, 2019,
previously an independent exploration consultant up to June
17, 2019.

Mahesh Liyanage
BC, Canada

Chief Financial
Officer

1,084,052
Orogen Shares
834,016 Orogen
Options
168,890 Orogen
Shares
522,567 Orogen
Options
1,496,877
Orogen Shares
1,000,000
Orogen Options
1,000,000
Orogen Options
135,000 Orogen
Shares

Chief Financial Officer of Orogen
1,000,000
Orogen Options

Notes:
(1)
Number of Orogen securities beneficially owned, or controlled or directed, directly or indirectly, by such individual assuming
completion of the Arrangement.

Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions
Except as set out below, no proposed director or executive officer of Orogen (or personal holding company) is, as at
the date of this Circular, or was within 10 years before the date of this Circular, a director, chief executive officer or
chief financial officer of any company (including Renaissance) that:
(i)

was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order denying the relevant company access to any
exemptions under securities legislation that was in effect for more than 30 consecutive days while the
director or executive officer was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief
financial officer, or

(ii)

was subject to a cease trade or similar order or an order denying the relevant company access to any
exemptions under securities legislation that was in effect for more than 30 consecutive days that was
issued after the director or executive officer ceased to be a director, chief executive officer or chief
financial officer and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in the
capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer.
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Paul Van Eeden was a Director and Executive Chairman of Synodon Inc. until November 17, 2016. On November
30, 2016, a receiver was appointed under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) pursuant to a Court Order of
the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta and on May 8, 2017, Synodon Inc. was cease traded by the Alberta Securities
Commission.
Mahesh Liyanage was the Chief Financial Officer of Synodon Inc. from March 1, 2016 to November 30, 2016. On
November 30, 2016, a Receiver was appointed under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) pursuant to a
Court Order of the Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta and on May 8, 2017, Synodon Inc. was cease traded by the
Alberta Securities Commission.
No director or executive officer of Renaissance (or personal holding company), or, to the knowledge of
Renaissance’s management, a Renaissance Shareholder holding a sufficient number of Renaissance Shares to affect
materially the control of Renaissance:
(i)

is, as at the date of this Circular, or has been within the 10 years before the date of this Circular, a
director or executive officer of any company (including Renaissance) that, while that person was acting
in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee
appointed to hold its assets; or

(ii)

has, within the 10 years before the date of this Circular, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any
legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any proceedings,
arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to
hold the assets of the director, executive officer or shareholder.

No director or executive officer of Renaissance (or personal holding company), or, to the knowledge of
Renaissance’s management, a Renaissance Shareholder holding a sufficient number of Renaissance Shares to affect
materially the control of Renaissance, has been subject to:
(i)

any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities
regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority, or

(ii)

any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered
important to a reasonable investor in making an investment decision.

Executive Compensation
It is expected that Orogen will maintain the policies of Evrim with respect to executive compensation following the
completion of the Arrangement.
See “Executive Compensation” in this Circular.
Compensation of Directors
It is expected that Orogen will maintain the policies of Evrim with respect to director compensation following the
completion of the Arrangement.
See “Executive Compensation” in this Circular.
Corporate Governance
It is expected that Orogen will maintain the policies of Evrim with respect to corporate governance following the
completion of the Arrangement.
See “Corporate Governance” in this Circular.
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Stock Exchange Listing
It is expected that Orogen Shares will continue to trade on the TSXV under the symbol “OGN” following the
completion of the Arrangement.
The Arrangement is subject to the approval of the TSXV with respect to the listing of the Orogen Shares to be issued
under the Arrangement as well as the Orogen Shares issuable on due exercise of the Replacement Options and the
Replacement Warrants.
Risks Factors
Upon the completion of the Arrangement, Orogen will be engaged in the exploration and evaluation of resource
properties and will operate in an industry that involves a high degree of risk. The reader should carefully consider
the following risks and uncertainties in addition to other information contained herein in evaluating Orogen and its
business before making any investment decision regarding the Orogen Shares. The risks described below are not the
only ones facing Orogen. Additional risks not presently known to Orogen may also impair its business operations.
These risk factors should be considered in conjunction with the other information included in the Circular, this
Appendix D and Appendices C, and E, including the documents incorporated by reference therein, and documents
filed by Evrim and Renaissance pursuant to applicable Laws from time to time.
Risks Inherent in the Mining and Metals Business
The business of exploring for minerals is inherently risky. Few properties that are explored are ultimately developed
into producing mines. Mineral properties are often non-productive for reasons that cannot be anticipated in advance.
Title claims can impact the exploration, development, operation and sale of any natural resource project. Even after
the commencement of mining operations, such operations may be subject to risks and hazards, including
environmental hazards, industrial accidents, unusual or unexpected geological formations, ground control problems
and flooding. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could result in damage to or destruction of mineral properties
and production facilities, personal injuries, environmental damage, delays or interruption of production, increases in
production costs, monetary losses, legal liability and adverse governmental action. Orogen’s property, business
interruption and liability insurance may not provide sufficient coverage for losses related to these or other hazards.
Insurance against certain risks, including certain liabilities for environmental pollution, may not be available to
Orogen, or to other companies within the industry. In addition, insurance coverage may not continue to be available
at economically feasible premiums, or at all. Any such event could have a material adverse effect on Orogen.
Mineral Resources and Recovery Estimates
Disclosed resource estimates should not be interpreted as assurances of mine life or of the profitability of current or
future operations. Evrim estimates and Orogen will estimate its mineral resources in accordance with the
requirements of applicable Canadian securities regulatory authorities and established mining standards. Mineral
resources are concentrations or occurrences of minerals that are judged to have reasonable prospects for economic
extraction, but for which the economics of extraction cannot be assessed, whether because of insufficiency of
geological information or lack of feasibility analysis, or for which economic extraction cannot be justified at the
time of reporting. Consequently, mineral resources are of a higher risk are less likely to be accurately estimated or
recovered than mineral reserves. The mineral reserve and resource figures are estimates based on the interpretation
of limited sampling and subjective judgements regarding the grade and existence of mineralization, as well as the
application of economic assumptions, including assumptions as to operating costs, foreign exchange rates and future
metal prices. The sampling, interpretations or assumptions underlying any reserve or resource figure may be
incorrect, and the impact on mineral resources may be material. In addition, short term operating factors relating to
mineral resources, such as the need for orderly development of orebodies or the processing of new or different ores,
may cause mineral resource estimates to be modified or operations to be unprofitable in any particular fiscal period.
There can be no assurance that the indicated amount of minerals will be recovered or that they will be recovered at
the prices assumed for purposes of estimating resources.
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Orogen Will Have No Control Over the Exploration, Development or Operation of Royalty Projects
Orogen will not, be directly involved in the exploration, development and operation of the mineral projects in which
Evrim and Renaissance have a royalty interest (“Royalty Projects”). The revenue Orogen may derive from its
portfolios of royalties is based entirely on speculated production from third-party mine owners and operators.
Orogen expects to eventually receive payments under certain royalty agreements as a result of production from
certain mines and operations, however, Orogen will not have a direct interest in the operation or ownership of such
mines and operations. The owners and operators will generally have the power to determine if mine operations and
extractive facilities are constructed at Royalty Projects and the manner in which such extraction takes place. The
owners and operators will also generally have power to makes decisions regarding the expansion, reduction,
continuation, suspension or discontinuation of production from a property, to make decisions about the marketing of
products extracted from the property and to make decisions to advance exploration efforts and conduct development
of non-producing properties. The interests of third-party owners and operators and those of Orogen in respect of a
Royalty Projects may not always be aligned.
The inability of Orogen to control the operations for Royalty Projects may result in a material adverse effect on the
profitability, the results of operations and the financial condition of Orogen. Except in a limited set of circumstances
as may be specified in respect of a specific royalty, Orogen will not receive compensation if a specific mineral
project fails to achieve or maintain production or is later closed or discontinued. Each Royalty Project is currently in
the exploration or development stage and may not commence commercial production, and there can be no assurance
that if such operations do commence production that they will achieve profitable and continued production levels. In
addition, the owners or operators may take action contrary to policies or objectives of Orogen; be unable or
unwilling to fulfill their obligations under their agreements with Orogen; have difficulty obtaining or be unable to
obtain the financing necessary to move projects forward; or experience financial, operational or other difficulties,
including insolvency, which could limit the owner or operator’s ability to perform its obligations under
arrangements with Orogen. Orogen is also subject to the risk that a specific project may be abandoned, put on care
and maintenance or, if later producing, have its operations suspended, on either a temporary or permanent basis.
The owners or operators of Royalty Projects may from time to time announce transactions, including the sale or
transfer of the projects or of the operator itself, over which Orogen will have little or no control. If such transactions
are completed it may result in a new operator controlling the project, who may or may not operate the project in a
similar manner to the current operator, which may positively or negatively impact Orogen. If any such transaction is
announced, there is no certainty that any such transaction will be completed, or completed as announced, and any
consequences of such non-completion, may be difficult or impossible to predict.
Exploration and Evaluation Risks
Mineral exploration involves many risks, which even a combination of experience, knowledge and careful
evaluation may not be able to overcome. Operations in which Orogen has a direct or indirect interest will be subject
to all the hazards and risks associated with exploration and evaluation.
Public Health Crises, including the COVID-19 Pandemic, May Significantly Impact Orogen
Orogen’s business, operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected by public health crises,
including epidemics, pandemics and or other health crises, such as the outbreak of COVID-19. The current COVID19 global health pandemic is significantly impacting the global economy and commodity and financial markets. The
full extent and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is unknown and to date has included volatility in financial
markets, a slowdown in economic activity, volatility in commodity prices (including precious metals) and has raised
the prospect of a global recession. Activity on projects in which Evrim and Renaissance, and hold an interest
(“Mineral Projects”) could be suspended for precautionary purposes or as governments declare states of emergency
or other actions are taken in an effort to combat the spread of COVID-19.
Indigenous Peoples
Various international and national laws, codes, resolutions, conventions, guidelines, and other materials relate to the
rights of indigenous peoples. Orogen may hold royalty or other interests on projects located in some areas presently
or previously inhabited or used by indigenous peoples. Many of these materials impose obligations on government

D-11

to respect the rights of indigenous people. Some mandate that government consult with indigenous people regarding
government actions which may affect indigenous people, including actions to approve or grant mining rights or
permits. The obligations of government and private parties under the various international and national materials
pertaining to indigenous people continue to evolve and be defined. Orogen’s future operations are subject to a risk
that one or more groups of indigenous people may oppose continued operation, further development, or new
development on those projects or operations on which Orogen holds a royalty or other interest. Such opposition may
be directed through legal or administrative proceedings or protests, roadblocks or other forms of public expression
against the owner/operators’ activities. Opposition by indigenous people to such activities may require modification
of or preclude operation or development of projects or may require the entering into of agreements with indigenous
peoples. Claims and protests of indigenous people may disrupt or delay activities of the owners/operators of
Orogen’s Royalty Projects or Mineral Projects.
Insurance
Evrim’s and Renaissance’s, and subsequently Orogen’s, involvement in the exploration for natural resources may
result in Orogen becoming subject to liability for pollution, property damage, personal injury or other hazards and
any insurance Orogen may have may not be sufficient to cover the full extent of such liabilities.
Prices, Markets and Marketing of Gold and Metal Prices
World prices for commodities fluctuate and are affected by numerous factors including international economic and
political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations, interest rates, global or regional
consumptive patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to new mine developments and improved
mining and production methods. The effect of these factors on the price of commodities, and therefore an economic
downturn could have a negative impact on Orogen.
Liquidity and Capital Requirements
Neither Evrim nor Renaissance currently have any operations generating cash to fund projected levels of exploration
and development activity and associated overhead costs. Evrim and Renaissance are, and following the Arrangement
Orogen will be, therefore dependent upon debt and equity financing to carry out their exploration and development
plans. There can be no assurance that such financing will be available to Orogen or at all. Management anticipates
that, subject to financing, it will make substantial capital expenditures towards developing Evrim’s and
Renaissance’s, and subsequently Orogen’s, mineral properties. However, there is no assurance that they will operate
profitably or will generate positive cash flow in the future. Orogen may require additional financing in order to
proceed with the exploration and evaluation of Evrim’s and Renaissance’s, and subsequently Orogen’s, properties
and to sustain the business operations if they are not successful in earning revenues. Orogen may also need further
financing if it decides to obtain additional mineral properties. Orogen’s future may be dependent upon its ability to
obtain financing. If Orogen does not obtain such financing, if required, its business could fail, and investors could
lose their entire investment.
Environmental Risks
Environmental legislation will affect nearly all aspects of Orogen’s, operations. Compliance with environmental
legislation can require significant expenditures and failure to comply with environmental legislation may result in
the imposition of fines and penalties, clean-up costs arising out of contaminated properties, damages and the loss of
important permits. Exposure to these liabilities arises not only from existing operations, but from operations that
have been closed or sold to third parties. There can be no assurances that Orogen will be at all times in compliance
with all environmental regulations or that steps to achieve compliance would not materially adversely affect Orogen.
Environmental laws and regulations are evolving in all jurisdictions where Evrim and Renaissance have activities.
Orogen is not able to determine the specific impact that future changes in environmental laws and regulations may
have on operations and activities, and its resulting financial position; however, Orogen anticipates that capital
expenditures and operating expenses will increase in the future as a result of the implementation of new and
increasingly strident environmental regulation. Further changes in environmental laws, new information on existing
environmental conditions or other events, including legal proceedings based upon such conditions or an inability to
obtain necessary permits, could require increased financial resources or compliance expenditures or otherwise have

D-12

a material adverse effect on Orogen. Changes in environmental legislation could also have a material adverse effect
on product demand, product quality and methods of production and distribution.
Government Regulation
The natural resource exploration industry is subject to controls and regulations imposed by various levels of
government. It is not expected that any of these controls or regulations will affect the operations of Orogen in a
manner materially different than they would affect other natural resource exploration companies of similar size. The
current legislation is a matter of public record and Orogen is unable to predict what additional legislation or
amendments may be enacted.
Markets for Securities
There can be no assurance that an active trading market in the Orogen Shares will be sustained. The market price for
the Orogen Shares could be subject to wide fluctuations. Factors such as commodity prices, government regulation,
interest rates, share price movements of its peer companies and competitors, as well as overall market movements,
may have a significant impact on the market price of the Orogen Shares.
Reliance on Key Individuals
Orogen’s success will depend to a certain degree upon certain key members of the management. It is expected that
these individuals will be a significant factor in Orogen’s growth and success. The loss of the service of members of
the management and certain key employees could have a material adverse effect on Orogen.
Conflicts of Interest
Some of Orogen’s directors and officers may have conflicts of interest as a result of their involvement with other
natural resource companies. Some of the persons who are directors and officers of Orogen are directors or officers of
other natural resource or mining-related companies and these associations may give rise to conflicts of interest from
time to time. As a result of these conflicts of interest, Orogen may miss the opportunity to participate in certain
transactions, which may have a material adverse effect on Orogen’s financial position.
Title to Property
There may be challenges to title to the mineral properties in which Orogen holds an interest. If there are title defects
with respect to any such properties, Orogen might be required to compensate other persons or perhaps reduce its
interest in the affected property. Also, in any such case, the investigation and resolution of title issues would divert
management’s time from ongoing exploration and evaluation programs.
Legal Proceedings
The nature of the businesses of Orogen may be subject to numerous regulatory investigations, claims, lawsuits, and
other proceedings. The result of these legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty. There can be no
assurance that these matters will not have a material adverse effect on Orogen.
Foreign Currency and Foreign Exchange
Orogen will have operations in Canada, Mexico and the United States and is subject to foreign currency fluctuations.
Orogen’s operating expenses will be incurred in Canadian dollars, Mexican pesos and United States dollars, and the
fluctuation of the Canadian dollar in relation to the Mexican pesos and United States dollar will have an impact upon
the profitability of Orogen and may also affect the value of Orogen’s assets and the amount of Orogen Shareholders’
equity.
Neither Evrim nor Renaissance uses derivative instruments to reduce their exposure to foreign currency risks.
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Third-Party Reporting
Evrim and Renaissance rely on, and Orogen will rely on, public disclosure and other information regarding specific
mineral projects that are received from the owners of such projects or other independent experts. The information
received may be susceptible to being imprecise as a result of it being compiled by certain third parties. The
disclosure created by Orogen may be inaccurate if the information received contains inaccuracies or omissions,
which could create a material adverse effect on Orogen. Further, Orogen must rely on the accuracy and timeliness of
the public disclosure and other information it receives from the owners of Mineral Projects, and uses such
information in its analyses, forecasts and assessments relating to its own business and to prepare its disclosure with
respect to Mineral Projects. If the information provided by such third parties contains material inaccuracies or
omissions, Orogen’s disclosure may be inaccurate and their ability to accurately forecast or achieve its stated
objectives may be materially impaired, which may have a material adverse effect on Orogen.
In addition, upon achieving production, a royalty agreement may require an owner to provide Orogen with
production and operating information that may, depending on the completeness and accuracy of such information,
enable Orogen to detect errors in the calculation of royalty payments that it receives. The ability of Orogen, to detect
payment errors through its associated internal controls and procedures is limited, and the possibility exists that
Orogen, will need to make retroactive revenue adjustments. Of the royalty agreements that Orogen enters into, some
may provide the right to audit the operational calculations and production data for associated payments; however,
such audits may occur many months following the recognition of the applicable revenue and may require Orogen to
adjust its revenue in later periods.
As a holder of interests in royalties, Orogen will have limited access to data on the operations or to the actual
properties underlying the royalties. This limited access to data or disclosure regarding operations could affect the
ability of Orogen to assess the performance of the royalties. This could result in delays in cash flow from that which
is anticipated by Orogen based on the stage of development of the properties covered by the assets within the
portfolios of Evrim and Renaissance.
Global Financial Conditions
Current global financial conditions have been subject to increased volatility, and access to public financing,
particularly for junior resource companies, has been negatively impacted. These factors may impact the ability of
Orogen to obtain equity or debt financing in the future and, if obtained, such financing may not be on terms
favourable to Orogen. If increased levels of volatility and market turmoil continue, Orogen’s operations could be
adversely impacted, and the value and price of the Orogen Shares could be adversely affected.
See also “Risk Factors - Public Health Crises, including the COVID-19 Pandemic, May Significantly Impact
Orogen”.
Competition
Evrim and Renaissance compete, and Orogen will compete, with many companies that have substantially greater
financial and technical resources than it for project acquisition or project development, as well as for the recruitment
and retention of qualified employees.
Corporate Governance and Public Disclosure Regulations
Orogen will be subject to changing rules and regulations promulgated by a number of United States and Canadian
governmental and self-regulated organizations, including the British Columbia Securities Commission and the
TSXV. These rules and regulations continue to evolve in scope and complexity and many new requirements have
been created, making compliance more difficult and uncertain. Evrim’s and Renaissance’s, and subsequently
Orogen’s, efforts to comply with the new rules and regulations have resulted in, and are likely to continue to result
in, increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenuegenerating activities to compliance activities.
Future Financing and Funding
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Evrim and Renaissance have no revenues from operations and have recorded losses since inception. Orogen expects
to incur operating losses in future periods due to continuing expenses associated with general and administrative
costs, costs of seeking new business opportunities, and advancing its properties. Orogen will have finite financial
resources and its ability to achieve and maintain profitability and positive cash flow is dependent upon its ability to:
•

generate revenues in excess of expenditures;

•

reduce costs in the event revenues are insufficient; and

•

secure near and long term financing.

Historically, Evrim and Renaissance have relied on equity financing to meet their capital requirements. Additional
funds raised by Orogen through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities will cause Orogen Shareholders
to experience dilution. Such securities may grant rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of Orogen
Shareholders.
Evrim does not have any contractual restrictions on its ability to incur debt and accordingly, Orogen could incur
significant amounts of indebtedness to finance its exploration activity. Any such indebtedness could contain
covenants, which would restrict Orogen’s operations.
In light of volatile commodity prices, the limited ability of junior mining issuers to access capital markets, Orogen
may need to pursue alternative ways to finance its future exploration operations and seeks new business
opportunities. There is no certainty that additional financing either through traditional equity and debt financing
arrangements or an alternative transaction, or any combination thereof will be available at all or on acceptable terms.
Joint Venture Risk
Evrim and Renaissance operate certain of their properties through joint ventures and are subject to the risks normally
associated with the conduct of joint ventures. Certain of the properties in which Evrim and Renaissance have an
interest are operated through joint ventures with other mining companies and are subject to the risks normally
associated with the conduct of joint ventures. Such risks will be applicable to Orogen and include: inability to exert
control over strategic decisions made in respect of such properties; disagreement with partners on how to develop
and operate mines efficiently; inability of partners to meet their obligations to the joint venture or third parties; and
litigation between partners regarding joint venture matters. Any failure of such other companies to meet their
obligations to Orogen or to third parties, or any disputes with respect to the parties’ respective rights and obligations,
could have a material adverse effect on the joint ventures or their respective properties, which could have a material
adverse effect on Orogen.
Auditor
It is expected that the auditor for Orogen will continue to be Smythe LLP, located at 1700 - 475 Howe Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2B3, following the completion of the Arrangement.
Registrar and Transfer Agent
It is expected that the transfer agent and registrar for Orogen will continue to be Computershare Trust Company of
Canada, located at 510 Burrard Street, 3rd Floor, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3B9, following the completion
of the Arrangement.

APPENDIX E
UNAUDITED PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EVRIM
(see attached)

Unaudited Pro-Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2020

EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the three months ended March 31, 2020 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars – Unaudited)

Notes

Evrim
Resources
Corp.
C$

Renaissance Gold
Inc.
C$

Pro-forma
adjustments
C$

Pro-forma
consolidated
C$

2f

2,774,540

2,413,405

(800,000)

4,387,945

6,058,805

-

-

6,058,805

23,500

9,382

-

32,882

2i

310,527

35,841

29,712

376,080

2i

-

29,712

(29,712)

-

9,673

42,376

-

52,049

9,177,045

2,530,716

(800,000)

10,907,761

2g

-

1,592,699

(1,592,699)

-

19,352

-

-

19,352

2i

249,010

46,157

248,529

543,696

173,334

21,611

-

194,945

-

248,529

(248,529)

-

441,696

1,908,996

(1,592,699)

757,993

9,618,741

4,439,712

(2,392,699)

11,665,754

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Current operating lease
liabilities

54,262

50,389

-

104,651

58,331

26,978

-

85,309

Joint venture partner deposits

84,581

73,671

-

158,252

197,174

151,038

-

348,212

109,452

224,163

-

333,615

5,306
114,758

224,163

-

5,306
338,921

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short term investments
Marketable securities
Amounts receivable
Amounts due from funding
partners
Prepaid expenses and
deposits
Non -current assets
Exploration and evaluation
assets
Prepaid rent deposit
Equipment
Reclamation bond
Right-of-use assets

2i

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long term operating lease
liabilities
Provision for environmental rehabilitation
Shareholders' Equity
Issued capital

2b,3

27,517,214

37,561,544

(7,870,070)

57,208,688

Contribution surplus

2d, 3

831,158

5,555,836

(3,152,971)

3,234,023

Other comprehensive income
Accumulated deficit

-

74,891

(4,692)

70,199

(19,041,563)

(39,127,760)

8,635,034

(49,534,289)

9,306,809

4,064,511

(2,392,699)

10,978,621

9,618,741

4,439,712

(2,392,699)

11,665,754

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the pro-forma consolidated financial statements.
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EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF LOSS AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the three months ended March 31, 2020 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars – Unaudited)
Notes

Evrim
Resources Corp.

Renaissance
Gold Inc.

Pro-forma
adjustments

Pro-forma
consolidated

C$

C$

C$

C$

616

-

-

616

616

-

-

616

-

6,408

Mineral Property Operations
Revenue
Project management fees
Expenses
Acquisition expenditures

2e

6,408

Exploration expenditures

2g

100,093

86,751

14,952

201,796

Exploration reimbursements

(6,162)

-

-

(6,162)

Government grant

(4,044)

-

-

(4,044)

96,295

86,751

14,952

197,998

(95,679)

(86,751)

(14,952)

(197,382)

39,924

-

-

39,924

-

12,021

-

12,021

-

(1,826)

-

(1,826)

(19,500)

9,476

4,692

(5,332)

20,424

19,671

4,692

44,787

Loss from mineral property
operations
Other Operations
Interest income
Gain on sale of equipment
Interest expenses on operating
lease obligation
Gain/(loss) on investments

2h

Expenses
Accounting and legal

17,820

13,162

-

30,982

Depreciation

25,612

29,566

-

55,178

48,302

(20,425)

-

27,877

General and administrative

77,216

59,652

-

136,868

Investor services
Management and professional
fees
Marketing services

15,813

17,259

-

33,072

58,120

31,500

-

89,620

21,337

31,910

-

53,247

Salaries and support services

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss

2h

315,854

247,545

-

563,399

Share-based compensation

38,556

33,575

-

72,131

Travel

15,965

5,204

-

21,169

634,595

448,948

-

1,083,543

Loss from other operations

(614,171)

(429,277)

-

(1,038,756)

Net loss for the period

(709,850)

(516,028)

(10,260)

(1,236,138)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the pro-forma consolidated financial statements.
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EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF LOSS AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the three months ended March 31, 2020 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars – Unaudited)
Evrim
Resources Corp.

Renaissance
Gold Inc.

Pro-forma
adjustments

Pro-forma
consolidated

C$

C$

C$

C$

2h

-

4,692

(4,692)

-

2h

-

30,448

-

35,140

(4,692)

30,448

(709,850)

(480,888)

(14,952)

(1,205,690)

(0.01)

(0.01)

(0.01)

85,295,817

68,521,030

170,590,795

Notes

Unrealized gain on
marketable securities
Foreign currency
translation difference for
foreign operations

Comprehensive loss
for the period
Basic and diluted loss
per share
Weighted average
number of common
shares outstanding

30,448

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the pro-forma consolidated financial statements.
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EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF LOSS AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the year-ended December 31, 2019 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
Notes

Evrim
Resources
Corp.
C$

Renaissance
Gold Inc.

Pro-forma
adjustments

Pro-forma
consolidated

C$

C$

C$

Mineral Property Operations
Revenue
Option proceeds

363,403

-

-

363,403

Project management fees

190,369

92,627

-

282,996

553,772

92,627

-

646,399

Expenses
Acquisition expenditures

2e

227,222

-

28,829,828

29,057,050

Exploration expenditures

2g

3,545,209

801,469

1,555,096

5,901,774

(2,423,543)

(435,535)

-

(2,859,078)

Exploration tax recovery

(16,449)

-

-

(16,449)

Government grant
Provision for environmental
rehabilitation

(58,540)

-

-

(58,540)

(61,219)

-

-

(61,219)

1,212,680

365,934

30,384,924

32,038,527

(658,908)

(273,307)

(30,384,924)

(31,392,128)

215,619

44,516

-

260,135

2h

(108,000)

-

(9,382)

(117,382)

2h

-

(3,608)

3,608

-

2h

-

(217,282)

217,282

-

107,619

(176,374)

211,508

142,753

Accounting and legal

130,937

51,818

-

182,755

Depreciation

178,904

58,600

-

237,504

93,970

12,498

-

106,468

206,938

199,897

(3,608)

403,227

48,290

67,595

-

115,885

173,626

96,000

-

269,626

57,091

105,738

-

162,829

Exploration reimbursements

Gain/(loss) from mineral property
operations
Other Operations
Interest income
Gain/(loss) on investments
Interest expenses on operating
lease obligation
Write-off of exploration and
evaluation assets
Expenses

Foreign exchange loss
General and administrative
Investor services
Management and professional fees
Marketing services
Salaries and support services

2h

1,389,927

661,005

-

2,050,932

Share-based compensation

244,040

489,815

-

733,855

Travel

157,844

18,278

-

176,122

2,681,567

1,761,244

(3,608)

4,439,203

Loss from other operations

(2,573,948)

(1,937,618)

215,116

(4,296,450)

Net loss for the period

(3,232,856)

(2,210,925)

(30,169,808)

(35,613,589)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the pro-forma consolidated financial statements.
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EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF LOSS AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the year-ended December 31, 2019 (Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
Notes

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities
Foreign currency translation
difference for foreign operations

Comprehensive loss for the
period
Basic and diluted loss per share
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding

2h

Evrim
Resources
Corp.
C$

Renaissance
Gold Inc.

Pro-forma
adjustments

Pro-forma
consolidated

C$

C$

C$

-

(9,382)

9,382

-

-

(13,467)

-

(13,467)

-

(22,849)

9,382

(13,467)

(3,232,856)

(2,233,774)

(30,160,426)

(35,702,045)

(0.04)

(0.03)

(0.21)

84,616,384

68,461,030

170,590,795

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the pro-forma consolidated financial statements.
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EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.

NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Evrim Resources Corp. (the “Company” or “Evrim”) is a mineral exploration company. Evrim is a
publicly listed company incorporated in Canada with limited liability under the legislation of the
Province of British Columbia. The Company’s shares are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange
under the symbol EVM. The head office, principal registered, and records office of the Company
are located at 1201 - 510 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, V6B 1L8.
On June 9, 2020, the Company entered into an arrangement agreement (the “agreement”) in
connection with a friendly merger of equals (the “Transaction”) with Renaissance Gold Inc.
(“Renaissance”), a company listed on the TSX Venture exchange under the symbol REN. The
Transaction will be completed by way of a Plan of Arrangement under the Business Corporation
Act (British Columbia) whereby Evrim will acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of
Renaissance at an exchange rate of 1.2448 Evrim shares for each Renaissance share. Upon
completion of the Transaction Evrim will change its name to Orogen Royalties Inc.
These unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial statements have been compiled in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”), using the significant accounting policies on a basis
consistent with the Company’s accounting policies. The unaudited pro-forma consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto
of the Company and Renaissance, in addition to the management information circulars dated July
8, 2020 issued by Evrim and Renaissance.
The unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
by management using the information derived as described below:
•
•
•
•
•

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019
and 2018
The condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the Company for the three
months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019
The condensed interim consolidated financial statements of Renaissance for the nine
months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019
The audited consolidated financial statements of Renaissance for the year ended June
30, 2019 and 2018
The condensed interim consolidated financial statements of Renaissance for the six
months ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss for the three
months ended March 31, 2020 combines the unaudited historical consolidated statement of
loss and comprehensive loss of Evrim and the unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement
of loss and comprehensive loss of Renaissance for the three months ended March 31, 2020,
to give effect to the Acquisition as if it had occurred on January 1, 2019. The unaudited pro
forma consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020 combines the
historical unaudited consolidated statement of financial position of Evrim and the historical
unaudited consolidated statement of financial position of Renaissance, as at that date, to give
effect to the Acquisition as if it had occurred on March 31, 2020.
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EVRIM RESOURCES CORP.

NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, CONTINUED
It is management’s opinion that these unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated
financial statements include all adjustments necessary for the fair presentation of the
Transaction. The unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial statements are not intended
to reflect the financial position or results of operations of the Company, which would have
actually resulted had the Transaction been effected on the dates indicated. Actual amounts
recorded upon consummation of the Transaction will differ from those recorded in the
unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position and the differences may
be material.
The Transaction is considered to be an asset acquisition under IFRS 3 - Business
combinations (‘IFRS 3”). The unaudited proforma condensed consolidated financial
statement have therefore been prepared using accounting methods in accordance with
IFRS 6. Accordingly, the cost of acquiring the exploration and evaluation assets are
expensed at the amount of consideration paid, as the Company’s accounting policy is to
expense acquisition costs for exploration and evaluation assets. In certain instances,
adequate information is not available at the time of the preparation of these unaudited pro
forma condensed consolidated financial statement to perform a final estimate of fair value.
Accordingly, certain pro-forma adjustment contained herein are preliminary and have been
made solely for the purpose of providing unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated
financial statement of Evrim and Evrim’s future performance and financial position.
These unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements are presented for
illustrative purposes only and do not reflect the additional savings or costs that may result
from the Transaction. There can be no assurance that cost savings and synergies will be
achieved. Similarly, no amounts have been included in the purchase price allocation for
the estimated costs to be incurred to achieve savings or other benefits of the Transaction.
2. PRO-FORMA TRANSACTIONS
The unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial statements were prepared based on the
following assumptions:
(a) The unaudited pro-forma consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss
give effect to the Transaction as if it had been in effect as at January 1, 2019 and
the unaudited pro-forma consolidated statement of financial position gives effect to
the Transaction as if it had been in effect as at March 31, 2020.
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NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
2. PRO-FORMA TRANSACTIONS, CONTINUED
(b) In accordance with the terms of agreement the Company will issue approximately
85,294,978 common shares. Taking the 10-day volume weighted average price
(“VWAP”) as at June 9, 2020 of $0.3481, the fair value of the shares issued is
estimated at $29,691,474.
The pro-forma adjustment of $7,870,070 is to recognize the effect of the proposed
transaction, to reverse amounts of share capital held under Renaissance and
recognize the Evrim shares issued.
(c) The Company will issue a maximum of 8,022,736 fully paid ordinary shares to
existing Renaissance option holders if and when the options are exercised in
accordance with the terms of Evrim stock option plan. The total fair value of these
replacement options is estimated at $1,772,417. The fair value of Renaissance
options were estimated at $1,463,141. The difference between the fair values are
included as part of the consideration for the Transaction.
(d) The Company will further issue a maximum of 23,283,420 common shares to
existing Renaissance warrant holders and 18,672 to finders warrant holders if and
when they are exercised in accordance with the terms of the warrants. The total fair
value of these replacement warrants is estimated at $5,394,068. The fair value of
Renaissance warrants were estimated at $3,300,479. The difference between the
fair values are included as part of the consideration for the Transaction.
The pro-forma adjustment of $3,152,971 is to recognize the effect of the
Transaction, to reverse amounts of share-based payments reserve held under
Renaissance, which relate to options and warrants issued by Renaissance being
replaced as above.
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NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
2. PRO-FORMA TRANSACTIONS, CONTINUED
(e) Total consideration for the acquisition of Renaissance, by the Company is estimated
at $32,894,339. The activity of Renaissance does not constitute a business, as
defined by IFRS 3, and consequently, Evrim has applied the principles of IFRS 6 in
the accounting for the acquisition. The identifiable assets and liabilities of
Renaissance as of March 31, 2020:
Assets Acquired

C$

Cash and cash equivalents

2,413,405

Exploration and evaluation assets

1,592,699

Marketable securities

9,382

Amounts receivable

35,841

Amounts due from funding partners

29,712

Prepaid expenses and deposits

42,376

Equipment

46,157

Reclamation bond

21,611

Right-of-use assets

248,529

Liabilities assumed
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(50,389)

Current operating lease liabilities

(26,978)

Joint venture partner deposits

(73,671)

Long term operating lease liabilities

(224,163)
4,064,511

Consideration paid
Evrim shares (85,294,978)

29,691,474

Evrim options (8,022,736)

309,276

Evrim warrants (23,283,420)

2,091,850

Evrim finders’ warrants (18,672)
Transaction cost

1,739
800,000

Consideration paid

32,894,339

Cost of acquisition

28,829,828

The $28,829,828 of difference between the net assets acquired as per Renaissance
financial statements and the purchase consideration is recognized as an adjustment
to the pro forma condensed consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income under acquisition expenditures.
Pro-forma net adjustments to the accumulated deficit and current profits of
$8,635,034 are to reflect the impact of amounts held under Renaissance resulting
from the Transaction.
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NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
2. PRO-FORMA TRANSACTIONS, CONTINUED
(f) The transaction costs towards the Transaction are estimated to be approximately
$800,000. As the transaction will be accounted for as an asset acquisition, these
transaction costs are recognized as part of the total consideration.
(g) Prior to the Transaction and as at March 31, 2020, Renaissance capitalized the
acquisition of exploration and evaluation assets and expensed exploration
expenditures as incurred. Exploration and evaluation assets were written-off to
comply with Evrim’s accounting policy.
(h) Unrealized gain on marketable securities, interest expenses on operating lease
obligation and write-off of exploration and evaluation assets were reclassified to be
consistent with the Company’s financial statements presentation.
(i) Right-of use assets were reclassified under equipment and amounts due from
funding partners were reclassified under accounts receivable to be consistent with
the Company’s financial statement presentation.
3. SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTIBUTED SURPLUS
Share capital in the unaudited pro-forma consolidated financial position is comprised of the
following:
Issued capital

Shares
Authorized:
Unlimited common shares, without par
value
Share capital as set out in the reviewed
financial statements of the Company
New share issued pursuant to the
Transaction
Issue of replacement options to existing
option holders of Renaissance (note 4)
Issue of replacement warrants to existing
warrant holders of Renaissance (note 4)
Issue of replacement finder’s warrants to
existing warrant holders of Renaissance
(note 4)

Amount

C$

Contributed
surplus

C$

-

-

-

85,295,817

27,517,214

831,158

85,294,978

29,691,474

-

-

-

309,276

-

-

2,091,850

170,590,795

$ 57,208,688

1,739
$ 3,234,023
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NOTES TO PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars - Unaudited)
4. REPLACEMENT STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS
The fair value of the options, warrants and finders’ warrants is estimated at the date of the
Agreement using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
The Company used the following weighted average assumptions: average volatility of 96%, riskfree interest rate of 1.60%, an average expected life of 3 years and a dividend yield of 0%.
Volatility was estimated using historical prices of the Company’s shares.

Options
Expiry Date
18-Aug-21
24-Jul-22
19-Dec-22
14-Aug-23
17-Jul-24
16-Mar-25

Warrants
Expiry Date
16-May-23
16-May-23
30-Apr-24

Original
Exercise
price
C$
0.57
0.265
0.265
0.205
0.285
0.185

Original
Exercise
price
C$
0.48
0.48
0.50

Balance
March 31,
2020
810,000
825,000
20,000
1,860,000
2,730,000
200,000
6,445,000

Balance
March 31,
2020
12,988,332
15,000
5,716,216
18,719,548

Revised
Exercise
Price
C$
0.458
0.213
0.213
0.165
0.229
0.149

Revised
Exercise
Price
C$
0.386
0.386
0.402

Balance Post
Merger
1,008,288
1,026,960
24,896
2,315,328
3,398,304
248,960
8,022,736

Balance Post
Merger
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16,167,875
18,672
7,115,545
23,302,092

Fair market Fair market
value of
value of
replacement Renaissance
options
options
C$
C$
39,037
80,347
249,555
173,088
6,593
4,350
652,549
464,783
747,929
680,525
76,754
60,048
1,772,417
1,463,141

Fair market Fair market
value of
value of
replacement Renaissance
warrants
warrants
C$
C$
3,686,807
2,185,408
4,263
2,524
1,702,998
1,112,547
5,394,068
3,300,479

Difference
C$
(41,310)
76,467
2,243
187,766
67,404
16,706
309,276

Difference
C$
1,501,399
1,739
590,451
2,093,589

APPENDIX F
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
1.

PURPOSE

The primary function of the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) of Evrim Resources Corp. (the “Company”) is to
provide an open avenue of communication between management, the independent auditor and the Board as well as to
assist the Board in its oversight of the:
a)

integrity, adequacy and timeliness of the company’s financial reporting and disclosure practices;

b)

processes for identifying and managing the principal financial risks of the company and the
company’s internal control systems that ensures fair, complete and accurate financial reporting;

c)

company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements related to financial reporting; and

d)

independence and performance of the company’s external auditor.

The Committee shall perform the duties listed in this Charter consistent with the Company’s by- laws and governing
laws as the Committee deems necessary or appropriate.
2.

MEMBERSHIP AND OPERATIONS

The Committee shall consist of at least three directors with a majority of the members being “independent” as such
term is defined in National Instrument 52-110, Audit Committees, as may be amended or replaced from time to time.
All members shall have sufficient financial literacy, which means the ability to read and understand a balance sheet,
income statement, cash flow statement and the notes attached thereto, to enable them to discharge their responsibilities
in accordance with applicable laws and/or requirements of the TSXV on which the company’s securities trade.
Committee members shall serve until qualified successors are duly designated and appointed by the Board. Any
member may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by a majority of the Board then in office. Any vacancy
in the Committee occurring for any cause may be filled by a majority of the Board then in office.
The Committee’s Chairperson shall be designated by the Board. A majority of the members of the Committee shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of those present at any meeting at which
there is a quorum shall be the act of the Committee.
3.

AUTHORITY

The Board of Directors has granted the Committee the authority herein provided. The Committee has been, and shall
be, granted unrestricted access to all information and all employees have been, and shall be, directed to cooperate as
requested by members of the Committee. The Committee has the authority to retain, at the Company’s expense,
persons having special competencies (including, without limitation, legal, accounting, compensation or other
consultants and experts) to assist the Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities. The Committee has the sole authority
to terminate the Committee’s engagement of its experts and to approve the fees and other terms of retention of such
experts.
4.

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee’s role is one of oversight. Management is responsible for preparing the company’s financial statements
and other financial information and for the fair presentation of the information set forth in the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS. Management is also responsible for establishing systems of internal control and for maintaining
the appropriate accounting and financial reporting principles and policies designed to assure compliance with
accounting standards and all applicable laws and regulations.
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The external auditor’s responsibility is to audit the company’s financial statements and provide its opinion, based on
its audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, that the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company in accordance
with IFRS. The external auditor is also responsible for issuing an attestation report on management’s assessment of
the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control as of the end of the Company’s most recent fiscal year
end. The Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, evaluation, termination and oversight
of the work of the external auditor. The external auditor shall report directly to the Committee, as they are accountable
to the Board and the Committee as representatives of the company’s shareholders. As such, it is not the duty or
responsibility of the Committee or any of its members to plan or conduct any type of audit or accounting review or
procedure.
In performing its oversight responsibilities, the Committee shall:
a)

Review and assess the adequacy of this Charter and recommend any proposed changes to the Board
for approval at least once per year.

b)

Review the appointments of the company’s Chief Financial Officer and any other key financial
executives involved in the financial reporting process.

c)

Review with management and the external auditor the adequacy and effectiveness of the company’s
systems of internal control and the adequacy and timeliness of its financial reporting processes.

d)

Review with management and the external auditor the annual audited financial statements,
management discussion and analysis reports and other financial reporting documents, including the
CEO and CFO certifications, prior to filing or distribution, including financial matters required to
be reported under applicable legal or regulatory requirements.

e)

Review with management the unaudited quarterly financial statements, management discussion and
analysis reports and other financial reporting documents, including the CEO and CFO quarterly
certifications, prior to filing or distribution, including financial matters required to be reported under
applicable legal or regulatory requirements.

f)

Review with management and the external auditor and approve earnings news releases and other
financial information and earnings guidance disclosures contained in such news releases prior to
their release.

g)

Where appropriate and prior to release, review with management and approve any other news
releases that contain significant financial information that has not previously been released to the
public.

h)

Review the company’s financial reporting and accounting standards and principles and significant
changes in such standards or principles or in their application, including key accounting decisions
affecting the financial statements, alternatives thereto and the rationale

i)

Review the quality and appropriateness, not just the acceptability, of the accounting policies and the
clarity of financial information and disclosure practices adopted by the company, including
consideration of the external auditors’ judgments about the quality and appropriateness of the
company’s accounting policies. This review shall include discussions with the external auditor
without the presence of management.

j)

Review with management and the external auditor significant related party transactions and
potential conflicts of interest.

k)

Recommend to the Board and shareholders the external auditor selected to examine the company’s
accounts and financial statements. The Committee has the responsibility to approve all audit
engagement terms and fees. The Committee shall pre-approve all audit, non-audit and assurance
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services provided to the company by the external auditor, but the Chairperson or his appointee may
be delegated the responsibility to approve these services where the fee is not significant.

5.

l)

Review with management and the external auditor and approve the annual audit plan and results of
and any problems or difficulties encountered during any external audits and management’s
responses thereto.

m)

Receive the report of the external auditor on completion of the audit.

n)

Monitor the independence of the external auditors by reviewing all relationships between the
independent auditor and the company and all audit, non-audit and assurance work performed for the
company by the independent auditor on at least an annual basis. The Committee will receive an
annual written confirmation of its independence from the external auditor.

o)

Review the company’s procedures and establish procedures for the Committee for the:
i)

receipt, retention and resolution of complaints regarding accounting, financial disclosure,
internal controls or auditing matters; and

ii)

confidential, anonymous submission by employees regarding questionable accounting,
auditing and financial reporting and disclosure matters.

p)

Conduct or authorize investigations into any matter that the Committee believes is within the scope
of its responsibilities. The Committee has the authority to retain independent counsel, accountants
or other advisors to assist it in the conduct of any investigation, at the expense of the Company.

q)

The Committee shall report its recommendations and findings to the Board after each meeting and
shall conduct and present to the Board an annual performance evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Committee.

KEY PRACTICES

The Committee has adopted the following key practices to assist it in fulfilling its responsibilities.
6.

MEETINGS

The Committee will meet at least four times per year to perform its responsibilities as set out in this Charter; however,
it may perform its duties by consent resolution instead of meetings. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Audit
Committee shall meet at least once per year.
The Committee may ask members of management or others to attend meetings to provide information as necessary.
The Committee shall meet separately with each of management and the independent auditor, as required, to discuss
matters that the Committee, or these groups, believe should be discussed privately with the Committee. Additional
meetings shall be held as required in the opinion of the Audit Committee or the external auditor. Minutes of all
meetings of the Committee will be provided to the Board. Written or verbal reports on Committee meetings whose
minutes have not been completed will be provided at each meeting of the Board.
7.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prior to releasing to the public, the Committee will review and approve the company’s annual and quarterly reports,
including the financial statements, the management discussion and analysis reports and other information contained
therein, in detail with the company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. The company’s external
auditors may be present at these meetings.
8.

REVIEW OF THE CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION PROCESS
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The Committee will review the company’s process for the CEO and CFO certifications required by the various
regulatory agencies in the jurisdictions in which the company operates with respect to the company’s financial
statements, disclosures and internal controls, including any significant changes or deficiencies in such controls. The
Chairperson of the Committee or his appointee shall review the company’s disclosure controls and procedures.
9.

REVIEW OF INFORMATION PROVIDED TO ANALYSTS AND RATING AGENCIES

The Committee shall review other news releases containing significant financial information that has not been
previously released to the public with the company’s Chief Financial Officer prior to their release. The substance of
presentations to analysts and rating agencies involving material changes in the company’s strategy or outlook shall be
reviewed with the full Board prior to the event.
10.

APPROVAL OF AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

In addition to approving the engagement of the external auditor to audit the company’s financial statements, the
Committee will approve all audit, non-audit and assurance services provided by the independent auditor prior to the
commencement of any such engagement. The Committee may delegate the responsibility for approving these services
to the Chairperson or his appointee where the fee is not significant. The Committee will review a summary of all audit,
non-audit and assurance work performed for the company at least twice per year. To minimize relationships that could
impair the independence of the external auditor, it is the Committee’s practice to limit non-audit and assurance services
provided by the independent auditor to assistance with financings, taxation, acquisition due diligence and merger
integration or other services where there are compelling reasons for the external auditor to provide such services.
11.

HIRING GUIDELINES FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Committee shall review and approve the appointment of any employee or former employee of the company’s
external auditor to a senior financial management position with the company. The Committee shall request
management to annually prepare a report of the profiles of all individuals hired during the past year who were
employed by the external auditor at any time during the two years prior to being hired by the company.
12.

COMPLAINTS ABOUT ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
DISCLOSURE MATTERS

The company’s Whistle Blower policy prohibits reprisals or intimidation of employees who draw attention to
problems or violations of ethical standards. Employees can report any concerns to their superior or the company’s
legal counsel, confidentially and anonymously. Employees may also submit, confidentially and anonymously,
concerns regarding questionable accounting, auditing and financial reporting and disclosure matters to the Chairperson
of the Audit Committee. A summary of all complaints related to auditing, accounting and financial reporting and/or
disclosure matters will be reported to the Committee at each meeting, and if the Committee so directs, to the full
Board. The Committee may retain outside counsel or other advisors to investigate and resolve any complaints
disclosed to it.
13.

OTHER MATTERS

Management shall report any real or suspected incidents of fraud, theft or violations of the Company’s Code of Ethics
to the Committee. Corporate Counsel shall report to the Committee any litigation, claim or other contingency that
could have a significant effect on the company’s financial results or disclosures.

